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CORE VALUES
L EER

VISION
RE=

MISSION
fEen

To be an acclaimed contractor and developer in Asia with dynamic and
sustainable growth

RA—TRENFD - BERED  FEMNOARERNERD

* Improve people’s quality of life through city and infrastructure development
SEPMAMERERE BAEE4EE

e Grow with our employees through fulfilling work environment and
career development
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e Create value for shareholders
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CORPORATE CULTURE
EEXIE

We aspire to excel in all aspects of our performance. In our business
dealings, we are responsive to the needs of our clients and ensure that
these needs are fully satisfied. \We manage our projects with qualified,
competent and experienced staff, whose clear priorities are to
thoroughly plan, execute and follow through the works and to fulfill our
obligations responsibly. Our staff always face up to challenges and
proactively tackle problems with practicality and perseverance in a
positive way.

We have followed this culture for half a century and believe that it has
been the key to our success. Our continued success serves to reinforce
the culture which has been with us from the outset.
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DEFINITIONS
5

In this annual report, unless the context otherwise requires, the following terms shall have the meanings set out below:

ERFEHRA - BXESEAEN

Terms

“Audit Committee”
[BZZEE ]
“Board”

[E=R)

“Bye-laws”
INCIEEUE

"CG Code”
[EXEAT A

“Chun Wo"
[M{&F0 ]

“Chun Wo Charitable Foundation”

[EMBEEE]

“Company”

(A7 ]

"Company Secretary”
[REWE ]

“CSR"

[CEMHEET
“Director(s)"”

(%]

"ESG"

[ - B REA
“Executive Committee”
[BTZE= ]
"“Executive Director(s)”

[ITEF]

"Group”
[R&E ]

"HK$" and “HK cent(s)”
(77T R [

THFRREABATRE

Definitions

B

the audit committee of the Board

EERERZES

the board of Directors

B/

the Bye-laws of the Company
RRARZARHA

the Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules

LR RIS TP 2 (R EERTRID

the construction business of the Group

REBET 2 REER

Chun Wo Charitable Foundation Limited
BHMEEESHRAT

Asia Allied Infrastructure Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in Bermuda
with limited liability, the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 00711)
DM ERERARAR - —HARBREZMA L Z2BERAT - R
ZFFER BT (R R5E  00711)

the company secretary of the Company
VNN /NS V=

corporate social responsibility
TEASEMT

the director(s) of the Company
KRRIZESE

Environmental, Social and Governance
RIE g RER

the executive committee of the Board
EERINTLZES

the executive director(s) of the Company

RRRZHITES

the Company and its subsidiaries from time to time

KRB REEZ K E AR

Hong Kong dollar(s) and cent(s), the lawful currency of Hong Kong

BILREN - BENEEEE
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Definitions

B

Terms

AR

“Hong Kong"” or “Hong Kong SAR"
(B [EEFRTTHER]

“INED(s)"
(B IFRITES]

“Lifewire”
[Lifewire & o B4 |

“Listing Rules”

[ AR A

“Management Committee”
[(EREZEE ]

“Model Code”
[EsEsrAl )

“Nomination Committee”

[fRRZEE

“Non-executive Director”

[FERITER]

“PRC"
[ E )

“Remuneration Committee”

EdEI b
"SFO”
[FE 7 KR RS

“Share(s)”

[ 15 ]
“Shareholder(s)"”
[B&E ]

"Stock Exchange”
[ B 22 BT J

“Year"”

[ARFE]

"o
[% ]
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Definitions

Bx

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
HEEBRRITTH R

the independent non-executive director(s) of the Company
RRB B IERITES

Lifewire Foundation Limited, was founded by Chun Wo

EOMRBERESBARAT - AEKRMAIL

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

Bpx2 g s LR Al

the management committee of the Board

EXREHRZES

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in

Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
EARBIM T PAE EREITABFETES R HNRETAD

the nomination committee of the Board

EXRREZEY

the non-executive director of the Company

RRRZIFRITES

the People’s Republic of China
HREE A R AR

the remuneration committee of the Board

EERFHEZES

the Securities and Futures Ordnance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as

amended from time to time
BEBEBE ST EFZH R BB R (ETRFIERT)

the ordinary share(s) of HK$0.10 each in the share capital of the Company
RARRAFEREEO.10ETT 2 BFMAX

the holder(s) of issued Share(s)

EEITRD ZFEA

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

BEBMERIMARAR

for the year ended 31 March 2020

BElZ 202043 A31HIFE

per cent
ERiNsd
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CORPORATE EVENT HIGHLIGHTS
EEARELE

BNRRBEAMBEIREL [EEEAK|BE
EMERGANBETIRBHERE BTREARE
TP EBRREETE — IRAN=NEEER
B M2019F5 26 ABE - AR TIRBE R HE
BX ZFNIRERERRRLEBENTEE [
BHBIREENRERIZ2BE — RK78k
B o ARIEEREEMIELX2EENTMANE
N EESUKIEBE  WARGFETIERERI®E
EEMBR

06/2019

Lifewire and The SAR Philharmonic Orchestra

Hosted the Charity Concert

Lifewire and The SAR Philharmonic Orchestra jointly organised the
Charity Concert on 17 June 2019 to raise funds for children with
rare diseases. 33 organisations supported and sponsored the Charity
Concert and it raised over HK$1 million. All net proceeds were
donated to Lifewire to support children who are suffering from rare
diseases.

Lifewire (G « i) AE B ELEMAM (2« B | HEEFERS
Lifewire{& o BB R BB LEN 2019F6 A 17 BEH[Z « B
KBEFR=T ABEELERNAEEN EEE=QE33M#
B IENER)  WESBBI100&8BTT - FrEEHNANBRAARE R
S Lifewire (£ e B R) - WX EBEERKERNRE -

Chun Wo's Largest Solo Project in History
“Heung Yuen Wai Highway” Opened for Operation
“Heung Yuen Wai Highway"”, Chun Wo'’s largest solo project in
history Liantang/Heung Yuen Wai Boundary Control Point, Site
Formation and Infrastructure Works — Contract 3, began operation
on 26 May 2019. In consideration of its scale, our project team has
come across a set of challenges in reducing the impact on traffic while
maintaining the progress and work safety. The contribution and effort
of the project team and other project participants bring us success
and have significantly eased the traffic pressure in the North District.

05/2019

DMEAERERAERAR 201920 F 3k e



Corporate Event Highlights
TEARELE

High-end Commercial Complex “Poly Daduhui” 10/2019
Laid Foundation in Hebei, the PRC

In October 2019, the Group announced the development of the third phase of
“Arc De Royal” in Shijiazhuang, Hebei Province, the PRC, a comprehensive
commercial development project named “Poly Daduhui”, and entrusted
LR FE EFIE AR A ) (transliterated as Hebei Poly Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.) (“Hebei Poly”) with its development and management
to jointly create and construct an iconic high-end commercial complex. On 26
October 2019, the Deputy Chairman of the Group, Mr. Xu Jianhua, and the
General Manager of Hebei Poly, Mr. Ma Qinghua, and local media participated
in a grand foundation laying ceremony of the project held in Shijiazhuang.

BEEESRETOEE [RAKXEHE | RAPETLER

20196108 - AEESHRAPETL A ARHEE [RAFES] E=H
—IHAE [RFIAEE | NEamERRER - UTETITLRIIEHERZES
BT (CUbRM D ETHEREE - UARITERER —FAEEHMEN S
IR EZEAFD c R2019F10 26 8 - AEBERI T EHREFE L L ETILR
AR BBELEUREHFE2 M T MATERITHEEBEE BEER -

10/2019

Chun Wo Participated in the “8* IWA-ASPIRE Conference
& Exhibition”

The biennial international mega “water” event, the 8" IWA-ASPIRE
Conference & Exhibition (the “Conference”), was held in Hong Kong
from 31 October 2019 to 2 November 2019. Mrs. Carrie Lam, Chief
Executive of the Hong Kong SAR, and a number of officials, as well
as more than 1,000 experts and delegates from over 30 countries
and regions attended the Conference.

Chun Wo participated in the Conference as a Diamond Sponsor, BRANBHEESE [ERKGEAEEER
presenting our “water projects” throughout the years, including the RRE]

large-scale project of “Replacement and Rehabilitation Water Mains ME—ERNBRBR AR KIES  F3E
Project”, “Happy Valley Underground Stormwater Storage Scheme EERKkipomAtReasMEE((@%])
(HVUSSS)”, which has won the “IWA Project Innovation Awards 2012", 201910 A31HE2019F 11 A2HR
for its outstanding construction performance, and the “Improvement EBERT o« BEEERITHRITEE T ME
of Water Supply to Sheung Shui and Fanling”. ABZtR%ZRZREE  MEKREB30ZE

BZR MR 1,000 2ERXMRKHBE
HEEE -

4 Smart Solutions for
TWA-ASPIRE T
wmrmgzs  WWater Resilience
31 OCTOMER - 2 NOVEMBER 2019
HONG KONG

BEMABOEDBRSN2EEHE  NAT
HZERW[KER | BRARIER[E
BREEKERE | BEEHETIRARE
5 [2012 FEBEKIHEIEB AIFT AL 1
[ TEMETE] - R EkERE
ok EE ] -
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Corporate Event Highlights
TERSLE

o, O
11/2019 /(’/(
-\~

Chun Wo and Lifewire Jointly Organised “Lifewire Run 2019” Charity Run cum Carnival

Chun Wo and Lifewire jointly organised the “Lifewire Run 2019” Charity Run cum Carnival (the “Charity Run”) on
10 November 2019. More than 1,700 runners took part in the races and over 100 organisations sponsored and joined the
event, raising about HK$2 million, all net proceeds were donated to Lifewire for supporting children with rare diseases and
promote public awareness of those diseases. Ir Dr. Pang Yat Bond, Derrick, JP, Chief Executive Officer of the Company and
founder of Lifewire, Ir Lam Sai Hung, JP, Permanent Secretary for Development (Works), Dr. Ko Wing Man, GBS, BBS, JP,
member of the National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference (Medical and Health Sector)
and former Secretary for Food and Health, artists Ms. Jacquelin Ch'ng and Ms. Griselda Yeung, and other committee
members of Lifewire, officiated the event and joined the runners in urging the community to support and give cheer to
children suffering from rare diseases.

BB Lifewire(GE e ) QM EM e« WMPT | ZER
BEEFHE

R AN Lifewire (G o BEAE) R 2019F 11 B10BGH [Ef o
WP | EERBEFE([ZEEH]) - 811,700 2 @22 INE
ERBA100EEEEZ B RS EZES - BE5K20088 T
BT 2= ZA0BR AR AN 1 2 8 4 Lifewire (G o BH48) - J//\iTE
EAEEREFENREMENABRHZSRFENRE - KA
TR KBEL B Lifewire (FE o Bt/ ﬂ>>EIJ#)J#/\=/—¥BT$iI&Eﬂi7K
Fat BEBEEIWMER (IK) M T2 K Fat -
FRARBGAHEERERNEZE S (BRFEN) ZERAR
Y R B B R = 7k X & 4 GBS, BBStWﬂﬂi ﬁ/\ﬂ%ﬁz
/N R A5 B/ ME - LA K Lifewire (G o BRI EHME S
KREHEHFETITESE  YEBF H2HEEE %ELA
FREAETFERFEBHBEFERLFRNTE -

Chun Wo Participated in the First “Construction
Innovation Expo 2019"

Chun Wo participated in the first “Construction Innovation Expo
2019" held between 17 and 20 December 2019 during which it
showcased the research and development achievements of
Inno@ChunWo, including such technologies as the pioneering
Rapid Repairing Mortar Materials (R?M?), Modular Integrated
Construction (MiC), the “Robotic Arm” jointly developed with
The Chinese University of Hong Kong and Building Information
Modelling (BIM). Among them, R?M? won the “Construction
Productivity — 2 Prize” at the CIC Construction Innovation
Award 2019, complementing its originality and applicability.

BNZ2REE 2019 BRI EES ]
BRZER2019F12 A17HE20 HETHEE 20198
BlFEEE ] - H&ﬁF'EJJ:'/TTInno@ChunWoE’]ﬁﬂ%EZ% B
B AR RS M ERM) #Aﬁk &%
(MIiQ) ~ EEBP X AZ KRN H%ﬂzéﬂ MIZEZEHE
BEBIM) ST - Erp - RMURFEEBAINE ME B IHA2019
BEEZCAETRE (BEEENE —FB-RFHE -
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Corporate Event Highlights
TEARELE

12/2019

Acquisition of the minority interest
of the Kau To Shan Residential
Development Project

The Group acquired the minority interest of the residential
development project at Kau To Shan, “The Cavaridge” in
December 2019. The project is consisted of two 13-storey
residential buildings and 56 houses, providing a total of 104
residential units.

WEAMILEERREER DEES
AEBEP2019F 12 BB R UL IL{EEERIE
BlEs] v 0HiEz - ZBERMEISESH
FEEFRC6EBYFEEMANK - & £ 104 E
EFE o

01/2020

Equity investment with ECO

In January 2020, the Group has successfully accomplished
an equity investment with ECO Group Holdings Sdn. Bhd.
("ECO"), a renowned Malaysian company that provides a
diversified range of services including interior design and
fitting-out, construction, manufacturing and construction
materials supply chain, jointly exploring the Malaysian
market and accelerating the development of the Group in
the regions along the “Belt and Road”.

HESERRESE

20201 A - AEERNEFRATANE R AEEEE
% j% A BR A 8] (ECO Group Holdings Sdn. Bhd. * [1E& 1)
ENRRESE  UHRHBRSRAETS - WINRAS
BR[—F—iK ] ARBENERE - ZARREZ T
RARTS - BREENRGTREE - &5 - BEREEMR
HpEE o
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Corporate Event Highlights
TERSLE

02/2020

Chun Wo adopts “SAP Analytics Cloud” to Speed Up its

Digital Transformation

Chun Wo adopted SAP Analytics Cloud, an industry-leading business

intelligence solution, to upgrade its data management, financial reporting

and business intelligence (BI) capabilities and generate high-value business ®
insights from its legacy tools. With SAP Analytics Cloud, Chun Wo

continues its digital transformation in generating more value from its

existing business intelligence and planning workflows.

BAKMA [SAP ST E | R BIBER

EMRASAPOITE (—REBRENEELRBATR) - RIETTEEEE
B2 PHmE MEEEEG)NE X IEEERRET RIS EENEERR -
BRESAPOITE - (BMBEN LR AREE R - Rt THERBTETHR
A PREEREE -

03/2020

Uniting Hong Kong People to
Fight the Coronavirus —
Donates over 200,000 Surgical Masks and
HK$400,000

In response to the Coronavirus pandemic, Chun Wo
Charitable Foundation donated more than 200,000 surgical
masks to people in need through various social welfare
agencies and children hospitals, as well as distributed a
portion of the surgical masks to frontline construction
workers through subcontractors in the industry and via
Construction Industry Council to help address their
immediate needs. In addition, Chun Wo Charitable
Foundation also donated HK$400,000 to support various
fields in the battle with the pandemic.

BB ARORE —
ERE20 B AN OERIBRA0EET

ARUTHBRESERS  BHEEESEBSMT .
@%&%_ﬁz%ﬂﬁa-@zo%mm\ﬂu%%ﬁﬁ%

+ UREBREXRDUEREELHE BN a
ROBRETAGRETA - %$ﬁ7MWFZ%°

BESN - EMBEEE S TIBRA0EET - ARIFE
VPR TAE -
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Corporate Event Highlights
TEARELE

03/2020

HK$1.25 Billion 3-Year Term Loan Facility

In March 2020, the Group entered into a HK$1.25 billion 3-year term loan
facility agreement with five banks. This facility is able to lower the overall
finance cost of the Group and enhance its financial flexibility and funding
capability, and shows the confidence of the banks to the solid business of
the Group.

125E8TN=6C0THER

20203 A - AEBEEAFRITR 12.5BB T =FHEHER B -
ERERE PR EAREE N BB AR K Noa E 775

NRNRITHAKENRBEERF 2EL -

05/2020

CEL N 3 Fo
AR s e

. b B R TR
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WilAAr  orssoe

ﬁ

BEtE RRAE S

The Group and KaiLong Group Jointly Acquired
two Properties at Cameron Road
In May 2020, the Group together with KaiLong Group acquired the
On Lee Commercial Building located at 37 Cameron Road in Tsim
Sha Tsui. The property, together with the adjacent site at 35 Cameron
Road which was purchased between 2018 and 2019, will be
re-developed into a commercial project.

AEEEYEREEEFRESEREMENE
20205 B - AEE R EREBWIEBARADEE HMmE 375
LZHEEKRE - ZVEERN2018FEE2019FHHBEMUNRE S
fRiB35MmMt At - SEERRE AEEER -
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EE

"Over the past years, the Group’s sound financial
performance and solid fundamentals are capable for us
to get through unprecedented instability. We shall
continue to carry out our core values by strengthening
our foundation, seeking suitable opportunities in the
Asia-Pacific region and looking for innovative
technologies and construction techniques that could
contribute to the advancement of Hong Kong.”

[BEBEE  AEERENTHRRLAEFENE
B ol BIFIRA AR RO ARBE - IS
BINRENER - WEEXRS BB N KL
FREFFR R M2 ERN - AT B
ML EBE  ESERBESHH -

Pang Yat Ting, Dominic
Chairman

R

FE
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Chairman's Statement

EREW|E

On behalf of the Board, | hereby present the annual results of the Group
for the Year. During the Year, the business conditions were highly
challenging and the competition was intense resulting from various social
and political factors, nonetheless, the Group was able to perform stably, as
reflected by revenue of HK$8.00 billion and net profit attributable to
Shareholders of HK$101.4 million.

The year of 2019 is undoubtedly the most challenging years in the recent
history. Apart from the Sino-US trade war and social movements in Hong
Kong, the novel coronavirus (“COVID-19") pandemic further impacted the
local and global economy. Nevertheless, the Group’s solid reputation and
business foundation built over the past five decades have contributed to its
ability to overcome the challenges and uncertainties during the Year.

The prospects for the construction industry remained positive by way of
increasing land and housing supply announced in the 2019 Policy Address.
Our construction business continued to perform promisingly despite the
delay in funding approval for large-scale infrastructure projects by
filibustering in the Legislative Council. The sales of the premium residential
development located at Kau To Shan in Hong Kong, “The Cavaridge”, has
commenced in the second half of the fiscal year, which is expected to
contribute to the Group in the near future. We will stay alert on the market
developments with a view to strengthening the business fundamentals of
our core business.

In regard to other businesses, the Group held six tunnel management
contracts in Hong Kong during the Year, leading both tunnel management
and professional services have progressed smoothly. To expand our
business scope, we have accomplished an equity investment with ECO,
which is an expert in interior design and fitting-out, construction,
manufacturing and construction materials supply chain and participated in
numerous high-end hotel projects in Malaysia. Our online building
materials procurement and management platform will also commence the
trials set test in late 2020.

RAANEREREZEZRREAEENAFENS
FHEE -NAFE  SEASRBUARERSE
BEEMRBRBEE NEKBGES  BE
mitr AEEDMERBRBT BEE XS
8,000,000,000% Jt K A% R & 1§ 48 F
101,400,000/8 T °

2019 F BRI F R AIEIEN —F -l
XEZFBLEELGEHI  HUBERRE
(TCOVID-19 ) BB TR HE — P 4T B A3 R IR BK
R - R AEERNBESOEFRINR
IR BN B ) R ER S| AARBNAE
JEEET £ -

SR 2019 FHE RS S MR8 i 2 5 E 4
JERIIEIE - FEEERISDRPEA - BE L
SIEE [N R AR EZEIEE NERE
o BERMOBEEFFERERYT - RA
PHRFETEF  UREBSNLHILNZESR
RIER [®REs|ERE  BHAIRNEHRE
AEBERE - ZRPIBEMISEERREFE
B FEULINSRAZ L SR TS AL -

REMEBME  ARERAFEREES
NERENEESLD  SIERBEEERER
RBERRIBY L1 - REREHRE - T
ERESEKRBESE  ZARNFERAEE
EMREEARREKE  BFE  @EREZ
EMREER YE2EZESIOEE IR
B RMNBLEEEMHRBRERYET
R 2020 FRAETTEEARIH -




Chairman's Statement

EREW|E

FUTURE STRATEGY AND DIRECTION

Looking forward, we committed to become an acclaimed contractor and
developer in Asia with dynamic and sustainable growth. The Group will
capture opportunities arising from both local private sector and public
sector and leverage our network to underpin our regional penetration,
being steadfast in realising our vision to strengthen the market position in
Hong Kong. In the view of increasing supply of housing and land, the
Chief Executive highlighted in 2019 Policy Address that the administration
would implement a wide range of measures, including reserving
HK$5 billion to increase the number of transitional housing projects, so as
to provide a total of 10,000 units within the next three years and launching
the second Starter Homes for the Hong Kong Residents pilot project at the
Anderson Road site. The government will also re-plan the coastal
development of Tuen Mun West to address land demand, including
exploring the feasibility of developing the coastal areas which also covers
the River Trade Terminal into residential areas. All of these measures will
create tremendous opportunities for the construction sector as a whole.

In addition, the Group will cautiously expand our footprint in Asia through
entering the Greater Bay Area and the Belt and Road countries. We will
also continue to identify suitable business opportunities that align with our
business strategy, including the burgeoning education sector, community
related areas and other investment opportunities which are able to bring
satisfactory and sustainable returns to the Group and maximise our
Shareholder’s value.

Over the past years, the Group’s sound financial performance and solid
fundamentals are capable for us to get through unprecedented instability.
We shall continue to carry out our core values by strengthening our
foundation, seeking suitable opportunities in the Asia-Pacific region and
looking for innovative technologies and construction techniques that could
contribute to the advancement of Hong Kong.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

| would like to take this opportunity to extend my sincere gratitude to the
management team and all of our staff members for their contributions and
efforts during the Year. | wish to also thank the Group’s business partners
and Shareholders for their continuous support. By working together, | trust
the Group will be a predominant leader in Hong Kong, and ultimately
become a leading construction and development company in Asia.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EREs w2 h

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

* Equity per share refers to equity attributable to Shareholders divided by the total number of issued ordinary shares as at 31 March 2020.
SRESER R ERRIAR 202063 A31 B2 BT BB E -

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group's overall financial performance has remained stable despite the
challenging operating environment during the Year. The Group recorded a
total revenue of HK$8.00 billion (2019: HK$8.08 billion) and a net profit
attributable to Shareholders of HK$101.4 million (2019: HK$136.6 million).
Social movements in Hong Kong during the second half of 2019,
suspension of Legislative Council meetings for funding approvals and the
outbreak of the COVID-19 since late 2019, have caused disruptions to the
Hong Kong economy. The Group continues to evaluate the impact of
COVID-19 on the Group's businesses.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Construction

As the Group’s core operation, the construction business under the
renowned “Chun Wo"” brand delivered stable results during the Year,
generating HK$7.02 billion in revenue (2019: HK$7.31 billion) and
HK$129.4 million (2019: HK$150.4 million) in segmental profit. As at
31 March 2020, the Group held contracts with an aggregate value of
HK$26.55 billion among which HK$11.53 billion were ongoing contracts.

The economic downturn in Hong Kong has impacted the overall
performance in construction industry and increased price competition.
Building on the strength of Chun Wo's solid reputation and depth of
experience, the Group won 14 projects during the Year. The new major
projects awarded include Hong Kong Disneyland Resort Project —
Arendelle Completion Package; Revamp of Public Toilets at Terminal
Buildings at Hong Kong International Airport; Shek Wu Hui Effluent
Polishing Plant — Main Works Stage 1 — Civil Works for Sludge Treatment
Facilities and 132kV Primary Substation; Shek Wu Hui Effluent Polishing
Plant — Main Works Stage 1 — Civil Works for Sewage Treatment
Facilities; Kwu Tung North New Development Area, Phase 1 — Roads and
Drainage between Kwu Tung North New Development Area and Shek Wu
Hui; Foundation for Public Housing Development at Anderson Road Quarry
Site RS-1; and Foundation for Public Housing Development at Tung Chung
Area 99.

The Group has 50 ongoing projects, including Construction of Public
Housing Development at Hiu Ming Street; Development of Anderson Road
Quarry Site — Road Improvement Works and Pedestrian Connectivity
Facilities Works Phase 2A; and Subcontract for the Engineering,
Procurement and Construction of South East New Territories Landfill
Extension. We are also entrusted with Hong Kong International Airport —
Terminal 2 Foundation and Substructure Works; Design and Construction
of the Novaliches — Balara Aqueduct 4; Construction of Public Rental
Housing Redevelopment at Pak Tin Estate Phases 7 & 8 and Phase 11; and
Phase 1 Redevelopment of Ming Wah Dai Ha.

Among the projects completed by the Group during the Year include Main
Contract for Subsidised Sales Flats Project at Shatin Area 36C; and
Improvement of Water Supply to Sheung Shui and Fanling.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWER DN
BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) EKERE )
New Major Projects Awarded in the Year NAFEEHRAENTEIER

Project Name

HE &M

Civil Engineering Works = /R T2

1 Hong Kong Disneyland Resort Project — Arendelle Completion Package
EREtRLERREER —MERLETE

2 Shek Wu Hui Effluent Polishing Plant — Main Works Stage 1 — Civil Works for Sewage Treatment Facilities
AR FKERME — TR IIEE R — J5/KEERMEH LRI

3 Shek Wu Hui Effluent Polishing Plant — Main Works Stage 1 — Civil Works for Sludge Treatment Facilities and
132kV Primary Substation
APEFKER e — TR ITIEFE PR — J9RERIBR M M 132kv TH# B T ARTIE

4 Kwu Tung North New Development Area, Phase 1 — Roads and Drainage between Kwu Tung North New

Development Area and Shek Wu Hui
R ERRE—BER — ORI EREESAMENERMER T2

Electrical & Mechanical Works & 1 & #48 T 2

5 Electrical Installation for Construction of Subsidised Sale Flats Development at Tung Chung Area 54

RAFARBEPHEFERRABZETRENENKETRE

Foundation Works it & T 72

6 Foundation for Public Housing Development at Tuen Mun Area 29 West
BRE9EANEFEERBRMETRE

7 Foundation for Public Housing Development at Anderson Road Quarry Site RS—1
REREBARSGRS-1 At AEEEHRBEEMATIE

8 Foundation for Public Housing Development at Tung Chung Area 99

RREVEAEFEERREBEMETIZ

Maintenance Works #{& T2

9 Revamp of Public Toilets at Terminal Buildings
at Hong Kong International Airport

EERBRESTERBALETFRBH TR

¥
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Shek Wu Hui Effluent Polishing Plant — Main Works Stage 1— Civil Works for Sewage Treatment Facilities
BOREFKERME — ERBTESE R — J5/KERREHN T ARTIE

Kwu Tung North New Development Area, Phase 1 — Roads and Drainage between Kwu Tung North New Development Area and
Shek Wu Hui
R ERRE —ER — DRI ERRE 2 ANENERMEE TR
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DN
BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) EROEE )
Major Projects Completed in the Year REAFERIZFEIEH

Project Name

HEEH

Building Construction Works =2 £ T2

1 Main Contract for Subsidised Sale Flats Project at Shatin Area 36C
WH36CEMKERENHEFEERBHAEL

2 Construction of Columbarium at Wo Hop Shek Cemetery — Phase 1
MERABESBERLEME —RERZTRE

3 Main Contract for the Proposed Residential Development at TMTL499, Tseng Choi Street, Tuen Mun, New Territories
MAHEPIT R FE 49 R AN HETERBEBEELD

4 Basement Carpark and Public Vehicle Park For Proposed Residential Development at Yau Tong Inland Lot No. 44,

at the Junction of Shung Shun Street and Yan Yue Wai, Yau Tong
HESREHECTERSAEANMREMFETERBEZH TRESRARFESERITRE

Civil Engineering Works + K T2

5 Improvement of Water Supply to Sheung Shui and Fanling
ik E#pEfoRsEAE
6 Hong Kong Disneyland Resort Project — Arendelle Advance Works

BARBTRLEEREERE — MIEMATHTE

Foundation Works it & T 2

7 Foundation for Public Rental Housing Development at Tsing Hung Road, Tsing Yi
EREBBRA#BEFEERHRTENMETE
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DN
BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) EROEE =)
Major Projects in Progress at the End of the Year RAEEERBEENETETRE

Project Name

HE BB

Building Construction Works #FEE TR

1 Construction of Public Rental Housing Redevelopment at Pak Tin Estate Phases 7 & 8
BEBELtRENRARAHLBEFEERIARREETR

2 Construction of Public Rental Housing Redevelopment at Pak Tin Estate Phase 11
BEBE+—SHARBTEEERERREETIR

3 Construction of Public Housing Development at Hiu Ming Street

R AEFEEER  EETIE
4 Phase 1 Redevelopment of Ming Wah Dai Ha
RERNES —HERIEA

Civil Engineering Works = /K T2

5 Central-Wan Chai Bypass: Tunnel (North Point Section) and Island Eastern Corridor Link
IR BT AE - L AR BTN R EREER TR

6 Site Formation and Infrastructure Works for Development of Anderson Road Quarry Site
LTERBAFESAMERN T TR REMERTE

7 Development of Anderson Road Quarry Site — Road Improvement Works and Pedestrian Connectivity Facilities

Works Phase 2A
TEBEARSHANERE — BRRETIRRTAERREIRESE BT

8 Hong Kong International Airport — Terminal 2 Foundation and Substructure Works
FRERHES — —RBEREHERTEAR IR
9 Subcontract for the Engineering, Procurement and Construction of South East New Territories Landfill Extension

MARESEERBRAS 2R  KBEREIDHASL

10 Queen’s Hill Development — Road and Drainage Works
SRLER —EBNMRBIIR

11 In-situ Reprovisioning of Shatin Water Treatment Works (South Works) — Advance Works
DHERBKBRDES T2 (FRK) — AEAIRE

12 Provision of Universal Access Facilities for Highway Structures — Package 2 Contract 1
RERBEDRHGERTRE —F_EE—HEH

13 Tseung Kwan O — Lam Tin Tunnel — Tseung Kwan O Interchange and Associated Works
HER —EARE — BERREEZIEFHIRE

14 Design and Construction of the Novaliches — Balara Aqueduct 4
5 FLAI 4 Hr — Balara P4 5% $a /K B8 2 3% st R #E TR

15 Construction of Government Flying Service Kai Tak Division
BT RAT RIS B RUE D #RiRiE TA2

16 Rehabilitation of Trunk Sewers in Tuen Mun

BRT5KBRIEETIE
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Construction of Public Rental Housing Redevelopment at Pak Tin Estate Phases 7, 8 and 11
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Phase 1 Redevelopment of Ming Wah Dai Ha
BREAES —HERIER

Design and Construction of the Novaliches — Balara Aqueduct 4
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In-situ Reprovisioning of Shatin Water Treatment Works (South Works) — Advance Works
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Construction of Government Flying Service Kai Tak Division
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) RO R (=)
Major Projects in Progress at the End of the Year (continuved) RAFELERBEEZNTIEIR (&)

Project Name

HEEH

Electrical & Mechanical Works & 1 & ## T 72

17 Electrical Installation for the Construction of Subsidised Sale Flats Development at Tseung Kwan O Area 65C2 Phases 1 & 2
HERESCQRENHEFEHRAEE - NE_HREETIRNENRKETR

Foundation Works it & T 2

18 Foundation for Public Rental Housing Development at North West Kowloon Reclamation Site 1 (East)

FAIENEEERE FHR(R) A RBEFEER2METE

19 Foundation, ELS and Excavation Works for Proposed Residential Development at Yau Tong Inland Lot No. 44,
Junction of Shung Shun Street and Yan Yue Wai, Yau Tong
HESREEHRCFERFMEAMRSE MRNETERARD 2R - AIRARERSELR

20 Construction of Bored Pile Works for Foundation, Excavation & Lateral Support and Basement Excavation Works for

New Acute Hospital at Kai Tak Development Area (Site A and Site B)
MEzREASEEERMEE  BRENERAE TERMEZSHEIRE s AOEEIBEIE(THARTHE)

Maintenance Works #1{& T2

21 Term Contract for Minor Works 2015 for Hong Kong East and Hong Kong West Clusters
201588 R RABEAERBA N TEERSL

22 MTR Contract No.11209 — Shatin to Central Link: Platform Modification and Associated Works at East Rail Line
BIEEXRIT 11209 — AR - REIRE AN ERIEFELE

23 Term Contract for the Alterations, Additions, Maintenance and Repair of Buildings and Lands and Other Properties
for which the Architectural Services Department (Property Services Branch) is Responsible (Designated Contract
Area: Tai Po, North District and Outlying Islands (North))
REEZEWEEBR) BENREY - T REMYEETICE - N2 - REREBIENTHEN(EHE
EE : A tERES L))

24 Term Contract for the Alterations, Additions, Maintenance and Repair of Buildings and Lands and Other Properties
for which the Architectural Services Department (Property Services Branch) is Responsible (Designated Contract
Area: Central, Peak and Mid-levels)
REEEWMXEBR) BENEEY tHPEMYMRETSE N2 - REREBIENEHAO(EHNE
EE @ WWTERF¥IL)

25 Term Contract for the Maintenance of Slopes for which the Architectural Services Department (Property Services
Branch) is Responsible (Designated Contract Area: Hong Kong Island and Outlying Islands (South))
RELEWEEBR) EENRKETREIERNEHAHN (GREERE : A5 KBS (FA))

26 Replacement and Rehabilitation of Water Mains, Stage 4 Phase 1: Mains in Eastern and Southern Districts
FMREEKRETIEENRRE B REKMEEKETE

27 Replacement and Rehabilitation of Water Mains, Stage 4 Phase 1: Major Mains in Western New Territories
FHMREEKEIRFOBERE—H : AR ERKETLR

28 Construction of Reprovisioning Facilities at Hong Ning Road Park and Ngau Tau Kok Fresh Water Services Reservoir
(Programme No. 281RS)
BB AE R4 A RKEKE S BRiERE T2 (TR BIR5% 281RS)
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Site Formation and Infrastructure Works for Development of Anderson Road Quarry Site
ZERBARSAMERN T TREREREZRTRE

Queen'’s Hill Development — Road and Drainage Works

SRR — BRIRRBTIRE
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Property Development and Assets Leasing

The property development and assets leasing business contributed
HK$8.8 million in revenue (2019: HK$7.1 million) during the Year.

The sales of the premium residential development located at Kau To Shan,
“The Cavaridge”, has commenced and received favourable market
response in the second half of the fiscal year. The Group will always take
higher priority to projects with return profiles that correspond with its long-
term investment strategy.

Other projects under development by the Group include a luxury residential
development project named “128 Waterloo” located at Waterloo Road,
Ho Man Tin; commercial development project at Nos. 35 and 37 Cameron
Road, Tsim Sha Tsui; and a residential land parcel in Tung Chung with land
exchange application in progress. Meanwhile, the superstructure works for
Phase 3 of the Shijiazhuang project, a commercial development project
located in Hebei Province of the PRC are in progress, which is scheduled for
presale in mid 2020.

¥EOE e
MERRREEHE
MEBRRNEEREEBERATEEE 2%
%88,800,0007% 7T (20194F : 7,100,000 7T ) °

RAFRFEETHF LR RIS HE
THRIER [REE | CRRHEE - mHYH
HEREHRI - AEEGELEENA LR
TEEHRERM 2 HRER -

AEBZEMBERERIEBE B EMA M XH
B EEMN -—EBEEETE=%RIEE
[128 Waterloo] : L 1H & 518 35 %% & 37
SHEESRREEE  MEEN-BEEEMK
(bR B HETTHR) - A AR EILE
M—EARERRERBEBEARGBEE=H2
ERETRRIEMETT @ 5TER 2020 FFi#
1TEE -

BN =]

128 Waterloo” luxury residential development project naming ceremony
BHEFEEEEEE [128 Waterloo] fn &R
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Professional Services

The professional services segment operated by City Services Group Limited
("City Services”), provides the services of security and facility management
and tunnel management. During the Year, the performance of professional
services segment grew steadily. With the recording of revenue from all six
tunnel management contracts for the first time covering a full financial
year, the professional services business was able to generate a revenue of
HK$921.5 million (2019: HK$763.0 million) and a profit of HK$63.9 million
(2019: HK$28.8 million). In terms of the security and facility management,
quality services allow City Services to secure the renewal of contracts with
several reputable clients during the Year.

With respect to the tunnel management operation, the Group holds
management contracts for six tunnels in Hong Kong, including the Cross-
Harbour Tunnel, the Shing Mun Tunnels, the Tseung Kwan O Tunnel, the Kai
Tak Tunnel, the Lion Rock Tunnel and the Central-Wan Chai Bypass Tunnel.

Non-Franchised Bus Services

It is inspiring that our new non-franchised bus services business recorded
a revenue of HK$45.6 million during the Year. The performance of
non-franchised bus services was affected by the social movements in
Hong Kong since the second half of 2019, which led to a decline in
mainland visitors and reduction of passengers. The outbreak of COVID-19
since late 2019 further reduced passenger volume. The Group was,
however, able to respond to the challenge and mitigate the impact by
shrewdly extending service routes of shuttle bus.

Other Business

During the second half of the Year, the Group accomplished an equity
investment with ECO, a Malaysian company principally engaged in interior
design and fitting-out, construction, manufacturing and construction
materials supply chain. Currently, the Group and ECO are exchanging
knowledge and information, and formulating plans for facilitating
integration and operational synergies.

In terms of the development of other businesses, the Group continued to
examine opportunities in the education sector. Furthermore, the Group’s
online building materials procurement and management platform has
continued to make headway to complement its core construction
operation, which is expected to be launched in late 2020.

Asia Allied Infrastructure Holdings Limited ~Annual Report 2019/20
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group mainly relies upon internally generated funds as well as bank
borrowings to finance its operations and expansion, which is supplemented
by equity funding when it is required.

At 31 March 2020, the total net debts of the Group amounted to
approximately HK$1,773.3 million, representing total debts of
approximately HK$2,918.5 million less total of cash and bank balances of
approximately HK$1,145.2 million. The debt maturity profile, based on
scheduled repayment dates set out in loan agreements of the Group at 31
March 2020, is analysed as follows:

RBES R M BER
AEBEBLBRARMBESTERAN
DAL RRTEH - EHREHBHUET
BfH A -

2020563 A31 B » AN&EE 2 FEBRBEOA
1,773,300,0007%7T - BMER42%EXY2,918,500,000
IR EIR & MR TAE B4R 425849 1,145,200,000
HBIT o IBEAREEN 202093 A31 HZER W
FEATH B EERBE - EEZAEA ST
T

As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
120205 A 20194
3A31H 3A31H
HKS$ million HK$ million
EE#ET BEET
Borrowings and obligations under hire purchase AR THIHRER 2 B REBEL
contract and finance leases repayable: R ERERE -
Within one year or on demand —FRIZREKX 1,632.6 1,061.7
After one year, but within two years —FREMFER
— On demand shown under current liabilities — IARBAGBEREREEZHD 7.0 2.8
— Remaining balances — BE 255.4 1,310.3
After two years, but within five years MERERER
— On demand shown under current liabilities — ARBAGEEREREBEZHD 12.0 -
— Remaining balances — 5 1,008.7 385.2
Over five years HEUE 2.8 1.3
Total debts Ev Tk 2,9185 2,761.3

The Group has continued to implement a prudent financial management
policy, at 31 March 2020, the gearing ratio of the Group, being the
proportion of net interest bearing debts to equity attributable to
Shareholders, was 0.72 (2019: 0.37).

To minimise exposure on foreign exchange fluctuations, the Group's
borrowings and cash balances are primarily denominated in Hong Kong
dollars or Renminbi which are the same as the functional currency of the
relevant group entities. The Group has no significant exposure to foreign
exchange rate fluctuations and shall use derivative contracts to hedge
against its exposure to currency risk only when it is required. Furthermore,
the Group’s borrowings have not been hedged by any interest rate
financial instruments.

Details of the structure and interest rate profile of the bank borrowings of
the Group as at 31 March 2020 are set out in Note 34 to the financial
statements.

AEBERERDRTHTBEERRSE - ®
2020F3A31H  AEBEZEAREELL XA
FTEESFRHEREEGER L ER)A0.72
(20194 : 0.37) °

REEREIIERB AR  NEEZERR
RSN ETHARE ST - AR
MEBERZNEENAR - AEEAEZ
SMERBIRBETA  WERAFTERTEE
ROTEB K RIEL A 2 % AR - 1t
S AEBZ ERL EBRBERNMNESRT
RS -

AREBER 202053 A31 BRRITERNEHE
MRS M2 5B H RIS REMIE34
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Details of the pledge of assets of the Group are set out in Note 34(d) to the
financial statements.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Details of the contingent liabilities of the Group are set out in Note 45 to
the financial statements.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

The Group had approximately 6,500 employees as at 31 March 2020. Total
remuneration of employees for the Year amounted to approximately
HK$1,760.1 million. Employees are remunerated according to their nature
of work and the market trend, with merit-based components incorporated
in the annual increment review to reward and motivate individual
performance. Employee bonus is distributable based on the performance of
the respective divisions and the employees concerned. Moreover, the
Group also provides in-house training program and sponsorship for
external training courses which are complementary to their job functions.

With a view to providing incentive for employees to achieve performance
goals and aligning the interests of employees directly to the Shareholders
through ownership of Shares, the Company adopted the restricted share
award scheme on 1 August 2017 (the “Share Award Scheme”), pursuant
to which the Company may grant to eligible participants restricted shares
of the Company. Such grant shares are acquired by the scheme trustee on
the market of the Stock Exchange and held upon trust for the benefit of
the grantees and shall become vested in the grantees upon satisfaction of
specified vesting criteria.

In addition, the Company had also adopted a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”), under which the Directors are authorised to
grant share options to the eligible participants to subscribe for Shares for
the purpose of, among other things, providing incentives and rewards to,
and recognising the contributions of, the eligible participants. The Share
Option Scheme is valid and effective for a period of 10 years commencing
on 3 September 2012.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

OUTLOOK AND PROSPECTS

Construction

Looking ahead, the Group expects a slow recovery of its business from the
economic downturn. The business environment will remain challenging
due to various factors, including social movements and the COVID-19
pandemic, which may potentially impede the progress of infrastructure
projects. Nevertheless, we are optimistic on the construction industry,
especially the Government’s initiatives to promote infrastructure
development, including Lantau Tomorrow, the 10-year Hospital
Development Plan, enhancement work of transportation network, such as
Tung Chung Line Extension, Tuen Mun South Extension and Northern Link,
which mentioned in the Policy Address 2018 and 2019 and the
construction of temporary quarantine facilities on fighting COVID-19, will
become major factors on revival of construction industry.

Property Development and Assets Leasing

In consideration of the instability of the property market, the Group will
consider the balance between the risk and return of the potential projects
in the coming year in order to achieve profit maximisation. The Group will
continue to exercise a highly prudent approach and a timely review on our
investment portfolio, which build an important source of long-term
competitive advantage.

Professional Services

The Group is satisfied with the stability of income of the professional
services segment, and we believe that the professional services segment
will maintain a long-term growth. The Group will navigate the ongoing
challenges and strive to expand its market share in both security and facility
management and tunnel management.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

OUTLOOK AND PROSPECTS (continued)
Non-Franchised Bus Services

The Group believes the non-franchised bus services segment will overcome
the impact of COVID-19. We expect the operation will resume normal
moderately as the demand of transportation between Hong Kong and
nearby cities will gradually resume after epidemic. Meanwhile, the Group
will strive to expand the non-franchised bus services in different areas to
achieve a long-term development. It is thus optimistic about the future of
this business segment.

Other Business

Despite the global environment is full of uncertainty, the Group will
continue to diversify operations by leveraging its strong business foundation
and sterling reputation, and thus expand income streams. At the same time,
the Group will continue to direct efforts towards reinforcing its existing
businesses, so as to mitigate the adverse impact of operating conditions.

Overview

For the year ahead, as the Group operates in industries which have been
relatively better insulated against the current headwinds, hence
opportunities remain present. The Group will therefore closely monitor
local and regional developments, including the Greater Bay Area and
Belt and Road regions, which will be conductive to maintain its financial
performance as well as facilitate its expansion into the Asian markets. The
Group will continue to reinforce its position in the local construction
industry. This includes the ongoing investment in ‘Inno@ChunWo' brand,
which aims at making a breakthrough in developing technologies for
construction, that not only benefit the Group, but also the entire industry.
Such efforts align with the Group’s aim of developing more sustainable,
cost-and time-effective construction methods and technologies that create
greater value to the benefit of the general public in Hong Kong.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

IRIE - HERERERS

INTRODUCTION

Our Group is dedicated to maintaining a high standard of CSR. The
business sector is placing an increasing emphasis on CSR performance,
particularly in the aspects of safety and health, sustainable development,
community impact and law and regulatory compliance. We understand
that we do not operate our business in isolation of our society. Employees,
suppliers, clients, the natural environment and the general community are
all our stakeholders influenced by the ways in which our Group transacts
the business.

CSR GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Group conducts a top-down management approach regarding its CSR
issues. The Board is responsible for setting out the Group’s CSR strategy
and has established a working group comprising major departments or
divisions to implement the CSR strategy, manage the CSR issues, collect
relevant data and information and prepare the report. The Audit
Committee is responsible for ensuring the effectiveness of CSR risk control
and internal monitoring mechanisms, reviewing and evaluating the CSR
performance and reporting to the Board. To strengthen the credibility of
the CSR data, we have engaged Accredited Certification International
Limited (“ACI"”) as independent carbon auditor. ACI conducted the
verification with regard to the data of emissions and use of resources,
which included assessment of data, monitoring system and reporting plan/
protocol. This assessment included the collection of evidence of reported
data and checking whether the provisions of the protocol reference were
consistently and appropriately applied.

ABOUT THIS REPORT

The Group tries its utmost best to communicate with the stakeholders
through various communication channels such as surveys and interviews
and had incorporated their feedback into the process of identifying the
material topics, which acts as the foundation of the formulation of long-
term CSR strategies as well as a strong reference to this report. Following
the communication with our senior management and operational staff, we
assessed CSR issues relevant to the Group by considering their importance
to our stakeholders. During the Year, five material aspects had been
identified in the assessment, including Training and Development,
Employee Health and Safety, Environmental Performance, Product/Service
Responsibility and Anti-corruption.

This ESG Report is prepared in accordance with the Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide contained in Appendix 27 to the Listing
Rules, which mainly covers the Group’s principal business activities in Hong
Kong during the Year. The four key subject areas in this ESG Report cover:
(I) Workplace Quiality, (I) Environmental Protection, (lll) Operating Practices
and (IV) Community Involvement.

() WORKPLACE QUALITY

Our People

As at 31 March 2020, our Group had approximately 6,500 employees
with the majority stationed in Hong Kong. We recognise that
employees are valuable assets of our Group and embrace the
philosophy of investing in people by providing them with a range of
training programs that can enhance their professional skills and
knowledge. We are also committed to maintaining a safe and healthy
working environment for all employees as well as to implementing
equal opportunity employment practices.
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Environmental Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERKRE

(l) WORKPLACE QUALITY (continued) (|) I'ﬂf iﬁ,%? (#&)
Our People (continued) RPNET (&)

Statistics in relation to Employment

BRERNGTBE

Gender Employment Type
1 51 EEER

2019/20 2018/19

Top Management o, o
BEEEAR 08% R
Middle Management

. EERAS 4.2%
6'8- 90/0 3 1 -1 o/0 Supejlnsory 8
T 12.7%

29.4+ Operation

i7o' 7.6:% operston o
w n Bt A 82.6%

2019/20 2018/19
Age Group Geographical Region
FeE R #hE
Below 30 0
S0%507% 95-80/0 0-60/0 3-60/0
Above 50 48.6%
5057 E :
Hong Kong PRC Overseas
B il Bl
Employee Turnover
EBERAR
Gender Employment Type
5l EEEH
Top Management 9
BEEEAR 03
0 0 Middle Management
7 6 %o 27-4 % S A B 5%

(8
Supervisory
w o
Operation
Age Group Geographical Region
FiAa Al &
Below 30
30BRA T .
30-50
e 96.2%  0.9% | 2.9v%
Above 50
Hong Kong PRC Overseas
BE T Bl
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BRI -HERERRE

() WORKPLACE QUALITY (continued)
Working Conditions

To attract, motivate and retain talents, our Group regularly reviews
our staff compensation and benefit packages to ensure our benefits
are competitive in the market. With reference to prevailing market
conditions, a review is conducted annually on the pay packages of
employees and other employment benefits, which include the
medical scheme, health check program, travel insurance, training

subsidies and retirement benefits.

Training and Development
Training

Continuous learning is one of our core values. The Group's support
in training and development applies to staff of all levels. We have
been offering training sponsorship to all staff members to encourage
self-improvement in a learning organisation since 2005. Employees
are provided with comprehensive in-house training and sponsorship
for external training courses including seminars, workshops, visits and
demonstrations to upgrade their skills and knowledge for performing
their duties more effectively and promoting their personal

development.

Since 1999, our Group’s Chun Wo Construction and Engineering
Company Limited has been certified by the Hong Kong Institution of
Engineers as a Scheme A Graduate Training approved organisation in

Civil, Building and Building Services disciplines.

Training programs offered by the Group
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B GLAD Program for accounting trainees

= Core Program

= Elite Program

®  Graduate/Freshman Program for Engineers/Quantity Surveyors

= Design Engineer Program

= Technical Apprentice Program

= Site Agent Development Program

= Sub Agent Program

= Construction Industry Council Training Academy Program
= Contractor Cooperative Training Scheme
B Advanced Construction Manpower Training Scheme
= Construction Tradesman Collaborative Training Scheme
® Enhanced Construction Manpower Training Scheme

= Building Information Modelling Internship Program

=  Mentorship Program

" GLADEEEE 452

B ZDLETE

= RERETE

= TREADTRIBIEMEELE S
RS

= REIA2AE 2

= RATERERE

= I RAEREE

= FREE

n FEEBSIRBREE

AEEAESEIIEE

R TEIET)IETE

PR T A ESFIEE

sl s A FIBRETE

n EREEEREEAE

= EERETE

DMEAERERAERAR 201920 F 3k e



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BRI -HERERRE

() WORKPLACE QUALITY (continued) () TEREBEEZ #)
Training and Development (continued) EIIRRER (&)
Training (continued) #ZIE)

Trained Employees

ZilEE

Gender Employment Category
45 EEE5

Top Management 0.8%
SEEEAE

66.3% /33.7<%

Middle Management 4.4%
FEEERAR -

Supervisory 9
e 8.0%

Operation 0
e 86.8%

Average Training Hours per Employee (Hours)

BERBREVIZIRH (M)

Gender Employment Category
5l EEER

Top Management
=EEEAE
Middle Management
TEEEAE
Supervisory

=E

Operation

B1F

3.09 [ 1.76

»
o
©

Recognition from Employees Retraining Board EBEBZIBZRE

“ERB Manpower Developer Award Scheme [ERB A7 ¥ 3518 — % K582018-2020
— Grand Prize Award 2018-2020"

= City Services Group Limited " RS EEBR AR
“ERB Excellence Award for Employers [ ERB 3 i {8 £2€2019-2020 |

2019-2020"

® City Security Company Limited N TEREARAR
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Rig  HERERHRE

(|) WORKPLACE QUAL'TY (continued)
Training and Development (continued)
Development

Besides career development, we place great value on the
development of physical and psychological and well being of the
employees. The Group wishes a work-life balance for its employee,
and thus we encourage colleagues to take park in volunteer and
recreational and sports activities in leisure which helping them relax
and strengthening team spirit. During the Year, our basketball team
won the 2nd runner up of Construction Industry Council Basketball
Invitation Competition 2019, demonstrating the excellent team spirit

and bond of understanding among our colleagues.

Sports Team

EBEH

Demonstrate Team Spirit

3R @B 1

“Caring Hotline”

R AR

Accredited with the
“Happy Company” label
from 2013 to 2020
2013 22020 FEHE
(L% | ER

HAPDPY B 1 %
compPANY
S5years”

Recognition
R¥

Basketball Team
EEBREX

Promote Harmonious

() TERRBEEZ®

EINRER(E)

2R
BEBEREL - BATSEERES
S LEREEEL - REEAEE
B THE TS Y BETE - [
AP R B T RS R 2 R R &Y
S TRBEEES  ABMNESORINS
B R - RAEE - BRI
BREESES010FERAERSE -
BE T AMEM SR RS Y
RIS 4 o

Soccer Team

REREK

Friendly matches with our joint venture partners

EAEBNMRTRER

Foster Regular Exercise
Message Habit
EHEMERE BEEREDHEIE

D Request for help 3k {#Bf
Q Enquire information Z &
Q‘ Express opinions REZEZ R

Realising the concept of “Happiness at Work”
ER (HOIEEIER

Building a pleasant working environment

BRI TERIR

Increasing staff’s level of happiness at workplace

RABT TREFARENKT
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BRI -HERERRE

() WORKPLACE QUALITY (continued)
Employee Health and Safety
By integrating internationally-recognised ISO 9001, ISO 14001,
ISO 45001 and OHSAS 18001 certifications into our quality,
environmental and occupational safety and health management
systems respectively, our Group demonstrates our compliance
with health and safety standards. Our Group’s “PDCA" system
further ensures each individual and team to contribute
their ability to meet statutory requirements and achieve
the ultimate goal of continuous improvement.

() TERRBEEZ®

BEERERZE
REBETRRERELEEZEE  DHE
B2 52 7] #91SO 9001 ~ ISO 14001 »
ISO 45001 52 OHSAS 18001 & & &
EmE BRERBELERERER
A REBR[PDCAl RGiE—#

BREAREBBE2 HETETE
ERE

We are aware of the importance of Act Continuous RPERANTERIER
/= A Improvement R
workplace safety. To guarantee the T8 e — PrEZM - RER

occupational safety standards of our
construction operations, we have introduced a
safety audit system designed to monitor the
effectiveness of our safety management system. For 2019,
the corporate average safety audit score was 87.3% (2018:
87.6%), exceeding the target of 86.5%.

Number and Rate (%) of
Work-related Fatalities

E T/ERAR M SE T A BUR EE (%)

3(0.20%)

0(0%) 0 (0%)

<o W

2017 2018 2019

Lost Days due to Work Injury
RAISEAIERH

BRLEENEERE
ZEREFEE BMEL TEZE
EZGE BEERTE2EE
REHBC - R20194F » (DEF
BL2EZD B A87.3% (20184 :
87.6%) » #Bi886.5% HEIZHNEL

2018

936

2019

1,075

In 2019, all safety indicators were in line with our objectives, in
particular, the accident frequency rate of construction work within
5 years recorded a decreasing trend, reflecting our dedication and
achievements in construction site safety and excellent and consistent
occupational safety performance.

R2019%F » AR 2EFHETLFIMN B FE
7 LETREBBIERSFAEHRET
PR - RERFPIE T2 AR %2 2 1) B4R
RBLAR —B S BB L 2RHE
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
R HERERERS

(l) WORKPLACE QUAL'TY (continued) (|) I{F%iﬁgi(%)
Employee Health and Safety (continued) EERERZR2(#)

Accident Frequency Rate (per 100,000 man-hours)

BOR(BTEIE)

0.220

Uzl g2 0.191 2019 Target B 12
0.121
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

We are fully aware of certain risks of safety and health of workers R T AR TEEE — TRV &
working on construction sites and hence a series of measures have 222 @k - &5 FI7E 2 A TI2IE B g

been in place at various construction project sites to protect the H—RF - LR T ANEE R o
safety and health of workers.

Protection Measures

REE T

N kiﬁ

Heat Shelters and

Mini Health Check Stations Water Sprinklers on Rooftops Morning Exercise
INEU G2 FR AR A TR ANEERR 204k K B K 2% EREY

Ensure workers are in optimal state

R E TRIREMRE

Dissipate heat gain
IR AMER

Alert workers of the potential
injuries and ways of prevention

REE S TBEXIBRRAKIENER
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() WORKPLACE QUALITY (continued) () TEEBEEZE )
Health and Safety Policies BRERZZ2HEXR
Our security and facility management divisions also follow a well- RPNRET R EEES IS INET—E
structured management system and conduct annual audit to ensure ERETENEEEANETFESEZ
that we meet the international standards. Both our City Security PARER B AFIRT A BIPRAZ A o FPIR T
Company Limited (“City Security”) and City Professional EEBEAT(MMESG ) R TE
Management Limited (“City Professional Management”) have EEBEERAR([HHMEEEIE]Y
received accreditations in I1ISO 10002 customer satisfaction SRR AR AR TISO 10002 B F
management system, I1ISO 9001 quality management system, 1SO MEERERX ISO0EEEIREE
14001 environmental management system and I1SO 45001 Z 2 ISO 14001 3R 3 B 1B 52 K LA XISO
occupational health and safety management system awarded by ACI. 45001 B E R ER L2 EREBRRE -
On the other hand, our Chun Wo Tunnel Management Limited has o8 RIENBESIESE A TIE
received ISO 9001 quality management system, ISO 14001 SERRBAIRIAE TISO 001 EEE
environmental management system and OHSAS 18001 occupational FEEZX SO MM0MEBEREEERKL
health and safety management system awarded by ACI. OHSAS 18001 B @ FE R 2 B IR

AR -

The safety and health of all our employees are of paramount HAEEMS @ S EENTEMERE
importance to our Group. Thus, our senior management place a HEEEZ -Eilt S EEIEABI E
strong emphasis on our employees’ safety and health performance. BREMEENTENEERIE - 1M
Our non-franchised bus services division has abided the Occupational HEELE DB B TR EL 2 L
Safety and Health Ordinance and provided medical examinations FEA&HBI - I B FE A 60 5% 3k A £ &) &) #
voluntarily for drivers aged 60 or above to ensure they could perform REFGERDT  HEOOEESOERE
their works under a wellness condition. We also ensure that AR TETERE - RFTHERIEA T
reasonable working hours are assigned for the drivers and provide A - WiEMmfIER TR ERR -
sufficient rest time to them for maintaining good spirits. VAR R I RIS 1Btk BE o
Our Group has also set up an effective occupational health and safety AREFEMERIMMTERLE(ZEE
management system conforming to the Factories and Industrial 18 ) 38 ) 2 1SO 45001 : 201848 F & 37
Undertakings (Safety Management) Regulation and ISO 45001:2018 TEVNREBERERENTEEERF - A
requirements. Related guidelines are stated in our Group's safety FES|H N AEBNLTERHENRN °
policy.
Our target is to fulfill all relevant health, safety and environmental BMALEINRERENEE 2328
protection regulatory requirements and provide our staff with a RREEDE R WAREERHRLZ2EE
hazard-free workplace. To achieve, we encourage all employees to HMI{ERE - BERMES @ RFIE
take responsibility and comply with the systems, policies, manuals, FTEREAEST LB THARHE I
procedures and working rules such as wearing personal protective R FMH BEEIESLD - FI0mE
equipment and reporting violations of regulatory requirements or BEARERBLERENESHETNE
orders. THIE M o

Health and Safety Policies RERZEZHR

B No violence in the workplace " MHBETESHAPRRERT

= No sexual harassment and discrimination = A BMERRE RS

= An alcohol-free and drug-free workplace n EREESNTERE

® A non-smoking workplace m BT (RIRIE

= |mmediate reporting of accidents = BNEFEEIREINE R

B Familiarity with fire prevention and safety working procedures n AR ARZETERF

B Special arrangement for typhoons and rainstorm warnings BB R BENE S AR T
= " MERTREEKE

Security of property and safety inspection

—_ n Asia Allied Infrastructure Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019/20
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RIE - HERERKRE

() WORKPLACE QUALITY (continued) () THEBBEEE
Safety and Health Awards ZERERERIE
In the Year, our various business units garnered more than 40 safety NAFEE RZEAEHBEMNEERS
and health awards, proving our effective implementation of AFEALTEREEETE HBEAEFRE
occupational safety and health management system throughout the AN ANBEL > EEEEIERZGNE
various divisions in our Group. The Group is honoured to receive the WEHE - NAFEE » NEBEEETY L
following safety and health awards in the Year: & R HERREEIE -

Hong Kong Housing Authority
EEEEZES

£ e ——————
New Works Projects — Best Site Safety — Timely Report of Near Miss g Emaxmy DU
e IREEREAAN )9

Quality Public Housing Construction and Maintenance Awards 2019

BEAREREZERREHIE KE 2019

Incident (Building)
MIRIEE — HEIHEE — ERPIKEH(GER)

New Works Project — Best Site Safety — Completed Project Site Safety
(Demolition/Foundation/Civil Engineering)

FTRBE — RETHWEE — 2HTHLT 2GR, E Lt ARTHE)
New Works Project — Outstanding Site Foremen

IIRERE —AHTIHET

New Works Projects — Outstanding
Workers — Plant and Equipment Operator
(Bored Pile/Signaler)

IEER —RETRE—

BB EIRIET (IR E)
Maintenance & Improvement Projects

— Outstanding Worker (General worker)
REFERHEER —HETR
(TmITR)

The 25* Considerate Contractors Site Award Scheme F£ 25 F AR B EFFTE

Development Bureau and Construction Industry Council BHEBREEXEE

®  Non-Public Works — RMAA Works (Gold Award) m ETHIR — & RE - @&
R TR (£ 148)

" Non-Public Works — New Works — Group A (2 Merit Awards) m FTHIRE —HEIR—AMA
(MIEEER)

= Public Works — New Works (1 Sliver Award and 1 Bronze Award) n THEIRE —HEIR(—IERER
—IRHEE)
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BRI -HERERRE

() WORKPLACE QUALITY (continued) () THEREEE»)

Safety and Health Awards (continued) TEREERE(H)

Occupational Safety and Health Council BEZZREER

= Joyful @ Healthy Workplace Best Practices Award (Enterprise/ = BB RIERAR(RE
Organisation Category) (1 Outstanding Award and 2 Merit Awards) A (IR RIBRERMIE

AT RS K 5)

= Joyful @ Healthy Workplace Best Practices Award (Branch/Small OB R I EMRE(ER
and Medium Enterprise (SME) Category) (1 Outstanding Award BB ) (—IEA AR
and 1 Merit Award) K —IER i K 82)

Construction Safety Promotional Campaign 2019 BEXT2ERTEE 2019

Occupational Safety and Health Council BER2EER

B Best Method Statement (Bronze Award) n REEL R (H05%)

®  Qutstanding Bamboo Scaffolder in Occupational Safety and Health n B @RS T (BRE)
(Merit Award)

® Qutstanding Metal Scaffolder in Occupational Safety and Health = BLREHeBMET (Z88E)
(3 Awards)

= Qutstanding Power Operated Elevating Platform Worker in " BLEREGENRIEARERIRES
Occupational Safety and Health (6 Awards) (7RIB#218)

The 18" Hong Kong Occupational Safety & Health Award
FIBEERBEREREAR

Occupational Safety and Health Council

BEZ2RER

= Safety Management System Award — Construction Industry (Gold Award)
ZE2ERGIEAE — ZEXER (£88)

= Safety Performance Award — Construction Industry

(for 10 subsidiaries)

RERRAAR — ERM) o - el L
(+RIMBAT) & o

Safety Activities ZEEH

To ensure the continuous improvement of occupational safety and BIERITENERE LT S MEFEZE
health standards, we have developed an evaluation questionnaire to R HEETIEBEBRAEHS  RNERe
collect feedback from the participants of all meetings, seminars and = e ggmEhmn2EE RENE
forumes. BH -
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BRI -HERERRE

() WORKPLACE QUALITY (continued)

Safety Activities (continued)

The Group encourages employees to participate in occupational
safety and health activities and voluntary services and share expertise
and information not only with colleagues but also fellow workers in
the Hong Kong construction industry. To actively promote the
awareness of occupational safety throughout the Group, a range of
safety activities, including safety workshops, special safety seminars

and community activities, were organised during the Year.

Through these activities, all participants have increased their
awareness and knowledge of occupational safety as well as
exchanged ideas, helping to promote the safety culture in the Group.

Compliance with Employment Laws

We have adopted the comprehensive Employee Handbook for
employees of the Group and review the policies from time to time to
ensure that we comply with the Employment Ordinance in respect of
employment protection and benefits for employees. Our human
resource functions of different business units also observe the
departmental manual to adhere to legal and regulatory requirements
throughout the recruitment process and avoid the employment of

illegal labour or child and forced labour.

During the Year, the Group did not identify any non-compliance
cases involving illegal labour or child and forced labour, and complied
with all relevant laws and regulations relating to employment and

labour practices.

(I) ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

In view of the growing greenhouse effect and climate change, energy
conservation, carbon reduction and minimising pollution have
become an important issue that could affect us. As a responsible
corporate citizen, the Group has established policies and measures to
minimise pollution, efficiently utilise energy, reduce waste and
expand recycling in our operation. Risk-based thinking, lifecycle
perspective and mitigation have been incorporated into our
management system to address the latest environmental challenges.
The Group has established effective environmental management
systems in compliance with internationally-recognised I1SO 14001 and
ISO 50001 standards. Adhering to the core values of the Group, we
are members of various environmental protection groups and actively
support these organisations. With continuation of our environmental
protection measures, the Group targets to achieve 5% drop in
emissions and resources used per HK$ million revenue for every five

financial years.

()

(1)

THERBEEZR#)
R2EH (B
FEESEHE T2 RBER 2 LA
B0 EBER - CEAEUEE B
ERMTRHZELMBRAN - Al
BRDAEE BER2ES  BAR
REFRIBT SEREEY  AERE
TS - BRIR2HH G RTEEE -

BB AR - A2 EEIG AR
XL @ BERRANEBLRRRE
R BPREASBATHLZEXIL -

BT ERED
RMEAFEENESRREZENES
FHETFEARA ZEHR - AR
B 57 R IB RIS KB BRI I 6k
B « AT R EISE AN AR
INETHFIFM - UREEREBRY
AERERRE - WRHBEAIEE
BIHETRBHET -

RAFE  NEBEW BB TS RIE
EHTRET REHIS THERESR
WE BTV EBIRENRS TEF/AE
BAERER -

RIERE
SR EHE R AR - #5E

Bk kBRI SEEKBEEMES
HENEZZE - FARENDTER
R NEEDHIETBE M FIER £
LEBEPREWMDI5L - BRUE AR
R RBEREAEREE - BRMERE
BERARMARR SRR B4 - £aniEH
HE RERE - ARRRRITRIRIEK
B REBEAERBHBRAD
ISO 14001 % 1SO 50001 {2 % - & 7 &
HMEIRIBEERS - B ZEIRERE
BHgETERTIFEBEEE  BFR
SEMNZOEE - ARERBEHITRR
Bt ESERShEVBRFEERESRA
BTSN ERAER 2 ERR

5% o
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R HERERERS

(II) ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)
Waste and Resources Management
Waste Management Hierarchy has been adopted on-site to reduce
waste production and enhance recycling.

() RERE @)
BYRERERE
B R R BB S B
B THAE YD R HIE -

Waste Management hierarchy EE¥ % & #IE

Top Priority
BEX

Avoidance and Minimisation
HBRERBERD

Reuse of Materials

ERAMHE

Recovery and Recycling

Bl & EREE
Treatment
B
Last Priority Disposal
grEt | K
Examples %I F

Reused

Metal and Concrete and
Temporary Works
& B NORR L MR T2

Construction and
Demolition Waste

TR RIFEEY

EH
Other Construction Sites

HAEE T

Paving Bricks

e

Plastic Wastes of Expired
Safety Helmets
BN T R REERBEY

Traffic Cones

RIBIEH

Damaged Water Barriers
BIEREKEEE
Recycled
RERBE
Plastic Granules
BR &S

Reduce Waste Production and Enhance Recycling

(k)

b — 14

BOBEERRRENBRBE
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R HERERERS

(1) ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)
Waste and Resources Management (continued)

b
[

Recycled and Reused
of Waste Total
BYRRBERERES

568,622

I

Soil reused by other project

mEMER ERMEL

115,922
o 436

Timber/paper/cardboard
recycled (non-office waste)
TBIREERIAM, R
GEAZ=EEY))

Concrete recycled Metal recycled

ERBERREL BRBETE

7,216 = 7,198 ;=
=C. N 4

Infrequent hazardous waste from demolition of old structures or
equipment (e.g. asbestos), which accounted for less than 0.001% of
the total waste generated has been separated and treated in
accordance with local regulations.

() RERE @)

BYURERERE#E)

Q Recycled and Reused Over 90 % of Construction Waste

-

EEmERER % R 90% tmTiEEY

Wiaste recycled at public fill
RAFRIERHERBENED

437,735
ass?

Paper recycled (office paper)
BIREEFESR (HAEAR)

0 .4 'u;;nnes
(Y

Plastic recycled
BEREEZER

1 1 5 Tonnes
7

&

REFHERERRENTERAERE
B AR)IEMEEBEREETR
0.001% * IR EBAH AR (I PR B N R 38 o

DMEAERERAERAR 201920 F 3k
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(I) ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued) () RERE @
Waste and Resources Management (continued) BYREREE (&)

Disposal Decrease

ﬂ Disposed Less Than 10% waste % Pressure on Landfill
= /D> FA o
l]nl RPN 10% 0 7 pummmnmy e

Managing Resources and Energy Use in an Eco-friendly Manner

LUBRERENTAEEERRERER

= |mplementing Eco-Friendly Actions in our offices and project sites " EHAERIEAR MAERRRRRT
to promote environmental awareness g - IEARREH
B Phasing out traditional T8 tubes and replacing with energy- B XSRANERHTENE « LAETEER
saving T5 fluorescence tubes and LED lighting T5 285 /& & & LED BRAA AR
® Using of solar thermal energy for power (electricity) generation m EAKGREE WD SEHE
to reduce diesel use and hence carbon emissions A PR D BxBER
® Reusing wastewater after sedimentation treatment for site = PREEKITUREIE - BIREAN MR
cleaning, water suppression systems, wheel washing at site B OBKIERA  RIMHA
access, water barrier filling, etc. Q)8 8 g B A KEEREE
B Reusing recycled water for preliminary air lifting of bore piles " HEUKBRBRARYLEREE
B Use of seawater instead of freshwater for marine works m FEE TR KK
B Reusing water dripping from air-conditioners for roof sprinkler B WERLREREK  BREBREIR
cooling systems and watering of plants of site office BKER RS R T A=Y E
B
= Using noise barrier and enclosure to protect sensitive receivers m BARERELEEERESITR
ERENEE

Maximise the Benefits in Environmental
Protection, Energy Efficiency and
Carbon Footprint Reduction

RERBRE  RFRNBERBDEREEDN

b 2
/
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(Il) ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)
Environmental Measure
It is our unshirkable responsibility to provide and promote green
building solutions and methodologies to create safe and sustainable

() RFRE )
RIRETE
HAP R TR HE R AR (B R SRR R T 2R A
RATHER2MARERERTREHR

cities and to contribute towards climate change. Sustainability RELEESE - BB NEB 8K
designs and construction methods have been initiated in our project AR B S T RIEE R - (FRKEE

sites with developed mitigation measures to protect our environment,
reduce waste generation and enhance recycling.

ERBEARERE - A BEWELR
SRR -

Eco-Firendly Actions — At Construction Sites
RERRTH — RIith

Project: Tseung Kwan O — Lam Tin Tunnel — Tseung Kwan O Interchange and Associated Works

HE  SER—EARE - SEAXEERMEEIR

Green Construction Methods

REEEER

Use of larger size pile to reduce use of concrete and
risks of encountering adverse geotechnical conditions
FERRNERNEBETE WD ERERLEREET
A AR B R

Reuse of temporary steel platform, saving material
cost and time for erection
ERGRRHM TS - A MR KRR

100% reuse of seawater instead of freshwater for all
marine works

PAPRA 8 T2 100% Z AR RK

Reduce carbon emission
AR BERR

Building Information Modelling (BIV)
BRECEEE

True representation of the actual construction
conditions

EREIHARNEE KR

Identify physical/spatial clashes or conflicts among the
different civil, structure, plumbing and drainage etc.
and avoid unnecessary remedial works and delays
BRITRE LA - &1 BEBRIOKEHIREERE
T NE R - M e TV ENE T2 MEH
Avoid surplus of materials

B LM ELBT

Facilitate off-site precasting of bridge segments,
reducing use of formwork materials

fREEH BINERE R - WA RIR TRMF A E R
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(I) ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued) () RERE @
Environmental Measure (continued) BRERK &)

Eco-Firendly Actions — At Offices and Construction Sites
RERRTH —RRAERTH

Carbon Emission Monitoring System Eco-renovation On-Grid Solar System
“EMEERS BRERE BHRA KZRER B
= Paperless meetings = Applying energy-saving lighting = Qperating in parallel with the
mRER {5 FA B 2 HR AR electricity grid of the site for

supplementing the foil-based

= Switching off lighting and = Utilising natural light in interior ) )
generation and protecting

appliances (computers and design arvironmant

itors) during lunch h ERRI L EAARLE "
;”;’;';;}%”%Eﬁ_,”ﬁg e EERREERRANLR ST EBERA (R
H<;&J£%:)H e = B Reusing old furniture AR TIABE AR T ARG
. EAERE W

= Maintaining indoor temperature
between 24°C and 26°C in
summer months
REZFAMBRENRENF
BER24EZ26E

Enhance Staff’s Environmental Protection Awareness for Reducing Energy Consumption and
Carbon Emissions

I srergEmEsnEsR . AOEENERBER
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BRI -HERERRE

(II) ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

Environmental Performance

The Group has established a comprehensive group-wide carbon audit
system which extended the scope of carbon audit to monitor
emission data of the different business units under the Group. The
Group has developed policy of controlling greenhouse gas emission,
and managing our fuel and electricity usage through deployment of
high efficiency equipment for better use of resources. B5 bio-diesel
are widely used at project sites with the aim of reducing carbon
emissions. We have also collaborated with Shell Hong Kong Limited
to launch the Carbon Emission Offsetting Programme, to neutralise
carbon released from our civil engineering construction site, whereas
monitoring by Verified Carbon Units (VCUs).

(1)

The Key Performance Indicators (“KPI(s)”) demonstrating our Group's
performance under the environmental area are disclosed as follows:

REBERE 2

RIREN

A E R 2 R S A A
HEG TEREHBEREREEN
& B R R L T B A R - N EE
B 4 108 2 SR AR BB RO R - AR
FRATEBRRBEETEMHRE N
(R AR FI S o BS A 15
EEBHEEEIER  ERERRL
BEEER B AZ o 1A - RIMEEB B
BIRATA VEHE HRERH B B - A
TR TA2 T HAOBRHERR + 3 LARR LS
e e 3

[RERA S BRIRE T EmAE R 2 B SEAE R
HBE((FRERUER D RENT

KPIs Description
AREVER g
Aspect A1 Emissions
[ETE A1 bZlie)
A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data
PR iR A AR BRI BUR
Please refer to the section headed “ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION" above
B2R EX[RERE] -6
A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions and intensity
BERBHRERTE
Scope 1 Scope 2 Total (tonnes CO,e)
EE" gE2 i (M_ELRER)
Direct Emissions (tonnes CO,e) Energy Indirect Emissions 2019/20: 2018/19:
4k S
BEEHER(E_S(theE= (tonnes CO,e) 64,084 28.052

RERIFERSFN(M_E(LIREE)

33,327

18,980

9,072

rrmr

2019/20

2018/19 2019/20 2018/19

Intensity (tonnes CO,e per
HK$ million revenue)

ZE(M_S{REE

BEEBTWE)
2019/20: 2018/19;
8.01 3.47
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(1) ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued) () RBRE =)
Environmental Performance (continued) RERENE)
KPIs Description
BRERER i Ul
Aspect A1 Emissions (continued)
[E T A1 Hep (&)
A1.3&A1.4 Total hazardous waste and non-hazardous waste produced and intensity

MELEEREEEEMRERTE

Hazardous Waste (tonnes) Non-hazardous Waste (tonnes)

BEEEY (W) mEREREY (W)

2019/20: 2018/19: 2019/20: 2018/19:

7.00 16.68 599,398 621,722

Intensity (tonnes per HK$ million revenue) Intensity (tonnes per HK$ million revenue)
BE (W SEEBTRE) BE (W SEEBTWE)

2019/20: 2018/19: 2019/20: 2018/19:

0.01 0.01 74.92 /76.98

A1.5 Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them

L P 3RE B BEIR B AR K R ER B R FTEREREY 25

Please refer to the section headed “ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION" above
FLREXRBRE] —&

A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, and a description
of reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them
HiRIEAEREEERYN A A - AR MR ERRE B R R RERE R

Please refer to the section headed “ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION" above
B2 R EXRBRE] —&
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(I) ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued) () RERE @

Environmental Performance (continued) BREM &)
KPIs Description
BREREE it
Aspect A2 Use of Resources
HA2 HREA
A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total and intensity

BEAESNEE R LRRERERERTE

Electricity (kwh) Intensity (kWh per HK$ million revenue)
AEE (TER) RE(TEE SE88TlsE)
@ 2019/20: 2018/19: 2019/20: 2018/19:
55,304,327 15,789,757 6,912.35 1,995.15
Diesel (Litre) Intensity (Litre per HK$ million revenue)
Le5m (F) RE (Ft/ SEEETRE)
2019/20: 2018/19: 2019/20: 2018/19:
11,253,718 6,627,946 1,406.57 820.70
Petroleum (Litre) Intensity (Litre per HK$ million revenue)
A (FH) RE (Ft/ SEEETiE)
2019/20: 2018/19: 2019/20: 2018/19:
437,300 531,398 54.66 65.80

A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity

mIEKERTE

Water consumption (m?)

FEKE (ML FHK)
& 2019/20: 2018/19:
—®) 502,412 511,817

Intensity (m? per HK$ million revenue)

BE(IAK/SERBITKE)
2019/20: 2018/19:
62.80 63.38
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(1) ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued) () RBRE =)
Environmental Performance (continued) RERENE)
KPIs Description
BRERER i Ul
Aspect A2 Use of Resources (continued)
EHEA2 BIRER (&)
A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) and steps taken to achieve them

FR AT SZEVBETR(E A Res B 1R M A B B IR PTERER Y P R

Please refer to the section headed “ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION" above
B2 R X RBRE] —&

A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water
efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them
R EGE AR R B AR - ARPART S8 AR B AR R AERE R AT EREE

Please refer to the section headed “ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION" above
B2AENRIERE] —f

A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products and, if applicable, with reference to per
unit produced

HREABEMHNEER (NER) BEEEUNE

Disclosure of packing material is omitted since it is not identified as material aspect in the
business of the Group

RREBEMBRNERBRNAKRE ERXH T H - Rt ARERMHZKE

Aspect A3 The Environment and Natural Resources
[EH A3 RIERRANER
A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and natural resources

and the actions taken to manage them
MO EBEDHRERRRERNEAZERCRKNEREHAZENTY

Please refer to the section headed “ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION" above
B2R X RBRE] —&

Aspect A4 Climate Change
[EE A4 RIRE{t
A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have impacted, and those which

may impact the Group, and the actions taken to manage them

HAEE RO AESEELARENTARGHEBEEE - UREEHBEENTY

Please refer to the section headed “ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION" above
B2AENRIERE] —&
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BRI -HERERRE

(I) ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

Environmental Awards

Our Group's efforts in contributing to environmental protection have
been recognised by the community with the following environmental

awards received during the Year:

The 25" Considerate Contractors Site Award Scheme

() RFRE )
RIREEIE
FEEEERBRIENE HESHE
B WA A L TR R S -

EPLYERNE S

Development Bureau and Construction Industry Council

= Qutstanding Environmental Management & Performance Awards

(1 Gold Award, 1 Silver Award and 1 Merit Award)

BRARBEXES

= GHRIREE MR R

(—IEg# - —IAREN—IAERE)

Hong Kong Green Awards 2019
EREELERE2019

Green Council B {BES

= Green Management Award — Corporate (Large
Corporation) (Gold Award)

e T2 EREHIEARE — (KB (25)

= Green Management Award — Project Management
(Large Corporate) (2 Gold Awards, 3 Silver Awards and
1 Bronze Award)
BUHRREER —HEER(KALE) (MESE -
ZIRSRER —IR I EE)

® Environmental, Health and Safety Award — Large
Corporation (1 Platinum Award, 1 Silver Award and 2
Bronze Awards)
HBERRZEREE — REAGE(—HA:HK  —EHR
5% K% R 1E 7 52)

BRERAERBRETI/EEEBE
— 201956 FFEEE

Green Office and Eco-Healthy Workplace Awards Labelling
Scheme — Spring 2019

World Green Organisation R EES

® Green Office and Eco-Healthy Workplace Awards Labelling B FERAERERIERERE
Scheme (3 Certificates) (ZHEEEZ)

Hong Kong Construction Association EEEERS

= 2019 Construction Environmental Award (Environmental Merit B 2019EERAEXNE(RFEEEE)

Award)
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(llf) OPERATING PRACTICES
Supply Chain Management

We recognise that supply chain management is essential to
operational efficiency and therefore work closely with suppliers and
contractors to effectively and efficiently meet our clients’ needs,

while emphasising responsible operating practices.

Our Group is stringent in selecting qualified suppliers, ensuring that
their entire production process is in line with our standards and
specifications. Not only do we require our new suppliers to submit all
relevant documents for review, we also run background checks to
evaluate their reliability. We conduct regular inspections and
evaluations to review the standards of our suppliers and cease
cooperation with unqualified suppliers. We are committed to
developing and maintaining effective and mutually fruitful working

relationships throughout our entire supply chain.

The Group also puts forward new requirements on the products and
services provided by suppliers are up to the international standard in
terms of quality and environmental protection, motivating the suppliers
to formulate appropriate environmental policies and promoting
energy-saving emission reduction and low-carbon production. Regular
meetings between the Group and suppliers would be held for
communicating and sharing the experience of environmental

protection.

During the Year, approximately 1,800 suppliers in Hong Kong were
engaged by the Group.

(i) & EEHI

HEEEE
B T ARG B TR TR BB R T
ke IR - EI R R
HEEEAE - BRI 2 BREM
EHXDARFER  ARERAHR
EER -

AEBEEIE A ERMLER - fRE
EREERFATARMNZEERR
& o T TMEE R H AR ATA M
BASCIFALEDRD - TEETHERRE
ARHE R AT SEME - AR METHKER
A - AR R AIRE - e RIE
EAAERNEREEE - BB NE
EREHMBETERIESEALEEDN
BIERE

BN - A B R RIR G M R R
BRIBIAT - EEERBR P EAE
BIEBS R - DAY R B
BT RIR B AR R B -
A BB RTERRE - LR
BHERREH -

RAEE - AEBREFBRIEH1,800%
HER -



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BRI -HERERRE

(111) OPERATING PRACTICES (continued)

Product/Service Responsibility

We recognise that good quality products and services are keys to
success and enhance our competitive edge. Adhering to this belief,
our Group has established the Quality Management System
embedded with risk-based thinking, life-cycle perspective and
mitigations. Such system is implemented by reliable business teams,
ensuring the quality of our products and services as well as efficient
handling of all queries from our clients.

The heads of individual divisions discuss any particular incident
related to our products and services with the relevant division
managers, project managers, supporting departments and
committees sharing their views regarding various aspects of good
standards and statutory compliance. Corresponding improvements
are planned and implemented across all levels. Senior management
also regularly conducts reviews with business units and takes
necessary precautionary measures whenever applicable.

We maintain reliable electronic and hard copy recording systems at
various stages, including material delivery notes, origin certificates,
method statements, traceability records, inspection and testing
reports, etc., to facilitate any needs for a recall. Recall procedures are
traced through our recording system to obtain relevant information
to make decisions on any further action that may be necessary.

Our Group implements stringent quality control measures comprising
detailed operational flows and procedures, project management and
staff training to ensure that we deliver high quality services to our
clients. In recognition of our quality assurance, our various divisions
have been accredited with ISO 9001:2015 quality management
system standard to sustain our business position and ISO 10002
customer management system standard. Through the ISO 9001
quality management system, the internal and external factors are
determined to support our Group strategic direction.

Applicable laws and regulations governing property development and
assets leasing are being complied with, and practices are in
conformity with those promulgated by Lands Department, Buildings
Department and Planning Department. In property development
projects, from design to after sales care, health and safety
considerations are taken into account and that our Group is
committed to the delivery of high-quality products and services to the
satisfaction of customers.

() EEEH (=)

Em/ REEE
BFIREEEREER MR TR AR
2 BFRARMNSRIESD - AEE
BIWES  RLTmEEERRS - &
AR AR B4 - e BRSO
it o RBRAAENEBERNEE
17+ FEREm B AR E A MR R R 38
BEPHMALH -

EOBMEERBEOBMLE  HEL
2 ERAMRZ ST RIEMNERE
mERBOEEES  ARRFIRER
AEREZTHERRBR - HIFTHEENRZ
B WRBERIETT - SEERARD
EHERBELE TR - YHEEER
ST EREUL R TER 1R o

HPIRBAISENE T RN R
BoORETRTERE  SRMHEE
B EMHRE  MEIFBE BT
5 mEMAERES - AMEEMEN
BEFR - ARFEEBRMNCE
REAEY - ABUSHEBEER - JRE
AR B — 2 1TE) ©

REBEBESHDREEHER (2
HEMeEREREF  BEEENE
T - UEREMARTFRES
EHRIS - (FAHRMESRENHR
Al %l 5 22 % 5150 9001 : 2015
EETEERITERE  UEFRMN
¥R 0 FISO 10002 BEFEIRE R
EERE - FEBISO W0 EEETIER
R NBERINBERIEE I AEE
HIBLRS I 1) o

AEEEBTEENEFERNIEEHEDN
BRI MOAR - HEPIIMT A 4
F ETERREIBRMZRG - &Y
XBRRAR  BEAZE2ERTEERE
BRGEBROREHEERE  A&H
MB R EEER LIRS - SEFW

o
=)
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BRI -HERERRE

(111) OPERATING PRACTICES (continued)

Product/Service Responsibility (continued)

To address regulatory requirements in the context of property sales,
in addition to internal staff members, external legal advisors and
professional consultancy firms are appointed to advise on the
compliance of relevant laws and regulations, particularly the
Residential Properties (First-hand Sales) Ordinance which regulates
the provisions of sales brochures, promotional advertisements, price
lists, show flats, viewing of properties, sales arrangements, execution
of agreements, register of transactions and the like, as well as
observance and performance of the conditions set out in the Land
Grant and/or the pre-sale consent under the Lands Department

Consent Scheme.

Our security and facility management divisions also adopt control
measures in respect of routine operations and compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations, especially the license requirements
under the Security and Guarding Services Ordinance and
responsibilities of a property manager under the Building
Management Ordinance, in order to ensure efficiency, quality

assurance and uniformity of performance.

In the view of the feedback from customers, we treat it seriously and
view it as means to consistently improve the quality of our products
and services we offer. The Group has standard procedures in place to
deal with the client’s feedback. Upon receiving any feedback, it,
subject to the situation, will take action and keep track of its
settlement, ensuring every feedback being handled properly. During
the Year, the Group was not aware of any cases of complaints

related to safety and health reasons.

Intellectual Property Rights

The Group is committed to ensuring the intellectual property rights in
its course of operation. We primarily rely on the intellectual property
laws in Hong Kong, confidentiality agreements and internal policies
to protect all intellectual property relating to the Group and
operations. The employee handbook stipulates the code and

provision that requires our employees to comply.

Data Protection and Privacy Policies

All employees are prohibited from disclosing any confidential
information such as customer data under our privacy protection
policy. Consumer data including project-related information and
other sensitive information are subject to access right control to
ensure its security and prevent any abuse or misuse. Our Group
observes Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance and reviews our human
resource and business practices from time to time to ensure its

compliance.
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(111) OPERATING PRACTICES (continued)

Anti-corruption

Our Group believes that honesty, integrity and fair play are important
contributors to the value of our assets and business. It is therefore
essential for all employees to ensure that our Group’s reputation will
not be tarnished by dishonesty, disloyalty or corruption. Various
policies and guidelines are in place to avoid any breach of the
Prevention of Bribery Ordinance.

Employees should decline an offer of gift if acceptance of it could
affect their objectivity in conducting our Group's business, induce
them to act against the interests of our Group or lead to allegations
of impropriety. If an employee wishes to accept a gift with the
amount greater than the limit as stated in our Employee Handbook,
such employee should seek written permission from the managing
director of the particular subsidiary or our Group. Any employee in
breach of the code of conduct in the Employee Handbook will be
subject to disciplinary action including termination of employment.

Periodic written reminders are sent to our business partners and
suppliers about our Group's policy regarding “No Acceptance of
Advantages”.

The Group encourages the employees to report all illegality,
irregularity, malpractice, unethical acts or behaviours, inappropriate
conducts or actions, which may damage the Group'’s interests, and
makes sure that there are sufficient protection of such whistle
blowers. Messages received will be looked into by the management
team at the appropriate level in a timely and impartial manner.

During the Year, the Group did not find any significant risks relating
to corruption and was not subject to any confirmed corruption cases
involving the Group or any corruption litigations against the Group
or any of its employees. In the future, the Group will continue to
place priority on anti-corruption and integrity, strengthen supervision
of anti-corruption and expand the scope of external supervision for
the healthy development of the Company.

Conflict of Interests

All employees should avoid any situation which may lead to an actual
or potential conflict of interests and should make a declaration in
writing to the head of the subsidiary or our Group when such a
situation arises. Failure to do so may give rise to allegations of
favoritism, abuse of authority or even corruption.

(IV) COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

The Group recognises the obligation to uphold CSR. Over the years,
we make our longstanding commitment to serving the society. This
Year, our contribution mainly covers four aspects: Community,
Education, Health, and Environment Concerns. Through devoting our
efforts, we aim to build a more harmonious and sustainable society.
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(IV) COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT (continued)

Community

The Group is dedicated to build a harmonious and inclusive society.
We encourage our staff to participate in various voluntary activities
to aid those in need, so as to build a positive and integrated
environment for different groups of people in the community.
Beneficiaries include elderlies, children, minorities and low-income
families, etc.

Harmony Community Programme

The Group has implemented the Harmony Community Programme
("HCP") since 2014. This program encourages our staff of
construction sites from 18 districts of Hong Kong to serve the
community by participating in a wide range of voluntary events.
Through HCP, we aim to foster stronger connection with the local
community, minimise the adverse effects brought by our construction
projects and build up a positive working environment for our
frontline staff. A total number of 134 colleagues have joined the
program in the Year and 333 volunteer service hours were recorded.

“. Care for the Disadvantaged, Fight the Virus

) mEsz ALz

On 20 February 2020, Chun Wo's staff from the project of Re-development
of Pak Tin Estate and the Pak Tin Resident Committee jointly organised the
“Care for the Disadvantaged, Fight the Virus” event. A group of our

frontline staff visited the elderlies with physical disabilities and
gave out anti-epidemic bags containing food, surgical
masks, and cleaning supplies, etc., lending a hand to the
elderlies.
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(IV) COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT (continued) (IVHEZSHE &)

Education HE

As a corporate, we are well aware of our responsibility to nurture our EB—RBNY  BRPFBREETT—RD

next generation. This Year, the Group has spared no effort to foster FT o RANGFE - ANE B B JE B T 4R Ak

the physical and mental health of students with our NGO partner, AERHERSEES NES IR E

St. James’ Settlement. Moreover, to bring a brighter future to the BENGLREER I BEFE

young, we provide scholarships and funding to local universities and —REBEFRBEAAL - B I BN K

educational events. Talks, seminars and internships are also organised BUHE FERMHEES L ES - Ik

to give professional insights to inspire students to learn and grow. A FATERIERE - e REEE
2 BTEAHEEN R BREMME
B K

Chun Wo x St. James' Settlement: NGO Partnership “D.R.E.A.M. Your Dream Program 2019/2020"

BMxERSERE  FBFHEHSS%ED.R.EAM. EE22019/2020 |

Chun Wo has collaborated with St. James’ Settlement to promote the concept of “Positive
Education” this Year. It aims to help primary students to build up a good character, develop
positive thinking, enhance social and communication skills, and promote mental and physical
wellness through a series of activities. The goal of this collaboration is to build an integrated and
inclusive society.

RAFE  ENMEEEXBHSSFEREEAHE | WES - iS5 BB —ZIESH
By NBARIT RIFRE  BRERDE  RBARMRXRBBRRD  URERESLEEER - 2R
BIENERRELBAARNMLE -

Financial Assistance for Education

BEMBER

This Year, the Group has made a total financial support of over
HK$1 million in education. Chun Wo Charitable Foundation has
provided scholarships to support students from different institutes. Scholarships have been granted to students from The
University of Hong Kong, The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology, The Hong Kong Polytechnic University,
Technological and Higher Education Institute of Hong Kong, the Vocational Training Council and Sheng Kung Hui Tsoi Kung
Po Secondary School. Besides, the Group has also supported 19 educational events organised by different universities and
organisations.

RAFE  AEBEHEHEA HIRHEE 1,000,000 B THHBER - EMEAEESE
RUBEG  UEPHTRREROHBE - RPIEAEFEARE  BERKRKE - T
BTXRE FERSHEMRER BEIRBREASHENEFENEL
BERBE o BRUbASN . AEBETEEB19ERTRAARSREBRRNHE
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DMEAERERAERAR 201920 F 3k n e



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Rig  HERERHRE

(IV) COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT (continued)

Education (continued)

Presentation Ceremony and Sharing Session

BEEL2018/19BEERARIEZS

E II Chun Wo Scholarship 2018/19

(IVHEZHE »)
HE#E)

“Life Planning Talk for Secondary School Students” II E
[ERER | hBLELEREEE

On 23 October 2019, Ms. Lo Yee Kwan, Sanlies, the
Assistant General Manager (Human Resources) of
Chun Wo Construction Holdings Company Limited
(“Chun Wo Construction”), presented cheques to
the scholarship recipients from The University of
Hong Kong and The Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology, as well as shared her
experience and insights about workplace ecology
and industry requirements with the students,
offering them encouragement and inspiration.

2019410 A 23 B « (B AEEERAR AR ([EM
B ANEIRIBENID MBI EERE /M ME M ES 52
BoMBABAEBREBRBEABELRETR -0
HEBLSZEAGBSERRITESKNER LR
2 - BEBETEREE) R ARES

E II Secondary School Internship Programme

FRLEEBRE

Mr. Ho Wai Fu, Raymond, Ex-Director
of Chun Wo Construction, was
invited by Hong Kong
Professionals and Senior
Executives Association as a
guest speaker of “Life
Planning Talk for Secondary
School Students” held at
Lingnan Secondary School. He
shared his working experience
and talked about the advancement
path and development opportunities
in the industry to help students better
understand the construction engineering industry

and encourage the students to find the right direction to
develop their career.

EMEEMEEMAREELLERBLEXZRERTRAER
SHE ETERTER[EAER] hEELERBEEN
DERE - RARBHNZFIRITENTELE BHEE
RERMESE HELTARM TREETRTE B
REMSHEANBEERTR
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Chun Wo has participated in the “Business-School Partnership
Programme” of the Education Bureau since 2015. In 2019, we held a
“Chun Wo Career Workshop”, inviting 5 secondary students to work
at our back office. During the workshop, students have helped us to
organise blood donation events and handle clerical works, as well as
visited the Improvement of Water Supply to Sheung Shui and Fanling
site. This internship workshop allowed students to learn outside the
classroom, including but not limited to professional mechanical
knowledge and purchasing procedures, giving them an extraordinary
summer.
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(IV) COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT (continued) (IVHEZH %)

Health e

Health is an essential element for maintaining our well-being. The BEESRBZENEEZ - A£EE—HEH
Group is always devoted to building a healthy society. During the AREVRELE c RAFEE - S
Year, we made our best endeavor to help fighting the COVID-19 BAEAT LSRR AELIIROS
pandemic by donating money, surgical masks and other resources to AR H A EIR - 38 1 ¥ 51 COVID-19
the public and the construction industry. In addition, with an aim to PEoh - RIERAREERRROET R
arouse the public’s awareness towards rare diseases and raise funds REFHERENREEK  Lifewire
for children suffering from such illnesses, Lifewire held two flagship G o BE Y BRI IB KRR - F#LE
events to achieve these goals. REMEE -

Support during COVID-19 Pandemic

COVID-19 &1 T X Bt

The Group is aware of the public’s fear and concern under the haze of the pandemic. Therefore, we have donated a
total sum of HK$400,000 to the community in fighting the virus in which HK$250,000 was donated to the
Construction Industry Caring Campaign — Fight Against Novel Coronavirus and HK$150,000 was donated to the
Hong Kong Industrial & Commercial Association to expedite sourcing of medical supplies around the world and
provide financial support to frontline healthcare workers, as well as Hong Kong citizens affected by the pandemic.

In addition to financial donation, Chun Wo Charitable Foundation donated more than 200,000 surgical masks to
people in need through various social welfare agencies and children hospital to counter the pandemic. The Group is
determined to make unremitting efforts in helping the underprivileged in the community.

For our staff, we implemented work-from-home policy and flexible working hours to ensure their safety and health.
150,000 surgical masks were reserved for the Group’s employees to purchase for protecting
them and their families.

ERBRET  AREIEIATRNZHRLERE - Fit - BFIAHLES HIBRE 400,000 7T
MR ZE R > B 250,000/ 8 TR T [REXHURBEETTE ] - 150,000/8 7T A4 HE
TEEIHAS UWEERRSHWINRERENERE I ANRKREEABRIRIEVEN
FEMREHMEIE

RIS RAEEESTABS ELERBERREERNAREALR
B41200,000189 5 O I SHURENS - AEBBN T - B HENBHILE -

BTHHE  RMERER TEBRREGEETE @ BROMNLTZEER - X
SETRE 150,000 ESN O EHESHEE - RBFIERARMRRE -
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(IV) COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT (continued)

Health (continued)
Lifewire

Established in 2014, Lifewire is the first crowdfunding platform for
healthcare in Hong Kong providing financial support to children
who have special medical needs. It brings together patients,
charities, donors and medical experts into a linked community to

(IVHEZHE »)

REE (&)

Lifewire (& o B48)

Lifewire{7& o B4 ) R 2014 F KL+ =
EEEEAEERRERETS  AEET
BERTENTEREVBEIE  RAR
A BERE - BEERBEEREY

spread love and hope, and to offer financial assistance to children
and their families.

—EAEHE  EHEEFE WAR
BREREREFED -

Lifewire and The SAR Philharmonic Orchestra Hosted the Charity Concert

Lifewire (i « B4 REBELEEM (%L - B | BEERS

The “Charity Concert”, jointly organised by Lifewire and The
SAR Philharmonic Orchestra held on 17 June 2019, raised
over HK$1 million to support children suffering from rare
diseases, aims to relieve the financial burden of the rare
diseases’ children’s families, as well as

raise public awareness on rare

diseases.

Lifewire (& o “,ﬁ>>£5%%°5%§
LEAEPN[Z e B EE
=2 N2019%6 4178 %E

17 EBBBI00EBTIULIES
EFAEFRNRE BUFEEAARAERENTBEE  LURIE
BARHERRFRNEL -

Lifewire Run 2019 >
F e P90

Chun Wo and Lifewire jointly organised the “Lifewire Run 2019"” Charity Run cum Carnival on
10 November 2019. More than 1,700 runners took part in the races and more than 100 organisations
sponsored and joined the event, raising about HK$2 million, all net proceeds were donated to

Lifewire to support children with rare diseases and

promote public awareness of those diseases.

& 70 8 Lifewire{ & o Bt 48 ) 122019
1MAI0BAH[Z 0 e WP | ZBE
B - B 1,700 iR MBS
KiBiE 100 MEEE LR EZEE
£1842008570 0 FTAZFHBRK
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(IV) COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT (continued) (V)L EZEE ()
Health (continued) BEE)

Chun Wo Blood Donation Day 2019
A8 A 2019 W

Chun Wo and The Hong Kong Red Cross Blood Transfusion
Service jointly organised the “Chun Wo Blood Donation Day
2019" on 24 July 2019. We encouraged colleagues to support
the call of the Hong Kong Red Cross Blood Transfusion Service
by donating blood regularly to save lives. Our colleagues
proactively joined the event and contributed to the “Give Blood
Alliance” for helping patients in Hong Kong.

MR2019F 7248 - BMNEFZEA+FTeRMREF LG M
[EFBMA2019] - HEBRSEEEEATTEHMRBE T L
FIMFREIBIMMA - BEMEBR2IES AL NEE] H—5
7 MEBEBHEA °

Environmental Concerns RIBEE

The Group recognises the importance of environmental sustainability. REBEFPRBNFERENEEZN o
In addition to implementing safety and environmental measures in BRATHEMREL S RIREREEIN &
construction sites, we encourage our staff to join various MEHEET2HEZEERREE IR
environmental activities to protect our home. ERE -

Coastline Recovery at Island House

TN FRITE

On 23 November 2019, 20 volunteers of Chun Wo
participated in the “Coastline Recovery” event organised by
World Wildlife Fund. They visited the Declared Monument,
WWEF Island House Conservation Studies Centre and learnt
about the problem of marine refuse. They also cleaned the
beach and sorted the garbage collected for environmental
protection.

RK2019F 11 A23H ' 20 EMET 2 NAEREAESS
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(IV) COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT (continued)
CSR Awards and Recognition

(IVHEZHE »)
TEHESEFREBEBREST

"Caring Company”

/ s
/ Mﬁ -

canngcompmy

Chun Wo is proud to have been awarded
the “15 Years Plus Caring Company” logo
from The Hong Kong Council of Social
Service for the year 2019/2020. The Caring
Company Logo for 15 consecutive years
confirmed the Group’s continuous effort in
upholding our social responsibilities. The
Group'’s subsidiaries City Security and City
Professional Management also hold the
“Caring Company 10+" logo for our

dedication in building a caring community.

“Hong Kong Outstanding Corporate Citizenship Award”

[ REE

ML EREL S RGH S MER
2019/20204F JE #) [15F Plus i & &
BAE ] 1R o $%l;§a£§15¢§§ ]
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[BERGHEEARE ]

Chun Wo has been conferred “The 10t
Outstanding Corporate Citizenship
Awarded” from the Hong Kong Productivity
Council, which recognises our achievement
in promoting sustainable development in
society and fulfilling the character of a good
corporate citizen.

L "Breastfeeding Friendly Workplace”
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The Group has been recognised as
"Breastfeeding Friendly Workplace” from
UNICEF for the year 2019/20. The Group
has extended the maternity leave to 14
weeks and the paternity leave to 7 days,
and introduced nursing rooms in our offices
and on several construction sites to protect
the privacy of nursing mothers. The Group
is determined to provide a better working
environment for working mothers.
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(IV) COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT (continued) (IVHEZH %)
CSR Awards and Recognition (continued) TEMEETRERET &)

W partner Employer Award” [REERErsraEll

Chun Wo has been honoured with the EFEESFREREP /DDA
“Partner Employer Award” from The Hong CEBEIABMER]IHE RE¥AE
Kong General Chamber of Small and EREAAM B2 R KEEEE

Medium Business for 5 consecutive years, FHEENS ) - REEEESEI
Kﬁ 5%?&” recognising the Group's efforts in hiring e L ERKKLE BB EERS
Pariner Employer Award M i graduates from local technical institutes ESSER

and universities, providing training
opportunities and practical experience that
enhance their long-term career planning.

“Industry Cares” [ TERZE

Chun Wo has been participating in the EMEEIFLEARBETERE [T
“Industry Cares” Recognition Scheme (¥REL]XBFTE - RSFERF

x organised by the Federation of Hong Kong [3+] 1235 - RIGEMBEAELSH
"O,l QRURSTERE ks Industries for 3 consecutive years, and has EEBMke WREZHERE—|®
“.J IxmE ﬁj garnered the “3+" recognition this year. It BrihEAEET T TEMELRE -

acknowledges Chun Wo's accomplishment
in joining CSR events and recognises its
outstanding performance in fulfilling CSR in
the past years.

“Construction Industry Caring Organisation” [REXEATHE]

Chun Wo has been awarded the ENEREHBEEEZSRPNEE
“Construction Industry Caring Organisation” EEYPYNETAEZ [BELBAEH
under the Construction Industry Sports and Bl ZBBEBRE TEMNAEDLE
Volunteering Programme organised by the HEEERRREEBIBERERA
Construction Industry Council. The Award EELORES T -

recognises Chun Wo's continuous efforts in

carrying out CSR and establishing a positive

image within the construction industry.

THE FUTURE EY 3240

The Group acknowledges the importance of CSR and will continue to AEESFLEHSEINEE L @ HiEE
give back to the society as well. We will also endeavor to promote our B EF i@ o A RN ERLRE - BRATE
CSR initiatives to the communities when expanding the business in Asia.  FhmtEEERMNCELT ST (TiEE o
The Group will periodically review our CSR program to ensure our CSR AREF¥ FHRGE 2L @5 T8 BEF
initiatives and performance cover the needs of society in such dynamic (>t & H (T R &R IBERETE 21

environment. REPNEHESE
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREEREEASEN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Pang Yat Ting, Dominic (“Mr. Pang”) BA, MBA, /D
Chairman

Mr. Pang, aged 47, graduated from Columbia University, New York in
1995 with a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics, Political Science and
Mathematics, and obtained a Juris Doctorate from the New York University
School of Law in 1998 and an Executive Master of Business Administration
degree from Kellogg-HKUST in 2010. Mr. Pang currently is a member of
council of City University of Hong Kong and a member of council of the
Vocational Training Council, and has served as a standing committee
member of Hebei Province of The Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference since January 2018, has been appointed as a vice president of
Belt & Road General Chamber of Commerce in April 2018, and has served
as the chairman of Executive Board of the Hong Kong Real Property
Federation since September 2019.

Mr. Pang joined the Group in 2003 and was appointed as the assistant to
the late Chairman, Dr. Pang Kam Chun. Mr. Pang was appointed as the
Chairman of the Company and the Executive Director in April 2010 and re-
designated as the Co-Chairman of the Company and the Non-executive
Director in January 2015. He has been further re-designated as the
Chairman of the Company and the Executive Director since March 2017.
Mr. Pang is also the Chairman of the Nomination Committee and Executive
Committee and a member of the Management Committee. He is also
currently the Chairman of the property development executive board of
the Group, responsible for the management of the overall property
development and assets leasing business of the Group. He also holds
directorships in certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Pang is the
brother of Ir Dr. Pang Yat Bond, Derrick, the Executive Director and the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company, and the son of Madam Li Wai
Hang, Christina (“Madam Li"), the Executive Director. Mr. Pang is a director
of GT Winners Limited (“GT Winners”), the controlling shareholder of the
Company (as defined in the Listing Rules). Mr. Pang and Madam Li each
owns 45% equity interest in GT Winners.

Mr. Xu Jianhua (“Mr. Xu”) LLB, MBA, LLM

Deputy Chairman

Mr. Xu, aged 51, holds a Bachelor’s degree in Law of the China University
of Political Science and Law, a Master’s degree in Business Administration
of Beijing University of Aeronautics and Astronautics and a Master of Laws
degree in International Economic Law of City University of Hong Kong. He
was qualified as a lawyer in the PRC in 1994 and a senior economist in the
PRC in 2003. Mr. Xu has over 21 years of corporate management
experience and extensive experience in transactions of mergers and
acquisitions and investment and financing. He was a director of a company
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange and two companies listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Xu was appointed as the
Co-Chairman of the Company and the Executive Director in January 2015.
He has been re-designated as the Deputy Chairman of the Company in
March 2017 and is currently a member of the Management Committee
and Executive Committee. Mr. Xu also holds directorships in certain
subsidiaries of the Company.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)
Ir Dr. Pang Yat Bond, Derrick (“Ir Dr. Pang”) Jr
BSc, MEng, MBA, PhD, PE(US), MICE, MHKIE

Chief Executive Officer

Ir Dr. Pang, aged 45, graduated from the University of California, Berkeley
in the United States in 1997 with a Bachelor of Science degree and
obtained a Master of Engineering degree in Civil and Environmental
Engineering from Massachusetts Institute of Technology in the United
States in 1998 and a Master’s degree in Business Administration from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong in 2007. He also obtained a Doctor of
Philosophy in Civil Engineering from the Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology in 2014. Ir Dr. Pang is a member of the Institution of Civil
Engineers, the United Kingdom and the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers
and a Registered Professional Engineer in the State of California, United
States. He has over 20 years of geotechnical design and construction
experience in the United States and Hong Kong. He has been appointed as
a non-official member of the Land and Development Advisory Committee
since July 2015 and has served as a non-official member of the
Construction Industry Council since February 2017. Ir Dr. Pang was
appointed Justice of the Peace by the Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region in June 2017. He was also a non-official
member of the Task Force and Land Supply from September 2017 to
February 2019.

Ir Dr. Pang joined the Group in 2001 and holds directorships in certain
subsidiaries of the Company. He has been appointed as Executive Director
since April 2010 and acted as the Deputy Chairman of the Company from
April 2010 to March 2017. Ir Dr. Pang has been appointed as the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company since April 2017 and acted as the Chief
Operating Officer of the Company from April 2017 to January 2019. He is
also the Chairman of the Management Committee and a member of the
Executive Committee. He is also currently the member of the property
development executive board of the Group, responsible for the
management of the overall property development and assets leasing
business of the Group. Ir Dr. Pang is the brother of Mr. Pang, the Chairman
of the Company and the Executive Director, and also the son of Madam Li,
the Executive Director, both of whom are controlling shareholders of the
Company (as defined in the Listing Rules).
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EENEEEEARESN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Shea Chun Lok, Quadrant (former name: Shea Chi
Lap, Quadrant) (“Mr. Shea") BBus., MEcon., LLM, FCPA(Aust.),
CPA, CTA, ACMA, ISCA, ATIHK, CGMA

Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary

Mr. Shea, aged 53, graduated from Monash University of Australia with a
Bachelor’'s degree in Business and later completed a postgraduate
programme of Public Finance (Taxation) and obtained a Master’s degree in
Economics from Jinan University, China and a Master of Laws degree from
Renmin University of China. He is a fellow member of CPA Australia, a
member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, The
Taxation Institute of Hong Kong, The Chartered Institute of Management
Accountants of the United Kingdom and Institute of Singapore Chartered
Accountants and a Chartered Global Management Accountant. He is also
a Certified Tax Adviser of Hong Kong and obtained a Certificate of Pass in
Practice Training Examination for Hong Kong Certified Tax Advisers Serving
in Shenzhen-Hong Kong Modern Service Industry Cooperation Zone,
Qianhai, Shenzhen jointly issued by Shenzhen Municipal Office of the State
Administration of Taxation and Shenzhen Local Taxation Bureau.

Mr. Shea has substantial experience in accounting and finance in listed
companies and worked as qualified accountant and company secretary in
various companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange over the
years. He was the group financial controller of S.A.S. Dragon Holdings
Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock
code: 01184) from 1999 to 2005. He has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director of Beijing Enterprises Water Group
Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock
code: 00371) since 2002 and is also the chairman of the audit committee
of the company. He has also been appointed as an independent non-
executive director of Hi-Level Technology Holdings Limited (a company
listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 08113) since 2015 and
is the chairman of the audit committee, nomination committee and
remuneration committee of the company. Mr. Shea joined the Group as
Financial Controller of property development in 2008 and has been
appointed as the Chief Financial Officer of the Company and the Company
Secretary since 2015. He has been appointed as Executive Director since
July 2017 and is also currently a member of the Management Committee
and Executive Committee. He is also currently the member of the property
development executive board of the Group, responsible for the
management of the overall property development business and assets
leasing of the Group. Mr. Shea also holds directorships in certain
subsidiaries of the Company.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Madam Li Wai Hang, Christina (“Madam Li")

Madam Li, aged 69, joined the Group in 1975 and has over 45 years’
experience in the construction industry. Madam Li previously acted as an
Executive Director from July 1992 to February 2015 and had continued to
be a member of the senior management of the Group thereafter. She has
rejoined the Board as an Executive Director since November 2017. She also
holds directorships in certain subsidiaries of the Company. Madam Li is the
mother of Mr. Pang, the Chairman of the Board and Executive Director,
and Ir Dr. Pang, Executive Director and the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. She is a director of GT Winners, the controlling shareholder of
the Company (as defined in the Listing Rules). Madam Li and Mr. Pang
each owns 45% equity interest in GT Winners.

Madam Han Li (“Madam Han")

Madam Han, aged 50, holds a Bachelor’'s degree of Engineering of
Xiangtan University and a Master’s degree in Economics of Jinan University.
She is currently the deputy general manager of SFund International
Investment Fund Management Limited. Madam Han has over 17 years’
extensive experience in management and securities investment in banking
and finance industry. Madam Han has been appointed as Executive Director
in April 2018.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. Wong Wendy Dick Yee (“Ms. Wong")

Ms. Wong, aged 34, graduated from Occidental College, Los Angeles in
the United States in 2006 with a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics and
has over 13 years' experience in marketing and business management. She
is currently the co-founder and director of Wow Concepts Limited and
founder of Topfit Limited. Ms. Wong is a member of Omicron Delta
Epsilon, the International Honor Society in Economics. Ms. Wong has been
appointed as Non-executive Director in May 2020 and is also a member of
the Nomination Committee.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wu William Wai Leung (“Mr. Wu")

Mr. Wu, aged 53, holds a Bachelor of Business Administration degree and
a Master of Business Administration degree of Simon Fraser University in
Canada. He was qualified as a chartered financial analyst of The Institute of
Chartered Financial Analysts in 1996. Mr. Wu was the chief executive
officer of SW Kingsway Capital Holdings Limited (now known as Sunwah
Kingsway Capital Holdings Limited) (a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange, stock code: 00188) from April 2006 to September
2010. He was also a director and chief executive officer of RHB Hong Kong
Limited from April 2011 to October 2017. Mr. Wu was also the executive
director and chief executive officer of Power Financial Group Limited (a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code:
00397) from November 2017 to January 2019. Mr. Wu has been appointed
as the independent non-executive director of JY Grandmark Holdings
Limited (“JY Grandmark”) (a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange, stock code: 02231) since November 2019. Mr. Wu has
also been appointed as managing director, Investment Banking of Glory
Sun Securities Limited since January 2019.

Mr. Wu previously worked for a number of international investment banks
and possesses over 27 years of experience in the investment banking,
capital markets, institutional broking and direct investment businesses. He
is a registered license holder to carry out Type 6 (advising on corporate
finance) and Type 9 (asset management) regulated activities under the SFO.
He has been appointed as a member of the Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous
Region Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference since January 2013.

Mr. Wu has been appointed as Independent Non-executive Director since
February 2015 and is also the Chairman of the Audit Committee and a
member of the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(continued)

Mr. Lam Yau Fung, Curt (“Mr. Lam”)

Mr. Lam, aged 51, is the General Manager of Wanda Hotel Development
Company Limited (stock code: 00169), which is listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange and a member of the Dalian Wanda Group. He has
been appointed as an independent non-executive director of OOH Holdings
Limited (a company listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange, stock code:
08091) since August 2019. He was an executive director of Yuexiu Property
Company Limited (stock code: 00123), a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange, and also the chief financial officer of the Yue Xiu
Group. Mr. Lam was previously the head of Corporate Finance and
Business Development at GOME Electrical Appliances Holding Limited (now
known as GOME Retail Holdings Limited) (stock code: 00493) (“GOME"),
one of China’s largest electronics retailers, which is listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. Prior to joining GOME, he spent about 10
years working in investment banking and capital markets at Schroders Asia,
ABN AMRO Rothschild, and Deutsche Bank. Mr. Lam is a Chartered
Financial Analyst (CFA) and holds a Master of Business Administration
(MBA) degree from Rice University in the United States. He has extensive
experience in corporate finance, financial and accounting fields.

Mr. Lam has been appointed as Independent Non-executive Director since
January 2017 and is also the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
and a member of the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(continued)

Mr. Ho Gilbert Chi Hang (“Mr. Ho")

Mr. Ho, aged 43, has been appointed as an executive director and a
member of the executive committee of NWS Holdings Limited (“NWS”) in
July 2018 (a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
stock code: 00659). He joined NWS in January 2018 and is responsible for
overseeing the business development and mergers and acquisitions affairs,
and certain businesses of NWS. He was also the senior investment director
of New World Development Company Limited (a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 00017), an executive
director of New World Strategic Investment Limited and was a partner of
an international law firm Fried, Frank, Harris, Shriver and Jacobson LLP.

Mr. Ho is a non-executive director of Shoucheng Holdings Limited (stock
code: 00697) since May 2018 and Wai Kee Holdings Limited (“Wai Kee")
(stock code: 00610) since December 2018 and an independent non-
executive director of Kam Hing International Holdings Limited (stock code:
02307) since May 2010 and Hailiang International Holdings Limited (stock
code: 02336) since May 2014. He was an executive director and chief
executive officer of AID Partners Technology Holdings Limited (now known
as AID Life Science Holdings Limited) (stock code: 08088) during May 2014
and March 2016 respectively to January 2018 (all of the above-mentioned
companies are listed on the Stock Exchange). Mr. Ho was also a director
and/or senior executive in several Hong Kong listed public companies.

Mr. Ho is a committee member of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference of Shenyang, a standing committee member of
the Youth Federation of Inner Mongolia and a vice chairman of Inner
Mongolia & Hong Kong Youth Exchange Association. Mr. Ho holds a
Bachelor of Commerce degree and a Bachelor of Laws degree from The
University of Sydney, Australia and was admitted as a solicitor in New
South Wales, Australia and England and Wales and as a solicitor and
barrister in the High Court of Australia. He is also a fellow member of CPA
Australia. Mr. Ho has extensive experience in the area of corporate
management, investments, corporate finance, merger and acquisition
transactions and international brand and retail management.

Mr. Ho has been appointed as Independent Non-executive Director in
January 2017 and is also a member of the Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(continued)

Dr. Yim Yuk Lun, Stanley (“Dr. Yim") 88sS Jp

Dr. Yim, aged 61, is the founder, executive director, chairman and
managing director of S.A.S. Dragon Holdings Limited (a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 01184) since May
1993. He has been appointed as a chairman and executive director of Hi-
Level Technology Holdings Limited (a company listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 08113) in October 2015. Dr. Yim has been an
independent director of Innolux Corporation (a company listed on the
Taiwan Stock Exchange, stock code: 3481.TW) since July 2013.

Dr. Yim is currently the president of the Hong Kong Justice of the Peace
Association, the honorary vice chairman of the Hong Kong Electronic
Industries Association, a member of Yan Chai Hospital Advisory Board, a
member of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
Shanghai Committee, the vice chairman of the Hongkong-Shanghai
Economic Development Association, the chairman of the Tsuen Wan
District Civic Education Committee and the vice chairman of Tsuen Wan
District JPC Honorary President Council.

Dr. Yim has been appointed as Independent Non-executive Director in May
2020 and is also a member of the Audit Committee and Nomination
Committee.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Group

Mr. Yiu Chi Sang, Andy Dip(Eng), LLB(Hons), MA(ArbDR),
MSc(C.Mgt), MRICS, MICE, MHKIE, MASCE, FCIArb, FHKIArb, CEng

Mr. Yiu, aged 64, graduated from Hong Kong Baptist University in 1981
with a Diploma in Civil Engineering. He was awarded a Master of Arts
degree in Dispute Resolution and Arbitration in 1995 and a Master of
Science degree in Construction Management in 1998 from City University
of Hong Kong. He further obtained a Bachelor of Laws degree in 2004
from the University of Wolverhampton, the United Kingdom. He is a
member of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors, the Institution of
Civil Engineers, the United Kingdom, the Hong Kong Institution of
Engineers and the American Society of Civil Engineers as well as a fellow
member of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators, the United Kingdom and
the Hong Kong Institute of Arbitrators. Mr. Yiu has over 39 years’
experience in the construction industry, including civil, building, foundation
and marine engineering projects in Hong Kong, Macau, Vietnam and the
Mainland China. He re-joined the Group in 2008 and was the Chief
Operating Officer of the construction segment of the Group. He is currently
the Executive Vice President of the Group, responsible for assisting the
Chief Executive Officer of the Group to manage the overall business of the
Group.

Mr. Tam Chi Kwong, Steve ViSc(Pv)

Mr. Tam, aged 56, obtained a higher diploma in structural engineering and
an associateship in civil and structural engineering from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic (now known as the Hong Kong Polytechnic University) in 1986
and 1988 respectively. He further obtained a postgraduate diploma in civil
engineering and a master of science degree in project management from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 1996 and 2009 respectively. Mr.
Tam has more than 13 years of experience in corporate management. He
joined the Group in 2002 and is currently a director of the Group
overseeing the overall performance of the internal operations of the Group.
Mr. Tam holds directorships in certain subsidiaries of the Company and is
also a non-executive director of City Services Group Limited. He is also
currently a member of other business executive board of the Group.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Construction Segment

Mr. Lee Ka Lun, Stephen BA(AS), B. Bidg, Dip Proj Man (RICS),
FRICS, FHKIS, ACIArb, RPS(QS)

Mr. Lee, aged 63, graduated from The University of Hong Kong with a
Bachelor of Arts (Architectural Studies) degree in 1980 and a Bachelor of
Building degree in 1982. He is a Registered Professional Surveyor (QS) with
fellow membership of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors and The
Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and membership of the Chartered
Institute of Arbitrators. He is on the List of Arbitrators of Hong Kong
International Arbitration Centre and is a member of the Joint Panel of
Arbitrators of The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and The Hong Kong
Institute of Architects. Mr. Lee has 39 years’ experience in quantity
surveying and commercial management in Hong Kong, the Mainland
China, Taiwan, Macau, Singapore, Malaysia and the Philippines. He worked
with the Group from 1998 to 2005 and re-joined the Group in 2011.
Mr. Lee is a Director (Legal and Commercial) of the Group. He is also
currently the Chief Executive Officer of the construction segment of the
Group, responsible for the management of the overall construction
business of the Group.

Mr. Ko Wing Nin, Ken BSc(Eng), MSc(Eng), CEng, MICE, FHKIE,
RPE(Civil), FCHKRI

Mr. Ko, aged 56, graduated from Chu Hai College in 1986 with a Bachelor
of Science and Engineering degree in Civil Engineering. He also obtained a
Master’s degree in Civil and Structural Engineering from the University of
Sheffield, the United Kingdom in 1994 and a Master’'s degree in
Construction Law from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2011. He
is @ member of the Institution of Civil Engineers, the United Kingdom, a
fellow member of the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers, a Registered
Professional Engineer in civil discipline in Hong Kong and a Fellow of China
Hong Kong Railway Institution. He has 34 years’ experience in the
construction industry including civil, building, foundation and marine
engineering projects in Hong Kong, Macau and the United Arab Emirates.
Mr. Ko joined the Group in 2006 and is currently the Chief Operating
Officer of the construction segment of the Group, responsible for assisting
the Chief Executive Officer of the construction segment of the Group to
manage all site operations.
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EENEEEEARESN

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Construction Segment (continued)

Mr. Leung Wing Chuen, William B.C. £, ANEC3&4ECCPM,
MiStructE, FCHKRI

Mr. Leung, aged 56, graduated from University of Glasgow with a Bachelor
of Civil Engineering degree in 1987. He further obtained a NEC3 and NEC4
Engineering and Construction Contract Project Manager Accreditation
from University of Glasgow in 2018. He is a member of the Institution of
Structural Engineers and a fellow member of the China Hong Kong Railway
Institution. He has 33 years’ experience in construction industry, including
infrastructure and project management in Hong Kong and overseas.
Mr. Leung joined the Group in 2012 and is currently the Deputy Chief
Operating Officer of the construction segment of the Group and is in
charge of Civil Business Unit.

Mr. Chan Anthony Yin Chung

Mr. Chan, aged 34, graduated from University of British Columbia in
Canada in 2008. He is a council member of Hong Kong Construction
Association, a honorary chairman of Hong Kong Construction Association
Young Members Society, a board member of the Construction Industry
Council — Zero Carbon Park, a committee member of Lifewire Foundation
Limited, a member of Hong Kong Institute of Construction STEM Alliance,
a member of the Construction Industry Council Committee on Construction
Safety, a member of Hong Kong Construction Association Civil Engineering
Committee and SME Committee and a member of the Judging Panel of
the Construction Industry Council Sustainable Construction Award.
Mr. Chan has substantial experience in construction industry and currently
is the director of Kwan Lee Holding Limited and is responsible for the
management of its overall business.

Dato’ Lim Yuk Meng, Weslie BAF, FCCA, CA(M)

Dato’ Lim, aged 46, graduated from the University of Strathclyde in the
United Kingdom with a Bachelor's degree of Accounting and Finance in
1995. He is a fellow member of Associated Chartered Certified Accountant
and a member of Malaysia Institute of Accountant. Dato’ Lim has 25 years’
experience in accounting and finance, business development and
management, and interior design and fit-out business in Malaysia, Hong
Kong, the Mainland China and Cambodia. Dato’ Lim is the founder and
managing director of ECO and is responsible for the management of its
overall business.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENEEEEARESN

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Construction Segment (continued)

Mr. Ng Swee How, Vincent 8. Sc.Eng.(Hons)., M.Sc.Eng., P.Eng.,
C Eng., ACPE., MIES., AlStruct.E., M.Con.E.S

Mr. Ng, aged 65, graduated from the Aberdeen University in the United
Kingdom with a Bachelor’s degree of Engineering in 1980. He has also
awarded a Master of Civil Engineering degree from the National University
of Singapore in 1985. Mr. Ng is a Registered Professional Engineer in
Singapore, a Registered Asean Chartered Professional Engineer and a
member of the Institution of Engineers, Singapore. He has 40 years’
experience in structural design, civil engineering and project management
in Singapore, Malaysia, Indonesia, Sri Lanka and Vietnam. Mr. Ng is the
managing director of R.J. Crocker Consultants Pte. Ltd. and is responsible
for the management of its overall business.

Property Development and Assets Leasing Segment

Mr. Ho Chun Wai B.Arch, MSc(RED)

Mr. Ho, aged 45, graduated from The University of Southern California in
1999 with a degree in Bachelor of Architecture. He has awarded a Master
of Science degree in Real Estate Development from Columbia University,
New York in 2007. He has more than 17 years’ working experience in
architecture design, project management and property development
aspects for many projects of various size and complexity in Hong Kong and
the United States Prior to joining the Group in 2018, he had served a public
listed property development company in Hong Kong, responsible for the
property development and management of projects in Hong Kong. Mr. Ho
is currently the General Manager of the property development segment of
the Group, responsible for the management of the overall property
development and investment business of the Group.
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EENEEEEARESN

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Professional Services Segment

Mr. Wong Wing Tong, Michael Mis\vi, cviPsA

Mr. Wong, aged 64, has more than 23 years’ experience in the
management level of security and facility management services. He
previously served at the Hong Kong Military Service Corps, formerly the
British army unit in Hong Kong, and obtained various professional military
qualifications and skills. Mr. Wong is a member of the International
Professional Security Association. In September 2016, he was appointed as
an executive committee member for Chamber of Security Industry Limited
for a period of 2 years. Mr. Wong joined the Group in 1997 and is currently
the chairman of the board and managing director of City Services Group
Limited, responsible for overseeing the management of the security and
facility management business of the Group.

Non-Franchised Bus Services Segment

Mr. Wong Kwan Kit, Calvin BBA(Mktg)

Mr. Wong, aged 35, graduated from Oxford Brookes University in the
United Kingdom in 2009 with a degree in Bachelor of Business
Administration in Marketing. He has 10 years’ experience in local logistics
industry and business management. Mr. Wong is currently the Chief
Executive Officer of the non-franchised bus services segment of the Group,
responsible for the management of the overall business of non-franchised
bus services of the Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EEXERERS

The Company has been making continued efforts to incorporate the key
elements of sound corporate governance into its management structure
and internal control procedures. The Company is committed to maintaining
a high standard of corporate governance, the principles of which serve to
uphold a high standard of ethics, transparency, responsibility and integrity
in all aspects of business, and to ensure that affairs are conducted in
accordance with applicable laws and regulations.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with all the code provisions of the CG Code
throughout the Year. The Board had duly performed its duties relating to
the corporate governance functions and was not aware of any code
provisions of the CG Code being violated during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors. All Directors have
confirmed, after a specific enquiry made by the Company, that they have
fully complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout the Year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the management of the Company on behalf of
the Shareholders. Key responsibilities include formulation of the Group'’s
overall strategies, setting of management targets and supervision of
management performance. The Board confines itself to making broad
policy decisions and also exercising a number of reserved powers as
mentioned below, while delegating responsibility for more detailed
considerations to the Management Committee under the leadership of the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company:

. those functions and matters as set out in the terms of reference of
various Board committees (as amended from time to time), for which
Board's approval must be sought from time to time;

o those functions and matters for which Board’s approval must be
sought in accordance with the Group’s internal policy (as amended
from time to time);

o consideration and approval of the financial statements in interim
reports and annual reports, announcements and press releases of
interim and annual results;

o focusing its attention on matters affecting the Company’s overall
strategic policies, financing and Shareholders;
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

o consideration of dividend policy and dividend amount; and

° reviewing and monitoring the corporate governance policies and
practices of the Group to ensure compliance with the legal and
regulatory requirements.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information,
including regular reports from the Board committees and briefings on
significant legal, regulatory or accounting issues affecting the Group.
Directors may seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, which will be paid for by the Company.

BOARD COMPOSITION

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises eleven Directors including
six Executive Directors, one Non-executive Director and four INEDs, with
INEDs representing not less than one-third of the Board as required under
the Listing Rules. The Board members are listed below:

Executive Directors
Mr. Pang Yat Ting, Dominic (Chairman)
Mr. Xu Jianhua (Deputy Chairman)
Ir Dr. Pang Yat Bond, Derrick, JP (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Shea Chun Lok, Quadrant
(Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary)
Madam Li Wai Hang, Christina
Madam Han Li

Non-executive Director
Ms. Wong Wendy Dick Yee

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wu William Wai Leung

Mr. Lam Yau Fung, Curt

Mr. Ho Gilbert Chi Hang

Dr. Yim Yuk Lun, Stanley BBS JP

Each of the Non-executive Director and INEDs has entered into an
appointment letter with the Company for a term of three years. The
appointment letter is renewable subject to consent given by the Company
and the respective Non-executive Director and INEDs. The Non-executive
Director and INEDs are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with
the Bye-laws.
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TEERRE

BOARD COMPOSITION (continued)

The Board had at all times during the Year met the requirements of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three INEDs with at
least one INED possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received an annual or appointment written confirmation
from each INED to confirm his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all INEDs are independent
under the Listing Rules.

Relationship between Board Members

Mr. Pang Yat Ting, Dominic, the Chairman of the Board, and Ir Dr. Pang
Yat Bond, Derrick, the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, being
brothers, and Madam Li Wai Hang, Christina, the Executive Director, is the
mother of Mr. Pang Yat Ting, Dominic and Ir Dr. Pang Yat Bond, Derrick.

Dr. Yim Yuk Lun, Stanley is the chairman and executive director of Hi-Level
Technology Holdings Limited in which Mr. Shea Chun Lok, Quadrant, the
Executive Director, chief financial officer and Company Secretary of the
Company, is an independent non-executive director. Taking into
consideration his roles in the business activities of, and the relationship
between the two companies, the Nomination Committee considers that
such cross-directorship relationship will not affect Dr. Yim Yuk Lun, Stanley
in performing his duties as the INED.

Save as disclosed above, there is no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationship among members of the Board.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company recognises the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance
the quality of its performance and maintain a sustainable development in
long run. In this regard, the Nomination Committee has endorsed the
board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) which sets out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board.

Board diversity shall be achieved through consideration of a number of
factors and measurable objectives as set out in the Board Diversity Policy,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional expertise, industry experience, skills and
knowledge.
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BOARD COMPOSITION (continued)

Nomination Policy

The Company has also adopted the nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) setting out the key selection criteria and principles to be used by
the Company in making recommendations on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors to the
Board to ensure that the Board has a balance of skill, knowledge,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of
the Company’s business.

The Nomination Committee shall make reference to the Board Diversity
Policy and the Nomination Policy to nominate suitably qualified candidates
to the Board for consideration and make recommendations on the
appointment of any proposed candidate to the Board or re-appointment of
any existing member(s) of the Board.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for monitoring the
implementation of the Board Diversity Policy and the Nomination Policy
and will review the above policies, as appropriate, to ensure the
effectiveness of the above policies.

Board Diversity
The following charts show the diversity profile of the Board as of the date
of this report:

Board Composition
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DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE RECORDS AT EEHFEER L%
MEETINGS

During the Year, the Company had held four board meetings and two RAFER » ARRRITTHREEREH
general meetings. The attendance records of individual members of the EMABRRAE -EERLEERETELZE
Board and Board committees at the respective meetings during the Year & ZERIKERAFEERNHERBESHZT
are set out below: BN

Number of meetings attended/Number of meetings held

HEERRY BIEERY

Audit  Nomination Remuneration Annual Special

Board Committee Committee  Committee General General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
EER EKZE® R¥zEg §HMzEe RRBEF BRI

Directors 23 23 23 2% Ag N |

Executive Directors HTEs

Mr. Pang Yat Ting, Dominic (Chairman) & —[E%4 (£8) 44 - 17 - 1 11N
Mr. Xu Jianhua (Deputy Chairman) GERELL(FTE) 4/4 - - - 1" 1"
Ir Dr. Pang Yat Bond, Derrick T AETIEM

(Chief Executive Officer) (178 48%) 4/4 - - - 17 o
Mr. Shea Chun Lok, Quadrant PN i

(Chief Financial Officer and (EEHHE#

Company Secretary) RapE) 444 - - - 1/ 10
Madam Li Wai Hang, Christina TERL 3/4 - - - 01 17
Madam Han Li BHZL 24 - - - 01 0/1
Non-executive Director FHTES
Ms. Wong Wendy Dick Yee' e/ A" - - - - - -

Independent Non-executive Directors B {755

Mr. Wu William Wai Leung HEREE 414 2 11 Vi 1/1 1/1
Mr. Lam Yau Fung, Curt WhELE 414 22 111 22 1/1 1/1
Mr. Ho Gilbert Chi Hang EELE 4/4 22 - A2 0 111
Dr. Yim Yuk Lun, Stanley? REBEL? - - - - - -
T appointed as a Non-executive Director on 15 May 2020 T R2020F5 A 1S BERRIENITESE
2 appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director on 15 May 2020 2 R2020F 5 B1SHETAB Y IEHITES
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EEERRE

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training courses at the
Company'’s expense. All Directors are regularly provided with information
in respect of the Group’s latest business development and the latest
development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable statutory and
regulatory requirements to facilitate their effective performance of
directors’ duties and ensure compliance and maintenance of good
corporate governance practices. During the Year, all Directors had
participated in seminars and/or studied materials for developing and
refreshing their knowledge and skills. The Company has received from all
Directors their respective training records for the Year.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

During the Year, the Board had been led by the Chairman, Mr. Pang Yat
Ting, Dominic and the role of Chief Executive Officer is performed by Ir Dr.
Pang Yat Bond, Derrick.

The role of the Chairman is separate from that of the chief executive. The
Chairman is responsible for overseeing the functioning of the Board while
the chief executive is responsible for managing the Group’s business.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established various committees, including the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee,
the Management Committee and the Executive Committee. The respective
terms of reference of the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Remuneration Committee are of no less exacting terms than those
set out in the CG Code and are available on the Company’s website. All
committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties.

Management Committee

The Management Committee was established in April 1993. It operates as
a general management committee with overall delegated authority from
the Board in order to increase the efficiency for the business decision and
facilitate the approval of certain corporate actions.

As at the date of this report, the Management Committee comprises four
members, all of whom are Executive Directors.

Members of the Management Committee:
Ir Dr. Pang Yat Bond, Derrick (Chairman)

Mr. Pang Yat Ting, Dominic

Mr. Xu Jianhua

Mr. Shea Chun Lok, Quadrant
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee was established in March 2007 to assist the
Management Committee in the running of the day-to-day business of the
Company. It is responsible for the development and implementation of the
business plans for corporate and business units. The Executive Committee
is also supported by the heads of Project Management, cascading
performance management down to project level.

As at the date of this report, the Executive Committee comprises four
members, all of whom are Executive Directors.

Members of the Executive Committee:
Mr. Pang Yat Ting, Dominic (Chairman)
Mr. Xu Jianhua

Ir Dr. Pang Yat Bond, Derrick

Mr. Shea Chun Lok, Quadrant

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was formed in April 2005. The primary
responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are, inter alia, to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policies and structure
for the remuneration of all Directors and senior management of the Group
and determine, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration packages
of individual Executive Directors and the senior management of the Group.

As at the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee comprises three
members, all of whom are INEDs.

Members of the Remuneration Committee:
Mr. Lam Yau Fung, Curt (Chairman)

Mr. Wu William Wai Leung

Mr. Ho Gilbert Chi Hang

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee assessed the performance
and approved the remuneration packages of Executive Directors, INEDs and
senior management of the Group.

Emolument Policy for Directors

The Directors’ emoluments are in line with market practice. The Group
adopted the following main principles in determining the Directors’
remuneration:

. No individual should determine his/her own remuneration;

o Remuneration should be broadly aligned with companies with whom
the Group competes for human resources; and
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TEERRE

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Remuneration Committee (continued)

Emolument Policy for Directors (continued)

o Remuneration should reflect performance and responsibility with a
view to motivating and retaining high performing individuals and
enhancing the value of the Company to the Shareholders.

In addition to the basic salaries, the Share Option Scheme and the Share
Award Scheme have been adopted for rewarding and retaining Directors
for the continual operation and development of the Group.

Details of the emoluments of Directors during the Year are set out in
Note 10 to the financial statements of this annual report. The annual
remuneration of the members of the senior management of the Group by
band for the Year is set out below:

EEREBETHNZEESZ %)

FNEES (&)

EEHSHE (F)

. BeERMERIATZERREE B
HHE R R R B ES S AR AL RIE
FHA A R I (B

BREARFEIN - NAFCRAEBES B &
Bt B EIARB MR B EE S AR ER
BEENERMT -

FAERBEEME ZFBENAF R HMHR
R0 AFEAEEREERABZF
EHIREREIN T

Number of
Remuneration Band Senior Management
HMER EEEEABAH
HK$2,000,000 or below 2,000,000 7Tk LA T~ 5
HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,000,001 77T 2 3,000,000 % 7T 3
HK$3,000,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,000,001 77T % 4,000,000 % 7T 2
HK$4,000,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,000,001 #T 2 5,000,000 7 7T -
HK$5,000,001 to HK$6,000,000 5,000,001 & L2 6,000,000 7 7T 1

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was formed in April 2005. The responsibilities
of the Nomination Committee are, inter alia, to make recommendations to
the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and the
succession planning for Directors, to review the structure, size and
composition of the Board and to ensure fair and transparent procedures
for the appointment or re-appointment of Directors.

In case of necessity, the Nomination Committee will propose candidates for
appointment to the Board for consideration and the Board will review the
qualifications of the relevant candidates for determining the suitability to
the Group on the basis of his/her qualifications, experience and
background. The decision of appointing a director must be approved by
the Board and all Board members’ appointments will be based on merit
while taking into account diversity.

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee comprises five
members, consisting of an Executive Director, a Non-executive Director and
three INEDs.
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TEERRE

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Nomination Committee (continued)
Members of the Nomination Committee:
Mr. Pang Yat Ting, Dominic (Chairman)

Ms. Wong Wendy Dick Yee

Mr. Wu William Wai Leung

Mr. Lam Yau Fung, Curt

Dr. Yim Yuk Lun, Stanley

The following is a summary of work performed by the Nomination
Committee during the Year:

(i) reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board and
performed the measurable objective assessment for the year ended
31 March 2019;

(i)  assessing the independence of the INEDs;

(i) recommending the retiring Directors who offered themselves for
re-election at the 2019 annual general meeting for Shareholders’
approval; and

(iv)  considering the re-appointment of the INEDs.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established in December 1998. The Audit
Committee provides an important link between the Board and the
Company’s external auditor in matters coming within the scope of the
Group's audit. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review
and supervise the financial and accounting policies and practices of the
Group. It also reviews the effectiveness of both the external audit and
internal controls and risk management system.

As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee comprises four INEDs
with its chairman possessing appropriate professional qualification,
accounting or related financial management expertise as required under
the Listing Rules.

Members of the Audit Committee:
Mr. Wu William Wai Leung (Chairman)
Mr. Lam Yau Fung, Curt

Mr. Ho Gilbert Chi Hang

Dr. Yim Yuk Lun, Stanley
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TEERRE

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Audit Committee (continued)

The following is a summary of work performed by the Audit Committee
during the Year:

(i) reviewing the annual report and the annual results announcement
of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019, with a
recommendation to the Board for approval;

(i) reviewing the external auditor’'s independence and objectivity and
the effectiveness of the audit process, with a recommendation to the
Board for the re-appointment of the external auditor at the 2019
annual general meeting;

(iiiy  approving the remuneration and the terms of engagement letters for
the purpose of appointing the external auditor in connection with
the statutory audit and review of the results announcement by the
external auditor;

(iv)  reviewing the interim report and the interim results announcement
of the Group for the six months ended 30 September 2019, with a
recommendation to the Board for approval; and

(v) overseeing the Group’s financial reporting system and risk
management and internal control procedures and reviewing the
report of the internal control function on the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group.

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for the Group's internal control and conducts
review on the effectiveness of the internal control of the Group, including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions.

Role of the Board

The Board acknowledges its overall responsibility in ensuring and reviewing
the effectiveness of the systems of internal controls, risk management and
legal and regulatory compliance of the Group in order to safeguard the
interests of Shareholders and the assets of the Group.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

Internal Controls and Risk Management

The Board has put in place policies and procedures, including policies for
delegation of authority clearly defining the limits of authorities designated
to specified positions within the Group. Such policies and procedures set
out the framework for the risk management and internal control systems
for adoption throughout the Group. To ensure that the systems in place
are adequate and address the existing weaknesses in implementation, the
Executive Directors, with the assistance of the executive board of different
business divisions, review the existing policies and practices and issue
directives from time to time to highlight the specific issues and concerns in
order to achieve ongoing improvement on the governance practices within
the Group. The Executive Directors also approve operational and financial
reports, business plans and budgets provided by management of each
business division at regular meetings.

Executive Directors and senior management of the Group are appointed to
the boards of all operating subsidiaries and associated companies of
material importance in order to monitor the operation of these companies.
They attend board meetings and participate in significant decision making
process on reviewing and approving financial budgets, establishing
business plans and controlling performance targets with associated risks
identified. The management teams of different business divisions are
accountable for the performance of their respective divisions on a day-to-
day basis. The Executive Directors review the financial and operational
reports from division management regularly to monitor the performance
and assess the significant risk exposure of the subsidiaries.

The Group’s Finance Department reports to the Board in respect of
overseeing the financial reporting and control systems for all subsidiaries
and associated companies of the Company. The business segments compile
annual budgets for review by the Group’s finance function and the
consolidated annual budgets are presented to the Executive Directors for
approval. The Executive Directors also hold regular meetings with the
management team of business divisions to review the cashflow position of
the Group, consider material ad-hoc projects which require additional
operating or capital expenditure, and make decisions on significant
investment and lending activities. Payment approval is subject to control of
the limits of authorities clearly setting out the authority with reference to
the specified positions of the relevant personnel.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

Legal and Regulatory Compliance

The Contracts and Legal Department is responsible for preparing, reviewing
and endorsing all material contracts entered into by Group companies in
order to safeguard the interests of the Group against legal risks. It also
oversees the regulatory compliance matters of all Group companies in the
environment of their business operations.

Besides, the Company Secretarial Department is in charge of corporate
secretarial documentation of Group companies and overseeing compliance
matters in relation to the Listing Rules and the relevant corporate laws and
regulations of different jurisdictions.

External legal advisors are engaged to advise the Group on important legal
matters and compliance issues when necessary.

Audit Committee and Internal Audit Function

The Company has established an internal audit function. The internal audit
function conducts internal audit on different business divisions and
functions within the Group on an ongoing basis to assess the effectiveness
and identify weaknesses in the existing internal control, legal and regulatory
compliance and risk management systems of the Group. In the event that
defects are identified, the internal audit function engages in discussions
with the management and recommends suggestions for improvement.

Delegated by the Board, the Audit Committee reviews the internal audit
report prepared by the internal audit function twice every year. Reviews
have been conducted on the Group’s internal control and risk management
systems during the Year and the Board and the Audit Committee are
satisfied that the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
are effective and adequate.

Whilst these policies and procedures are designed to manage the risks that
could adversely impact the ability of the Group to achieve its business objectives,
they do not eliminate such risks and can only provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against material misstatement, loss or non-compliance.

Handling of Inside Information

The Group has adopted a policy in relation to handling of inside
information in compliance with the SFO. Employees should preserve the
confidentiality of any inside information according to the manner specified
in the policy and the “Code of Employee Conduct and Business Ethics”
contained in the Staff Handbook. The Group has also adopted the pre-
clearance procedures on dealing in the Company’s securities and notified
Directors and relevant employees of restrictions on dealing in the
Company’s securities during blackout periods to prevent possible
mishandling of inside information within the Group.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration in respect of services provided by Ernst & Young (“EY")
is analysed as follows:

BB 2 B &
BZKBEAEBA ([ 2K ) R 2 IR %
HmE AT :

HK$’000
T/BIT

Annual audit services FERZRE 5,100
Non-audit services* IEEIZRTE * 2,587
7,687
* Such non-audit services include agreed-upon procedures on preliminary — * ZENELRBEREEREFEE VLIRS
announcement of annual results, transaction advisory, tax advisory and compliance ZWHERF - RSHH - BSHARERRS o

services.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR ACCOUNTS

Statements of the Directors’ responsibility for preparing the consolidated
financial statements and the auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report of this
annual report.

The Directors also acknowledge their responsibility to present a balanced,
clear and understandable assessment in the Company’s annual and interim
reports and other financial disclosures required by the Listing Rules as well
as reports to regulators and information disclosed pursuant to statutory
requirements.

As at 31 March 2020, the Board is not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the
Directors have prepared the financial statements of the Company on a
going concern basis. The management has provided to the Board the
necessary explanation and information to enable the Board to carry out an
informed assessment of the financial statements of the Company.

COMPANY SECRETARY
During the Year, Mr. Shea Chun Lok, Quadrant, the Company Secretary,

undertook no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for Requisitioning a Special General Meeting
Pursuant to the Bye-laws, Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
have rights to require a special general meeting to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition, which must
be signed by the requisitionist(s). The requisition must be deposited at the
registered office of the Company at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda (the “Registered Office”) for the attention of
the Company Secretary. To ensure that the requisition is received by the
Company at the earliest opportunity, a copy of the signed requisition
should also be deposited at the head office of the Company in Hong Kong
at C1, 5th Floor, Hong Kong Spinners Industrial Building Phase 1, 601-603
Tai Nan West Street, Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong (the “Head
Office”) for the attention of the Company Secretary.

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at General
Meetings

Pursuant to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (the “Companies Act”),
Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-twentieth of the total voting right at general meetings of the Company
or not less than one hundred Shareholders may provide a written
requisition to the Company stating the resolution intended to be proceeded
at the general meeting. The requisition must be deposited at the Registered
Office for the attention of the Company Secretary. To ensure that the
requisition is received by the Company at the earliest opportunity, a copy
of the signed requisition should also be deposited at the Head Office for
the attention of the Company Secretary.

As regards proposing a person for election as a director of the Company by
Shareholders, Shareholders may refer to the procedures available on the
Company’s website.

Shareholders can also refer to the detailed requirements and procedures as
set forth in the relevant sections of the Companies Act and the Bye-laws
when making any requisitions or proposals for transaction at the general
meetings of the Company.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Group uses several formal channels to ensure fair disclosure and
comprehensive and transparent reporting of its performance and activities.
The Company’s annual and interim reports and circulars are printed and
sent to all Shareholders. Moreover, announcements, circulars, publications
and press releases of the Company are published on the Company’s
website (www.asiaalliedgroup.com). The Company’s website disseminates
corporate information and other relevant financial and non-financial
information electronically on a timely basis.

The Company acknowledges that general meetings are good
communication channel with Shareholders and encourages the Directors
and the members of the Board committees to attend and answer questions
raised by Shareholders at the general meetings.

The Company is committed to promoting and maintaining effective
communication with Shareholders and other stakeholders. The
Shareholders Communication Policy has been adopted for ensuring that
the Shareholders are provided with ready, equal and timely access to
balanced and understandable information about the Company in order to
enable Shareholders to exercise their rights in an informed manner, and to
allow Shareholders to engage actively with the Company. The Shareholders
Communication Policy is available on the Company’s website and will be
reviewed by the Board from time to time to reflect current best practice in
communications with Shareholders.

SHAREHOLDERS’ ENQUIRIES

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings to the
Company’s share registrars. The addresses of the Company’s share registrars
are set out in the section headed “CORPORATE INFORMATION" on pages 5
to 6 of this annual report. Shareholders may at any time make a request for
the Company’s information to the extent that such information is publicly
available. Shareholders may also send written enquiries or requests to the Head
Office or by fax to (852) 3798 5700 or by email to info@asiaalliedgroup.com
for the attention of the Company Secretary.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has approved and adopted the dividend policy (the “Dividend
Policy”) for the Company with effect from 1 March 2019 which setting out
the principles and guidelines to provide the Shareholders with regular
dividend.

Subject to the Bye-laws and the statutory requirements, the Company shall
maintain a sustainable and steady profit distribution policy. Under the
Dividend Policy, the Board targets to pay dividends to the Shareholders in
an aggregate annual amount of approximately 30% of the annual
consolidated net profit attributable to the Shareholders.
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DIVIDEND POLICY (continued)

In proposing distribution of dividend, the Board will take into consideration
of the following factors:

the long-term interest of the Group;
. the general interest of all the Shareholders;
o the sustainable development of the Group;

o the earnings, cash flow, financial condition, capital requirement and
distributable reserves of the Group; and

any other factors that the Board deems relevant.

The Board has the sole discretion to recommend/not to recommend final
dividend to the Shareholders for approval and to declare/not to declare any
other dividend, including but not limited to interim dividend and/or special
dividends, after taking into consideration the factors as stated above.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, there was no change in the Company’s constitutional
documents.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
=ERRBE

The Board are pleased to present the annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in civil engineering, electrical and mechanical
engineering, foundation and building construction work, property
development and assets leasing, professional services (including provision
of security and facility management solutions), non-franchised bus services
and other activities.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on pages 124
and 125.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has approved and adopted a Dividend Policy. Depending on the
financial conditions of the Group and the conditions and factors as set out
in the Dividend Policy, dividends may be proposed and/or declared by the
Board during a financial year and any final dividend for a financial year will
be subject to the Shareholders’ approval. Details of the Dividend Policy
have been disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report of this annual
report of the Company.

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HKO0.40 cent per share for the Year (the “Final Dividend”) (2018/19:
HK0.84 cent per share), amounting to approximately HK$7.3 million
(2018/19: HK$15.6 million), to the Shareholders whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company on 26 August 2020. The
proposed Final Dividend will be paid on 10 September 2020 subject to
approval by the Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting
(the “AGM"). Together with the interim dividend of HK1.20 cents per share
paid in January 2020, the proposed Final Dividend will result in a full-year
dividend of HK1.60 cents for the Year per share (2018/19: HK2.10 cents).

EERMAREAKERNFEZFRLEE
TR A TSR -
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the
AGM and the entitlement of the proposed Final Dividend (subject to
approval of the Shareholders at the AGM), the register of members of the
Company will be closed during the following periods respectively:

TENEROBFERTE
AEEHERIAFARILNE LREZ A
B RERR RSN R IR S 2 A (SR
FRBEEAEAS LIOE) - ARFES IR
TR S ERRR B BRTFE -

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM

AREEHERRBFASYINRE LREZER

Latest time to lodge transfer documents for registration

B BR8P XA AVE B SR SR B[R

4:30 p.m. on Monday,

17 August 2020
2020F8 A17H(2H—)
T 483090

Closure of register of members

LERERG BFEETE

Tuesday, 18 August 2020 to
Friday, 21 August 2020

(both days inclusive)
20208 A18H(EH )=
202048 A21 B (EHH)
(REEEMX)

For determining the entitlement of the proposed Final Dividend

AREERRBEEBNARAREZER

Latest time to lodge transfer documents for registration

R i P X AMEE R R IE R IR

4:30 p.m. on Wednesday,
26 August 2020
20208 A26 H(EHI=)
T 48309

Closure of register of members

TiemEkmnBrPELTE

Thursday, 27 August 2020 to
Tuesday, 1 September 2020
(both days inclusive)
202068 A27 B (EHM) =
2020F9 A1 H (D)
(BIEEEMX)

In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM and be eligible for
the entitlement to the proposed Final Dividend, all completed transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificate(s) must be lodged
with the Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar of the Company, Tricor
Secretaries Limited at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong for registration not later than the respective latest time as
stated above for registration.

BEAEBREERREBRAFAGIRE L&
Z REREEZENABERE  FTEEZZ
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

A review of the business and the future development of the Group, its
principal risks and uncertainties as well as an analysis of its performance for
the Year are provided in the sections headed “CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT"
set out on pages 13 to 15 and "MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS” set out on pages 16 to 34.

The Group's environmental policies and performance, compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations as well as its key relationships with
employees, customers and suppliers and other significant stakeholders are
discussed in the section headed “ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT” set out on pages 35 to 67.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A financial summary of the Group for the last five financial years is set out
on page 286.

EQUITY FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES

The Company did not conduct any fund raising activities on issue of equity
securities during the Year.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the revalued investment properties of the Group as at 31 March 2020
are set out in Note 16 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of these and other movements during the Year in the property,
plant and equipment of the Group are set out in Note 15 to the financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during the
Year are set out in Note 38 to the financial statements.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 3 September 2012, the
Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme.

Purposes

The purposes of the Share Option Scheme provide the directors and
employees of, and technical, financial or corporate managerial advisers and
consultants to the Company and its subsidiaries with the opportunity to
acquire proprietary interests of the Company, which will encourage the
grantees of options to work towards enhancing the value of and for the
benefit of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

Eligible Participants

The eligible participants under the Share Option Scheme include (i) any full-
time employee of the Company or of any subsidiary; (ii) directors (including
non-executive directors and independent non-executive directors) of the
Company or of any subsidiary; (iii) part-time employees with weekly work
hours of 15 hours or above of the Company or of any subsidiary; and
(iv) advisors and consultants to the Company or to any subsidiary in the areas
of technical, financial or corporate managerial.

Scheme Mandate Limit

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all the share
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company must not exceed 10% of the total number of
Shares in issue as at the date of passing the ordinary resolution of the
refreshment of the scheme mandate limit under the Share Option Scheme on
11 December 2017 (i.e. 187,553,384 Shares) (the “Refreshment”). No share
option has been granted by the Company since the Refreshment.

Furthermore, the Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding share options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the Company
must not exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time. As at the
date of this report, the Company had 27,340,000 outstanding share
options granted and remaining unexercised under the Share Option
Scheme, representing approximately 1.49% of the issued Shares.

Maximum Entitlement

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted to any eligible participant (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the
total number of Shares in issue without separate approval from the
Shareholders.

BT
RIER2012FI9AHBBIEBEBRZRSR
RABBRNZERAEE -
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EERWE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Option Period

The option period of a particular option is the period during which the
option can be exercised. Such period is notified by the Board to each
grantee at the time of making an offer. In any event, the option period
shall not expire later than 10 years from the date of grant.

Acceptance of Options

The grantee of options shall pay HK$1 in favour of the Company by way of
consideration for the grant of options within 30 days from the date of
offer.

Exercise Price

The exercise price of an option shall be determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion and shall be no less than the highest of: (i) the closing
price per share as quoted on the Stock Exchange on the date of grant;
(i) the average closing price per share as quoted on the Stock Exchange for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value per share.

Life of the Share Option Scheme

Subject to early termination of the Share Option Scheme in accordance
with the terms thereof, the Share Option Scheme is valid and effective for
a period of 10 years commencing on 3 September 2012 (i.e. the adoption
date of the Share Option Scheme).

Movements of Share Options
Details of the share options granted and outstanding under the Share
Option Scheme during the Year were as follows:

BIRRESTE ()

R EITEHEA

o W S HE 2 77455 0 T4 S R AR R T T4
CHR MRS EEERRN R RS
WERMEEEA  WELABRT  BR
BATESMERS B FEEREHA SR
10F 2% -

R R
R AR AARELN B HRI0BARA
RAZMAETIERR TRREZR(E -

1TEEE
BEREZTEEHESREENEET B
THRERTIZERE : () BRENREH
B AR X PAAT AU E ¢ () B R
S X th B BRI E & 5 A B S PT PT R A
FEUHE ¢ K (i) SRR AEE

ZERER 2B Y

PRAR IR % B O At 81 2 IR IR B4R LS - 5%
BEICRERT 2170 20124 9 A 3 B (ANZ BB R MRt
KM B ) A 10 FAB R AR -

BREZ2F
ZEREA S TRAFEAS R A ARTT
EHBAEFIBT -

Number of share options

BREE A

Exercise Balance Lapsed Balance

Name or price as at during as at

category of grantees Date of grant (HK$) Vesting date  Exercise period 01/04/2019 the Year 31/03/2020

H20195F #2020 F

TEE 4818 AfFER 3831H

ARA A E =i (Br) BEBH TEH i RATE R¥ ERTE
Directors:

BE:

Mr. Pang Yat Ting, Dominic* 05/12/2017 1.02 05/12/2018 05/12/2018-04/12/2021 900,000 - 900,000

TR 05/12/2019 05/12/2019-04/12/2021 900,000 - 900,000

05/12/2020 05/12/2020-04/12/2021 1,200,000 - 1,200,000

Mr. Xu Jianhua 05/12/2017 1.02 05/12/2018 05/12/2018-04/12/2021 900,000 - 900,000

REELE 05/12/2019 05/12/2019-04/12/2021 900,000 - 900,000

05/12/2020 05/12/2020-04/12/2021 1,200,000 - 1,200,000
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EER®BE
SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) ﬂ%ﬂﬁ%%‘f%ﬂ (%)
Movements of Share Options (continued) BRECZEH (&)
Number of share options
BRERA
Exercise Balance Lapsed Balance
Name or price as at during as at
category of grantees Date of grant (HK$) Vesting date  Exercise period 01/04/2019 the Year 31/03/2020
R20195F #2020
THEfE 4H1H TEER 3A31H
ARAH BN ER REBAH (CEr) BEAH TR i RAT6E R i RATE
Mr. Shea Chun Lok, Quadrant ~ 05/12/2017 1.02 05/12/2018 05/12/2018-04/12/2021 900,000 - 900,000
RIEREFTE 05/12/2019 05/12/2019-04/12/2021 900,000 - 900,000
05/12/2020 05/12/2020-04/12/2021 1,200,000 - 1,200,000
Madam Li Wai Hang, Christina*  05/12/2017 1.02 05/12/2018 05/12/2018-04/12/2021 360,000 - 360,000
TERZ L 05/12/2019 05/12/2019-04/12/2021 360,000 - 360,000
05/12/2020 05/12/2020-04/12/2021 480,000 - 480,000
Mr. Wu William Wai Leung 05/12/2017 1.02 05/12/2018 05/12/2018-04/12/2021 180,000 - 180,000
HEmEE 05/12/2019 05/12/2019-04/12/2021 180,000 - 180,000
05/12/2020 05/12/2020-04/12/2021 240,000 - 240,000
Mr. Lam Yau Fung, Curt 05/12/2017 1.02 05/12/2018 05/12/2018-04/12/2021 180,000 - 180,000
WhELE 05/12/2019 05/12/2019-04/12/2021 180,000 - 180,000
05/12/2020 05/12/2020-04/12/2021 240,000 - 240,000
Mr. Ho Gilbert Chi Hang 05/12/2017 1.02 05/12/2018 05/12/2018-04/12/2021 180,000 - 180,000
AEELE 05/12/2019 05/12/2019-04/12/2021 180,000 - 180,000
05/12/2020 05/12/2020-04/12/2021 240,000 - 240,000
12,000,000 - 12,000,000
Other employees:
EfESR -
In aggregate 05/12/2017 1.02 05/12/2018 05/12/2018-04/12/2021 5,610,000 (468,000) 5,142,000
A 05/12/2019 05/12/2019-04/12/2021 5,610,000 (468,000) 5,142,000

05/12/2020 05/12/2020-04/12/2021 7,480,000 (624,000) 6,856,000

18,700,000  (1,560,000) 17,140,000

Total
4=t 30,700,000  (1,560,000) 29,140,000

Number of options exercisable at the end of the Year

RAEFERFAT1760 2 BREYE 17,484,000
Weighted average exercise price (HK$ per share)
METFHTERECET(BR)) 1.02
* Mr. Pang Yat Ting, Dominic and Madam Li Wai Hang, Christina are also substantial * T EEERTEBTTNARATIZEER
and controlling shareholders of the Company, and Mr. Pang Yat Ting, Dominic, PERSARER  ME—ELE TEBEHLT Y —
Madam Li Wai Hang, Christina and Ir Dr. Pang Yat Bond, Derrick are associates of HE+ TR I E BB E A (B EHiRA
each other (within the meanings as defined under the Listing Rules). FTREZRFE) °
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Movements of Share Options (continued)

The closing price of the Shares immediately before the date of grant as
guoted on the Stock Exchange was HK$1.02 per share.

Save as disclosed above, no share options were exercised or cancelled
during the Year.

Further details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in Note 40 to the
financial statements.

RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Board has adopted the Share Award Scheme, pursuant to which the
Company may grant to eligible participants restricted Shares. A summary
of the Share Award Scheme is set out as below:

Purposes

The purposes of the Share Award Scheme are to encourage and retain
selected participants (the “Selected Participant(s)”), including any eligible
person selected by the administration committee of the Share Award
Scheme in accordance with the terms of and entitled to receive a grant
under the Share Award Scheme, to work with the Company and to provide
incentive for them to achieve performance goals with a view to achieving
the objectives of increasing the value of the Company and aligning the
interests of the Selected Participants directly to the Shareholders through
ownership of Shares.

Eligible Persons

The eligible persons under the Share Award Scheme include individuals
being a director (including executive and non-executive Director), officer or
employee of the Company or its subsidiary.

Duration

Subject to any early termination of the Share Award Scheme and without
prejudicing the subsisting rights of any Selected Participant, the Share
Award Scheme shall be valid for the period of 10 years commencing on
1 August 2017 (i.e. the adoption date of the Share Award Scheme).

Maximum Limit

The maximum number of Shares administered under the Share Award
Scheme shall not reach 10% or more of the Company’s issued share
capital from time to time.

Movements of Restricted Shares

No restricted Shares were granted by the Company or vested during the
Year. Further details of the movement of the restricted Shares are set out
in Note 39 to the financial statements.
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ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the Share Option Scheme and the Share Award Scheme
disclosed above, at no time during the Year and at the end of the Year was
the Company or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire
benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

BORROWINGS AND INTEREST CAPITALISED

Details of the Group’s borrowings are set out in Note 34 to the financial
statements.

Interest capitalised by the Group during the Year is set out in Note 8 to the
financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT OPERATIONS, JOINT
VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, joint operations, joint
ventures and associates as at 31 March 2020 are set out in Notes 51, 52,
53 and 54 to the financial statements respectively.

RESERVES

The Company's reserves available for distribution to Shareholders as at
31 March 2020 were as follows:

BEROIESFZH

B £SO IRER 2 2 B B AT B Bz B 4 22 R
RSN ARRHEERERQF - HER
Bl F M B A B I N A B AR A
ERANFERR L EMZY  BEEEERE
AR DB S ERMEMEABR 2RO HES

MESE S ©

BRRAEERL
ARE 2 SRR B RAN 534 -

RAFER  NEBZMEERNMEHR
wEMIFES -
WEAR - AREE  A¥AR
PN AN

MR2020F3A31H ARRIZEZHEBEA
Al ARER . ALQF) URBERQRZ
B DRI ISR EMIFEST, 52, 53 %
54 o

R
PB2020%3 A31H » AARAHD IR FALE
BT

all

HK$'000
FET

Contributed surplus MR 52,552
Retained earnings RE &= 153,327
Total HEt 205,879

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the Year are set out in Note 55 to the financial statements and the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 129 and 130
respectively.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Pang Yat Ting, Dominic
Mr. Xu Jianhua

Ir Dr. Pang Yat Bond, Derrick, Jp
Mr. Shea Chun Lok, Quadrant
Madam Li Wai Hang, Christina
Madam Han Li

Non-executive Director
Ms. Wong Wendy Dick Yee (appointed on 15 May 2020)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wu William Wai Leung
Mr. Lam Yau Fung, Curt
Mr. Ho Gilbert Chi Hang
Dr. Yim Yuk Lun, Stanley 88s Jp
(appointed on 15 May 2020)

In accordance with Bye-laws 86(2) and 87 of the Bye-laws, Mr. Shea Chun
Lok, Quadrant, Madam Li Wai Hang, Christina and Mr. Lam Yau Fung,
Curt will retire from office by rotation at the AGM. Ms. Wong Wendy Dick
Yee and Dr. Yim Yuk Lun, Stanley, who were appointed as a Non-executive
Director and an INED respectively by the Board as additions to the Board,
will retire from office at the AGM. All the retiring Directors, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the AGM has a
service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the INEDs an annual or
appointment confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the INEDs are independent
under the Listing Rules.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into
or in existence during the Year.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND THE FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and the five highest paid individuals in
the Group are set out in Notes 10 and 11 to the financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance) for the benefit of the Directors is currently in force and was in
force throughout the Year.

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover to protect the
Directors from possible legal actions against them.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2020, the interests of the Directors and chief executive of
the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code contained
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, were as follows:

EEEN
RAFER  ARBAEFT LI FEEMNE
BAARE2ESEMBAMDEBHOEIRR
TTREX -
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Number of Number of % of the
ordinary underlying Company'’s
shares held shares held issued
Name of Directors Capacity Notes (long position) (long position) share capital
L] oL o] AR A T
ZBERHME MHEROHBE 2 RITRA
EEnE 514 it (5F&) (F#8) Bt
Mr. Pang Yat Ting, Dominic Beneficial owner 1 - 3,000,000 0.16%
TRELE EREBA
Interests of controlled 2 1,120,802,388 349,802,317 79.99%
corporation
R EE R
Mr. Xu Jianhua Beneficial owner 1 - 3,000,000 0.16%
TRIZE RS BB A
Ir Dr. Pang Yat Bond, Derrick Beneficial owner 7,326,000 - 0.39%

T AELTIZA BEmEA A
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EERWE

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE IN SHARES,

EERFTETBRAEREKS
HERODREZ2EERAR

UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES (continued)  (#)

Number of Number of % of the
ordinary underlying Company’s
shares held shares held issued
Name of Directors Capacity Notes (long position) (long position) share capital
=] 58 LCR NN
LEREE rMHBEROHA BRITRA
BEEnE 54 K et (fF%=) (FFR) Bk
Mr. Shea Chun Lok, Quadrant  Beneficial owner 1 - 3,000,000 0.16%
RIEEGEL A EmlEEA
Madam Li Wai Hang, Christina  Beneficial owner 1 10,880,875 1,200,000 0.65%
TEMZL Em#EA A
Interests of controlled 2 1,120,802,388 349,802,317 79.99%
corporation
Sy A E R
Mr. Wu William Wai Leung Beneficial owner - 600,000 0.03%
R A Em#EA A
Mr. Lam Yau Fung, Curt Beneficial owner - 600,000 0.03%
WhEESTE EmEEA
Mr. Ho Gilbert Chi Hang Beneficial owner - 600,000 0.03%

BESKERHES Em#EA A
Notes: Mi3E
1. Details of the underlying shares of the Company held by the Directors are set out 1. EERFAZARTEBEROOFERN X

in the above section headed “SHARE OPTION SCHEME". Rt | —6p o

T ESRERPER LTS BEA GT Winners
45% it - RiIFFESF RBEGED - BEZEW
RAHE GT Winners FTE A S8 BB R
ZARREBARLBERD ZEHGT
Winners 5 B s < S BB T X [ EZERRN
Bty RARRAR D 2 Em Kok R | —#f -

2. GT Winners was owned as to 45% by Mr. Pang Yat Ting, Dominic and 45% by 2.
Madam Li Wai Hang, Christina. By virtue of the SFO, each of them was deemed to
be interested in the ordinary shares/underlying shares of the Company in which GT
Winners had interest or was deemed to have interest. The details of such interests
of GT Winners are set out in the following section headed “INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES".

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2020, none of the Directors and [ X FRiEEE N - 20203 A31H » i

chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in the #EZBZRAQNTFETHABREAQAGHE

shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its {L{R[#EEEE (EHE R EFESMBAEEAIFE XY

associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO). ) 2 B%AD - ARRERR D S EH P A RS
HHA
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EERWE

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF TERERABROREBERGZ
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES AND X R XA
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2020, the following Shareholders (other than Directors or 720203 A31H » AR AIREZESFLAE
chief executive of the Company) were recorded in the register kept by the — {&BIFE 336 5B EFEFE 2 B LMz otk
Company under Section 336 of the SFO as being interested or deemed to A TR (BFH ARG EBTHA KN

have interest in 5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company: RARBEBEITRAFRHEE SR AEE 5%
A2 A
% of the
Number of Number of Company'’s
ordinary underlying issued
Name of Shareholders Capacity Notes shares held shares held share capital
P NG|
®E ®E ERITRAE
RREE,EH 51 k=3 EEREE MR EHE BA
GT Winners Beneficial owner 1 1,120,802,388 (L) 349,802,317 (L) 79.99% (L)
ERBEAA
SFund International Investment Beneficial owner 2 183,802,317 (L) 183,802,317 (S) 10.00% (L)
Fund Management Limited EnlEAA 10.00% (5)

(“SFund International”)
EMEERREREESER
BRAR(EMESERE])

BINERKEREREESEE  Interests of controlled 2 183,802,317 (L) 183,802,317 (S) 10.00% (L)
BRAR(EMERKE]) corporation 10.00% (S)
(transliterated as Guangzhou X EEER

Huiyin Tianyue Equity Investment
Fund Management Co., Ltd.

("GZHYTY"))

FENEHS & B AT & 2R Interests of controlled 2 183,802,317 (L) 183,802,317 (S) 10.00% (L)
BRAR(TEMNBIEER]) corporation 10.00% (9)
(transliterated as Guangzhou X EEER

Financial Innovation Investment
Holdings Co., Ltd. (“GZFI"))

BMNEXKRERSER Interests of controlled 2 183,802,317 (L) 183,802,317 (S) 10.00% (L)
BRARI(TEMNESR]) corporation 10.00% (S)
(transliterated as Guangzhou X EEER

Industrial Investment Fund
Management Co., Ltd. ("GZI"))

— Asia Allied Infrastructure Holdings Limited ~Annual Report 2019/20
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EERWE

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

FERRRBROREBRG 2
ERZRAE @)

% of the

Number of Number of Company's

ordinary underlying issued

Name of Shareholders Capacity shares held shares held share capital
RN

] =] BRITRE

RREE L8 E27) EBEREE HERGEAE BOk
BMTRTERREEE Interests of controlled 2 183,802,317 (L) 183,802,317 (5) 10.00% (L)
BERAR(EMNHEER]) corporation 10.00% (S)

(transliterated as Guangzhou R EE R
City Construction Investment
Group Co., Ltd ("GZCC"))

Best Manage Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 3 166,000,000 (L) 166,000,000 (S) 9.02% (L)
ERBAA 9.02% (5)
(L): Long position L): F&
(S): Short position (S): KR
Notes: M5E -

1. These represent (i) a beneficial interest in 1,120,802,388 ordinary shares of the
Company, representing approximately 60.96% of the issued share capital of the
Company; (ii) a beneficial interest in 183,802,317 underlying shares of the
Company pursuant to a call option, representing approximately 10.00% of the
issued share capital of the Company; and (iii) a beneficial interest in 166,000,000
underlying shares of the Company pursuant to a put option, representing
approximately 9.02% of the issued share capital of the Company, directly held by
GT Winners.

2. SFund International was wholly-owned by GZHYTY, which was in turn wholly-
owned by GZFI. GZFI was wholly-owned by GZI and GZI was wholly-owned by
GZCC.

3. Best Manage Holdings Limited is wholly-owned by Brite-Tech Research Limited
which is in turn wholly-owned by Surplus Assets Limited. Surplus Assets Limited is
wholly-owned by Credit Suisse Trust Limited as the trustee of The Allan Wong
2011 Trust, a discretionary trust.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2020, the Company had not been
notified of any other person or corporation (other than Directors or chief
executive of the Company) as being interested or deemed to have interests
or short positions in shares or underlying shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company or the Stock Exchange under
Part XV of the SFO.

1. %% M 8 BGT Winners&H # 3 AR
1,120,802,388 IR A A R Bk Bt zs - 10
ERARABEEITIRAL60.96% : () IRIER
8 HA#E 2 183,802,317 R A A RIEE KR 2 &
i - HERARRBEITRZAE10.00% :
T (iii) AR 1% 73 B #E 74 166,000,000 A& A8 A &) 48
RGOz EmEn  HERRRARBEEITRA
#19.02% °

2. EMNEcREREHEMERKE2AES  mE
JNERKREBAREMHSERZEESR - BN
MeEBhENES2EHE  MEMNESH
BN EEmE AR

3. Best Manage Holdings Limited £ Brite-Tech
Research Limited 2 & #E4 i Brite-Tech Research
Limited F Surplus Assets Limited 2 & #4 ° Surplus
Assets Limited B3 B f5{Z 5 The Allan Wong 2011
Trust Z %% A Credit Suisse Trust Limited 2 &
5o

B XTSI - R202043A31H K
NENEERENEMATSEE(EE K
KRR EBITHRABRIN RARQBIRGD K
TR (D R BB SR B A R IEE FH K
AR5 XV BB RIS X B 5B 22 B 3 58 2 4
IWIURAE ©
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Directors’ Report

EERWE

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE

COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, the Company repurchased 25,066,000 Shares at an
aggregate consideration of HK$15,609,600 (before expenses) on the Stock

Exchange. All repurchased shares were cancelled during the Year.

Particulars of the repurchases during the Year are as follows:

%@%m%j@@$ﬂjzi
RARFER - NQ B AERE 15,609,600 78
TC (REH R RS2 ) PABE X BB B 25,066,000 A%
B&fn o ARz I ERAEE AN -

RAFERNETHED 2 ERAT

— Asia Allied Infrastructure Holdings Limited ~Annual Report 2019/20

Aggregate
Number Highest Lowest consideration
Months of share of shares price paid price paid paid (before
repurchase repurchased per share per share expenses)
i B B 15 [EENE=1 eENER 2 ERE
RBE R 52 A 5 ZHE BESE BIEE (Rt REX)
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
2019 20194
June 6 H 392,000 0.60 0.59 231,780
July 7A 2,112,000 0.60 0.57 1,241,160
August 8 H 10,626,000 0.62 0.56 6,292,020
September 9 A 2,616,000 0.68 0.59 1,662,800
October 104 962,000 0.84 0.69 737,560
December 12 B 280,000 0.70 0.69 194,000
2020 2020 F
January 1H 1,236,000 0.70 0.68 855,960
February 2 A 1,314,000 0.65 0.63 843,140
March 3H 5,528,000 0.67 0.62 3,551,180
Total st 25,066,000 15,609,600

The Directors considered that the repurchases were made with a view to
enhancing the net asset value per share and earnings per share of the
Company.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during
the Year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws and
there is no restriction against such rights under the laws of Bermuda.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this report, the Company
has maintained sufficient public float throughout the Year as required
under the Listing Rules.

EZRRETBERRTRSARAERE
EFENEERAR -

B EXEEEIN  RAFEAR - AAFHHE
EAMBEARMERE  HELBEALT
EfR LR -

B iEm
AR WA ELWREZ G WA
FEAPITE R SR 2 R H -

AENRIRFTRE

IRBN AR RS AR R T A BE 2 ARE R
FREBESHAOE  ARARKFEEND
i L RBFTRE 2 KR ARHKE -




Directors’ Report

EERWE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the connected transactions set out in section headed
“DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESSES” and details of the
related party transactions set out in Note 47 to the financial statements.
Save as disclosed above, no other related party transaction constitutes any
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions as defined
under the Listing Rules during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as the connected transactions disclosed above and the related party
transactions disclosed in Note 47 to the financial statements, no
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to the
Group’s business in which the Company or any of its subsidiaries, its
holding company, or any subsidiaries of its holding company was a party
and in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted as at 31 March 2020 or at any time during the Year.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS
UNDER RULE 13.22 OF CHAPTER 13 OF THE
LISTING RULES

In accordance with the requirements under Rule 13.22 of Chapter 13 of
the Listing Rules, the details of the Group’s financial assistance given to
and guarantees given for banking facilities granted to its affiliated company
as at 31 March 2020 pursuant to Rule 13.16 thereof are set out below:

As at 31 March 2020, the amount guaranteed by the Group for banking
facilities granted to Great Prosper Development Limited (“Great Prosper”,
a company in which the Group held 40% interest) was approximately
HK$935.4 million. The banking facilities will be repayable upon the earlier
of (i) the date falling 48 months from the date of the facility agreement (i.e.
31 May 2017); or (i) the date falling 6 months after the issuance of the
occupation permit by the Buildings Department for a property development
project owned by Great Prosper. The banking facilities carry interest which
is at normal commercial rate after arm’s length negotiation with the
respective lenders and are secured by (among others) guarantees by the
Group (with the other shareholder of Great Prosper providing to the Group
counter-guarantee in respect of the amount of banking facilities in excess
of the Group'’s pro rata share based on the Group’s equity interest in Great
Prosper) pursuant to the deed of guarantee dated 7 March 2018 (the
“2018 Guarantee”).

BEXS

REXSHBERN [EFTRNHFEBP 2
@] —EREEN RS FBEHEN M BHRERN
FEAT o FREXFIIEEIN  RAFER - #
BHEMBENRSBREMLETRRERET
ZRAERGIEHERS -

BEENREERS  THHEY
2 R &

br B ER B R SRR M 47 T ER 2
RETZ 590 - 1220204 3 A 31 B AF
ERZIMER  RARSETMHERF
ﬁﬁ@%@ﬂ-ﬁﬁ%%@ﬁ%&ﬁ%%@

CBEGEEERNAETEAERSMES
Kﬂ SHEBMALEEERCEERS - T
HEH -

EFHRAIE13ZFFE13.22%2
EERERTE

BIEEMRAEI13EFE 13222 HRTE - I
SRBE1316MK2HTE - R202063 A31H
NEBRETFEBBRARNMEED AL
BEARERTHRTHMEMELNERY
FEEERAIINT

M2020F3 A31H  AEERBEERZEBR
/‘ﬂ(r%ﬁ%J —EAREEFEE40% ERD
NRERTFHRITEHERBERNSEOA
935,400,000/ 7T » ZIBITREE AR () B R E
s BEI(BN2017F5A31H) #£51M481E
Az B ()ERFENYERRIEAER
FEEHGATIEZM6EAZ A (UARE
ERE)EE - ZBTREDNERZERAA
FREMEMETN —MEERNETE - WR
EHEA2018F3 A7 H 2 ERZE (2018
ZHERD (AR EIE) AASBERE 2 ER
VEHE 3R (T2 0 ) B AR SR BN BLAR H A A AR &
EHAERNREA DLt E A EE RN
PEZIRITRHESERAANERRERER) -
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EERWE

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS
UNDER RULE 13.22 OF CHAPTER 13 OF THE
LISTING RULES (continued)

On 5 August 2019, the Company and the other shareholder of Great
Prosper agreed to terminate the 2018 Guarantee and entered into a new
guarantee to provide corporate guarantee in favour of the bank to be
jointly and severally liable to the punctual performance of the obligations
of Great Prosper under the relevant facility agreement(s) and further
entered into a deed to indemnify each other if it fails to perform its
obligations.

As at 31 March 2020, an aggregate of HK$467.4 million of such
guaranteed banking facilities had been utilised by Great Prosper.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group’s financial assistance given to and
guarantees given for banking facilities granted to its affiliated company in
aggregate amounted to approximately HK$935.4 million, representing
11.5% of the total assets of the Group, exceeding 8% of the assets ratio
as defined under Rule 14.07(1) of the Listing Rules. The financial
information of the affiliated company as at 31 March 2020 is set out
below:

LR AIE13FE13.221k 2
HERERE

MR20194F 8 A5H » AR A HERE & H A%
HREBKRIE2018 2 &R - WRISL— 1D FTAIE
RUARSRT IR AR 2 A R (B Bl 1> ZE R (R VBFE A
HEREE TEEETEE - BE%BE—
RIS RIE A E R I (I R B 1T H
51E) °

M2020%3 A31 0 BREHHZCERE
1TRE & 3£ 467,400,000 78 7T ©

M2020F3 A31H  REERETEBRBEA
AN E R BEEE QR ER TR
BhE FTIE D M IR & 2£ %Y 5 935,400,000 7
L HERAEELEE115%  BiBEE
MHRBB1407TMIEFTATHNEE X2
8% ° ZHE A RIN2020FE3 A31 B 281 %
BERES I

Great

Prosper

R

HK$°000

FHEIT

Non-current assets FEREEE 7,722
Current assets MENVEE 1,344,554
Current liabilities mENAaE (617,850)
Net assets BEFE 734,426
Issued capital B EITARA -
Reserves HiE 734,426
Total equity R iaEE 734,426

As at 31 March 2020, the consolidated attributable interest of the Group
in the affiliated company amounted to approximately HK$370.8 million.

Asia Allied Infrastructure Holdings Limited ~Annual Report 2019/20
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EERWE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

(i)

During the Year and before the completion of the KTS Acquisition (as
defined hereinafter), Mr. Pang and Madam Li, Executive Directors,
held through their controlled corporation, Well Perfection Limited
(“Well Perfection”), 40% interests in Clover Peak Limited (“Clover
Peak”), which held 10% indirect interests in Golden Concept
Development Limited (being the registered owner of the property
development project located at 38 Lai Ping Road, Shatin Town Lot
No. 579, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong) through Wealth
Anchor Investments Limited (“Wealth Anchor”). Therefore, Mr. Pang
and Madam Li were regarded as being interested in such businesses
which competed or were likely to compete with the Group.

On 23 August 2019, Grand Palace Global Limited (“Grand Palace”),
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company as the
purchaser, Well Perfection as the vendor and Mr. Pang as the
guarantor, entered into a sale and purchase agreement
as detailed in the circular of the Company dated 28 November 2019,
pursuant to which Grand Palace conditionally agreed to acquire and
Well Perfection conditionally agreed to sell the interests in Clover
Peak, at a total consideration of HK$119,911,000 (the "“KTS
Acquisition”). The Board considers that the KTS Acquisition was in
line with the business development strategies and planning of the
Group, and offered a good opportunity to the Group to enhance its
property development and investment portfolio.

Given that each of Mr. Pang and Madam Li is an Executive Director
and a controlling shareholder of the Company. Mr. Pang is also the
Chairman of the Board. Therefore, both Mr. Pang and Madam Li are
connected persons of the Company and Well Perfection is an
associate of Mr. Pang and Madam Li and a connected person of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. As such, the KTS
Acquisition constituted a connected transaction of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and had been approved by
the independent Shareholders by resolutions passed at the special
general meeting held on 20 December 2019 in compliance with the
Listing Rules.

Upon completion of the KTS Acquisition, the Company has indirectly
owned 40% of Clover Peak and each of Wealth Anchor and its
subsidiary have become an associate of the Company, therefore, Mr.
Pang and Madam Li ceased to have any interest in the competing
business of the Group.

EERNBRFRBP 2ER

(i)

RAFEREANELBEEE(TE
BT WTERERERT LT
BB S 2 X 1E % B Wwell Perfection
Limited ([ Well Perfection]) 3 & Clover
Peak Limited ([ Clover Peak])40% 2 #&
# M Clover Peak % #8 Wealth Anchor
Investments Limited ([ Wealth Anchor])
BEEIeERBRAT (NEBHALD
Y B ER 5795 BT I 3895 2
YEERIEE 2 fMESR A) 10% @
B - A R ERF LT HER AR
BASEFERF X EFERF &
XA -

R2019F8A23H  ARRIzHESR
& [ B /2 &) Grand Palace Global Limited
(I Grand Palace]) & & 75 - Well Perfection
BEARZEEBERAN FILEEW
H(FBHNARRIAHR2019F 11 A
28H 2B K) - # It » Grand Palace B
A 5§15 R B U HE M Well PerfectionE A
1§ [E) = & H 5 Clover Peak 2 125 -
BREA119,911,0008 7T ([ S LUK
BEE]) EERRANMLKEEE
IR EAEE 2 ¥ REERARE
WAREBEREREURAEERR
MEEAE -

CHRERZZTEBRAITEERAR
RAZERRR ZEAENBEERT
& o E - RIELETRAE4AE &
EERFLITHERRARZBEAL
i Well Perfection B St E T XL 2
BN WARRE ZBEEALT W
I IRIE ETRAIE 14AF - ALK
BEEEKAQR—HBERS  IE
% EmARRABIARENR2019F 12 A
Q0B RITZRERI RS FBBANR
EERE -

ERNLILIREE SRR - AR HEE
A Clover Peak 40% 2 % # + 11 Wealth
Anchor & B [ff B A R E K AR A &)
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Directors’ Report

EERWE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES (continued)

(i) During the Year, Mr. Wu, the INED, is an independent non-executive
director of JY Grandmark, which certain of its subsidiaries being
engaged in the property development business. The Board is of the
view that Mr. Wu as an independent non-executive director of JY
Grandmark, is not involved in its daily operation and therefore it does
not compete with the business of the Group.

(i) During the Year, Mr. Ho, the INED, is an executive director of NWS
and a non-executive director of Wai Kee, which certain of their
subsidiaries being engaged in the construction business. The Board is
of the view that the construction business of both companies is
similar to but in different scale and nature with that of the Group
and therefore it does not compete with the business of the Group.

Each of the Directors is aware of his/her fiduciary duties as Director and will
act in the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole and
avoids any conflict of interests between his/her duties as a Director and his/
her personal interests.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors were interested in any
business which competes or was likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the Group’s business.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Year, the aggregate amount of turnover attributable to the Group’s
five largest customers accounted for approximately 81% of the Group's
total turnover and the turnover attributable to the Group's largest
customer accounted for approximately 56% of the Group’s total turnover.
The aggregate amount of purchases attributable to the Group's five largest
suppliers accounted for less than 30% of the Group's total purchases.

The Group's five largest customers include governmental authorities and
statutory organisations, infrastructure and property developers and
property owners. The credit terms granted to these customers are in line
with those granted to other customers as well as industry practices. The
Group’s management has considered the credit quality of these major
customers and is of the view that none of the relevant trade receivables is
considered doubtful. In determining the credit terms, the Group takes into
account various factors, including the background, financial strength and
track records of credit settlement of the counterparties, in order to mitigate
credit risks. In view of the financial strength and high credit rating the
major customers, the Directors consider that the Group’s exposure to
concentration of credit risk is limited.

EENBFRERP2ER B

(i) RAFE BN TESHEERS
RKEABZBIFATES - MEXEBH
ETHBARNENERRENR -EF
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Directors’ Report

EERWE

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS (continued)
None of the Directors, their associates or any Shareholders (which to the
knowledge the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) has any interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers or
suppliers.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group made charitable and other donations totalling
approximately HK$1.7 million.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the Year were audited by EY, the
auditor of the Company, which would retire at the conclusion of the AGM
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution will
be proposed to the Shareholders at the AGM to re-appoint EY as the
auditor of the Company and to authorise the Board to fix their
remuneration.

There has been no other change in the auditor of the Company in the
preceding three years.

On behalf of the Board

Pang Yat Ting, Dominic
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 June 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

B2 ENER S

e

Ernst & Young ZRE TN BT Tel E5%: +852 2846 9888
§j( 22/F CITIC Tower EERIBIREE1SE Fax {§H: +852 2868 4432
1 Tim Mei Avenue =k E224E Www.ey.com

Central, Hong Kong

To the shareholders of Asia Allied Infrastructure Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Asia Allied
Infrastructure Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
"Group”) set out on pages 124 to 285, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2020, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March
2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit
of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR

e
EY:

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Revenue and costs of construction projects

The Group's revenue from the provision of construction services amounted
to HK$7.02 billion for the year ended 31 March 2020.

Contract revenue is recognised over time using the output method, based
on direct measurements of the value of services delivered or surveys of
work performed by the Group. Contract costs are recognised when work is
performed, together with any provisions for expected contract losses.

The recognition of revenue and profit relies on management’s estimate of
the final outcome of each contract, which involves the exercise of
significant management judgement, particularly in forecasting the costs to
complete a contract, in valuing contract variations, claims and liquidated
damages, in estimating the amount of expected losses and assessing the
ability of the Group to deliver services according to the agreed timetable.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
Revenue and costs of construction projects (continued)

In addition, the Group regularly assesses the possible outcome of
construction contracts based on the latest facts and circumstances
relating to the construction work, and past experience in conducting
similar construction work. When there is a change in the expectation as
to when the outcome of construction contracts can be estimated reliably,
the Group will adjust the amounts of contract costs and contract profit
accordingly. Such change constitutes a change in an accounting estimate
and involves significant management estimation and judgement regarding
the outcome of a contract. The effect of any change in an accounting
estimate is recognised prospectively by including it in profit or loss in the
current year and future periods.

Given that the estimation of the total revenue and total costs to complete
the construction contracts involves significant management judgement and
estimation, we considered this a key audit matter.

Related disclosures are included in notes 3.3, 4 and 6 to the consolidated
financial statements.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

As part of our audit procedures, we examined the external or internal
surveys of work for amounts of contract revenue recognised and revenue
cutoff. We selected material construction contracts, read their financial
budgets on contract revenue and costs and interviewed the Group’s
quantity surveyors regarding the preparation and approval processes of
financial budgets of construction contracts and the progress of work
certification by independent surveyors. In addition, we read the
correspondence between the Group and independent surveyors and, if
necessary, obtained professional advices from the dispute resolution
advisors engaged by the contract customers and the Group in respect of
construction work performed. We also assessed the adequacy of the
related disclosures in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
Impairment assessment of property development
projects

At 31 March 2020, the Group has investments in land held for property
development (the “property development projects”) amounted to HK$271
million.

The carrying amounts of the property development projects are stated at
the lower of cost and net realisable value. Significant management
judgement is involved in determining the estimated net realisable values of
the property development projects, including the estimation of selling
prices, costs to be incurred until completion and variable selling expenses.

Given the sensitivity of the assumptions and the level of judgement
involved, management engaged independent professional valuers to
prepare a feasibility report and a valuation report for the land held for
property development of the Group.

Related disclosures are included in notes 3.3, 4 and 22 to the consolidated
financial statements.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

As part of our audit procedures, we obtained the feasibility report and
valuation report and assessed the objectivity, competence and
independence of the independent professional valuers. We engaged our
internal valuation specialists to assist us in assessing the bases and
assumptions adopted in the impairment assessments. In addition, our
procedures included discussions with management and the independent
professional valuers about the assumptions and parameters used in
estimating the latest selling prices, costs to be incurred until completion,
variable selling expenses and, as applicable, the feasibility of the Group’s
property development plan.
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in

discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

o conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

o evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT Y BERGEMBEREE
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EENEE®

STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine #HEBEZEZSFERMNEEST - RMETY
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the ZAEIBGEMBERENBIEWEEZENSE
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore 18 @ E M@K R EZEE - BIEZEE
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report ~ ¥R&EFRHEIMZFEIR @ KRIBEAERIEB T
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or  FFAFWEZEEH » SiEHimERHNBER
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should T ' & EEHERMREP BB EFBE
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of A EEERBHEEN AR - A
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest — JRENEEIRE P EEZEE o

benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent HARBIZZEMHENEASEBAEAE

auditor’s report is CHENG, Man. BLE o

Ernst & Young RAKGETEEH AT
Certified Public Accountants HEELTAD

Hong Kong o

29 June 2020 202056 A29H

DM A ERERER AR 201920 3k E —



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
REiEm&kEMEENER

Year ended 31 March 2020
HZE2020F3 A31HIEFE

2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
REVENUE = 20 6 8,000,800 8,076,048
Cost of sales SHE RN (7,489,203) (7,621,505)
Gross profit ESVY| 511,597 454,543
Fair value gain of investment properties, net % &% A T EWZEEE 16 - 26,623
Other income and gains, net E A R s 55 7 186,477 312,701
Selling expenses HERX (3,688) (19,856)
Administrative expenses TR (453,048) (456,345)
Other expenses, net HAnF = F 58 (21,588) (65,653)
Finance costs BhE A AN 8 (124,788) (91,920)
Share of profit of a joint venture JE(E—FEE & A RE 20(d) 670 6,400
Share of profits and losses of associates FER B A B F) R B 18 21(c) 18,308 (1,332)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BREE AR R 9 113,940 165,161
Income tax FSH 12 (13,267) (24,066)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR A F R A 100,673 141,095
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/ Hte 2| (B8) W
INCOME
Jtems that may be reclassified to BB AIREE P E B
profit or loss in subsequent periods: ZIEH :
Exchange differences: bE =5
Translation of foreign operations HEGINETS (45,977) (39,656)
Reclassification adjustments for BB/ () 2 EFHHE
losses/(gains) included in FE (FFAER)
profit or loss upon:
Deconsolidation of subsidiaries BUHM B A ml4ra AR 44(b) 4,784 =
Disposal of a subsidiary & — B A R 44(c) (30) =
Deregistration of a subsidiary BEET M —REME QA 3,660 -
Share of movement in the exchange fEME—MEE & A EINE
fluctuation reserve of a joint venture R EN 2 B 20(d) 118 7
Share of movements in the exchange JE (5B 2R B IR B
fluctuation reserves of associates E ) 21(c) (895) (209)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS REEHMZEESE
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF INCOME EMBREBTZAEHR
TAX OF NIL (38,340) (39,858)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AEEZHKRDERE
FOR THE YEAR 62,333 101,237
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

mEEaRkEMEEEER

Year ended 31 March 2020
HZE2020F3 A31HIEFE

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FEIT
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR EEAREERF,(FHA) :
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Shareholders of the Company VNN 8 101,432 136,648
Non-controlling interests IR e (759) 4,447
100,673 141,095
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) FE{EAFEE2E K (&E)
FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO: 4a5E
Shareholders of the Company ZiN/NE 11 33 63,092 96,790
Non-controlling interests R (759) 4,447
62,333 101,237
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 7R B EELESRER HK cents HK cents
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 14 B BN
Basic HR 5.51 7.37
Diluted s 5.51 7.36
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
HREMBRRE

31 March 2020
2020F3 A31H

2020 PAONIC)
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M R NRE 15 291,097 284,608
Investment properties LB 16 - 166,173
Right-of-use assets FRAEEE 17(a) 182,184 =
Goodwill FEES 18 43,211 45,994
Investments in joint ventures NEERNTIZHE 20 8,306 423,362
Investments in associates REENR 2 IRE 21 448,803 499,768
Land held for property development BiEmERREZ T 22 235,480 238,470
Deposits paid for acquisition of items of IBEYHE WSS NEREER
property, plant and equipment and URSAF—RIEEHR 2
an investee BEffiEE 26 - 55,574
Deferred tax assets RIEFIAE 37 891 897
Total non-current assets EREEELRE 1,209,972 1,714,846
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Land held for property development HEMERR 2 T 22 35,162 294,095
Properties under development ERAPYE 23 293,990 =
Properties held for sale BIEHEE 23 1,028 2,829
Contract assets EHEE 24(a) 3,333,744 2,752,909
Trade receivables B 5 e IE 25 951,828 983,990
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables B FUE - %4 K b e UL 0B 26 877,872 598,726
Promissory notes PEG IR 27 180,000 -
Income tax recoverable AR Bl A5 H7 21,984 22,049
Equity investments at fair value through BAFEFABRZ ZBZRAIEE
profit or loss 28 59 65
Restricted cash and pledged deposits XERHIRE K2 ERFR 29 10,314 26,149
Cash and cash equivalents HENENSZEER 30 1,134,824 1,829,856
6,840,805 6,510,668
Non-current asset classified as held for sale 93 A 1EINE 2 IEREN B E 31 103,481 =
Total current assets mENE EERE 6,944,286 6,510,668
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B IR R

31 March 2020
2020F3 A31H

2020 PAONIC)
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Trade payables =) ANE 32 1,809,724 1,840,192
Contract liabilities aHaE 24(b) 33,105 33,905
Other payables and accruals Hth FE A FE K FE ST R0 33 668,247 891,599
Bank borrowings RITIE 34 1,623,620 1,058,582
Lease liabilities HEAE 17(b) 27,971 =
Hire purchase contract and HEaK LRt AR E BN FIE
finance lease payables 35 - 5,742
Provision for construction works ERETIR 2 BHE 36 130,323 133,128
Income tax payables eSS FL 92,179 89,038
Total current liabilities B BEEE 4,385,169 4,052,186
NET CURRENT ASSETS RENEEFE 2,559,117 2,458,482
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES & EA R B & & 3,769,089 4,173,328
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBAE
Bank borrowings RITEK 34 1,229,585 1,695,564
Lease liabilities HEAE 17(b) 37,293 =
Hire purchase contract and HEEH MR EHE R HRIE
finance lease payables 35 - 1,438
Deferred tax liabilities REFRIBERE 37 3,469 2,176
Total non-current liabilities IEmB B ERE 1,270,347 1,699,178
Net assets BEFE 2,498,742 2,474,150
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B IR R

31 March 2020
2020F3 A31H

2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET T
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to shareholders of  Z&RQFREREGERS
the Company
Issued capital B BITIRA 38(a) 183,833 186,339
Reserves i 41(a) 2,278,405 2,255,263
2,462,238 2,441,602
Non-controlling interests FEIE PR RE RS 36,504 32,548
Total equity s 4ATE 2,498,742 2,474,150
Pang Yat Ting, Dominic Pang Yat Bond, Derrick
B Z—F
Director Director
2 2
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
n‘;r = Hgi* iﬁﬁi

Year ended 31 March 2020
HZE2020F3 A31HIEFE

|ders of the Company
X “%1’5
Shares
held under
the share Share-
Share award based Exchange Non-
Issued  premium scheme  compensation Capital  fluctuation  Retained controlling Total

capital  account account reserve reserve reserve profits Total  interests equity

B E iR
RE gHEE AAHE REHE | i
es  HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000 HK$ ’000 HK$'000  HK$'000

FgT T ; T g
17870 1787 17270 TET FET 1/87T T/ETD AT

At 1 April 2018 R2018E4 818 187,553 780,529 (18,197) 6,217 31,197 53,238 1,362,486 2,403,023 18,279 2,421,302
Profit for the year REERF - - - - - - 136,648 136,648 4,447 141,095
Other comprehensive income/(loss) AFEEM 2
for the year: s/ (§8)
Exchange differences: ERER:
Translation of foreign BERNER
operations - - - - - (39,656) - (39,656) - (39,656)
Share of movement in the EE-RAERd
exchange fluctuation ShE &iﬂ%ﬁﬁ
reserve of a joint venture pd L) - - - - - 7 - 7 - 7
Share of movements in the [EIEEE N RINE
exchange fluctuation RENEE 2 BE)
reserves of associates - - - - - (209) - (209) - (209)

Total comprehensive (loss)income  AEE2 (1),

for the year Wesies = = - - (39858) 136648 96,790 4447 101237

Deemed contribution from BIE—ZHBRT
anon-controlling equity holder ~ FHZRRER B A

of a subsidiary LEE - - - - 2,307 - - 2,307 - 2,307
Deemned disposal of partial RELE-RRBAR

interest in a subsidiary ZEniES - - - - 90 (173) - (83) 1177 1,094
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR 44(a) - - - - - - - - (17,848)  (17,848)
Cancellation of repurchased shares F#2 BEER L 380) (1,214) (7,355) - = = = - (8,569) - (8,569)
Share award expense TRiASRRFZ 390) - - - 1,381 - - - 1,381 - 1,381
Exercise of share awards under () 2Bzt &I T

the share award scheme 2 I%{n BB 2 1T 39(b) - - 7,554 (2,208) - - - 5,346 - 5,346
Transfer of share-based LG AR

compensation reserve upon R ERR R
the forfeiture of shares under A EEfi

the share award scheme - - - (2,616) - - 2,616 - - -
Equity-settled share option expense JARR 7455 7 iR
53 40() - - - 7,004 - - - 7,004 - 7,004
Other equity-settled share-based ~ EAtMARALEE 250
payment expense R AERERRE
5T 9 - - - 2,300 - - - 2,300 - 2,300
Exercise of equity-settled IRALE 2 AR A
share-based payment HBfZz e 9 - = = (2,300) (355) = = (2,655) 5,155 2,500
Transfer of share-based MR ERER
compensation reserve upon the k{7 SRR 1E
forfeiture of share options - - - (1,014) - - 1,014 - - -
Final 2018 dividend declared BEER01845E
RERE - - - - - - (20,425)  (20,425) - (20,425)
Interim 2019 dividend declared 2 EJE201945
FERS 13 - - - - - - (23479) (23,479 - (23,479)
Relassification EZip] = = = - (213%) - - 338 21338 -
At 31 March 2019 R2019F3A318 186,339 773,174*  (10,643)* 8,764% 11,901* 13,207* 1,458,860* 2,441,602 32,548 2,474,150
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Year ended 31 March 2020
HZE2020F3 A31HIEFE

Attributable to shareholders of the Company
RAFARRES
Shares
held under Share-
the share based
Share award  compen- Exchange Non-
Issued premium  scheme sation  Capital fluctuation Retained controlling Total

capital  account  account  reserve  reserve  reserve profits Total interests equity
RERG
KR
Bk R RET ) SHE FER
e REER BENRG HHEE S4ARKE  RBRE REEN L BiE ERAE
Notes ~ HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FEr FEr FAr FAn TEn TAn TAn TAr FET

At 1 April 2019 2019%4 818 186,339 773,174 (10,643) 8,764 11,901 13,207 1,458,860 2,441,602 32,548 2,474,150
Profit for the year REERF - - - - - - 101432 101,432 (759) 100,673
Other comprehensive income/(loss) AFEEM 2
for the year: s/ (B) :
Exchange differences: BN ER:
Translation of foreign BRERNER
operations - - - - - (45977) - (45977) - (45977)
Reclassification adjustments for 548,/ (I3) 2
losses/(gains) included in ENNERE
profit or loss upon: (FHARE) :
Deconsolidation of BB AR
subsidiaries YN 44(b) - - - - - 4784 - 4,784 - 4784
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-HNBAR 40 - - - - - (30) - (30) - (30)
Deregistration of a AR
subsidiary WEAR - - - - - 3,660 - 3660 - 3,660
Share of movement in the EE-HAERE
exchange fluctuation INEREIGE
reserve of a joint venture LBE) - - - - - 118 - 18 - 18
Share of movements in BB E A RINE
the exchange fluctuation RDREEED
reserves of associates - - - - - (895) - (895) - (895)

Total comprehensive (loss)income  AEE 2 (E1) / Mz
for the year k) - - - -

(38,340) 101,432 63,092 (759) 62,333

Deemed contribution fromthe ~ B{EERBERE 214

controlling shareholder 41b)v) - - - - 6,961 - - 6,961 - 6,961
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEHBAR 43 - - - - - - - - 21951 27,951
Deemed disposal of partial interest B {EH & —HHBA

in a subsidiary DR - - - - (167) (16) - (183) 183 -
Deconsolidation of subsidiaries  EUEMIBARISA AR 44(0) - - - - - - - - (26,226)  (26,226)
Cancellation of repurchased shares 2 BEERH 38a) (2,506)  (13,103) - - - - - (15,609) - (15,609)
Equity-settled share option expense MIRALZE 7 BBIERST 400 - - - 2,922 - - - 2,922 - 2,922
Other equity-settled share-based — E At IABRA L E 2 MR (D

payment expense AEREFARE 9 - - - 2,650 - - - 2,650 - 2,650
Exercise of equity-settled IRAEE 2 AR A

share-based payment HBRZz e 9 - - - (2,650) 1173 - - (1,477) 2,807 1330
Transfer of share-based IR AR R

compensation reserve Lpon RA R GEE

forfeiture of share options - - - (444) - - 444 - - -
Final 2019 dividend declared BEER2019EERSERE 13 - - - - - - (15561)  (15,561) - (15561)
Interim 2020 dividend declared ~ BER2020EEFERE 13 - - - - - - (22159 (22,159) - (22159)
At 31 March 2020 202034318 183,833 760,071*  (10,643)*  11,242* 19,868*  (25,149)* 1,523,016* 2,462,238 36,504 2,498,742

* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$2,278,405,000  * M2020F3 8318 2 ERBERELGEEH

(2019: HK$2,255,263,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position as at %R 3R A 2 4R & {7 1#2,278,405,000 % 7T
31 March 2020. (20194F : 2,255,263,000787T) °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

nv'F EE ﬁ ;lltl. E

Year ended 31 March 2020
BZE2020F3A31HLEFE

2020

HK$000
FRET

2019
HK$000
TATT

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REKEEFDHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax B A5 B i 113,940 165,161
Adjustments for: R
Share of profit of a joint venture A PR NET b (670) (6,400)
Share of profits and losses of associates JE(L B & N Al A & E5 12 (18,308) 1,332
Interest income B WA 7 (45,089) (23,478)
Loss/(gain) on deregistration of BE M B AR 2
subsidiaries, net B8 (W) B 5 9 5,046 €)
Loss/(gain) on sale of property interests FRHENE A A Hj%#%%
through disposal of subsidiaries Sz EE (e 9 1,078 (257,674)
Gain on deconsolidation of subsidiaries BUSM B A TZJT“./:.\)\EEZLIQ?& 7 (9,270) -
Losses on disposal of other subsidiaries HEHAMBAR 2 EE 9 402 =
Gain on disposal of an associate & — A R a2 Was 7 (2,995) -
Fair value gain of investment properties, WEME AT EY = FRE
net 16 - (26,623)
Finance costs B R 8 124,788 91,920
Depreciation of items of property, plant W - R NERBEIER
and equipment e 9 56,051 49,216
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEECTE 9 30,262 -
Fair value loss of equity investments BATET AR 2R
at fair value through profit or loss ®EZ A TFEEE 9 6 15
Gain on disposal of a self-occupied HE—fMBERRAEYE
office premise 25 7 (109,479) =
Gain on disposal of other items of HEHAAYI  #EE R
property, plant and equipment, net FAEIE B 2 Wa R 7 (1,810) (1,911)
Write-off of items of property, Y - B R RETEE
plant and equipment Z AR 9 113 208
Impairment of items of property, M - WS REHEIEE
plant and equipment ZRE 9 - 7,500
Impairment of right-of-use assets ERBEEERE 9 10,167 -
Impairment of an investment depositand g — AT B EZ FEfF
partial consideration paid for ZEERe RHEHNRE
a rescinded acquisition transaction ZRE 9 - 54,800
Impairment of loan receivables U E R ZRIE 9 5,877 -
Share award expense & 17 B2 R 5 < 9 - 1,381
Equity-settled share option expense LARAGEH 2 ERER S 9 2,922 7,004
Other equity-settled share-based HEMARARLEE 2 AR D B
payment expense N0l 9 2,650 2,300
165,681 64,742
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

REREIRER

Year ended 31 March 2020
HZE2020F3 A31HIEFE

Increase in land held for property
development and properties under

FEMRBR 2 TH RS
YE Sl

2020

HK$000
FRET

2019
HK$'000
FET

development (53,387) (68,189)
Decrease in properties held for sale BIEHEMERD 1,388 2,617
Increase in contract assets AHEEEN (569,105) (445,324)
Decrease in trade receivables B 5 MW IE R 22,627 144,948
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, BRI -« e RHEMEWFKIE

deposits and other receivables w3 hn) 106,704 (14,600)
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables B S EMNKREBECRA), /1 (37,178) 320,418
(Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities ABHBECRD), N 472) 1,269
Decrease in other payables and accruals ot JFE A FR0E N FE 5T A R (208,362) (150,691)
(Decrease)/increase in provision for BETREZEBECRD), 1Em

construction works (2,805) 20,501
Cash used in operations KEXBAZRE (574,909) (124,309)
Income taxes paid BFEE (9,596) (36,223)
Net cash flows used in operating activities K& /EHMHA R RE/FE (584,505) (160,532)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

REREIRER

Year ended 31 March 2020
BZE2020F3A31HLEFE

2020 PAONIC)
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RERETDHZRERE
ACTIVITIES
Interest received BHHE 32,227 23,478
Dividend received from an associate B — & A B WELZ % 8 1,710 3,763
Purchase of motor buses (items of property, FEEE 1 (4% - W= L &RE
plant and equipment) and passenger HE) R REEEF
service licences (intangible assets) (B EE) (278,165) -
Purchases of other items of property, IBEEMYZE - R R
plant and equipment FiEIEE (57,592) (87,161)
Proceeds from disposal of a self-occupied — H&E—FRIEHRBEA=YE
office premise Fr{S k18 136,889 -
Proceeds from disposal of other items of HEEMYIZE - EeE R
property, plant and equipment R HETE B TS IE 2,644 5,428
Purchases of investment properties BEIREYSH - (102,011)
Proceeds from disposal of investment &R E YRS IE
properties 3,092 10,782
Acquisition of subsidiaries UM A 7] 43 7,927 =
Acquisition of joint ventures WA & AR - (10,000)
Acquisition of associates W REH & A A (131,448) (3,484)
Proceeds from sale of property interests BRLEWBARLEME
through disposal of subsidiaries Rz FT1S 5RIE 44(a) 436,768 200,111
Deconsolidation of subsidiaries BUBKM B R R4 e AR 44(b) (18,192) -
Proceeds from disposal of an associate & — & A R TS 08 3,585 -
Deposit received from disposal of an BHER—RASEAREHEEZ
investment in a joint venture which is ERBEENEEREZ
classified as a non-current asset WE MK 2 &
held for sale 11,690 -
Subscription of promissory notes R A E 27 (180,000) =
Decrease/(increase) in amount due U —RA& 2 AR 2 KA
from a joint venture A, (35 0) 588 (99,066)
Increase in amounts due from associates FE B & N |) 2 FRIEIE AN (26,628) (112,224)
Increase in loan receivables FEU B FRIE AN (128,495) (12,495)
Decrease in time deposits with REARIHABB=EAZ
maturity of more than three months TE HATF FURk >
when acquired - 3,001
Net cash flows used in investing activities &% & EEFTA IR E M EF5E (183,400) (179,878)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

REREIRER

Year ended 31 March 2020
BZE2020F3A31HLEFE

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING REMETDHZRERE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from exercise of share awards BRI D BB TSI T T
granted under the share award scheme Z BRI R PSR 39(b) - 5,346
Repurchase of shares H B A 15 38(a) (15,609) (8,569)
Advance from a non-controlling equity B — A B A B e AR A AE
holders of subsidiaries BB A2 19,765 33,378
New bank loans MESIRITER 4,324,840 3,488,146
New trust receipt loans FEETBIRER 511,951 55,619
Repayment of bank loans BRERITER (4.206,622)  (3,137,022)
Repayment of trust receipt loans BREFAKEER (353,796) (55,619)
Repayment of guaranteed bonds BREERES - (39,000)
Principal portion of lease payments/hire HENZ HESHORBE
purchase contract and finance lease MEHESNRZAEEHH
rental payments (32,264) (10,947)
Interest element of lease payments/ HEMNR HEAOERERE
hire purchase contract and finance HE MR AMEEBH
lease rental payments (207) (442)
Other interest paid HaBEMAFIE (132,819) (85,847)
Dividends paid BEIRE (37,720) (43,904)
Decrease in restricted cash and R HIER & & B ERFFOR >
pledged deposits 15,835 11,181
Net cash flows from financing activities MEEHEAZRS RE T 93,354 212,320
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND RERERESEEER
CASH EQUIVALENTS WA B (674,551) (128,090)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of ~ F#IFIE G K EE S ZEIBR
year 1,829,856 1,976,851
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net 4N [ SR & & 2 28 5 58 (20,481) (18,905)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FREFRESRERESEEIER
END OF YEAR 30 1,134,824 1,829,856
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CrEs e

31 March 2020
2020F3 A31H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Asia Allied Infrastructure Holdings Limited is incorporated in Bermuda
as an exempted company with limited liability and its shares are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The registered office of the Company is located
at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda,
and the principal place of business of the Company is located at C1,
5th Floor, Hong Kong Spinners Industrial Building Phase 1, 601-603
Tai Nan West Street, Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries, joint operations,
joint ventures and associates were involved in the following principal
activities:

° provision of construction and consultancy services in areas of
civil engineering, electrical and mechanical engineering,
foundation and building construction mainly in Hong Kong;

° development and sale of properties and leasing of assets in
Hong Kong, mainland (“Mainland China”) of the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC"”) and the United Arab Emirates
(the “"UAE");

o provision of security and facility management solutions in Hong
Kong; and

o provision of non-franchised bus services in Hong Kong (a new
business line commenced during the financial year ended
31 March 2020).

Particulars of the Company'’s principal subsidiaries, joint operations,
joint ventures and associates are set out in notes 51, 52, 53 and 54
to the financial statements, respectively.

At 31 March 2020, in the opinion of the directors of the Company
(the “Directors”), the immediate holding company and the ultimate
holding company of the Company is GT Winners Limited (“GT
Winners”), which is a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (the “BVI”) with limited liability.

1.

AAREEER

TS BERERER AR BERET
kL B—BXZE#He 2 BRAR - B
NEBBEERZMBER A A ([HR
Frl) ERET o RAR M= R
7 Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda * 11 AN A &
ZEEEEMBURBENERDE
FI P17 601-603 5k B S A) Bk T3 A2 1
HASHECTI = -

RAEER  AREREMEAR - 4
BT ABATRBERTSR TSI
EEE -

e IEBGEFBREMEBLIATRE -#
ETRE -MEARBFREIEZ
T M bR

s HEFE HEARAMBECH
B 1) A ([ B A ) & BT {E
e R (TP ) ETTHR
MHEMERUREERE

s GEBFERHERREREEERMRR
HE R

o  TERBRMHIFFEE LIRS (RE
Z2020F3 A3 BILBIBEERA
AR ZERK) ©

ARRZEEHBAR ALEK &
BT RN RIS D RIS B R
KMF5E51 52 - 53 %54 ¢

MR2020F3A318 ARREZR(E
ERBARR 2 EFEERA R Rtk
8 f% A & AGT Winners Limited ([ GT
Winners]) + EAREBELZHS ([H
BERZHEE )EMKZZERAFR -
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Notes to Financial Statements

PSR MR

31 March 2020
2020F3 A31H

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) (which include
all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs"”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA™), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have
been prepared under the historical cost convention except for (i)
investment properties and financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss which have been measured at fair value; and (ii) non-current
assets held for sale which are stated at the lower of their carrying
amounts and fair values less costs to sell, as further explained in note
3.3 to the financial statements. These financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand (“HK$'000") except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 March
2020. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly
or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that
give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of
the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(©)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company. The results of subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.
Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting
policies that may exist.
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Notes to Financial Statements

PSR MR

31 March 2020
2020F3 A31H

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the shareholders of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities,
equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the three elements of control described above. A change in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the
assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises
(i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i) the fair value of any
investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit
or loss. The Group's share of components previously recognised in
other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained
profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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Notes to Financial Statements

PSR MR

31 March 2020
2020F3 A31H

3.1 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES
The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for
the first time for the current year’s financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation
HKFRS 16 Leases

Amendments to HKAS 19  Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement

Amendments to HKAS 28  Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKFRS 3, HKFRS 11,
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle  HKAS 12 and HKAS 23

Except for the amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKAS 19, and Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle, which are not relevant
to the preparation of the Group's financial statements, the nature
and the impact of the new and revised HKFRSs are described below:

(@ HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15
Operating Leases — Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating
the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a
Lease. The standard sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and
requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-
balance sheet model to recognise and measure right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities, except for certain recognition
exemptions. Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16 is substantially
unchanged from HKAS 17. Lessors continue to classify leases as
either operating or finance leases using similar principles as in
HKAS 17.

Asia Allied Infrastructure Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019/20
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Notes to Financial Statements

PSR MR

31 March 2020
2020F3 A31H

3.1 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(a)

(continued)

The Group has adopted HKFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective method with the date of initial application of
1 April 2019. Under this method, the standard has been
applied retrospectively, and the comparative information for
2019 was not restated and continued to be reported under
HKAS 17 and related interpretations.

New definition of a lease

Under HKFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys a right to control the use of an identified asset
for a period of time in exchange for consideration. Control is
conveyed where the customer has both the right to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the
identified asset and the right to direct the use of the identified
asset. The Group elected to use the transition practical
expedient allowing the standard to be applied only to contracts
that were previously identified as leases applying HKAS 17 and
HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 at the date of initial application. Contracts that
were not identified as leases under HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int
4 were not reassessed. Therefore, the definition of a lease
under HKFRS 16 has been applied only to contracts entered
into or changed on or after 1 April 2019.

As a lessor
HKFRS 16 did not have any significant impact on leases where
the Group is the lessor.
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Notes to Financial Statements

PSR MR

31 March 2020
2020F3 A31H

3.1 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(@)  (continued)

As a lessee — Leases previously classified as operating
leases
Nature of the effect of adoption of HKFRS 16

The Group has lease arrangements as a lessee for various items
of properties, plant and equipment and motor vehicles. As a
lessee, the Group previously classified leases as either finance
leases or operating leases based on the assessment of whether
the lease transferred substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group. Under HKFRS 16, the Group
applies a single approach to recognise and measure right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities for all leases, except for two elective
exemptions for leases of low-value assets (elected on a lease-
by-lease basis) and leases with a lease term of 12 months or
less ("short-term leases") (elected by class of underlying asset).
Instead of recognising rental expenses under operating leases
on the straight-line basis over the lease term commencing
from1 April 2019, the Group recognises depreciation (and
impairment, if any) of the right-of-use assets and interest
accrued on the outstanding lease liabilities (as finance costs).

Impact on transition

Lease liabilities as at 1 April 2019 were recognised based on
the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted
using the incremental borrowing rate as at 1 April 2019, and
were separately presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of financial position.

The right-of-use assets were measured at the amount of the
lease liabilities, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or
accrued lease payments relating to the lease recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position immediately before
1 April 2019. All these assets were assessed for any impairment
based on HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets on that date. The
Group elected to separately present the right-of-use assets on
the face of the consolidated statement of financial position.
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Notes to Financial Statements

PSR MR

31 March 2020
2020F3 A31H

3.1 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(a)

(continued)

As a lessee — Leases previously classified as operating
leases (continued)

Impact on transition (continued)

For the leasehold land and buildings (that were held to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation) previously
included in investment properties and measured at fair value,
the Group has continued to include them as investment
properties as at 1 April 2019. They continue to be measured at
fair value applying HKAS 40 Investment Property.

The Group has used the following elective practical expedients
when applying HKFRS 16 on 1 April 2019:

o Applying the short-term lease exemptions to leases with
a lease term that ends within 12 months from the date of
initial application

o Using hindsight in determining the lease term where the
contract contains options to extend/terminate the lease

o Using a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with
reasonably similar characteristics when measuring the
lease liabilities as at 1 April 2019

As a lessee — Leases previously classified as finance
leases

The Group did not change the initial carrying amounts of
recognised assets and liabilities at the date of initial application
for leases previously classified as finance leases. Accordingly,
the carrying amounts of the right-of-use assets and the lease
liabilities as at 1 April 2019 were the carrying amounts of the
recognised assets and liabilities (i.e., hire purchase contract and
finance lease payables) measured under HKAS 17. This includes
leasehold land of HK$25,216,000 and leased assets recognised
previously under finance leases of HK$23,405,000 that were
reclassified from property, plant and equipment.
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Notes to Financial Statements

Bt B AR Y

31 March 2020
2020F3 A31H

3.1 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (continued)

(@) (continued)

Financial impacts on 1 April 2019

The impact arising from the adoption of HKFRS 16 on 1 April

2019 was as follows:

31 ETBEEERIBE @)
(@ (&)
R2019F4 1 HHN B E

R2019F4 A1 HEQNE BT
REERIB1REENTENT

HK$°000
FET

Assets BE

Decrease in property, plant and equipment ME - BB N ERERD (48,621)
Increase in right-of-use assets (RS EE I 79,872

Increase in total assets & EARERE N 31,251

Liabilities aE

Increase in lease liabilities THESEIE 38,431

Decrease in hire purchase contract and
finance lease payables

MBS MR EHEE RN D
(7,180)

Increase in total liabilities

B ELRREIE N 31,251
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Notes to Financial Statements

Bt B AR Y

31 March 2020
2020F3 A31H

3.1 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 31 RSB RIRE 2
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(@) (continued) (@ (#&)
Financial impacts on 1 April 2019 (continued) R2019F4 B 1B K E(E)
A reconciliation of the operating lease commitments as at 720194 3 A 31 AR HE R
31 March 2019 to the lease liabilities as at 1 April 2019 is as EHER2019F4H1BEMEESR
follows: EREERINT ¢
HK$'000
FET
Operating lease commitments M20195F3 A31 BREE
as at 31 March 2019 (note 17(d)) B E &I (MEE17(d) 40,709
Less: Commitments relating to short-term leases B EGHEE Rer THHER
and those leases with a remaining lease 202043 A31 B3k 2 Al
term ended on or before 31 March 2020 [E R 5% S0 SR R R R (8,092)
32,617
Weighted average incremental borrowing rate #2019 4 A1 BRNiEFH1LEE
as at 1 April 2019 B F = 3.55%
Discounted operating lease commitments R2019F 4 A1 BRREIREE
as at 1 April 2019 THEAIE 31,251
Add: Hire purchase contract and finance lease i M20194 3 A 31 HEERAR
payables recognised as at 31 March 2019 MEEHRRERERNFIE 7,180
Lease liabilities as at 1 April 2019 (note 17(b)) R 2019F4 A1 HWHEEE & (M 17(b) 38,431
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Notes to Financial Statements

PSR MR

31 March 2020
2020F3 A31H

3.1 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b)

Amendments to HKAS 28 clarify that the scope exclusion of
HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments only includes interests in
a joint venture or associate to which the equity method is
applied and does not include long-term interests that in
substance form part of the net investment in the joint venture
or associate, to which the equity method has not been applied.
Therefore, an entity applies HKFRS 9, rather than HKAS 28
(2011) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures, including
the impairment requirements under HKFRS 9 (2014), in
accounting for such long-term interests. HKAS 28 (2011) is
then applied to the net investment, which includes the long-
term interests, only in the context of recognising losses of a
joint venture or associate and impairment of the net investment
in the joint venture or associate. The Group assessed its
business model for its long-term interests in joint venture or
associate upon adoption of the amendments on 1 April 2019
and concluded that the long-term interests in joint venture or
associate continued to be measured at amortised cost in
accordance with HKFRS 9 (2014). Accordingly, the
amendments did not have any impact on the financial position
or performance of the Group.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 addresses the accounting for income taxes
(current and deferred) when tax treatments involve uncertainty
that affects the application of HKAS 12 /ncome Taxs (often
referred to as “uncertain tax positions”). The interpretation does
not apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of HKAS 12, nor
does it specifically include requirements relating to interest and
penalties associated with uncertain tax treatments. The
interpretation specifically addresses (i) whether an entity
considers uncertain tax treatments separately; (ii) the
assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax
treatments by taxation authorities; (i) how an entity determines
taxable profits or tax losses, tax bases, unused tax losses, unused
tax credits and tax rates; and (iv) how an entity considers
changes in facts and circumstances. The interpretation did not
have any impact on the financial position or performance of the
Group.

Asia Allied Infrastructure Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019/20

3.1 2

(b)

X

THRESE RIEE &)

BR G ERNE28HKEFTBBEE
BT EERIE 95 (20144 )
T TAZHRBEERIEER
BEEZAERAHEBERTZ

s MAERED LBRRNA
CNCTEIR ol R/NCTES - e 2=l

THEHES(TEERES
=) o At - BRERESMIE®R
EEBFIOFEMIARE B ETE
BI 552858 (2011 & ) REF &£ 2N 7]

BERNEZIRE (BIERBYE
REZERIZE 9% (2014 F ) THIR
ERE)NHZERBERETS
ETERIE - MBI 285
(2011 F)BEREEERESE AR
SR RIMNEERUANMEZE AT
SRR E AR EFRBEMNB R
TAEAEREFE(BEREE
=) AEBEBER2019F4 818
R ZE BT BRENRNEE AT
e AR RS HERE
BEX - YRARE S QA
ERANRAERGEERES
BB ISR RIS 957 (2014 F)
B AGTE - AL - ZEB
AT N 55 [ B 5 AR O Bk 2R 3R A £
EfRISZ -

BE(BRMBEREZRELZES) -
BREF2BW ERERESRE
ERRBABELEGTENFI2H
Pt N REE (LR R (— R8I T
BEMEMR D E - REMSEHR
(BVER ROESE ) M B RT B IR  +Xm2
BAERARBEGERIE 1255
SEINORBIE - TLEAD
BB EEN AR ERBENF
EREEEAMRE - Z2EBE
B (VERSLEBERTHETE
MIBZEE  ()ERHH B
MR IR R IR A B P E R R AR (i)
BB Ao BT R A S TR
BE-RE - RPBHEEE -
APABERRRKEER : R(E
BUOAZREERBAER - %
BREHAKEM B HRRL
BEFTE -



Notes to Financial Statements

Bt B AR Y

31 March 2020
2020F3 A31H

3.2 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial
statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business'

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework*
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform'

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

B2EHEMEERERZER

Bt % 4 & 22 A

AR LD A S R IR T HIE
PB4 R AR 2 33T A 5T B85t
B R

BEUMBRELELFEIR HEIZTE
CH)

ERURREELEIR HaErs
B3]

ERUHRREERFEOY - FIREE HE
BBEERNERR
BB RS ERIE 75
CH)

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

Amendment to HKFRS 16
HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKAS 1

and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Annual Improvements
2018-2020

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture®
Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions?

Insurance Contracts?
Definition of Material'

Property, Plant and Equipment —
Proceeds before Intended Use*

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling
a Contract*
Amendments to a number of HKFRSs*

BEMBREEANF 0N RELZEHHLNA

el
E28%BFI(20114F)

BB HREERF 165

T

BEYBREERNE TR

BEGRHERE 15 R

BEGRHERFE S

il
EARHANE 165
T

BEGRREAF 7R

RARERAZA

ZEEHELTE
H Covid-1918
=
EAMZES

— (ERUE AT
TR
BN — BITEA

W Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

5 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption
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2018 FEZ 20202 HEBEEBNBRE
FRNE KR Z &3]
g 20201 A1 B 2% RtA 2 FEH
R A K
2 720204 6 A1 Bk 2 %A 2 FEH
R A K
E M2021F1 A1 B2 %BtE 2 FEH
R A K
4 72022461 A1 Bk 2 %K 2 FEH
R A K

s i R TE 5 R AR R H B - (B R SR BT R A

DM A ERERER AR 201920 3k m —



Notes to Financial Statements

PSR MR

31 March 2020
2020F3 A31H

3.2 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

(a)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide additional
guidance on the definition of a business. The amendments
clarify that for an integrated set of activities and assets to be
considered a business, it must include, at a minimum, an input
and a substantive process that together significantly contribute
to the ability to create output. A business can exist without
including all of the inputs and processes needed to create
outputs. The amendments remove the assessment of whether
market participants are capable of acquiring the business and
continue to produce outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether
acquired inputs and acquired substantive processes together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The
amendments have also narrowed the definition of outputs to
focus on goods or services provided to customers, investment
income or other income from ordinary activities. Furthermore,
the amendments provide guidance to assess whether an
acquired process is substantive and introduce an optional fair
value concentration test to permit a simplified assessment of
whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not a
business. The Group expects to adopt the amendments
prospectively from 1 April 2020. Since the amendments apply
prospectively to transactions or other events that occur on or
after the date of first application, the Group will not be
affected by these amendments on the date of transition.
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Notes to Financial Statements

PSR MR

31 March 2020
2020F3 A31H

3.2 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(continued)

(b)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10
Consolidated Financial Statements and in HKAS 28 (2011) in
dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its joint venture or associate. The amendments
require a full recognition of a gain or loss when the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its joint venture
or associate constitutes a business. For a transaction involving
assets that do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting
from the transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss
only to the extent of the unrelated investor's interest in that
joint venture or associate. The amendments are to be applied
prospectively. The previous mandatory effective date of
amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) was removed
by the HKICPA in January 2016 and a new mandatory effective
date will be determined after the completion of a broader
review of accounting for joint ventures and associates.
However, the amendments are available for adoption now.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new definition
of material. The new definition states that information is
material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably
be expected to influence decisions that the primary users of
general purpose financial statements make on the basis of
those financial statements. The amendments clarify that
materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude of
information. A misstatement of information is material if it
could reasonably be expected to influence decisions made by
the primary users. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments prospectively from 1 April 2020. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

PSR MR

31 March 2020
2020F3 A31H

3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.3 FESHBEREE

POLICIES

Investments in joint ventures and associates

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed
sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control.

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term interest
of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over
which it is in a position to exercise significant influence. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint control
over those policies.

The Group's investments in joint ventures and associates are stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s share
of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less any
impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring into line any
dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of joint ventures and associates is included in
the consolidated profit or loss and consolidated other comprehensive
income, respectively. In addition, when there has been a change
recognised directly in the equity of the joint ventures or associates,
the Group recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains
and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and its
joint ventures or associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group's investments in the joint ventures or associates, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the assets
transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of joint ventures or
associates is included as part of the Group’s investments in joint
ventures or associates.

If an investment in a joint venture becomes an investment in an
associate or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured.
Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under the
equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of joint control over the
joint venture or significant influence over the associate, the Group
measures and recognises any retained investment at its fair value.
Any difference between the carrying amount of the joint ventures or
associates upon loss of joint control or significant influence and the
fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

Bt B AR Y

31 March 2020
2020F3 A31H

3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.3 FESEHBERBE )

POLICIES (continued)

Investments in joint ventures and associates
(continued)

When an investment in a joint venture or associate is classified as held
for sale, it is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.

Interests in joint operations

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the assets, and
obligations for the liabilities, relating to the arrangement.

Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control. The Group recognises in relation to its interest in a joint
operation:

o its assets, including its share of any assets held jointly;
o its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred jointly;
o its revenue from the sale of its share of the output arising from

the joint operation;

o its share of the revenue from the sale of the output by the joint
operation; and

o its expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred jointly.

The assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses relating to the Group's
interest in a joint operation are accounted for in accordance with the
HKFRSs applicable to the particular assets, liabilities, revenues and
expenses.
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Notes to Financial Statements

PSR MR

31 March 2020
2020F3 A31H

3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family
and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group;

or

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a holding company, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over
the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a holding company of the
entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,

provides key management personnel services to the
Group or to a holding company of the Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements

PSR MR

31 March 2020
2020F3 A31H

3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.3 FESEHBERBE )

POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition
date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of
assets transferred by the Group and liabilities assumed by the Group
to the former owners of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in
the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event of
liguidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related
costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured and
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised
for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group’s
previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable
net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised in
profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.
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Notes to Financial Statements

PSR MR

31 March 2020
2020F3 A31H

3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.3 FESEHBERBE )

POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs
its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 March. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the
Group's cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units,
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which the
goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that
unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative value of the
operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties and financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell
the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal
market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal
market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by
the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the
asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.
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Notes to Financial Statements

PSR MR

31 March 2020
2020F3 A31H

3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.3 FESEHBERBE )

POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements at fair value on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.
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Notes to Financial Statements

PSR MR

31 March 2020
2020F3 A31H

3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.3 FESEHBERBE )

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.
Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.
In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of
property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation of leasehold land under finance leases (applicable
before 1 April 2019) and buildings are calculated on the straight-line
basis to write off their costs (i) over the shorter of the lease term and
the useful life of 50 years in respect of leasehold land; and (ii) over
the shorter of the lease term and useful lives of 25 years in respect of
buildings.

Depreciation of other property, plant and equipment is calculated on
the reducing balance basis to write off the cost of each item of other
property, plant and equipment to its estimated residual value over its
estimated useful life. The estimated depreciation rates per annum of
different categories of other property, plant and equipment are as
follows:

Plant and machinery 15% to 25%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 15%
Motor vehicles 10% to 25%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation methods
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end.
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Notes to Financial Statements

PSR MR

31 March 2020
2020F3 A31H

3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.3 FESEHBERBE )

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in
the period the asset is derecognised is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including
the leasehold property held as a right-of-use-asset (2019: leasehold
property under an operating lease) which would otherwise meet the
definition of an investment property) held to earn rental income and/
or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes; or for sale
in the ordinary course of business. Such properties are measured
initially at cost, including the direct costs of construction, capitalised
borrowing costs on related borrowed funds during the period of
construction and transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market
conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in profit or loss in the period of the
retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied
properties, the deemed cost of a property for subsequent accounting
is its fair value at the date of change in use.

Y% - HBERRBURITE (@)

—IEME - EERRERBEMEARE
DZBERERNHERHERREER
& B R REEM ss i BUBHERR ©
REEBURRER < BRI 18 R iER

HEXBEEMSERAZRENERRE
REECHEMSFREREER 2
ER e

REME
REWHEIERFAARRAE S WA R,
EEREERGR 2 L RBTHER(E
REEMSTENARENRER ZFHE
EREEECHEYR(2019F : €&
HETZHEEMR))  MASEFHELE
EXHRERIMEHTHAE R
BREBBREPHEZ T RBFT 2
e ARMEERERA(BRERE
SRR RERPERBEEREEZE
TEBHRRAARRZZRA)GHE - R
BRHERR  REMEERRFEHR
MRz A EFI -

RENFEANTEESMEL ZBBNE
£ 2 HIRET A B A -

?ﬁﬁ%%i&}*im%FREEZEH%E?
R AR & B 2 B R

ERAMENBEETAANE AR
EEEH R 2 MR AABARR
ffffff BHEH L ATE -

DM A ERERER AR 201920 3k



Notes to Financial Statements

PSR MR

31 March 2020
2020F3 A31H

3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.3 FESEHBERBE )

POLICIES (continued)

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying
amounts will be recovered principally through a sales transaction
rather than through continuing use. For this to be the case, the asset
must be available for immediate sale in its present condition subject
only to terms that are usual and customary for the sale of such assets
and its sale must be highly probable.

Non-current assets (other than investment properties and financial
assets) classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their
carrying amounts and fair values less costs to sell.

Leases (applicable from 1 April 2019)

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or
when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as
operating leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to
each component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental
income is accounted for on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms and is included in revenue or other income in profit or loss due
to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of
the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same
basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in
the period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee, are accounted for
as finance leases.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach
for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments
and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying
assets.
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Notes to Financial Statements

PSR MR

31 March 2020
2020F3 A31H

3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Leases (applicable from 1 April 2019) (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(a)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available for
use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.
The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date less any
lease incentives received.

Right-of-use assets in respect of leasehold land are depreciated
on the straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and
their useful lives of 50 years. Other right-of-use assets are
depreciated on the reducing balance basis over the following
deprecation periods, which are the shorter of the lease terms
and the estimated useful lives of the assets:

Leased properties 1to 5 years
Plant and machinery 5 to 6 years
Motor vehicles 4 to 5 years

If ownership of the leased asset is transferred to the Group by
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset.

When the right-of-use assets relate to interests in leasehold
land held as inventories, they are subsequently measured at the
lower of cost and net realisable value in accordance with the
Group’s policy for “Land held for property development,
properties under development and properties held for sale”.

When a right-of-use asset meets the definition of investment
property, it is included in investment properties. The
corresponding right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost,
and subsequently measured at fair value, in accordance with
the Group's policy for “Investment properties”.

The Group's right-of-use assets are separately presented on the
face of the consolidated statement of financial position.
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Notes to Financial Statements

PSR MR

31 March 2020
2020F3 A31H

3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Leases (applicable from 1 April 2019) (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

(©

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of
the lease at the present value of lease payments to be made
over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or
a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price
of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Group and payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if
the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate. The variable lease payments that do not depend on
an index or a rate are recognised as an expense in the period in
which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group
uses the interest rate implicit in the lease or, where that rate
cannot be readily determined, the Group uses its incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased
to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease
payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease
liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in
the lease term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to
future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or
rate) or a change in assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset.

The Group's lease liabilities are separately presented on the
face of the consolidated statement of financial position.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to its short-term leases of plant and machinery and office
equipment (that is those leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option). It also applies the recognition
exemption for leases of low-value assets to leases of office
equipment that are considered to be of low value. Lease
payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
are recognised as an expense on the straight-line basis over the
lease term.
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.3 FESEHBERBE )

POLICIES (continued)

Leases (applicable before 1 April 2019)

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance lease,
the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present value of the
minimum lease payments and recorded together with the obligation,
excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase and financing.
Assets held under capitalised finance leases are included in non-
current assets. The finance costs of such leases are charged to profit
or loss so as to provide a constant periodic rate of charge over the
lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a financing nature
are accounted for as finance leases, but are depreciated over their
estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to profit or loss on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is the
lessee, rentals payable under operating leases, net of any incentives
received from the lessor, are charged to profit or loss on the straight-
line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially stated
at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line basis over
the lease terms. When the lease payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the land and buildings elements, the entire lease
payments are included in the cost of the land and buildings as a
finance lease in property, plant and equipment.

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition. The
useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or
indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for
an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.3 FESEHBERBE )

POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment
annually either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. Such
intangible assets are not amortised. The useful life of an intangible
asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine
whether the indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If
not, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite
is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Passenger service licences
Purchased passenger service licences are stated at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses and have indefinite useful lives.

Software application
Software application is stated at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses and have indefinite useful lives.

Land held for property development, properties

under development and properties held for sale

Land held for property development and properties under
development are intended to be held for sale after completion of the
property development. They are classified as current assets unless the
construction period of the relevant property development project is
expected to complete beyond the normal operating cycle. On
completion, the properties are transferred to properties held for sale.

Land held for property development, properties under development
and properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost includes prepaid land lease payments, cost of
land/land use rights together with any other direct costs attributable
to the development of the properties, and borrowing costs capitalised
during the development period. Net realisable value is determined by
reference to estimated selling price based on prevailing market
conditions less (i) anticipated cost to completion of the development
in respect of properties under development; and (ii) estimated costs
to be incurred in marketing and selling the properties.
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.3 FESEHBERBE )

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than investment
properties, land held for property development, properties under
development, properties held for sale, deferred tax assets, financial
assets, contract assets and non-current assets classified as held for
sale), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating
unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets
or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the period in which it
arises.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of a non-financial asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to
an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior periods. A reversal of such
an impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in the period in which
it arises.

FEMEERME
HWAEBSRBERNLIRME  KFEREE
(REYE  BIEMEBERZ2 L %
RAYE  FHEHEME EEHRE
E SREE ANEERDBRRFHE
HE ZIEMBEERRIN) EITFERIE
RS - AEEAEEZREIEE - &
EZAWESENEEXREELEN
ZERBEREAFEARSERE)
B ERA - WL EREEMETE @ B
FEREEYBELARANEE EBIR
HiMEEREEMBIMELEZRER
A ERERT - AT R SRR E E
Bz ReELBMMETE -

i & < BREE RS A W@ B8R - Rl
BEET THR - R hEREERR
fhEF ARB 2 RE IR R TS
AHEEBZEHEEREERERRZ
BB AT R IRE IR E - REEE
TIREL RN EBERB R -

REBREMR  SRECHRBRERN
EER ZRERBERNETBFENKAI
A TE L RS o fill HIREZEFR - Al
AR E B - SLIE S R E E (B
SN RRTE R 2 BEBRERBEX
BE AW EIBERMER 2 At R E
B THEDO - EERKNBEHEYL
BRZEERADREBE  SHRILE
ST PTEETE 2 BRIENE 2 28R (FOBR (AR
WE/#H) AT TRE - HESEZ
BOTRELHRE AR -

DM A ERERER AR 201920 3k



Notes to Financial Statements

PSR MR

31 March 2020
2020F3 A31H

3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.3 FESEHBERBE )

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, or fair value through profit or loss, as
appropriate.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on
the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group'’s business model for managing them. With the exception of
trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair
value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain
a significant financing component or for which the Group has
applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out
for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset (debt instrument) to be classified and
measured at amortised cost, it needs to give rise to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets (debt instruments) with cash
flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets (debt
instruments) refers to how it manages its financial assets (debt
instruments) in order to generate cash flows. The business model
determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets (debt instruments), or both.
Financial assets (debt instruments) classified and measured at
amortised cost are held within a business model with the objective to
hold financial assets (debt instruments) in order to collect contractual
cash flows, while financial assets (debt instruments) classified and
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are held
within a business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets (debt instruments)
which are not held within the aforementioned business models are
classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss.
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

33 FESFHBEME®)

Investments and other financial assets (continued) RERHMBEMEE &)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued) BRERARE(E)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention in
the marketplace.
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Subsequent measurement H#TE
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their TREECHEFABRIREUNTZH
classification as follows: FEMmE :
(@) Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments) (a) HEEKAGFEZCHBEE(BF

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

(b)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the consolidated statement of financial position at fair value
with net changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

This category includes equity investments which the Group had
not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through other
comprehensive income. Dividends on equity investments
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are also recognised as other income in profit or loss when the
right of payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably.

(b)
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.3 FESEHBERBE )

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Impairment

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
(“ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit
or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual
cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of
the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will
include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit
enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining
life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a
lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on
a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group
may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or
external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive
the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into
account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial
asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering the contractual cash flows.
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.3 FESEHBERBE )

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Impairment (continued)

General approach (continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under
the general approach and they are classified within the following
stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables and
contract assets which apply the simplified approach as detailed
below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but
that are not credit-impaired financial assets and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not contain a
significant financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group applies the simplified approach in
calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group does not
track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.3 FESEHBERBE )

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e., removed from the consolidated statement of financial position)
when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset, or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under
a "pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates
if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of
ownership of the assets. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred
assets to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that
case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Group could be required to repay.
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.3 FESEHBERBE )

POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are all classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at amortised cost, which are recognised initially at fair value
and net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition, financial liabilities at amortised cost are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included as finance costs in profit or loss.

Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and
a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts
that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss
it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A financial
guarantee contract is recognised initially as a liability at its fair value,
adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Group measures the financial guarantee contracts at the higher of: (i)
the ECL allowance determined in accordance with the policy as set
out in “Impairment of financial assets”; and (i) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income
recognised.
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.3 FESEHBERBE )

POLICIES (continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the consolidated statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Shares held under a share award scheme

Own equity instruments which are reacquired from the market and
held by the Company or the Group (treasury shares) under the share
award scheme of the Company are recognised directly in equity at
cost. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Group’s own equity instruments.

Upon exercise of share awards, the related costs of the vested
awarded shares repurchased from the market and shares acquired
from reinvesting dividends received on the awarded shares are
credited to the shares held under the share award scheme account,
with a corresponding decrease in the share-based compensation
reserve for the awarded shares.

For vesting of forfeited or unallocated shares regranted, the related
costs of the forfeited or unallocated shares regranted are credited to
the shares held under the share award scheme account, and the
related fair value of the shares regranted are debited to the share-
based compensation reserve. The difference between the cost and
the fair value of the shares regranted is credited to the share
premium account if the fair value is higher than the cost or debited
against retained profits if the fair value is less than the cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits,
and short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which
are not restricted as to use.
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Notes to Financial Statements

PSR MR

31 March 2020
2020F3 A31H

3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.3 FESEHBERBE )

POLICIES (continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period
of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included as finance costs in profit
or loss.

A contingent liability recognised in a business combination is initially
measured at its fair value. Subsequently, it is measured at the higher
of (i) the amount that would be recognised in accordance with the
general policy for provisions above; and (ii) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, the amount of income recognised
in accordance with the policy for revenue recognition.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit
or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking into
consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries
in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.
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Notes to Financial Statements

PSR MR

31 March 2020
2020F3 A31H

3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, joint operations, joint ventures and
associates, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, joint operations, joint ventures and
associates, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent
that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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2020F3 A31H

3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.3 FESEHBERBE )

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if
the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control
of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the
amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will be
entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to the
customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will
not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved.

FRiS®t (4)

ERERIRE E 2 REERSREARR
A WHREE BRI A R AR
BENFEABRMBOEEHBEEREA
BLE - KRR ZBLEHRBREETINE
WEMREF T EREC AL RHE
AR BRI B R EEFIREER
Yg (o] 5 e 72 o

RIERIABE R BBEAZBARE(EEE
RERNBERFER) BB 2 ERAHR
K8 RERBEHARMERHRE
BREBM IR (RRBEPDEE -

REEASEEGKER RFIBITHRE
FIHESH B EAFR B B EE BN ERF TH & -
BIRERBEEMRLEREBEEEL LA
— IS AT R — FE ST A B RS Sl T ik
SRR E RV ARTIIE B B & E k(A
imﬁﬁ?ﬂﬁﬁgﬁmeE%mﬁ
BBURM TSI - A seERENEE L
WEX@LLMEEﬁiéémﬂik
BRI EHIRIE A IR B E AR R I B (8 ©

Iy 75 e 22

REEFENZWE

28 mE RS AR Gl IR RIR AR
TE AL A % T E o S AR TS T AT YR Y
RENSHRERTEPE  SWRKA
BEFEHZ I

EANTZRERSHNESER - #h
ﬁ$%lﬁ%%x&%%$§ﬁi%%
ERETPMUEMZAESHE - K
ETRAKREEERBFEZEN
R BEEEAEREMABEITHARE
HRGUAER - CRER Rt amRATEE
TeRLEEAWGERELO /I -

DM A ERERER AR 201920 3k



Notes to Financial Statements
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.3 FESEHBERBE )

POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

When the contract contains a financing component which provides
the customer with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of
goods or services to the customer for more than one year, revenue is
measured at the present value of the amount receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected in a separate
financing transaction between the Group and the customer at
contract inception. When the contract contains a financing
component which provides the Group a significant financial benefit
for more than one year, revenue recognised under the contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract liability under
the effective interest method. For a contract where the period
between the payment by the customer and the transfer of the
promised goods or services is one year or less, the transaction price is
not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing component,
using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

(@)  Construction work

Revenue from construction work is recognised over time, using
an output method to measure progress towards complete
satisfaction of the work, because the Group’s performance
creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the
asset is created or enhanced. The progress towards complete
satisfaction of a performance obligation of construction
contracts is measured with reference to the certificates issued
by the internal or external surveyors on the performance of
work completed to date.

Claims to customers are amounts that the Group seeks to
collect from the customers as reimbursement of costs and
margins for scope of works not included in the original
construction contract. Claims are accounted for as variable
consideration and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative
revenue recognised will not occur when the associated
uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently
resolved. The Group uses the most likely amount method to
estimate the amounts of claims because this method best
predicts the amount of variable consideration to which the
Group will be entitled.

Asia Allied Infrastructure Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019/20

W TR (&)
RATFEHNZWE(E)
EAHNBEERERNY  EESEmIR
BEBERFPTHATPRHEEARE
MRl —Fh o WS RANEEE
EPRANRRFETHENBERS
"R AT I R BH 3R R B3R A R RIRR (B 5T
E-ERNBEERERND  /SAKEIR
HEAM BN aBE—FK  @REZ
BHERN YR BRERERMNETAFTE
BRNABEELNNBHAX - SiEP XK
SFGE B m S IR E R 2 MRV R AR
RTFRUANAZAEOME - XBEET
EREFBMBERMELAFE SRR
HZAITREEREARERD ZF
EEhAR -

@) ZEITE
HRAKEZBEOTRERIESX
BNTEPEEERESEMT
PRIZdl 2 BE - BRETREZI
ANEREELRFEZRIRLZ
A FE BB R T HERR o STRKIREE
BHROWEEZEET2RARM
KNSR ERIFE S B LD K
BT DM R 2 HZE
REtE -

AEFPREZREDIARETR
AEPWEZER  ERRER
BRI IZEE 2 A B AE
ZRERE - REDERATEN
BIRAZENNR B HEAE
REBBZTHAAREEEREIA
R ERERRFTRAERATED
ERLBARSHOSIE - N
BERRAESBEAGARES
B DARMIERERAASE
B ARES IERESE -



Notes to Financial Statements

PSR MR

31 March 2020
2020F3 A31H

3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(®)

©

Sale of properties

Revenue from the sale of properties is recognised at the point
in time when control of the asset is transferred to the
customer.

Rendering of services

Revenue from the rendering of services is recognised over the
scheduled period on the straight-line basis because the
customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group.

Revenue from other sources

(a)

(b)

©

@

Rental income
Rental income is recognised on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably.

Guarantee income
Guarantee income is recognised on the straight-line basis over
the guarantee period.

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods
or services transferred to the customer. If the Group performs by
transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer
pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is
recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional. Contract
assets are subject to impairment assessment, details of which are
included in the accounting policies for impairment of financial assets.
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.3 FESEHBERBE )

POLICIES (continued)

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the contract
(i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to the
customer).

Contract costs

Costs to fulfil a contract

Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventories, property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets, costs incurred to fulfil a
contract with a customer are capitalised as an asset if all of the
following criteria are met:

(@  The costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated
contract that the entity can specifically identify.

(b)  The costs generate or enhance resources of the entity that will
be used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy) performance
obligations in the future.

(©)  The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged to profit or
loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with the pattern of the
revenue to which the asset related is recognised. Other contract costs
are expensed as incurred.

Costs to obtain a contract

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs that the
Group incurs to obtain a contract with customer that it would not
have incurred if the contract had not been obtained. Incremental
costs of obtaining a contract are capitalised when incurred if the
costs relate to revenue which will be recognised in a future reporting
period and the costs are expected to be recovered. The incremental
costs of obtaining a contract are charged to profit or loss on a
systematic basis that is consistent with the pattern of the revenue to
which the asset related is recognised. Other costs of obtaining a
contract are expensed when incurred.
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.3 FESEHBERBE )

POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments

Share award scheme

The Group operates a share award scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives for employees to achieve performance goals and
aligning the interests of employees directly to the shareholders of the
Company through ownership of shares of the Company.

The amount to be expensed as share-based compensation expenses
is determined by reference to the fair value of the share awards
granted, taking into account all non-vesting conditions associated
with the grants. The total expense is recognised over the relevant
vesting periods (or on the grant date if the shares vest immediately),
with a corresponding credit to the share-based compensation reserve
under equity.

For those share awards which are amortised over the vesting periods,
the Group revises its estimates of the number of awarded shares that
are expected to ultimately vest based on the vesting conditions at the
end of each reporting period. Any resulting adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is recognised in profit
or loss in the current year, with a corresponding adjustment to the
share-based compensation reserve.

Share option scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors of the Company) of the Group receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby
employees render services as consideration for equity instruments
("equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured
by reference to the fair value at the date at which they are granted.
The fair value is determined by an external valuer using a binomial
option pricing model, further details of which are given in note 40 to
the financial statements.
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.3 FESEHBERBE )

POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

Share option scheme (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee
benefit expense, together with a corresponding increase in equity,
over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the vesting
date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and
the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to profit or loss for a period
represents the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at
the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into
account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but
the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the
Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within
the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award,
but without an associated service requirement, are considered to be
non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the
fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an
award unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met, no
expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or non-
vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting irrespective
of whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided
that all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an
expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to
the employee as measured at the date of modification.
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.3 FESEHBERBE )

POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

Share option scheme (continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had
vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes any
award where non-vesting conditions within the control of either the
Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as a
replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the original
award, as described in the previous paragraph.

Upon exercise of share options, the resulting shares issued are
recorded by the Company as additional share capital at the nominal
value of the shares, and the excess of the exercise price per share
over the nominal value of the shares is recorded by the Company in
the share premium account. In addition, at the time when the share
options are exercised, the amount previously recognised in the share-
based compensation reserve will be transferred to the share premium
account.

Share options which are cancelled prior to their exercise date or lapse
are deleted from the register of outstanding options. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at
the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in the share-based
compensation reserve will be transferred to retained profits as a
movement in reserves.

The dilutive effect of outstanding share options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

Other share-based payment transactions

Certain employees of the Group received remuneration in the form
of a share-based payment provided by the Group, whereby the
employees agreed to render a three-year service period to the Group
in exchange for acquiring certain percentage of equity interest in a
subsidiary of the Group at a below-market price (the “equity-settled
transaction”).

DR BERSRE)
BREE (&)

AR AN 45 SR BN A5 - AR AER
FEEH A HRAE AN - N BN RERR SR ED 2 (]
MARTERFE o WBERASELES
122 o) 0 B O FE AR U R IESZ K < (/]
22E o A W EBEREFHE
12E) - BRE T HHEERBENIEE -
BILGNRIER Al - B 5k 88 M 3T 2215 FE 3
RBRER2185] °

RITEBRAER - ARRABMSEkZE
TATR O R A EE ARSI A EEIMNK
K KRR NG HERITEERRBND
B2 KA AR R ERA © ko -
Fﬁﬁﬁiéﬁﬁﬂ% ﬁﬁfﬁﬂﬁf"iﬁﬁ}ﬂﬁﬁﬁ
RZRBREBRERMEER

1T B R s SR A B B
R ARTT R A i 2 &2 i P SRR - B AX
R 5B A HIRE R Yk fE i B EMD
RITEE - BISTRTRA B RN R R

AR R ERE RN SRR ER -

ATEZBERE EETTE  NES
P 2 ) By S BR A BR SN )

Htn AR RERNRZR S
AEEETREREBRBASEIRME Z AR
0 AR ERER R 77 SRR BN - 4Rt -
ZERERBRAANEERH=FR%
2 MIRERTSZ BRREAEE—
M B 2 RE T B bz Bk ([ 4&
BRH])

DM A ERERER AR 201920 3k



Notes to Financial Statements

PSR MR

31 March 2020
2020F3 A31H

3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.3 FESEHBERBE )

POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

Other share-based payment transaction (continued)

The cost of the equity-settled transaction is measured at the fair
value of the equity interest of the subsidiary acquired less the
consideration paid by the employee. The cost of the equity-settled
transaction is recognised as an employee benefit expense, together
with a corresponding increase in equity of the subsidiary, over the
period in which the performance and/or service conditions are
fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for the equity-settled
transaction at the end of each reporting period until the vesting date
reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired. The
charge to profit or loss for a period represents the movement in the
cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that
period.

Other employee benefits

Defined contribution plans

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme in Hong Kong (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
for those employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF
Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed into
the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in the PRC,
Singapore and Malaysia are required to participate in central pension
schemes operated by the PRC, Singapore and Malaysia governments,
the assets of which are held separately from those of the Group.
Contributions are made by the subsidiaries based on a percentage of
the participating employees’ salaries and are charged to profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the relevant
central pension schemes. The employer contributions vest fully once
made.
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.3 FESEHBERBE )

POLICIES (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity
incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs capitalised.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the activity of a construction
contract are included as part of the contract costs.

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
are incurred.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they have been
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed final
dividends are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because
the Company’s memorandum and articles of association grant the
directors the authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently,
interim dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they
are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar, which
is the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities in the
Group are initially recorded using their respective functional currency
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or translation of
monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.3 FESEHBERBE )

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated
in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on a change in fair
value of the item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair
value gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration,
the date of initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising
from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction date for
each payment or receipt of the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain subsidiaries, joint venture and
associates established in the PRC and overseas are currencies other
than the Hong Kong dollars. As at the end of the reporting period,
the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their profits or losses are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation is
treated as an assets of the foreign operation and translated at the
closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of certain subsidiaries established in the PRC and overseas
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash
flows of these subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected
in the future.

The major judgements, estimates and assumptions that have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements and have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year are set out below:

Classification between joint operations and joint
ventures

The Group has numerous joint arrangements with third parties for
construction work mainly in Hong Kong and under which decisions
about the relevant activities of such arrangements require the
unanimous consent of all parties to the arrangements. For accounting
purposes, the Directors assessed whether such arrangements are
joint operations or joint ventures under HKFRS 11 Joint
Arrangements, taking into consideration the rights and obligations of
parties to the joint arrangements with reference to the structure, the
legal form of the arrangements, the contractual terms agreed by the
parties in the arrangements, and the relevant facts and
circumstances.

Construction contracts

With respect to construction contracts, the Group recognises contract
revenue on a construction contract over time, using an output
method to measure progress towards complete satisfaction of the
construction work, because the Group’s performance creates or
enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is created
or enhanced. The output method recognises revenue based on the
certificates issued by the internal or external surveyors on the
performance or work completed to date, latest available financial
budgets of the construction contract with reference to the overall
performance of the construction contract, and management’s best
estimates and judgements. In developing the financial budget of a
construction contract, construction revenue is estimated in
accordance with the terms set out in the relevant contract. Because
of the nature of the construction industry, management will make
adjustments, where appropriate, to the amounts of construction
revenue based on regular review of contract work progress and
estimated construction revenue.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Construction contracts (continued)

The Group regularly assesses the possible outcome of construction
contracts based on latest facts and circumstances occurred in the
construction contracts, and past experience in conducting similar
construction work. When there is a change in the expected outcome
of construction contracts, the Group will adjust the amounts of
contract revenue to be recognised in profit or loss prospectively.

Determining the method to estimate variable
consideration and assessing the constraint for
construction work

The Group seeks to collect claims from customers as reimbursement
of costs and margins for scope of works not included in the original
construction contract, which give rise to variable consideration. The
Group has determined that the most likely amount method is the
appropriate method to use in estimating the variable consideration
for claims in construction work, given there is a wide range of
possible outcomes which are subject to negotiations with third
parties.

Before including any amount of variable consideration in the
transaction price, the Group considers whether the amount of
variable consideration is constrained by considering its historical
experience, current negotiations with customers and the current
economic conditions.

Determination of net realisable value of land held
for property development, properties under
development and properties held for sale

Land held for property development, properties under development
and properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. The net realisable value is the estimated selling price
(based on the direct comparison method) less estimated selling
expenses and estimated cost of completion (if any), which are
determined based on best available information and valuation
performed by independent professional valuers. Where there is any
unfavourable changes in the estimated selling price, estimated selling
expenses and/or estimated cost of completion arising from any
changes to the property market conditions in Hong Kong, Mainland
China and the UAE, loss may be recognised in profit or loss on the
Group’s land held for property development, properties under
development and properties held for sale, which had a total carrying
amount of HK$565,660,000 (2019: HK$535,394,000) as at
31 March 2020.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Impairment of goodwiill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an
annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating unit to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating
the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating unit and also to
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value
of those cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill carried as an
asset in the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 March 2020 was HK$43,211,000 (2019: HK$45,994,000), details
of which are set out in note 18 to the financial statements.

Income tax

At 31 March 2020, deferred tax assets of HK$20,334,000 (2019:
HK$20,320,000) in relation to unused tax losses have been
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
whereas deferred tax asset has not been recognised in respect of tax
losses of HK$455,920,000 (2019: HK$456,442,000) as at 31 March
2020 due to the unpredictability of future profit streams (note 37(a)).
The realisability of the deferred tax assets mainly depends on whether
sufficient future profits or taxable temporary differences will be
available in the future. In cases where the actual future profits
generated are less or more than expected, a material reversal or
further recognition of deferred tax assets may arise, which would be
recognised in profit or loss for the period in which such a reversal or
recognition takes place.
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5.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group’s operating businesses are
structured and managed separately according to the nature of their
operations and the products and services they provide. Each of the
Group's operating segments represents a strategic business unit that
offers products and services which are subject to risks and returns
that are different from those of the other operating segments.

The chief operating decision maker of the Group has been identified
as the executive directors of the Company and certain senior
management (collectively referred to as the “CODM"). For the
purpose of performance assessment and resource allocation by the
CODM, the Group's business activities are categorised under the
following four reportable operating segments:

provision of construction and
consultancy services in areas of civil
engineering, electrical and mechanical
engineering, foundation and building
construction mainly in Hong Kong

e (Construction services —

development and sale of properties,
and leasing of assets in Hong Kong,
Mainland China and the UAE

e Property development —
and assets leasing

e  Professional services — provision of security and facility
management solutions in Hong

Kong

e Non-franchised bus —
services

provision of non-franchised bus
services in Hong Kong (a new
business line commenced during
the financial year ended 31 March
2020)

Segment revenue and results

Segment results represent the profit generated from each segment,
net of selling expenses and administrative expenses directly
attributable to each segment without allocation of corporate
expenses, interest income, gain on disposal of a self-occupied office
premise and non-lease-related finance costs. This is the measure
reported to the CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment.
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5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. REQHER @
(continued)
Segment revenue and results (continued) DI R ELE (E)
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by RNEBIRA] 2| LHIE|ID 2 WF K
reportable operating segment: BLESHTINT ¢

Year ended 31 March 2020

HZE2020F3 831 HILEE

Property
development Non-
Construction  and assets Professional  franchised
services leasing services  bus services Total
MERRK FEE
BERE EEHRE SER% BLR%E k]
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Segment revenue (note 6): A8z (Mis6) -
Sales to external customers AINDE P HE 7,024,827 8,799 921,536 45,638 8,000,800
Intersegment sales NEEEE - - 19,909 1,030 20,939
7,024,827 8,799 941,445 46,668 8,021,739
Recondiliation: HEE -
Elimination of intersegment sales DHREE 2 HHE (20,939)
8,000,800
Segment results DEEE 129,409 (49,300) 63,869 15,859 159,837
Interest income WA 45,089
Gain on disposal of a self-occupied HE—HERRAEME
office premise pdliG: 109,479
Corporate and other unallocated CEREMANERSE
expenses (76,531)
Finance costs (other than intereston  RI&RK
lease liabilities) (FAEEEF BN (123,934)
Profit before tax BTt AL A 113,940
Income tax Fi5H (13,267)
Profit for the year REERF 100,673
Other segment information: HitpBEHR
Share of profit of a joint venture E—HaEREEF 670 - - - 670
Share of (losses)/profits of associates e A AT (B18) /% F (608) 18,916 - - 18,308
Depreciation of items of property, mE - BERZJEEEZ
plant and equipment & (35,811) (7,170) (8,203) (4,867) (56,051)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEEINE (20,209) (7,918) (1,832) (303) (30,262)
Gain on disposal of a self-occupied HE—TRERRRAEYE
office premise (unallocated asset) 2 (R EEE) 109,479
Gain/(loss) on disposal of other items ~ HEE MY « =T
of property, plant and equipment, SfeEE 2t/
net (B1]) %% 1,885 - 93 (168) 1,810
Impairment of right-of-use assets FEREEEZRE - (10,167) - - (10,167)
Impairment of loan receivables B E R 2 RE
(unallocated asset) (RPBEBE) (5,877)
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5.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

Segment revenue and results (continued)

Year ended 31 March 2019

Segment revenue (note 6):
Sales to external customers
Intersegment sales

Reconciliation:
Elimination of intersegment sales

Segment results

Interest income

Corporate and other unallocated
eXpenses

Finance costs

Profit before tax
Income tax

Profit for the year

Other segment information:

Share of profit of a joint venture

Share of losses of associates

Depreciation of items of property,
plant and equipment

Fair value gain of investment
properties, net

Gain on disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment, net

Impairment of items of property,
plant and equipment

Impairment of an investment deposit
and partial consideration paid for
a rescinded acquisition transaction
(unallocated asset)
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MBUA
PEREMRDIRAR
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FiSH

RER R

Rt HEH -
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NE  BERREEBZ
ik
REME 2 A FERS
FE

HEME  BER
REBER W FE
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FEERBRER S

ENRERERHBINE

ZRE(RDEEE)

Construction
services

RS
HK$'000
TAT

7,305,894
51,211

5, BESIER &)
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BZE2019F3A31HILEE

Property
development
and assets
leasing
MEERK
BEERE
HK$'000
FET

Non-
franchised
bus services
=t
Bk
HK$'000
FET

Professional
services

EE
HK$'000
TEL

7,109 763,045 =
= 19,135 =

Total

e
HK$000
TAT

8,076,048
70,346

7,357,105

7,109 782,180 =

150,410

8,146,394

(70,346)

8,076,048

180,255 28,800 =

6,400

(35,517)

1,880

359,465
23,478

(125,862)

(91,920

165,161

(24,066)

(1,332) = =
(8,196)

26,623 = =

(7,500) = =

141,095
6,400
(1,332)
(49,216)
26,623
1,911

(7,500)

(54,800)
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5.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Segment assets and liabilities

Segment assets and liabilities information is not disclosed as they are
not regularly reviewed by the CODM.

Geographical information

(a) Revenue from external customers
No geographical information of revenue from external
customers is presented as more than 90% of revenue during
each of the financial years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019
was derived from Hong Kong.

(b) Non-current assets

REFIER (#)

THEERER
BN EBLERREWIFEREH D B
BELRAE  RBEBREBRTERE -

ih & &

(a) REIIBEEZWzE
RELE2020F & 20193 A31H
IEZ EHBRFERN - HBiEB90% 2
WRKBEBE  WRBINEER
ZWas 2 sl ERAEZ 5 o

(b) FAREBEE

2020 2019

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

Hong Kong EE 813,606 1,034,643
The UAE [Sn] Bk 235,480 238,470
Other jurisdictions Hith el A= 116,784 80,849
1,165,870 1,353,962

The non-current asset information disclosed above is based on
the locations of the assets and excludes goodwill, financial
assets and deferred tax assets.

ERRBEZIFRBDEEERTIR
BEE(TRERE SREER
EEBIRE E ) P 0 T 1F

¥ -

DM A ERERER AR 201920 3k
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5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about a major customer

A summary of revenue earned from an external customer which
contributed more than 10% of the Group’s revenue for each of the
financial years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019 is set out below:

REFIER (#)

EHE—BXEEFFZEHR

RE E20205F % 20193 A31H &
HRFERE AAEEERKREE10%
AR — RSN YU s 285 20
—|T :

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Customer A: BEA:
Contribution to construction B RS
services segment 4,096,319 4,674,049
Contribution to professional BB RS
services segment 390,680 248,521
4,486,999 4,922,570
6. REVENUE 3
An analysis of the Group’s revenue is as follows: AREFE 7 EEBHMMOT ¢

2020 2019

HK$°000 HK$°000

FET T

Revenue from contracts with customers RERBFEH 2 W 7,995,052 8,071,051
Revenue from another source — REEMKRZ Wt —

Gross rental income from assets leasing BEMEZHS WAL 5,748 4,997

8,000,800 8,076,048

— Asia Allied Infrastructure Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019/20
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6. REVENUE (continued)

Notes:

(@)

Disaggregated revenue information

Year ended 31 March 2020

6. EXHE
P -

(@) EEHEZHRER
BZ2020F3831HILFE

Segments
pan: |

Property
development
and assets
leasing
NEBER
-k
HK$°000
FAET

Non-
franchised
bus services
FHE
BLRE
HK$'000
FET

Professional
services

Construction
services

BRI
HK$'000
FET

EXR
HK$000
TR

Total

|
HK$000
TRET

Type of goods or services EmBREER
Construction work BETR 6,996,203 - - - 6,996,203
Rendering of construction-related ~ $2{ i SEAARE 4IRS

consultancy services 28,624 - - - 28,624
Sale of properties SHEMHE - 3,051 - - 3,051
Rendering of security and facility RER T R EEHR

management solutions services WES Y - - 921,536 - 921,536
Provision of non-franchised bus REFBLE TR

services - - - 45,638 45,638
Total revenue from contracts REBEFEHzW=BEE

with customers 7,024,827 3,051 921,536 45,638 7,995,052
Revenue from another source R B E AR 2 Y

— Gross rental income —HAsWABE - 5,748 - - 5,748
Total revenue gtk 7,024,827 8,799 921,536 45,638 8,000,800
Geographical market HET 5
Hong Kong &5 6,961,002 - 921,536 45,638 7,928,176
Other jurisdictions Hitn R AR 63,825 3,051 - - 66,876
Total revenue from contracts REBEFEH 2 WamBEE

with customers 7,024,827 3,051 921,536 45,638 7,995,052
Revenue from another source R B E AR 2 Y

— Gross rental income — s WALE - 5,748 - - 5,748
Total revenue Ilgas kel 7,024,827 8,799 921,536 45,638 8,000,800
Timing of revenue recognition &3 241
Goods transferred at a point REEEEEE M

in time - 3,051 - - 3,051
Services transferred over time 8 s B2 7% AR 75 7,024,827 - 921,536 45,638 7,992,001
Total revenue from contracts RERPEHZ WmBEE

with customers 7,024,827 3,051 921,536 45,638 7,995,052
Revenue from another source R B E AR 2 Yz

— Gross rental income —HAsWALE - 5,748 - - 5,748
Total revenue IastazE 7,024,827 8,799 921,536 45,638 8,000,800

DM A ERERER AR 201920 3k m —



Notes to Financial Statements

Bt B AR Y

31 March 2020
2020F3 A31H

6. REVENUE (continued) 6. EXE(»
Notes: (continued) FisE « (4)
(a) Disaggregated revenue information (continued) (a) HEEBZHFENE)

Year ended 31 March 2019

BZ2019F3831HILFE

Segments
pax:is
Property
development Non-
Construction and assets Professional franchised
services leasing services bus services
MEZRR ke
BEMR% AEMRE BE R B RS
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FET FET FET
Type of goods or services EmBREER
Construction work BETE 7,281,136 = = = 7,281,136
Rendering of construction-related 2L LR RS
consultancy services 24,758 - - - 24,758
Sale of properties SHEMH - 2,112 - = 2,112
Rendering of security and facility RIMRT KR EERER
management solutions services LES Y - - 763,045 - 763,045
Total revenue from contracts RARFAEK 2 e85
with customers 7,305,894 2,112 763,045 - 8,071,051
Revenue from another source R B E MR 2 Wi
— Gross rental income — el ABE = 4,997 = - 4,997
Total revenue Yz 0% 7,305,894 7,109 763,045 - 8,076,048
Geographical market BT 5
Hong Kong & 7,252,915 - 763,045 - 8,015,960
Other jurisdictions Hib A AR 52,979 2,112 - - 55,091
Total revenue from contracts RARFEH a8
with customers 7,305,894 2,112 763,045 - 8,071,051
Revenue from another source REEM R 2 Was
— Gross rental income — e BE = 4,997 = - 4,997
Total revenue Weias 7,305,894 7,109 763,045 - 8,076,048
Timing of revenue recognition WAL
Goods transferred at a point REHHERER
in time - 2,112 - - 2,112
Services transferred over time T e ) B2 PR 7S 7,305,894 - 763,045 - 8,068,939
Total revenue from contracts REBFAKz Wes1EE
with customers 7,305,894 2,112 763,045 - 8,071,051
Revenue from another source R B E AR 2 Wi
— Gross rental income — ek ABE = 4,997 = = 4,997
Total revenue Wzsia%E 7,305,894 7,109 763,045 - 8,076,048
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6. REVENUE (continued)

Notes: (continued)
(a) Disaggregated revenue information (continued)

The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised in the current
reporting period that were included in the contract liabilities at the
beginning of the reporting period and recognised from performance
obligations satisfied in previous periods:

6.

—E XCI0))

P E
(a)

(%)
EEBEZDIFER (E)
TR E PARER 2 W S 7 -

ZESBEFABRSHNZEaNEER
YRR B e BB EF R -

2020
HK$'000

FET

Revenue recognised that was included in contract STAREHIENEEZ
liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period: B iR
Sale of properties SHEYE 220 1,956
Revenue recognised from performance obligations S AT EAR IE A Sk 2B D AR B 40
satisfied or partially satisfied in previous periods: E MR 2 WS -
Revenue from construction work services not 1 AT X (B A BR il i 5 Al
previously recognised due to constraints on AR Z KRB R ETIRIR
variable consideration ZUEs 363,760 452,237
(b)  Performance obligations (b) BHEME
Information about the Group’s performance obligations in contracts with BFRAKEZEFPEHNBHATRETERE
customers is summarised below: mpnR
Construction work BEIR

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services are rendered
and payment is generally due within one month from the date of billing. A
certain percentage of payment is retained by customers until the end of the
retention period as the Group’s entitlement to the final payment is
conditional on the satisfaction of the service quality by the customers over a
certain period as stipulated in the contracts.

Construction-related consultancy services
The performance obligation is satisfied over time when the services are

rendered and payment is generally due within 30 days from the date of
billing.

FRA B EREIR (L ARTSBF P MRk - B3R
H—RPAFAREASEGT —EAR
FB AT o REGRE —EHLOIZ K
EERERER - ARASEYEREE
MR BEABURNEPESKIRE L —
BERANZEHRGEERINE

EEEEBARE
B AR AERE RIS IR AV R S A - 7

NR—AR B FAMKE B HiEst 30 H RN E
AT o
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6. REVENUE(mmmww

Notes: (continued)
(b) Performance obligations (continued)
Sale of properties

The performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time upon transfer of
the control of properties sold and payment in advance is normally required.

Rendering of security and facility management solutions services
and provision of non-franchised bus services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time when the services are
rendered and payment is generally due within 30 days from the date of
billing.

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining performance
obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at 31 March are as
follows:

6.

—E XCI0))
izt : (&)

(b)

BREE(E)
HEWH

BHOREIREBCEME 2 EHEL
B RRER - BREHBIRATN

RURERZEEBRRTERBUAR
RAFEEO T RE

B AR AERE RIS IR AV S R S K - 7
NR—AR B 5 ANKE B HiEst 30 H RN E
AT o

K3 A31E - MR TEHRECREKK
MOREK) DA R HEREFEMT :

2020
HK$'000

FRET

Amounts expected to be recognised as revenue:

EHERARRENEER

Within one year —FEA 6,879,851 7,940,878
After one year Bl —F 8,913,920 9,072,056
15,793,771 17,012,934

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining performance
obligations which are expected to be recognised after one year relate to
construction work, of which the performance obligations are to be satisfied
within five years. All the other amounts of transaction prices allocated to
the remaining performance obligations are expected to be recognised as
revenue within one year. The amounts disclosed above do not include
variable consideration which is constrained.

DEEEHN —FRERZHTEOER
ERNR S ERETY MR AFRERK
ZEETE - BHAREHR TEOEE
AR 5 EREBEN —FRE
ARl e FRMEECSETIERER
BRG] ATRARE -
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7. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 7. HtWARW=EZFE
2020 2019
Notes HK$°000 HK$000
HtaE FET FEIT
Other income HA A
Interest income FLEWA 45,089 23,478
Other rental income Hipf S WA 302 73
Guarantee income ERBA 33(@a) 4,325 16,602
Management fee income BEEBRA 1,708 4,362
Sundry income FETEA 10,904 8,592
62,328 53,107
Gains, net W58
Gain on sale of a property interest ERLEWNBARLE—H
through disposal of subsidiaries YR R Was 44(a) - 257,674
Gain on deconsolidation of subsidiaries HUHEM B A BLRAE ARZIE  44(0) 9,270 -
Gains on deregistration of subsidiaries, S TEMME A T 2 Yz F:58
net - 9
Gain on disposal of an associate & — & R |2 Was 2,995 -
Gain on disposal of a self-occupied HE—HERARAEYHE
office premise included in property, Was (FEAMZE « 2R KRB
plant and equipment and NEREEE)
right-of-use assets 109,479 -
Gain on disposal of other items of HEEMYIE  HEER
property, plant and equipment, net RIEEE 2 W FR 1,810 1,911
Foreign exchange gain, net b 5 W s 558 595 -
124,149 259,594
Other income and gains, net HW A R s F5E 186,477 312,701

DM A ERERER AR 201920 3k E —
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8. FINANCE COSTS

An analysis of the Group's finance costs is as follows:

8. EMEMA

2020

HK$000
FTET

AEBZBERARDFTMOT -

2019

HK3$'000

T

Interest on: ATNEIBZHE
Bank borrowings RITERK 107,544 83,584
Lease liabilities HERE 1,901 -
Hire purchase contract and finance HESHLRERE
lease payables FEIRIE - 442
Guaranteed bonds ERES - 2,263
109,445 86,289
Imputed interest on: HENES
Interest-free loans from a non-controlling KE—ZH B AR IR
equity holder of a subsidiary BEHREAZRSER - 2,035
Total interest expenses A B RS2 109,445 88,324
Amortisation of ancillary costs incurred in BREBRTERLTHESL
connection with the arrangement of B A 2 B
bank loans 18,123 15,327
Total finance costs 487 & AR 127,568 103,651
Less: Amount included in cost of B EF AR TRERR 2 8
construction work (2,780) (4,265)
Amount capitalised in properties B EAREERERAPYE 2 SFE
under development - (7,466)
124,788 91,920

— m Asia Allied Infrastructure Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019/20
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9. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

BRBE A A

AEBEZBHRANAENENR,GEA)T

HI|&IR
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cost of construction work FEETIER A 6,596,762 6,891,365
Cost of construction-related B LR RS A
consultancy services provided 26,428 19,284
Cost of properties sold EEMERAR 3,045 2,983
Direct operating expenses WS BEMEAZ
(including repairs and maintenance) BHEKSHS (BIEEER
arising on rental-earning assets RE) 15,508 16,714
Cost of security and facility B RE M &EEIE
management solutions services BRR T RARTE 2 A
provided 811,562 691,159
Cost of non-franchised bus services EIRREIFELEE L RE 2K AR
provided 35,898 =
Depreciation of items of property, ME - MENREHEBE ZITE
plant and equipment 15 56,051 49,216
Less: Amount included in cost of sales i : 5+ AS4ER AN 2 Bi%E (47,564) (39,963)
8,487 9,253
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEEZIE 17(a) 30,262 -
Less: Amount included in cost of sales g : 5t AS4E pk AN 2 %8 (14,674) =
15,588 -
Minimum lease payments under KEHET 2 &ERERNK
operating leases - 113,878
Less: Amount included in cost of sales i : 5+ AS4ER AN 2 Bi%E - (90,525)
- 23,353
Lease payments not included in the TWETAHESETEN
measurement of lease liabilities HAER= 17(c) 118,349 =
Less: Amount included in cost of sales  J& : T ASHERK A 2 £i58 (112,539) -
5,810 -
Auditor’s remuneration B EMEN £ 5,100 4,696

DB A EZERERAT
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9. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued) 9. BRBAIER (#)
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FEIT
Employee benefit expense (including EERANAY (BRERES
directors’ remuneration — note 10): i — FiEE10) ¢
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥ % ~ ZBIREWREAN 1,889,138 2,217,969
Share award expense f% 15 B2 BN 2 39(@a) - 1,381
Equity-settled share option expense DARRAS 455 2 BE IR 7 s2 40(b) 2,922 7,004
Other equity-settled share-based HA ARG E 2 AR &
payment expense (note) BRI ReH = (FisE) 2,650 2,300
Retirement benefit scheme contributions R KAEFEHE K 53,008 60,426
Total employee benefit expense EERAIM TR 1,947,718 2,289,080
Less: Amount included in cost of sales W BT ASHE AN 2 EiEE (1,671,326) (1,999,003)
276,392 290,077
Foreign exchange (gain)/loss, net PE X (Wss), E51BFHE (595) 2,840
Fair value loss of equity investments at BAFEGT ABRE 2R
fair value through profit or loss BE 7 NFEEE 6 15
Loss/(gain) on sale of property interests ~ #E@BHENB AT HEYE
through disposal of subsidiaries a2 BB (W) 44(a) 1,078 (257,674)
Losses on disposal of other subsidiaries HEHMME AR ZEE 44(c) 402 -
Loss/(gain) on deregistration of BUEEMH B AR 2 BB
subsidiaries, net (Yeas) 588 5,046 )
Impairment of items of property, Y% - MESRFEIER 2
plant and equipment B 15(c) - 7,500
Impairment of right-of-use assets FREEEZRE 17(a) 10,167 -
Write-off of items of property, M - BBEINKREEE 2
plant and equipment AR 113 208
Impairment of an investment deposit R—IEEREHNIER 2K
and partial consideration paid for ENKRERE R
a rescinded acquisition transaction o RE ZRE 26(a) - 54,800
Impairment of loan receivables EWERZRE 26(b) 5,877 -
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9. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued) 9.

Note: During the year, the Group disposed of 2% (2019: 5%) equity interest in a
subsidiary to two (2019: one) directors of the subsidiary for a total cash
consideration of HK$1,330,000 (2019: HK$2,500,000). The fair value of the
disposed equity interest of the subsidiary (an unlisted equity investment)
was determined with reference to a valuation performed by CH Global
Valuation & Advisory Services Limited, an independent professionally
qualified valuer registered in Hong Kong, using a market-based valuation
technique, based on assumptions that are not supported by observable
market prices or rates. The valuation requires the Directors to determine
comparable public companies based on industry, size, leverage and strategy,
and calculates an appropriate price multiple (i.e., price to earnings multiple
from 4.45 to 15.61 (2019: 5.69 to 19.68)) for each comparable company
identified. The multiple is calculated by dividing the enterprise value of the
comparable company by an earnings measure. The trading multiple is then
discounted for considerations such as illiquidity and size differences between
the comparable companies based on company-specific facts and
circumstances.

The discounted multiple (i.e., marketability discount of 40% (2019: 35%)),
is applied to the corresponding earnings measure of the unlisted equity
investment to measure the fair value. Based on the valuation, the fair value
of the 2% (2019: 5%) equity interest of the subsidiary was assessed to be
HK$3,980,000 (2019: HK$4,800,000), and therefore the difference
between its fair value and the consideration received, which amounted to
HK$2,650,000 (2019: HK$2,300,000), was recognised as an equity-settled
share-based payment expense in profit or loss during the year.

10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 10.

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”), section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

BRI AR ()

MiRE « ANEEA - ANEBLAEIRSHRIE 13300007870
(20194 : 2,500,000 7T) M — A B A
AlZME (20194 : —R)ESHENE
AR2% (20194 : 5%) f&#E - B &K B
ARl EE(—EFELMRAEE) B
FEDZEETRIG A ARSER
AR (REEEMNBLEELERGE
B AR AR N 3F R AT R SR T (B sk R X
BEREATSEERITET 2 GEME
Eo MEERETENITE  HE- &
ERREEEALE, ETMAR XA
ZEHANTLERARGEEENERE
(BN F4.45%15.61(20194F : 5.69
£ 19.68) MITAR) - FHEYRALEA
A EBEER ARSI ERTE - &
BREBEARFENEERER  ZEE
ALEBRARZEANRESERAEEES
Ax ' YRS EEHHEITAE -

1% Bl IR 5 B (BN T 45 7 ) 14 B 3R R 40%
(20194F : 35%)) EEFARIE LR AIRE
HBEKEE  WtEEQATFE 1R
BHE WHEBREZ2% (20194 : 5%)
f&ER) A F{E (L 543,980,000/ 7T (2019
£F : 4,800,000757T) * Ett - EAF(EER
Fr i X {8 2 [ #Y 2 8 4 2,650,0007% 7T
(20194F : 2,300,000/ 7T ) * AEERNE
BRANERBUBRALEE 2 ARMD A
A RER

EETM

RIS S RN LRI -
B R EHEDIE 383(1)@) ~ (b) ~ (& (f)
R AR (KB E R AR R 2
B AEEEEHHRBLT -

2020 2019

HK$°'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Fees e 690 690
Other emoluments: HinEH 4 :

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind He  EBEREWEAR 13,248 13,043

Equity-settled share option expense AR A 458 2 FE AR R 2 1,207 2,504

Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIREFIFT R R 166 161

14,621 15,708

Total directors’ remuneration EEFMERE 15,311 16,398
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10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 10. EEFHM =)
An analysis of the directors’ remuneration, on a named basis, is as NEZAREE 2EESHMO AT :
follows:
Year ended 31 March 2020 BZ2020F3 A31HILEE
Salaries, Retirement
allowances  Equity-settled benefit
and benefits share option scheme
in kind expense  contributions Total
e 2H DRAEE BB
ok RENEFN zBRERX R mm
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET FET
Executive directors: HWIES
Pang Yat Ting, Dominic T—E - 2,965 302 18 3,285
Xu Jianhua GEE - 2,894 302 22 3,218
Pang Yat Bond, Derrick Z—H - 3,027 - 60 3,087
Shea Chun Lok, Quadrant Sds - 2,350 302 60 2,712
Li Wai Hang, Christina EX ] - 1,892 121 - 2,013
Han Li B2F] - 120 - 6 126
- 13,248 1,027 166 14,441
Independent non-executve BV IFHITES ¢
directors:
Wu William Wai Leung HiER 230 - 60 - 290
Lam Yau Fung, Curt whEE 230 - 60 - 290
Ho Gilbert Chi Hang EEE 230 - 60 - 290
690 - 180 - 870
Total FEE] 690 13,248 1,207 166 15,311
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10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 10. ESEFHMN »)
Year ended 31 March 2019 HZE2019F3A31HLEE

Salaries, Retirement
allowances Equity-settled benefit
and benefits share option scheme
Fees in kind expense contributions Total

& 2 RRAEE RIKAET
ik REMEN  ZBERERX ATEIfR Fak
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT FET TET FET FHET

Executive directors: BITES :

Pang Yat Ting, Dominic TR - 2,797 626 18 3,441
Xu Jianhua s - 2,929 626 18 3,573
Pang Yat Bond, Derrick z—3 - 3,062 - 60 3,122
Shea Chun Lok, Quadrant e - 2,206 626 60 2,892
Li Wai Hang, Christina FER - 1,937 251 - 2,188
Han Li* B * - 112 - 5 117
- 13,043 2,129 161 15,333
Independent non-executive BV IEHITEES

directors:
Wu William Wai Leung MRS 230 - 125 - 355
Lam Yau Fung, Curt whaE 230 - 125 - 355
Ho Gilbert Chi Hang MEE 230 = 125 - 355
690 - 375 - 1,065

Total Fex ) 690 13,043 2,504 161 16,398

& appointed as an executive director on 24 April 2018 & R2018F 4 B24 BEZ T ANTES

Notes: ffsE -

(@)  Certain directors were granted share options in the current and prior @ REAQAGERESS ETEFER
financial years, in respect of their services to the Group, under the share R BFEERBEFRFERKRERR
option scheme of the Company, further details of which are set out in note SEFTRE R ER TRERE - HiE
40 to the financial statements. The fair value of these share options, which — BRI B RERMEL0 - ZER
has been recognised in profit or loss over the vesting period, was BB RENERNEREZ A FE
determined as at the date of grant and the amount included in the financial ERFE BHETE - MARATBFE
statements for the current financial year is included in the above directors’ A BHRENEHEEHA Ll ESEHH
remuneration disclosures. HWEA

(b)  There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to (b) ZKEJEW\' W AT &2 BE B EE B IR L
waive any remuneration during the year (2019: Nil). ZEof A B RGEE A N (2019 4F - &) -
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11. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES M. EEBESHFMES
The five highest paid employees during the year included two (2019: AREERN > A2ZxeFEESBREAR
two) directors of the Company, details of whose emoluments are set A A (20194F « M) ES - HEF
out in note 10 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the HIEHN EXHF10- FRESH=F
remaining three (2019: three) non-director highest paid employees (2019%F : =R FEEEHRFMESR
are as follows: ZEMEFBENT
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R NEYES 12,165 10,388
Equity-settled share option expense ARG 2 B R 2 520 1,066
Other equity-settled share-based E A AR A 45 E 2 LAREAD
payment expense BEMRNFERE - 2,300
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIRAEFIET B K 180 180
12,865 13,934
The number of non-director highest paid employees whose MENF T35 EBERN T IEES &S =
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows: BEZ ASMT :

Number of employees

EEAH
2020 2019
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7 7T £ 3,500,000 78 7T 1 =
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 7 7T 2= 4,000,000 7 7T 1 1
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 7 7T 2 4,500,000 78 7T - 1
HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000 5,500,001 %8 7L & 6,000,000 7% 7T 1 1
3 3
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12. INCOME TAX 12. FR8HL
An analysis of the Group's income tax is as follows: REB T FEMSTIOT :
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FET
Current — Hong Kong BIER — &H
Charge for the year REEFRZ 20,631 27,166
Under-provision in prior years BEFERETR 1,185 3,279
21,816 30,445
Current — Mainland China BRER — FE A
Charge for the year REERY 646 90
Current — Elsewhere BUER — H b5
Charge for the year REEZRL 1,361 2,817
(Over)/under-provision in prior years BEFECRERE) BETR (11,854) 669
(10,493) 3,486
Deferred (note 37) EIE (FF5E37) 1,298 (9,955)
Total tax expense for the year NEEMIBRAZ BT 13,267 24,066
Notes: FiE
(@)  Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2019: @ ABNEBINRAFENEEBEEZ
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the filk 51 F& &R Bt & A LA 16.5% (20194 -
year, except for one subsidiary of the Group which is a qualifying entity 16.5%) TR - EAEE —RHREA
under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime effective from the year of AN - AR BRTE B2018/19:R %
assessment 2018/2019. The first HK$2,000,000 (2019: HK$2,000,000) of FEERERORBEFNEREREENET
the assessable profits of this subsidiary is taxed at 8.25% and the remaining BE o :%Bi /B /A 7 & 2,000,000 7T (2019
assessable profits are taxed at 16.5%. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere £F : 2,000,000 7T ) #) fE 2R B A iR
have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in 8.25% % 5 - 82 T FE 3R B i F Al 2
which the Group operates. 16.5% ST o mh H i b [ F& SR A s 1) 45

N2 BB REARELE 2 AEE
&2 RITHEFE -
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. A o=
12. INCOME TAX (continued) 12. FR8#H )

Notes: (continued) Mt : ()

(b) A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at the (b) HEEMEFTEZRTAENEATIE
statutory rates to the tax expense at the Group's effective tax rate is as B ERAEBERHERAE 2 HIERH
follows: T2 EERIAT ¢

2019
HK$'000
FET
Profit before tax [ B8 Al 34 113,940 165,161
Tax expense at the statutory tax rates A EFi R 2 Fi BRI 2 18,808 16.5 24,479 14.8
Profits and losses attributable to B &N A REE DR ES
joint ventures and associates 25 H K 518 (3.427) (3.0) (836) (0.5)
Income not subject to tax BAGT A (38,885) (34.1) (51,152) (31.0)
Expenses not deductible for tax NI d 53 31,639 27.8 12,739 7.8
(Over)/under-provision in BEFECBERE),
prior years, net BETRE  F8E (10,669) (9.4) 3,948 24
Tax losses not recognised RERZBIEEE 26,306 231 40,637 24.6
Tax losses utilised from previous A S AT HARE 2 BB B 18
periods (10,551) (9.3) (5,289) (3.2)
Others Efth 46 - (460) (0.3)
Tax expense at the Group's BARKEERHERAE
effective tax rate ZHIERS 13,267 11.6 24,066 14.6
13. DIVIDENDS 13. RE

2020 2019

HK$°000 HK$°000
FET TET

Interim — HK1.20 cents (2019: HK1.26 cents) #Hf — G Z@A% 1.20 7851

per ordinary share (20194 : 1.26781l) 22,159 23,479
Proposed final — HK0.40 cent EEAH — 8REER0.40 1L
(2019: HK0.84 cent) per ordinary share (20194 : 0.847%1L) 7,338 15,561
29,497 39,040
The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval of RNEE 2 BB AR EBFAARRE
the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general RIEERRBERS LIER - HRIE
meeting. g o
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2020F3 A31H

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 14. ZATIRREESREF

SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based on
the profit for the year attributable to shareholders of the Company
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the
calculation is (i) the weighted average number of ordinary shares in
issue during the year; less (ii) the weighted average number of
ordinary shares held under the share award scheme of the Company
during the year.

In respect of the financial year ended 31 March 2020, no adjustment
has been made to the basic earnings per share amount presented as
the share options of the Company outstanding during the financial
year had no diluting effect on the basic earnings per share amount
presented.

In respect of the financial year ended 31 March 2019, the calculation
of the diluted earnings per share amount is based on the profit for
the year attributable to shareholders of the Company, and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation
is the total of (i) the weighted average number of ordinary shares
used in the basic earnings per share calculation; and (ii) the weighted
average number of ordinary shares assumed to have been awarded
at no consideration on the deemed exercise of all rights of shares
granted under the Company’s share award scheme. The share
options of the Company outstanding during the financial year ended
31 March 2019 had no diluting effect on the basic earnings per share
amount presented.

BREXBNERIDHRBEARBRRE
HAFRGHNE - Mt BEMANTE
BIEFAHRONAFRERTIER
BANREF B R ) AFERBEAR
AR D EE Rt B4 A 2 B BN T 1T
o

HE2020F3831BIEHBEE » &
RARBR AT BREEREARITEZE
BEHBE 22 BREARAF©REIL &
BEYE  WMYERFEN 2 SRESR
BN EBEHEBEE L/ -

HE2019F3A31HILMHEE &
IREEE R F S B IRIBA R B R B
NEERMFTE - MrEARA 2 EBR
IEFEHE BT 285 : ()TEZR
EARRFEFTRHEBERINETIH : &
(i)REBREITEARR R ZIRD EZE) T
B TR 2B RN EFRFEERER
TEBRZIMETHE - B E20195F
3A31BLEMBEE - RAEEAKRITE
2R ESE 25 2 BREAKREF
SEHAEETE -
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14. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 14. X RFIBRRELERER

SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY (continued) (&)

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share amounts FREREESET S IRIEL T2
is based on the following data: BEE

Earnings 2%

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$°000
FH7 FBT

Profit for the year attributable to shareholders 7K/ &% B fE (5 7R 45 E 3% 7] -

of the Company, used in the basic and AR ESRERRE SR
diluted earnings per share calculation 101,432 136,648
Number of shares RGO A

2020 2019

Weighted average number of ordinary shares 784 & 2 317 & @ A% Nk T 15 24

in issue during the year less weighted WAEE NIRBR G0 ZEET 85 E

average number of ordinary shares held ZEBBRINEFIHE - BRFTE

under the share award scheme during FMREREF]

the year, used in the basic earnings per

share calculation 1,839,870,526 1,853,952,921

Effect of dilution of shares granted under RIER D BB EIIR 2 B 1D

the share award scheme CEERE
— weighted average number of ordinary — BRI E
shares - 1,869,239

Weighted average number of ordinary shares, 3@A%HIEFHE - BRTE
used in the diluted earnings per share FIEEEF
calculation 1,839,870,526 1,855,822,160
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. Y13 - BB R HRE

Furniture,
Land and Plantand fixtures and Motor
buildings machinery equipment vehicles Total
HH
THREF BERRE HERRE RE ot
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 FET FET FET FET FHET
(note (a))
(He(a))
At 31 March 2020 R2020%3A31H
At 1 April 2019 (restated): 201954 818 (BEY) :
Cost R 27,655 341,065 148,441 70,825 587,986
Accumulated depreciation ZHMERRE
and impairment (16,753) (197,636) (93,417) (44,193) (351,999)
Net carrying amount REFAE 10,902 143,429 55,024 26,632 235,987
Net carrying amount: AREHE
At 31 March 2019 R2019F3A31H 36,118 165,551 55,024 27,915 284,608
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 16 M E B I 755k 528
Z16RMTE 3.1 (25,216) (22,122) - (1,283) (48,621)
At 1 April 2019 (restated) 7201954 518 (L =51) 10,902 143,429 55,024 26,632 235,987
Acquisition of subsidiaries LhE1nEING 43 43,548 409 4,437 103 48,497
Additions NE - 47,154 2,438 64,129 113,721
Transfer from investment RIEEMEBEAN
properties 16 38,057 - - - 38,057
Transfer from right-of-use assets  {EBEEEZE A 17(a) - 15,157 - - 15,157
Depreciation provided during AEERFHEZINE
the year (1,508) (27,098) (15,419) (12,026) (56,051)
Disposals and write-off i R (1,005) (355) (138) (2,192) (3,690)
Deconsolidation of subsidiaries ~ EUEMIBARIAAAR  44(b) (40,911) (514) (4,606) (51,062) (97,093)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—HBAR 44(c) - - - (158) (158)
Deregistration of a subsidiary Bisa—EHEAR - - (15) - (15)
Exchange realignment BN AE (2,998) (21) (261) (35) (3.315)
At 31 March 2020 R2020F3A31H 46,085 178,161 41,460 25,391 291,097
At 31 March 2020: R2020F3A318 :
Cost AN 50,369 419,941 149,487 68,412 688,209
Accumulated depreciation ZFMERRE
and impairment (4,284) (241,780) (108,027) (43,021) (397,112)
Net carrying amount BREFEE 46,085 178,161 41,460 25,391 291,097
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

15. )% - B R XH @)

Furniture,
Land and Plant and fixtures and Motor
buildings machinery equipment vehicles Total
RARL
T RETF = e eSS AE X
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET AT FET AT AT
(note (a) (note (b)) (note (c)) (note (b))
(Fst (@) (Hit (Fat(c) (Bizt b))
At 31 March 2019 M2019F3A31H
At 1 April 2018: R2018F4H 18 :
Cost BA 70,692 344,977 128,836 70,999 615,504
Accumulated depreciation B ERRE
and impairment (33,480) (204,673) (69,885) (50,570) (358,608)
Net carrying amount IREFE 37,212 140,304 58,951 20,429 256,896
Net carrying amount; AREDFE -
At 1 April 2018 R2018F4R1H 37,212 140,304 58,951 20,429 256,896
Additions NE 880 51,054 20,185 16,364 88,483
Depreciation provided during ~ ANEENHEZ T E
the year (1,700) (24,483) (16,385) (6,648) (49,216)
Impairment recognised during N4 R EERR 2 Ri{E
the year (note (c)) (HtzE () - - (7,500) - (7,500)
Disposals and write-off & AR - (1,324) (208) (2,193) (3,725)
Exchange realignment R (274) - (19) 37) (330)
At 31 March 2019 R2019F3A31H 36,118 165,551 55,024 27,915 284,608
At 31 March 2019: R2019F3A318 :
Cost [B%N 71,286 384,565 148,441 72,254 676,546
Accumulated depreciation 2FTENRE
and impairment (35,168) (219,014) (93,417) (44,339) (391,938)
Net carrying amount REFE 36,118 165,551 55,024 27,915 284,608
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

16.

Notes:

(a)

At 31 March 2020, certain of the Group’s land and buildings with a then
net total carrying amount of HK$44,277,000 (2019: HK$8,749,000) were
pledged to secure general banking facilities granted to the Group (note
34(d)).

At 31 March 2019, the net carrying amounts of the Group’s property, plant
and equipment held under hire purchase contracts and finance leases
included in the total amounts of plant and machinery and motor vehicles
were HK$22,122,000 and HK$1,283,000, respectively.

The Group incurred operating losses for its assets leasing business, which
did not generate enough cash flows to cover the operating costs. In view of
this, an impairment assessment of the relevant property, plant and
equipment was performed by the Group based on a value in use calculation
using the discounted cash flow method and an impairment loss of
HK$7,500,000 was recognised against these assets during the year ended
31 March 2019, based on the results of the impairment assessment. The
discount rate used in the calculation was 10%. No additional impairment
loss was recognised against these assets during the current financial year as
these assets had been fully depreciated.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

15. )% - BN FH )

P E
(a)

MR202063 A31H » AEBEEEBEET
T RAEF - EABRE(EA44,277,000
7 70 (20194 : 8,749,000 7T ) * 1A
a:%z;ﬁ—ﬁ&ﬁ%mﬁzygwwzz
34(d)) °

201943 A31H » AEBDHAKES
BRI EZBEAZIBERE
EHRBMEMERAEME BRR
R BREFED 5 4&22,122,000 7T
%.1,283,00078 7T °

AEEREEENEERELEREH
B ZEKELANBESREL TR AME
REACERA - BERIL - REZE2019F
3A3MBLEFE  AEBERAMRRES
MEANENERAEBEESEEYE - %
BREEETREZTE - RBBRE
TEER RRSEERARESER
7,500,000 T c sTEATAZIEX B
10% ° RAMREE - RASEEDE
HITE  AEBEUVERRSEERRE
SNEREEE -

16. REWH

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$°000

FHETT FEIT

Carrying amount at beginning of year FHRMNEREEE 166,173 14,263
Acquisition of subsidiaries W B BT A 7 43 12,936 =
Additions NE - 102,011
Transfer from prepayments and deposits ~ FFE - 5R 18 & i & B - 34,068
Net gain from fair value adjustments NERE 2 Wa F 8 - 26,623
Transfer to property, plant and equipment B8 =¥ % - #2323 N 2845 15 (38,057) -
Transfer to right-of-use assets BHEFREEE 17(a) (125,017) -
Disposals = (b) (3,092) (10,782)
Deconsolidation of subsidiaries BUBEM B A al4Ra AR 44(b) (12,109) -
Exchange realignment bE 5, 8 B (834) (10)
Carrying amount at end of year FIRERIREE - 166,173
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Notes:

(a

(b)

(9

At 31 March 2019, the Group’s investment properties consisting of
residential properties in the UAE, industrial properties and car parking
spaces in Hong Kong are leased to third parties under operating leases,
further summary details of which are included in note 17 to the financial
statements.

At 31 March 2019, certain investment properties of the Group with a then
total carrying amount of HK$163,074,000 were pledged to secure certain
general banking facilities granted to the Group (note 34(d)).

During the year, the Group sold a residential unit in the UAE to an
independent third party for a total cash consideration of Emirati Dirham
(“AED") 1,450,000 (equivalent to HK$3,092,000) (2019: AED5,050,000
(equivalent to HK$10,782,000)). As a result of the transaction, these
residential units were derecognised and, with reference to the transaction
price, no fair value gain or loss was recognised in profit or loss on the
remeasurement of these residential units immediately before the completion
of the transaction during the current financial year (2019: fair value loss of
AED74,000 (equivalent to HK$158,000)). All sale proceeds were received
during the year. At 31 March 2020, the Group no longer has any
investment properties in the UAE.

At 31 March 2019, the Group's investment properties were remeasured
based on valuations performed by Knight Frank Petty Limited, independent
professional qualified valuers. Each year, the Group’s senior management
decides which external valuers to be appointed for the external valuations
of the Group’s investment properties. Selection criteria include market
knowledge, independence and whether professional standards are
maintained. The Group's senior management has on-going discussions with
the valuers on the valuation assumptions and valuation results during the
course of the valuation.

Fair value hierarchy disclosure

At 31 March 2019, other than a residential unit in the UAE which was
revalued with reference to its subsequent selling price of AED1,450,000
(equivalent to HK$3,092,000), fair value measurements of all of the Group’s
other investment properties were using significant unobservable inputs
(Level 3 as defined in HKFRS 13). During the financial year ended 31 March
2019, there were no transfers of fair value measurements between Level 1
(quoted prices in active markets) and Level 2 (significant observable inputs)
and there was a transfer of a residential unit in the UAE with a carrying
amount of HK$3,313,000 from Level 3 to Level 2.
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16. REWZ# @)

W

(a)

()

201963 A31 0 @ REEZIEYE
BIEMBENEEDE  NRBEBNL
EMERBNERBELCAHERTE=
J5 o EE— SRS M A 748

7201943 A31 A » 48RE(EA 163,074,000
BTN ERE TIREMECKIFIES
K%@Z;ﬁ&%?—ﬂ%&ﬁ%ﬂﬁZ%ﬁ(m
5 34(d)) °

AEEFA - AEEZREIE SN E 1,450,000
MEgmuB((aEuB])(HER
3,092,00058 7T) (20194 : 5,050,000 &L
33 (FBE 710,782,000 7T ) ) #5717 ] Btk
B —EFEEMNHET —EBLE=
F o At - A S EEBA D IEUHER -
WRERZSERE AP RFENERE
BR B AIEH T E%EEEEMNE
AR A ARS8 (20194 ¢
A F{EETHE 74,000 :E R4 (R E 72 158,000
BIL)) © T SHEMBHIEERAEER
UG ER » 72202043 A31 8 » ANE BT
PSR TR A IR

M2019F3 A31H  BREBUEXESE
AL ERMZE R EMITERAREITLZ
HE AEECEFTEEREYME -
AEESREEEBEFRTEEINER
BERIAE - LAREEIREMELETI
BEE - BEKRGBREMSAR By
MREEHEEEEL - NEHEBRRE
FoAREERREREE —HHGERM
HEBRSRGEESL 2 ERETHW®

NHEERNE

720193 318 -« Br— (ALK Eh
F = B i 2 H 1% §5 5 (8 1,450,000 38 £7
B (HEEF 3,092,000 T ) (EBRES] -
AEBEMBEMFE 2 A EAEER
BANABEHABE(E=4" T&
REBUBREEBEIZIR) HE
201943 A31 BIEMEREE - AFER
EF—ROERMSHE) HE_R(E
AABR@ASE) 2EYEERE M
fR 1 {8 /4 3,313,000 7 7T By — {2 B Bt 2§
FEBMNBEE=BREZE R -
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(@

(continued)
Fair value hierarchy disclosure (continued)
Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the key inputs to

the valuation of those completed investment properties which are within
Level 3 fair value measurement category:

Valuation techniques

fhER

Industrial properties in Hong Kong

16. IREW%E &)

MiaE : ()

(@

(%)
DPEEEREE(F)
ATREATEFEE=RTZERT

MREYEGEMBEERTREIER
ABBZBEE

Significant unobservable inputs

EXTABRAALE

BEBNIERE

Direct comparison approach Selling property unit rate (per square foot) HK$9,450
HELEDE HEYEENEB(BTHR) 9,450 7T
Car parking spaces in Hong Kong

BEKEN

Direct comparison approach Selling property unit rate (per unit) HK$2,200,000
HELESE HEYEENEE (BE) 2,200,000 7T

The valuations were arrived at by making reference to its development
potential according to its highest and best use or, by making reference to
comparable sales transactions as available in the relevant markets. In the
valuation under the direct comparison approach, the comparables are made
by reference to those of similar properties in the neighbourhood.

Industrial properties and car parking spaces in Hong Kong were valued
using the direct comparison approach, under which market price is one of
the key inputs, taking into account the time, location, and individual factors,
such as frontage and size, between the comparables and the property.

A significant increase in the market price used would result in a significant
increase in the fair value measurement of the investment properties, and
vice versa.

MEDKSERBERS RREREDN
BERENIE2ZEEHTSETNAE
HEHER S MEN - RIBERKLEOE
MEE AT ELBYEELZMAR
(CE/ES (hil

N BB TERNERBEMIRE E L]
EGE - B mEERATEEG AR
Z—  WEt R AT LB Rk ) K 2 B
- o R BB AN A R R -

P8 B 7545 (AR AR S8 M B A
EATVEHEAELH - R2IA -
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17. LEASES 17. HE

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 16) consisting of
residential properties in the UAE, industrial properties and car parking
spaces in Hong Kong under operating lease arrangements. The terms
of the leases generally require the tenants to pay security deposits.
Rental income recognised by the Group during the year was
HK$302,000 (2019: HK$73,000), details of which are included in
note 7 to the financial statements.

At 31 March 2020, there was no lease arrangement as lessor by the
Group (2019: Nil).

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease arrangements as a lessee for properties, plant
and machinery and motor vehicles used in its operations. Lump sum
payments were made upfront to acquire the leased land from the
owners with a lease period of 75 years each, and no ongoing
payments will be made under the terms of these land leases.

Leases of properties generally have lease terms between 1 and 5
years, while leases of plant and machinery and motor vehicles have
remaining lease terms of 1 year and 3 to 6 years, respectively.
Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and subleasing the
leased assets outside the Group.
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AEBEAEBEA
AEERBECEHETHEHBEEEED
¥ (MizE16) - BIEMESEEEE
URBBNTEMEREMN - HEERK
BEIKALPIMRES - AEERA
FENER 2B YA A 302,000 T
(20194 : 73,0008 L) + EFBHR
SRR LT o

M2020F3 8310 HIEKREEIEL
EHRAZEELHE (20194 « ) o

REBEREEA
AEEWERABN)BEEREKLED
ERZYME  #RRREARTEZH
L - EMFH—RMENFIAREEE
SHEL  BHSK/I5F  MRE
ZETHHE 2GR - B TEREEDY
ESCIENE-
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17. LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(a)

Right-of-use assets (applicable from 1 April 2019)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and
the movements during the financial year are as follows:

17. & »)

AEBIEAEEAE)
(a) FHEEE(H2019F4818#

BA)
7 o B PR BRI
FHBEENZ BHIT -

Leasehold Leased  Plant and Motor
land properties machinery vehicles Total
HELH HENE BERRE AE el
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET
At 1 April 2019 R2019F4 818 25,216 31,251 22,122 1,283 79,872
Acquisition of subsidiaries e =N 43 6,543 226 355 2,881 10,005
Additions RE - 39,989 - - 39,989
Transfer from investment RIBEMEBA
properties 16 125,017 - - - 125,017
Depreciation provided AFEERNTRZITE
during the year (3,677) (23,721) (2,280) (584) (30,262)
Impairment recognised KEENHRRE
during the year (ii) - (10,167) - - (10,167)
Transfer to property, BHEME K
plant and equipment WEG 15 - - (15,157) - (15,157)
Disposals HE (7.354) - - - (7.354)
Deconsolidation of subsidiaries EUEMIBA TGS AR 44(b) (6,129) (303) (310) (2,460) (9,202)
Exchange realignment I 3 AR (383) - (19) (155) (557)
At 31 March 2020 ®202063A31H 139,233 37,275 4,71 965 182,184
Notes: HfaE -

At 31 March 2020, certain of the Group’s leasehold land with a then
total net carrying amount of HK$122,032,000 were pledged to
secure general banking facilities granted to the Group (note 34(d)).

The Group incurred operating losses for its assets leasing business,
which did not generate enough cash flows to cover its operating
costs. In view of this, an impairment assessment of the relevant right-
of-use assets was performed by the Group based on a value in use
calculation using the discounted cash flow method and an
impairment loss of HK$10,167,000 was recognised against these
assets during the current financial year, based on the results of the
impairment assessment. The discount rate used in the calculation
was 10%.

202063 A31H » AEBEEEBEET
AETH - HAARMEFE/4122,032,000
BT (EAASRERE —RIBTREZ
PR (FI3E34()) °

NREEGEEERELERELRLE
B ZEBEENBRSREL TR AH
REHGERAN - BERI - AR BE
B ARERANRRESRERTEN
FREEYRBEREEEETREZ
Tl RBEBRENEER  ZEE
ERERREEE 510,167,000/ 7T ° &t
EFRAZIEER10% °
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17. LEASES (continued) 17. & »)
The Group as a lessee (continued) AEBEAEABAE)
(b) Lease liabilities (applicable from 1 April 2019) (b) HEEE(E2019F4818EBE
)
The carrying amount of the Group's lease liabilities and the AEBHEGBEZRABERAARN
movements during the financial year are as follows: MREERAZZEENT :
Notes HK$’000
Kzt FHET
At 1 April 2019 R2019F4 A1 H 38,431
Acquisition of subsidiaries 1)) 43 3,787
New leases & 57,303
Accretion of interest recognised AFENERZHABEE
during the year 1,901
Payments (NE= (32,471)
Deconsolidation of subsidiaries BT B A RliR A AR 44(b) (3.467)
Exchange realignment PE 5 7% (220)
At 31 March 2020 R2020F3 A31H 65,264
Portion classified as current liabilities NEARBAE LY (27,971)
Non-current portion FEmENEB D 37,293
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 50 HEBBEZRES TR EHRRER
to the financial statements. BiFES0 I FE -
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17. LEASES (continued) 17. HE »)
The Group as a lessee (continued) AEBERAEBAE)
(c) Other lease information (applicable from 1 April 2019) () HMEEER(BH2019F4818
HREA)
The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases REZRNERZEEHE SR
are as follows: R
2020
HK$°000
FET
Interest on lease liabilities HEABZHE 1,901
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEEZITE 30,262
Expense relating to short-term leases and ELAGHATE & M EA T AR 2020
other leases with remaining lease terms ended 3 A 31 Bz AlfE w2 Eftb
on or before 31 March 2020 HEBE RS GTAHERAR
(included in cost of sales and administrative expenses) THH) 118,349
Total amount recognised in profit or loss RIBR R 2 58 150,512
The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 42(c) to TSR ST BRI IS WwER W
the financial statements. FF42(c) 5 o
The Group has various lease contracts that have not yet AEEBEER THR2020F3 31 H
commenced as at 31 March 2020. The future lease payments MARFABRZHEESN - ZEDTT
for these non-cancellable lease contracts amounted to BEEES N ZAKRBERRE
HK$4,042,000, which are all due within one year. 4,042,000 (B K — F A F
H) o
(d) Operating lease commitments as at 31 March 2019 (d) 201943 A31H 2 KEHERIE
(applicable before 1 April 2019) (R2019F4 1B ZAIER)
The Group leased certain of its office properties under AEBEREBLEHELHHERAE
operating lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms ETHMAEME - SEFESRNT
ranging from one year to five years. F—FERF o
At 31 March 2019, the Group had total future minimum lease M20193 8318 "EERE
payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as TAIEECEHER B BE &K
follows: MEMNK - ZAHET
2019
HK$'000
FAT
Within one year —ER 23,023
In the second to fifth years, inclusive FERF(REERME) 17,686
Total HaE 40,709
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18. GOODWILL 18. B
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TFET
Cost and net carrying amount: PR R BRTEFHE -
At beginning of year REA] 45,994 47,561
Acquisition of subsidiaries g1 pNG| 43 8,634 —
Deconsolidation of subsidiaries BUBM B A mliRa AR 44(b) (6,857) =
Exchange realignment BEE 0, & (4,560) (1,567)
At end of year TAE 2R 43,211 45,994
Impairment testing of goodwill EERER
The carrying amount of the goodwill acquired through acquisition of FBRWE BB AT FENEEER
a subsidiary has been allocated to the relevant business unit of the BEEPRENEFHRZERE D ZHEBE
construction services segment of the Group for impairment testing. F&E BN AERE RIS, -
The recoverable amount of the relevant business unit in the BERESIEEEREAN A E S
construction services segment has been determined with reference to HEHREFHRSREREAFENEA
a value in use calculation using cash flow projections, which were BEEBT  Z:TEMEAELREEREH
based on a financial forecast approved by senior management T MR BRI E RS RETE
covering a two-year period. SAIEH o
Based on the results of the impairment testing of goodwill, in the BEEEREIRER 258 R
opinion of the Directors, no impairment provision is considered 2020 220193 310 WENE
necessary for the Group’s goodwill as at 31 March 2020 and 2019. TLANEE B P R s R R o
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18.

19.

GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)

The following describes each key assumption on which management
has based for the preparation of the cash flow projections to
undertake impairment testing of goodwill:

Budgeted gross margin

The basis used to determine the value assigned to the budgeted
gross margin is the average gross margin achieved in the year
immediately before the budget year, increased for expected efficiency
improvements, and expected market development.

Business environment
There have been no major changes in the existing political, legal and
economic conditions in Singapore.

Growth rate

The growth rate of 1.4% (2019: 2.5%) applied to the cash flow
projections is based on the average annual inflation rate in
Singapore.

Discount rate

The discount rate of 8.6% (2019: 10%) applied to the cash flow
projections is pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating to the building
construction and architectural consultancy business.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Notes

et

At 1 April 2018, 31 March 2019 7 2018F4H1H -
and 1 April 2019 20193 A31AK

20194 A1 H
Additions NE
Acquisition of subsidiaries g =YNG| 43
Deconsolidation of subsidiaries  BUBMIEB A GARE AR  44(b)
Exchange realignment T H B

HK$°000
FET

18. & (»)

EERERR &)
EEERREFERENANESRE
TERIPTER A S E AR R

HEERR

RNEEREEMNREENELESER
BEFEN —FAERNFHENEK
EIRE R IETT R IAAt s B Mg -

EBRR
SR A B
BEREH -

#RR
BemeTBBATERZ1.4% (20194 :
2.5%) #ERTERIINE FHFER

TER
HemERRAPTER 2 8.6% (20194 :
10%) ITiR X BRI A & R LA g
FREBNEEZAEBOEERR

19. B & &

Passenger

Software
application Total
BHER mE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FE T

service
licences

267,110 - 267,110
- 5,445 5,445
(267,110) (5,291) (272,401)
- (154) (154)

At 31 March 2020 7202043 A31H
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20. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

20. REERTZKRE

Notes

kS

2020
HK$000
FET

2019
HK$000
TATT

Investments in joint ventures, included RA&&RATZIRE
in non-current assets: STAERBEE :
Share of net assets EIEEEFRE 8,306 17,518
Due from joint ventures B E &R EIFIE (b) - 91,851
8,306 109,369
Loan to a joint venture m—REaE R REK (© - 313,993
8,306 423,362
Investment in a joint venture, classified A —RI&& QAT ZRE -
as a non-current asset held PERRBEEZ
for sale in current assets: BIEHE ZIERBEE
Share of net assets EIEEEFE 10,000 —
Due from a joint venture Y —REE &R RFIEA (b) 93,481 =
31 103,481 -
Total investments in joint ventures REERRZ BB 111,787 423,362
Notes: 5T
(@)  Particulars of the joint ventures as at 31 March 2020 are set out in note 53 @ A= AR 202063 A31H Z FH1EH
to the financial statements. B R R MIFE 53 o
(b)  These balances, in substance, form part of the net investments in joint by ZEHE Q?gtﬁﬁiﬁéé\%’&ﬁ}ﬁﬁﬁf
ventures and are not expected to be repaid within one year and hence they BE— ;D - KT8 BMraR—FNHE
are classified as non-current assets in the consolidated statement of financial & - Bl HRER S MBI R ZF' k)
position. There were no recent history of default and past due amounts for RIENBEE - RS B R A2 FUAR
the amounts due from joint ventures. At 31 March 2020 and 2019, the loss ITHYEER aEﬁ&@,ﬁﬂ%ﬁE ° 742020
allowance was assessed to be minimal. #£R2019%3 318 - EBEBEERTE
REM -
(©  The balance as at 31 March 2019 represented a shareholder’s loan (the (@ M2019F3A31 B 2 ERIEFMTE A
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“Shareholder’s Loan”) of HK$314 million advanced to a joint venture,
namely Dingway Investment Limited (“Dingway”), for a property
development project on certain parcels of land in the USA held by its
subsidiary. The Shareholder’s Loan was unsecured, interest-free and had no
fixed terms of repayment and had been classified as a debt instrument at
fair value through profit or loss.

On 5 March 2020, the Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with an independent third party for the disposal of the Group's entire equity
interest in Champ Prestige International Limited (“CPIL”, which is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Group and owns 45% equity interests in Dingway)
for a cash consideration of US$44,018,000 (equivalent to HK$341.1
million). The transaction was completed on 5 March 2020 and all the sale
proceeds were received during the year. Further details of the transaction
are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 5 March 2020.

RIFTEMERE T ERREER
mA—MEEARRERESRAR
(TREDBEMHBREER(REER])
314,000,000/7T - BREEFAEKA -
R EEBEETERE  YHBEARATF
B ABZHEFLIA -

M20204F3 50 - AEBBR B ERE
EREEREARAR ([EEREE] - &
AREEZ2ENBRARYNEERSE
A5% RHE) CFTBRER—EBLE=
FAVUEBEHZE Ba2REAR
44,018,000 3 7T ( 48 & # 341,100,000 7
JC) ° R 51202093 A5 B %K BERA
FENBREZHHEMERIE - 66
RGHZE—HHBHRRARRBEA
202063 A5 HZ A% ©
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20. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

()

Summarised financial information of joint ventures

During the year, Mega Champion Enterprises Limited and its subsidiary (the
“Mega Group”) (2019: the Mega Group and Dingway and its subsidiaries
(the “Dingway Group”)) are considered as material joint venture groups and
are accounted for using the equity method. The major assets of the Mega
Group and the Dingway Group are parcels of lands located at Prince Edward
Road West in Hong Kong and in Miami, the USA respectively, which are
held for property development.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information in
respect of the Mega Group and the Dingway Group, adjusted for any
differences in accounting policies and reconciled to the carrying amounts in
the financial statements:

Proportion of the Group’s ownership {GEAEBRAEENE DL

20. REERQTIZRE®)

i
)

2020
Mega

Group
Mega 58

50%

(&)
BEDRRZHMBEMEE

N4 E A © Mega Champion Enterprises
Limited & £ Kt B 2 7] ([Mega%k @ ])
(20194 : Mega &= B N R IE K B A
AI([RESE]D)HRATAEGEEE -
WIRFAREZEANLE - Mega B N R B &=
EHNEZEEDNAMREBATER
REBEEMZOREMERRE 2 it o

TR Mega £ B & 5 [& 5 B /9 B 7
BARBIE  ERgstECRNEREEE
AR LA K BAEF TS SRR AR (E TR -

2019 2019
Mega Dingway
Group® Group*
Mega & & © SELSE

50% 45%

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET FAT
Financial position BRI
Land held for property development FEMEERZ Tt - - 718,469
Properties under development RPYE 232,238 227,329 -
Cash and cash equivalents ReREReEHEER 705 319 8,773
Other current assets HibmehEE 49,715 52,300 33
Current assets MENE E 282,658 279,948 727,275
Current liabilities mEAE (264,200) (261,314) (757,728)
Net assets/(liabilities) BE,/ (BE)FE 18,458 18,634 (30,453)
Group's share of net assets AEBEEZEEZRE 10,000 10,000 =
Period from
10 July 2018
(date of
acquisition)
to 31 March
2019°
201847 A 10H
(WEEEH =
201943 A31H
HAfE 2
Financial performance BERIR
Revenue = - - -
Loss before tax BB A& 1S (176) (1,366) (714)
Loss for the year/period and REE HHEER R
total comprehensive loss NEEHE 2R B AR
for the year/period (176) (1,366) (714)
Group's share of results for the year/ NEEEEAFE HH
period and total comprehensive B RAFE
income for the year/period FE AR —* = -

DM A ERERER AR 201920 3k
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20. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

AEEDNTIZERE ®)
izt : (&)

20.

()

Summarised financial information of joint ventures (continued)

#

During the financial year ended 31 March 2019, the Group had used
the financial information of the Dingway Group as at 31 December
2018 and for the nine months then ended for its equity method of
accounting purposes, as the joint venture partner (which was
responsible for keeping the accounting records of the Dingway
Group) went into a voluntary liquidation and the financial
information of the Dingway Group for the year ended 31 March
2019 was not made available to the Group for the preparation of
these financial statements. Management is of the view that this
accounting treatment had no significant impact on its interest in and
share of results of the joint venture.

The Mega Group was acquired during the financial year ended
31 March 2019. The comparative information of the Mega Group
presented above is the post-acquisition results for the period from
10 July 2018 (the date of acquisition) to 31 March 2019.

During the year, the Group has discontinued sharing the losses of
the Mega Group because the share of its losses has exceeded the
Group's investment in it and the Group has no obligation to take up
further of its losses. At 31 March 2020, the amount of the Group’s
accumulated unrecognised share of the losses of the Mega Group
was HK$771,000 (2019: HK$683,000).

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group had discontinued
sharing the losses of the Dingway Group because the share of its
losses had exceeded the Group's investment in it and the Group had
no obligation to take up further of its losses. At 31 March 2019, the
amount of the Group’s accumulated unrecognised share of the
losses of the Dingway Group was HK$13,704,000.

The following table illustrates the financial information of a joint venture of
the Group that is not material:

(d)

BERAZHBEARE (&)

HZE2019F38318 It B &E
B AEEEREREAESA
HiRIESEBER20184F12 A 31
AREZEZALAAANSEE
BARR - THRE &SR (BER
GRESEMNSLE) AR5
B mREEEEZE201943 A
31 BIEFERNT B E R R
FTAREEUREZENERE -
EHERER ZETEEHER
AE AR 2R REEEE AR
CEBEWEEATE -

Mega £ ERE E201943A318
1F B B4 A MR o b ST
Mega &= B @) L 82 & KL & 52018
F7R108 (4 B H) £2019
F3A31 BHEMIRERES -

AEER - AEBE LIS (EMega
SEZEE  FRGHEIEEEA
AEBRE & BAEBWHEER
EAYEEAEE - 7202043 A 31
B AL BEE(GMega kB 5K
TR E5 B £ B8 B771,000% T
(20194 : 683,00077T) ©

HZE2019F3 831 BIEEFEE » K
SEERIESDHSESEZE
B AEGEBECBBNEE
REZHE BASEENEE &
EHAEE - K201953A318 -
AEBEGESESEERTRER
KBBS54 13,704,000 7T °

TRISIAEE—RIEEASBAT2H
HER

2020
HK$°000
FET
Share of the joint venture’s profit for the year EEEE AR 2 ANFE R 670 6,400
Share of the joint venture’s other L& &R T 2 ANFEEA 2 E RS
comprehensive income for the year 118 7
Share of the joint venture’s total BEEERRZAFEEE KB
comprehensive income for the year 788 6,407
Aggregate carrying amount of the AEBREGERA 2 RE  BREEE
Group's investment in the joint venture 8,306 7,518
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21. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

REERAZIRE -

Investments in associates:

21. REBEERF 2 RE

2020

Note
ftat

2019
HK$000
TAT

HK$°000
FET

Share of net assets IR EEFE 191,393 60,125
Due from associates JEUGES: &N R) 2 A ) 257,410 439,643
Total investments in associates REEE AR 2R EBE 448,803 499,768
Notes: P -
(@)  Particulars of the principal associates as at 31 March 2020 are set out in (@ BEXRHEDFN202063A3182
note 54 to the financial statements. BRI R KRMTEE 54 o
(b)  These balances, in substance, form part of the net investments in associates (b) EZ%%*@%E%TL%&H@%%QET&EE
and are not expected to be repaid within one year and hence they are B — - RIBMAER—FREER
classified as non-current assets in the consolidated statement of financial B - Bpdkr e MR & R D R 3E
position. There were no recent history of default and past due amounts for BNE FE o FEUCH & N F] 2 ORI AT
the amounts due from associates. At 31 March 2020 and 2019, the loss AR ¥ /R 52 8% &?@,ﬁﬂf‘f}(lﬁ ° E@ZPZOF&
allowance was assessed to be minimal. 2%)19@3 A318  BEEHEETEHAR
%/ °©
() Summarised financial information of associates (© HMERARPBEREE

The following entities are considered as material associates of the Group
and are accounted for using the equity method during the year:

(i) Top Spring Chun Wo Property Development Holdings Limited and its
subsidiary (the “TSCWPD Group”), the major asset of which is a
quality residential development project located at Waterloo Road, Ho
Man Tin in Hong Kong;

(i) Creative Profit Development Limited (“CPDL"), which was acquired
on 16 October 2018, owns a parcel of land located at Cameron
Road in Hong Kong;

(iii) Clover Peak Limited (“CPL"), which was acquired on
20 December 2019, indirectly owns 10% equity interest in an entity
which has a property development project located at 38 Lai Ping
Road, Sha Tin Town Lot No. 579, Sha Tin, N.T.; and

(iv)  Chun Wo Bus Services (BVI) Limited and its subsidiaries (the “Chun
Wo Bus Group”), which became an associate group of the Group
during the year (note 44(b)), owns 89 motor buses and passenger
service licences.

UNTEBBERAEENE KRB EA
A RAFEANRARRENE

()  HEREMVEERZRBERADA
KEKE AR ([ &MY
REE])  REXRBERUNE
BRXEBETEZEN —BEZE
EEREIAR :

(i) M 20184E10 A 16 B Y& &9 &l 7
BERAERAA(TAFRRE]) - H
BENNESS S MEZ I

@iy 20194 12 A 20 B 4 EEH Clover
Peak Limited ([CPL]) - H R % #%
EREBBZ10%ME ZER
HHMR AP EM RS 579
SREBITIE 38|z MEERIER ¢
P54

vy RAFEAKALSEERESEE
(Ff7£44(0)) # Chun Wo Bus Services
(BVI) Limited & EFI /8 A =] ([&F0
BEr&E])  H#EFIWMELR
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21. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 21. RBERT 2 RE®)
Notes: (continued) Mt : ()
(a) Summarised financial information of associates (continued) () Bt N T IS E R E (42)
The following tables illustrate the summarised financial information in TREFREENYEZRRER - AlF)
respect of the TSCWPD Group, CPDL, CPL and the Chun Wo Bus Group BERE - CPLREMETSE (e BeR
adjusted for any differences in accounting policies and reconciled to the HMEMNZE2C/EEAR) NI BEER
carrying amount in the financial statements: SN BB TSR AR BREE R SRR AT -

2020 2020
TSCWPD Chun Wo
Bus Group®

Proportion of the Group's EREERERNEA L
ownership 40% 40% 20% 20% 40% 60%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEn ; FET
Financial position BN
Motor buses and passenger sevice B+ R RESLE
licences - - - - - 318,084
Other non-current assets HinJpmgaE 7,722 - - - 278,200 316
Properties under development EEPIE 1321512 1,227,511 717,887 674,317 - -
Equity investment at fair value through & AF(Ext A B3 2 RARE
profit or loss - - - - 191,289 -
Cash and cash equivalents ReRER S FEEAR 23,036 33,897 14,191 13,571 323 4,348
Other current assets HErBEE 72 229 83,087 406 6 23,123
Current assets TEEE 1,344,620 1,261,637 815,165 688,294 191,618 27,471
Current liabilities nea R (1,400,782)  (1,273,638)  (505,842) (392,861) (228)  (329,204)
Non-current liabilities FRBERE - - (319,701) (302,696) (320,900) -
Net (liabilities)/assets (BfE)/EESE (48,440) (12,001) (10,378) (7,263) 148,690 16,667
Group's share of net assets of AEBEEHEAR
the associates BEF -* —* —* —* 59,476 10,000

Period from  Period from
16 October 20 December
2018 2019

(date of (date of
acquisition)  acquisition)
to 31 March ~ to 31 March

2019 2020 2019 2020
20184 20195

10A168 128201

(kFERE)ZE (WBRM)ZE

20194 20205

33184 3831048

Financial performance BBRE

Revenue (k3] - - - _ _ _

(Loss)/profit before tax and B AT (E1R) S Rk

(loss)/profit for the year/period RNEE /B (E8R) /%7 (36,152) (12,002) (2,164) (8,218) 26,762 -

Group's share of (loss)/profit for REEEIEREE /HiE

the year/period (B1#8),/ %55 -* (158)* -* —* 10,705 -

g On 23 August 2019, the Group entered into a sale and purchase g MR2019F 8 A23H + & & & £ Wwell
agreement with Well Perfection Limited (a connected person as Perfection Limited (BZA £ (E#E R L
defined under the Listing Rules and owned as to 45% each by Mr. MR RE —ERE RFEMLE
Pang Yat Ting, Dominic and Madam Li Wai Hang, Christina), BEGA5% e )R] M B B ped 0 UL -
pursuant to which the Group agreed to acquire a 40% equity A [F) B A B3R 5 A8 119,911,000
interest in CPL together with the shareholders loan owed by CPL to 78 T UK BB CPL 2 40% P 53 [R) CPLR {3
the connected person at a total cash consideration of BEALZBRRER - XFM2019F
HK$119,911,000. The transaction was completed on 20 December 12H20R %M/ it EXRFWRET]
2019 and hence comparative information in respect of the financial HRBZE2019F3 831 H LB FE
year ended 31 March 2019 was not presented in the table above. RILLECE R o Pt CPLE IS E R A
The financial information of CPL presented above is the post- 820194 12 A 20 A (4rf8 B ) = 2020
acquisition results for the period from 20 December 2019 (date of F3A31 HMENBBERES - XF5H
acquisition) to 31 March 2020. Further details of the transaction are E—FFHBEARIEHNAARBEIA2019
set out in the Company’s announcement and circular dated 23 F8H23HMANEK2019F 11 A28H
August 2019 and 28 November 2019, respectively. R o
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21. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(©) Summarised financial information of associates (continued)

21. REEE N B2 RE (#)

MiaE : ()
@ BEARAFBEARE(E)

A

The Chun Wo Bus Group became an associate group during the year
and hence comparative information in respect of the financial year
ended 31 March 2019 was not presented in the table above.

The Group has discontinued sharing further losses of the TSCWPD
Group and CPDL because the share of their losses has exceeded the
Group's investments in them and the Group has no obligation to
take up further of their losses. The amounts of the Group's
accumulated unrecognised share of the losses of the TSCWPD Group
and CPDL as at 31 March 2020 was HK$19,103,000 (2019:
HK$4,642,000) and HK$2,076,000 (2019: HK$1,644,000),
respectively.

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information of the
Group's associates that are not individually material:

& BB L EBRREER A E
£ B ERFPIRZIER
HE201943 A31 BItHBEE
B BB HL -

o AEEBRIEDERSENDE
EREBRAFNBERZE—TE
B AEGEBECBBANEE
RERE B RSB &S T&RE
HithE548 - 7202063 5318 -
AEBRERSENDEERSE
B & AT R 2 AR EE
S5 A419,103,000/87T(2019
£ 1 4,642,000 7T) } 2,076,000
#70(20194F © 1,644,000/87T) °

TRBIIAEE 2 @R EABEAT
2 EREBTAR

2020 2019
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
Share of the associates’ comprehensive EEBEATEEKESRES -
income or loss:
Profit/(loss) for the year REFEFMN,(EE) 7,603 (1,174)
Other comprehensive loss for the year AFEEEMEEER (895) (209)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year REE2EWZ(Ei8) 258 6,708 (1,383)
Share of the associates’ assets and liabilities: EEHEATNEEREE
Non-current assets EmENEE 109,252 43,484
Current assets REVEE 88,129 17,365
Current liabilities mEAE (54,108) (724)
Non-current liabilities FERBBE (21,356) =
121,917 60,125
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22. LAND HELD FOR PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

22. HEERE2 L

The Group’s land held for property development is leasehold land or
land use rights acquired by the Group for future property
development for sale. An analysis of the Group’s land held for
property development by geographical area as at the end of the

AEBRFENERR 2 TN EER
ARRMEHREFHEREMERZHE
THR L HERE - BEREMREAE
B REY R R 2 THIRERMR D AT

reporting period is as follows:

™

— ﬁ Asia Allied Infrastructure Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019/20

2020 2019

HK$'000 HK$'000

FE T FET

Hong Kong B 35,162 34,486
Mainland China ==l E7NvNps) - 259,609
The UAE Pl Bt 28 235,480 238,470
270,642 532,565

Portion classified as current assets DEAERBEE Y (35,162) (294,095)
Non-current portion ERENE S 235,480 238,470

The directors expected that the development of the land in the UAE
would be completed beyond the operating cycle of the property
development business, and hence it is classified as a non-current
asset.

The development of the Group’s other land held for property
development is expected to be completed within normal operating
cycle and hence they are classified as current assets. The expected
timing of recovery of these assets as at the end of the reporting
period is more than one year.

EEEY NMBE M BERERY
ERREG 2 EEBHNRTK - Bt
HENBRIERDEE -

REBHEMERE Y K L HRTE
BN E R @B TR - B
SEBRPEE - NREHH - HEE
7= 2 T A 1B R BB — 4
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23. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT AND
HELD FOR SALE

The Group's properties under development as at 31 March 2020
represented a comprehensive commercial development project in
Mainland China, which is expected to be completed within normal
operating cycle and hence is classified as a current asset. The expected
timing of recovery of these assets as at the end of the reporting period is
more than one year.

24.

The Group's properties held for sale are residential properties and car
parking spaces in Mainland China.

CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES
(a) Contract assets

23

24,

CBRPRESEHEEWRE

R2020F 3 A31HZAKEEEHRY
¥ EATBRRLREREEREER
HEFEFHRIEREEBBRET - At
WAARDEE - RREHR  ILE
B 7 TBHL O R A — 1 o

AEBFEEHEMRIG RN T EAH
MIEEY R REBAL -

BHNEEREGNARE

(a) EWEE

31 March 31 March 1 April
2020 2019 2018
2020 F 20194 20184
3A31H 3A31H 4818
Notes HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
MtaE FET FET FEIT
Unbilled revenue RETHE 7N () 2,802,411 2,195,863 1,764,086
Retention receivables JE R E & (ii) 531,333 557,046 539,234
3,333,744 2,752,909 2,303,320
Notes: fifsE -

(ii)

Unbilled revenue is initially recognised for revenue earned from the
provision of construction work as the receipt of consideration is
conditional on successful completion of construction. Upon
completion of construction and acceptance by the customer, the
amounts recognised as unbilled revenue are reclassified to trade
receivables.

Retention receivables arise from the Group’s construction work
business and are held by contract customers in order to provide the
customers with assurance that the Group will complete its
obligations satisfactorily under the contracts, rather than to provide
financing to the customers. They are in general settled within a
period ranging from one year to three years after the completion of
the construction work, as stipulated in the construction contracts.

) REREZWSTIIRERE
TI2RTERER 2 e FE SR+ R IR
RABELARKT) SRR T2 R 61 = 7
TRREKRRERPBRIE - R
RABRBZRE SHEKE
MOREE HEEHKA

BHEPRAZEERRESVE
EAEAEEEETRER  #
NAEFREAREGRESH
WmE AR - T IERR
PR#HRE - REZETREALH
FRE  —RNBERTRERTR
NF—F2=FREN -

(ii)
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24. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES (continued)

(a) Contract assets (continued)
Notes: (continued)

2. EREBEREGHNEE®)

() BHEE®)
B - (48)

(i)~ The expected timing of recovery or settlement of contract assets as (i) MMEHKR AHEE TR
at the end of the reporting period is as follows: Bl ek)E BRI T :
2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within one year —FA 1,228,037 889,783
More than one year e 2,105,707 1,863,126
3,333,744 2,752,909
The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for expected AEBEREEMBREER
credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of the 58 955 AT E 9 i 4k 75 V% L TR AR
lifetime expected loss provisions, for all contract assets. The Group EEBEELRE  BET AR
has assessed the impairment of its contract assets on an individual BE KA = 2 B TR B & 18
basis based on the internal credit rating and ageing of these balances - AREERBEADEETR
which, in the opinion of the Directors, had no significant increase in RZEEHOREEENSHE
credit risk during the year. ECL is estimated based on historical EREETHE  MEERANR
observed default rates over the expected life of debtors and are FENEERBRI EEZIEN -
adjusted for forward-looking information that is available without BHEEEBDERER A MG
undue cost or effort. Considering the good credit history of debtors, FHANE BT B RISRAORME
no ECL provision was made for contract assets as at 31 March 2020 B UWHERBEKAKSE N
and 2019. AESRRTIE A BT -
ZEINEBANRFEELRE -
%2020 201963 A318 -
WARRENEEELEREEE
B -
(b) Contract liabilities (b) EHEE
Details of contract liabilities are as follows: BRBEFBENOT

31 March 31 March 1 April
2020 2019 PAONES]
2020 20194 20184F
3HA31H 3A31H 4H81H
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Advances from customers for REBFPRERETIR
construction work ZETR 33,105 33,685 =
Customers’ deposits for HEMEZEPRE
sale of properties - 220 299,716
33,105 33,905 299,716
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25. TRADE RECEIVABLES

B 2R FIR

Trade receivables

25. EZ EWRFRIE

2020 2019
HK$'000

HK$°000
FET TH#ET

951,828 983,990

Notes:

(@) The Group generally allows a credit period of not exceeding 60 days to its
customers. Interim applications for progress payments on construction
contracts are normally submitted on a monthly basis and are normally
settled within one month.

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the potential
customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by customer. Limits and
scoring attributed to customers are reviewed periodically. The majority of
the Group’s trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired relate
to customers that have good credit quality with reference to the respective
settlement history.

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the reporting
period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

AEE—RAEFTFEETER60RZ
EEH - BHEZEA NP HEEMNK
R —RIR ARKEN—EAREHE

REREFFHETL A - AEER T GEE
EREPHEEEERREFPAEEER
H-BPEREMBRERFIAGENRR
B - RIBAARAEE LR - REBEAD
I %380 B SRl (B R0 B 5 R IGRIR S B AL
BRIEFEEEENEFAM -

RNBEHR ERBERAH B F R
RIERFRER DT FIH AT

2020
HK$°000
FET
Within 1 month —fEARN 733,517 788,550
1 to 2 months —Z=f{E A 80,575 92,052
2 to 3 months MZE=18A 25,677 33,362
Over 3 months =@EAMNE 112,059 70,026
951,828 983,990

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for expected credit
losses prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of the lifetime expected
loss provision for all trade receivables. The Group has assessed the
impairment of its trade receivables on an individual basis based on internal
credit rating and ageing of these balances which, in the opinion of the
Directors, have no significant increase in credit risk during the year. ECL is
estimated based on historical observed default rates over the expected life
of debtors and are adjusted for forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort. Considering the good credit history of
debtors, no ECL provision was made for trade receivables as at 31 March
2020 and 2019.

(b) Included in the trade receivables of the Group as at 31 March 2020 and
2019 are amounts of HK$46,695,000 and HK$61,328,000 due from other
partners of joint operations, respectively.

NEBMEABSMIEHRELERE KA
RER BT AR B EEBBED R
% BEFAMEESRKGIBERE
B EREE - ASEEREBEANIE
BB RZEEHORREERNE S E
WRIBR BT S - MESRARE
EAEERRIEEELN - BHEE
EERDERNEBEAGFTFEHRNBAL
RESENRGEE  YREFTBZHARN
NE AR EB R EEREITHA
B ZRIBBANRTEELTS  ©
2020} 201943 A31H ' ARE S
FEMWFIEIEL AR B S 1R -

FTAREER2020F & 201943 A31H
MEZEBFIEFRIAE &K 2 Hib
% 1) 3R IE 5 5l 546,695,000 JT &
61,328,000/ 7T °
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26. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 26. ERIE - RERHEME
RECEIVABLES WRIE
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FHEIT
Prepayments SEENE 23,061 18,406
Deposits and other debtors & R H b eI BRIA 124,024 252,991
Investment deposit and partial —IHEBHBEBR S8
consideration paid for a rescinded B ERS RIBHRE
acquisition transaction (a) 74,000 148,000
Loan receivables FEWE X (b) 281,950 150,577
Consideration receivable FEIRR (B 7.463 103,092
Due from joint ventures fEUR A & AR Z 5K (© 6,799 9,017
Due from associates JE U B 2 R B 2 OB (© 370,793 -
Due from a fellow subsidiary of other — FEUL —[E1& &8 2 7& E B2 1
partner of a joint operation 2 RRMB AR 238 (© 12,521 -
Due from other partners of FEW & & 15 Eqth R 2 5RIE
joint operations (c) 25,493 19,776
Due from non-controlling equity holders &L b B8 2 7] 3E 1% A% A% 1
of subsidiaries BAEAZRIE (© 15,204 12,314
941,308 714,173
Impairment allowance BB R (@) (63,436) (59,873)
877,872 654,300
Portion classified as current assets DERRBEEZED (877,872) (598,726)
Non-current portion IERENE - 55,574
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26. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes:

(a)

The amount was an investment deposit and partial consideration paid in
connection with the acquisition of the entire issued share capital of CCCC
Development Limited (the “Target Company”).

On 4 November 2015, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement (the “Original Agreement”) with China Chengjian Investment
Limited (the “Vendor”), pursuant to which the Group conditionally agreed
to acquire and the Vendor conditionally agreed to sell the entire issued
share capital of the Target Company at a cash consideration of HK$660
million (the “Acquisition”). At the material time, the Target Company held
50% equity interest in each of the two PRC construction companies, namely
kSN TR BEBARAR (“CCCC Fourth”) and FEE+=T72
BBEMRAR ("CCCC Thirteenth”). The Target Company and the two
construction companies were principally engaged in municipal construction,
building construction, and construction of build-transfer, build-operate-
transfer, public-private partnership projects, property development and
investment in the PRC. An investment deposit and partial consideration
(collectively, the “Deposit”) of HK$198 million in total was paid to the
Vendor at the original completion date of the Acquisition.

The Acquisition was subsequently rescinded on 31 March 2017 pursuant to
a supplemental agreement (the “Supplemental Agreement”) which was
entered into between the Group and the Vendor on 25 August 2016, and
was approved at the Company’s special general meeting on 31 October
2016. In accordance with the Supplemental Agreement, the Vendor shall
refund the Deposit to the Group and the Group was entitled to take steps
to protect its interest, including selling the shares of the Target Company in
part or in whole to a third party and claiming any shortfall, loss or damages
directly against the Vendor and its shareholder (as guarantor in the
Acquisition) should the Vendor fail to fulfil its obligations to repay the
Deposit to the Group. Further details of the Supplemental Agreement are
set out in the Company’s announcement and circular dated 25 August
2016 and 30 September 2016, respectively.

The Group was able to recoup HK$50 million as part of the refund of the
Deposit, but the larger portion of the Deposit, being HK$148 million (the
“Qutstanding Amount”), remained unpaid as at 31 March 2019, despite
the Group's repeated efforts to pursue the Vendor for refund.

During the current financial year, on 19 June 2019, for the purpose of
recovering the Outstanding Amount, the Group entered into two
conditional sale and purchase agreements (the “Sale Agreement(s)”) with
an independent third party (the “Buyer”). In one of the Sale Agreements,
the Group agreed to sell to the Buyer the shares of a subsidiary of the
Company which holds the equity interest in CCCC Thirteenth for a total
consideration of HK$74 million. The transaction was completed and the
consideration was fully settled during the year.

In the second Sale Agreement, the Group agreed to sell the shares of the
Target Company to the Buyer for a maximum consideration of HK$74
million. If the Group is not able to procure the equity interest in CCCC
Fourth to be placed under a subsidiary of the Target Company within two
years from 19 June 2019, the consideration will be reduced to HK$22.2
million.

(a

26. ENRIE - e RHEME

WFRIE &)
BYEE -

ZeEARBBERERTEREERAF
(TEBRAAE) 22 8B BT+
W—RRBERERBHIRE -

R2015%11 B4 8 » ANEEEPEHRE
BEBRAR(ERF DI —HEER
#(FRpE] - Bt NEEBB KGR
ZE O MEAERGRELEBEA
RZ2PEBRTRA BHERESR
660,000,000 T ([WEEIE]) - i -
BEERARBAMBRBEEERR - 55l
APHEENTREREBRAR AR (F
HEFNIREB]) RFHES =11
BERAR([FHWEE+=T2R])F
B2 50% &1 - B2 AR RZmEER
AREERFREREMBER BFE
£ RUAEE — B HE— EE —
B RIEEHEERS MEEERR
BE - BEESRHFIRE (GBA R
% |) 51 198,000,000/8 T B R U g =
B2 RRERBRAIMNTFES -

BIEAEBEEE 5 R2016F8 A25H
ST EEARRRR2016F10A31H
BAOZBRRERNRS ERIEZ —HTE
aE (Rl  WESEEEER
20173 A31HE M - RERTWH
HBHARERSTASE®E  UERE
EhREBTHAASEERRENE
TR - RSB A RS EE i LAR IR H 4
= BEBEEZEARNISREIBRN
PEFE=H TEERESREBRR
(EAEKBEEENERA) RBEMNE
- BANEE - BEMABENE—
SHEBORER AR R B A2016F
8H25B WA 4% 201649 A30H /Y
K o

7N £ B gE Yk [31 50,000,000 58 TTIE BiE &
ZEMERR - REASEBFELZES
NRBEFBAER  HRE 28T MH
(B1148,000,000/7T) ([ REZESE])
720194 3 A 31 BINARMAR T LA A -

RAFBFEEA - K2019F6 4198 -
HUREREECENS  AEEHE—F
BYE=7 (BRI B G
ERBEERZE(HEBZE] - REHP—
MEEHZE  AEEREMEFHER
AR —EKHEBAR(HEEZAEFRMES
T=IRBZBRE) 2i’RD BREAR
74,000,000 7T ° RHERAEE AT
B - BRECEBEEN -

REZMDHEERZ  ~A5ERZERAES
HEBEEARZED aaREA
74,000,000 7T ° fi AN & E 2019 4F
6 A 19 AT Z MERN KRR BB
FENIRRZREGEBEREARIZ—ME
MEBARZET EREKSRLE
22,200,000 7T °
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26. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(a)

(@)

(d)

— ﬁ Asia Allied Infrastructure Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019/20

(continued)

In prior financial year, after taking into account the Sale Agreements and
the possible reduction in consideration in the second Sale Agreement as
mentioned above and the costs incurred to execute the actions and
agreements, the Directors are of the view that a total of HK$54.8 million
was not expected to be recoverable out of the Outstanding Amount and
hence an impairment loss against this amount was recognised in profit or
loss during the year ended 31 March 2019 (note (d)). There is no change to
this impairment assessment during the current financial year and HK$2.3
million of such impairment provision was written off as uncollectible during
the current financial year.

The loan receivables, which are loans provided to some independent third
parties, bear interest at rates ranging from 8% to 24% per annum (2019:
8% to 19% per annum) and are repayable within 1 year. The loan
receivables are secured by (i) certain trade payables owed by the Group to
the business partners; or (ii) shipping vessels and properties held by
borrowers.

The Company has assessed the impairment of its loans receivables on an
individual basis based on internal credit rating and ageing of these balances.
ECL is estimated based on historical observed default rates of debtors and
are adjusted for forward-looking information that is available without undue
cost or effort. During the year, an impairment loss of HK$5,877,000 against
the loan receivables was recognised in profit or loss.

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. At
31 March 2020 and 2019, the loss allowance was assessed to be minimal.

The movement in the loss allowance for impairment of other receivables is
as follows:

26. ENRIE - e RHEME

EICENE )
sk : (&)

(a

(&)

RE—BREE  CEREERER L
ME—GHEERBAUIEEEZRER
Lo UERABTZITB RREmMEEZ
R - EBERAESE $£54,800,000%8 T2
KEEZESBEBEHAIKE - HAtZe58
REZE2019F3A31 B IEFEARE
HAERBRERE (M) o RAE
BREER - R EF G EZS) - B
78 R (B 1 #8 7 2 2,300,000 T B R 2
B B TS S A AT IR B 3RE

FERER T ARE TEYE=HRERN
BN BFEENT8%E24% (20194 -
BE8% E19%) K F| KT 8 RAN—
FRNEE - ZEREFTANOAEELER
EBRHZIHMNE S EMAIE : i) fE
TR Z MM RYIEEER o

AABERIBATEE TR RZEEH
RO AR B0 3 HL 7B U B SRR (B 3 1T (@ BIET
- MHEEEENERESANBRE
BRAMSENRGE  UHERTBEZK
ANk 2% ) Bl A 1S Y BT BE 4 B RHE T
BRAFEE  BRERZRERE
5,877,000 0 E R 18 N FER ©
ZEFBAERA  RERERERE
2o R20204 201943 A31H ' /B
BREHWTEREM -

HA U SRRE R IR BB EE I T

2020 2019

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

At beginning of year REH) 59,873 5,073
Impairment loss recognised (notes (a) and (b)) B R E B8 (Fi 5 (@) & (b)) 5,877 54,800
Amount written off as uncollectible (note (a)) W AR AU | 2 & 58 (i (a)) (2,314) -
At end of year RER 63,436 59,873

In addition to the impairment of the Outstanding Amount as further
detailed in note (a) above, allowance for impairment of other receivables
was also made against certain individually advance payments with an
aggregate amount of HK$5,073,000 (2019: HK$5,073,000) in relation to
development costs of property development projects. The Directors believe
that the recoverability of these receivables was in doubt as these amounts
have been outstanding for a number of years and accordingly allowance
had been made for the full amounts of these advance payments in prior
years.

BR ST B (a) #E — 2l O R EE S 88
ZRHES) - BRSO RE R B T3
ERRIABRBKAZE T EREMK
B4 %E5,073,000%7T(20194F : 5,073,000
) e - AR % SR KFRE K IE
REF - HEEHZS R A @ 1K
5 B ENBEFE2BERBEMRK
I8 o
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27.

28.

29.

PROMISSORY NOTES

On 9 May 2019, the Group subscribed promissory notes issued by a
shareholder of the Company with a total principal amount of
HK$180 million. The promissory notes are unsecured, bear interest at
an effective rate of 8% per annum (after taking into account the
entitlement to an arrangement fee) and have a term of 364 days.
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, on 7 May 2020, the
promissory notes were fully redeemed by the issuer.

Further details of the promissory notes are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 9 May 2019.

EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Equity investments at fair value through profit or loss of the Group as
at 31 March 2020 and 2019 were equity investments listed outside
Hong Kong, which were classified as held for trading and stated at
fair value determined based on their quoted market prices (Level 1
fair value measurement).

27.

28.

AREE

M2019F 598 * REBREHAR
A HARERBETZ2ASREAR
180,000,000 8 702 3 5 22 4% o HREAN
ZBRAEER  REBRFNEZ%FE
(B RAIZELHEEBZERN)  BH
364K REEBHKRE  BITAER
20204F 5 A 7 ABEE R A K 2K -

BEANEZE B ZHBENARARH
BRA2019F5 A9HZ A »

BAHERARRZRARE

R2020F 201943 A31H ' A&EE
BAFEFABERATE BB BR
SNETIRAIRE - HoBABEEEI
RERMZmMEETNATE(BE —
BAFETZE) VIR -

RESTRICTED CASH AND PLEDGED DEPOSITS 29. ZRFIREREEFER

IEHERIZRHIRE

Restricted cash for issuance of

2020 2019
HK$°000

THEIT

HK$°000
FET

guarantees (@) 2,637 6,318
Pledged deposits for general T—ARIBITELE 2 B EER

banking facilities (b) 7,677 19,831
Restricted cash and pledged deposits 2[R #IIR & K EE TR 10,314 26,149
Notes: FiE

(@) In respect of the sale of the properties held for sale in the PRC, the Group
entered into agreements with certain banks in the PRC to arrange mortgage
loans to eligible purchasers of the Group’s properties held for sale and
pursuant to which, the Group is required to place at designated bank
accounts certain amounts as guarantee deposits for potential default in
repayment of mortgage loans advanced to property purchasers. Such
guarantee deposits will be released after the property ownership certificates
of the relevant properties have been passed to the banks. At 31 March
2020, such guarantee deposits amounted to RMB2,413,000 (equivalent to
HK$2,637,000) (2019: RMB5,402,000 (equivalent to HK$6,318,000)).

(b) The pledged deposits have been placed in designated banks as part of the
security given to secure general banking facilities granted to the Group (note
34(d)).

@ HRPEBEREMEZEENS &N
SEEF RS TRITEI LB ARE
EREHENEZ A ERERTHIER
ER Bl AEBAEETETEO
BTALTHE  (EAMEERA AL
REZFEERN ZIZBEREZ ERT
Ho ZERRTERERBEDEZME
FTE B D ERIRITRER ° R 2020F
3A3IB EHERGEREARKE
2,413,000 7T ( 48 & 72,637,000/ JT )
(20194 : AR #5,402,0007¢ (HER
6,318,000/87T)) °

(b) EBEEBERFHRIETERT  EAER
REE—RIRITEERE 2 3o R (BT
5F34(d)) °
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30. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

31.

— E Asia Allied Infrastructure Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019/20

Cash and bank balances other than

30 Re B S EHIEH

2020 2019
HK$°000

TH#ET

HK$°000
FET

e RIRTTEH(TEREEHFR)

time deposits 776,493 1,113,039
Time deposits FHEAFR 368,645 742,966
Total cash and bank balances Ne RIRITAR AT 1,145,138 1,856,005
Less: Restricted cash and B ZRHIIRE R EERER

pledged deposits (note 29) (Mg 29) (10,314) (26,149)
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkHERSEEIHEF 1,134,824 1,829,856

Notes:

(a) At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances of the
Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to HK$182,798,000
(2019: HK$278,370,000), of which HK$182,546,000 (2019:
HK$276,710,000) in total was deposited at banks in Mainland China. The
RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under the
PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group
is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

(b) Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit
rates. Time deposits are made for varying periods of between 7 days and 3
months depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and
earn interest at the respective short term time deposit rates. The bank
balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of
default.

NON-CURRENT ASSET CLASSIFIED AS HELD
FOR SALE

On 13 March 2020, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with the joint venture partner of a joint venture for the
disposal of the Group's entire 50% equity interest in the Mega
Group (a joint venture group) through disposal of a subsidiary, for a
total cash consideration of HK$116,900,000.

Deposit of HK$11,690,000 in total had been paid by the purchaser
as at 31 March 2020. The Group’s investment in the Mega Group is
classified as a non-current asset held for sale as at 31 March 2020.
Further details of the transaction are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 13 March 2020.

3. &

MIaE

@ RIBEHR ZEEUAARBTAR
BDAEzZRERERTERR
182,798,000 7L(20194F : 278,370,000

BT ) B 4T A 182,546,000 T
(20194F : 276,710,000 7T ) E 7 U R

R A2 SR1T o ARBTEES B H iR
BREALERE - AT - REB(REARLRN
BN B IR AR 01 ) R K A5 B - 5 R AT
BEMAT)  AEEAFERERELEEN
MRS 2 SRITIS AR SRt EH -

b) RAUBSESBRITERMEFEZZ
B EREAE - RERNEEERES
R EHERZEFRANFIRES
8 A% - %A BE 5 B E B E kR =
BRELF B o SRITAERRTHTE B R 3T A 48
E%"]Eﬂﬁiz/ﬁs%%ﬁﬂﬁ ®

PRERBEHEZER
ﬁ?‘

MR2020F3 13 H  AEEHE—HA

BRAEZREBHII LD EE W -
FRLE-—RHNBAREEREER
Mega KB (—HEZKE) A 50% 2

f&#E - 4238 £ (& A116,900,00078 7T °

EHER2020F3 A31 B fHze& A4
11,690,000/ 7T ° #A2020F3 A31H °

REBR Mega B 2 IRE DB BIFE
HEZIERBDEE - BARH 2 E—T
FEHNAAFHEA202063 H13H

Z/\ﬁt °
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32. TRADE PAYABLES

32. EZENRIEA

2020 2019
HK$'000

T#ET

HK$°000
FET

Trade payables other than B S REMNRIA
retention payables (FEHMRE S BRIN) (a) 1,215,459 1,240,777
Retention payables FERE S (b) 594,265 599,415
1,809,724 1,840,192
Notes: ftsE -

(a) The Group's trade payables (other than retention payables) are non-interest
bearing and are normally settled on 30-day terms.

An ageing analysis of the Group's trade payables (other than retention
payables) as at the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is

AEEZE S RMNFR(ENRE SR
SN R BB E L 30 REIBUEE -

RIMEHR - AEE 2 & 5 ENFAE
NREERIN ABRZEARRELESE

as follows: ZIRER DT E AT
2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Within 1 month —@EAR 609,415 798,297
1 to 2 months —ZMEA 191,662 111,700
2 to 3 months MZE=1&H 82,510 59,626
Over 3 months =@EAMNE 331,872 271,154
1,215,459 1,240,777

(b) Retention payables held by the Group arose from the Group’s construction
services business and are settled to subcontractors within a period ranging
from one year to three years after the completion of the contract work by
the subcontractors, as stipulated in the subcontracting contracts.

(b)

AEBEFRAFARNRESIESBAE
B ZEERBEY  ARESBTRES
HFTIRE MO BETKAAMZETIE
BNF—FE=FARDIELHEN -

BERSHKR  AEERNRESHE

The due date for settlement of the Group's retention payables as at the end

of the reporting period was analysed as follows: HELMHOT -
2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHEIT
Due within one year —F R 459,999 424,223
Due after one year —FE 134,266 175,192
594,265 599,415

DM A ERERER AR 201920 3k
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33. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 33. Hith e+ FRIE R FERH R
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FEIT
Accruals FERTIE 423,869 673,877
Deposits received EE e 9,631 9,670
Deposit received for sale of a non-current gtH & — B EHE 2
asset held for sale ERBEECEREZRE 31 11,690 =
Other liabilities HiaEd 91,473 83,523
Deferred income B A (@) - 4,323
Consideration payable for the acquisition ~— UseiE —FEM/E AR 2
of a subsidiary JERRIE - 11,827
Consideration payables for the acquisition U EEE: 2 N 7] 2
of associates FERTRAE 7,175 1,516
Client money received incidental to the DL L R% HE B 1R AR 75 U ER
provision of facility management services 7 & F FUIA 26,698 5,213
Due to associates FESH & A B 2 FRIR (b) 16,556 12,436
Due to other partners of joint operations & A& & E A H B 2 FIE (b) 74,709 49,836
Due to a fellow subsidiary of JEN—EE &G EMBH
another partner of a joint operation A ES =N ek S (b) - 896
Due to non-controlling equity holders JE AR BB X A B SR A A e
of subsidiaries BB AZKRIE (b) 6,446 38,482
668,247 891,599
Notes: FiE
(@  The deferred income represented payments from two parties as @@ IETERABERMEALZHIE R
consideration for the Group to provide them with guarantees to indemnify AEEGAEEZMEA TSI RONER
them any losses and liabilities that they may incur in connection with certain ETERIRAEELENTMBLIEE
construction works of the Group in which the two parties have involvement. EREREEROKE - BIRGIERE
The payments received were accounted for as guarantee income and Rz ABRIER A B AR IR ST
recognised in profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the respective BRATEETRAMNERABER

remaining construction periods of the relevant construction works.

(b)  The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. (b) FHFAREER - RS RRRERER -
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34. BANK BORROWINGS 34. RITHER
2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHETT FEIT
Bank borrowings comprise: RITIERBLE (@), (b)
Trust receipt loans, secured SRREE R - BT 12,076 -
Trust receipt loans, unsecured SRR E R - EIEE 154,815 -
Bank loans, secured RITEN - HHEA 364,825 313,314
Bank loans, unsecured RITER - EIEH 2,355,839 2,468,450
2,887,555 2,781,764
Less: Unamortised ancillary costs B ERITERTHEE 2
incurred in connection with the RS E B IR
arrangement of bank loans (34,350) (27,618)
Total bank borrowings RITE KA 2,853,205 2,754,146
Analysed into: AT
Repayable on demand BIREREE (© 1,623,277 526,427
Within one year —ER 343 532,155
In the second to fifth years, inclusive ~ £ _-ZERF (BIEERME) 1,226,741 1,694,197
Beyond five years RFAE 2,844 1,367
Total bank borrowings IRITIE SRAEEE 2,853,205 2,754,146
Portion classified as current liabilities D #EAREIBEZ D (1,623,620)  (1,058,582)
Non-current portion FEMENEL 5 1,229,585 1,695,564
Notes: FizE
(a) Except for certain bank loans of approximately HK$10,116,000 (2019: (a) [%:#910,116,00078 (20194 : 5,338,000
HK$5,338,000) which are denominated in Singapore dollars (“SG$"), the BIT) 2B TIRITEFRAF I o ([ 57
Group'’s bank borrowings are denominated in HK$. T ) EHESN - AEE 2 RITEHA
VAP TTETE o
(b)  The trust receipt loans of the Group as at 31 March 2020 carried interest at (b) AEEM2020F3A318 2= %E
floating rates ranging from one-month Hong Kong Inter-bank Offered Rate EFRZBFET S - FRENF—E
("HIBOR") plus 1.4% to 1.7% per annum. AEABRTRAERE ([ BBRITRZER
BDM14%ZE1.7% °
The bank loans of the Group denominated in HK$ and SG$ carry interest at AEBE LS TT R INE Tt ERRITE
floating rates ranging from one-month HIBOR plus 1.25% to 2.5% (2019: A RIRZB KB - FRENF—
one-month HIBOR plus 1.25% to 2.5%) per annum and at fixed rates of 8 A EBRITRZERFEM1.25% £2.5%
2.98% (2019: 2.43%) and floating rate of Singapore Interbank Offered (20194 : — & B BB RITRZEH 20
Rates (“SIBOR") plus 2% (2019: Nil) per annum, respectively. 1.25% £ 2.5%) kIR EEF R L - F

FZ= 52.98% (20194 : 2.43%) N 4 7
RIZZENF RN BT RER S ([57
IR ITRIEAR B |) MN2% (20194 -
)R -
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34. BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(@

(d)

— E Asia Allied Infrastructure Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019/20

At 31 March 2020, the Group did not comply with a financial covenant of a
syndicated bank loan with a principal amount of HK$864 million and hence
the bank borrowing was classified as a current liability and grouped into the
“Repayable on demand” category in the bank borrowings repayment
analysis disclosed above. The terms of the bank loan with which a financial
covenant was not be complied has been revised on 12 May 2020 and, to
the best knowledge of the Directors, the Group has since then been able to
comply with all financial undertakings in connection with the Group’s bank
borrowings.

The expected repayment dates of the Group’s bank borrowings that contain
a repayment on demand clause, with reference to schedules of repayments
set out in the term loan agreements, are as follows:

34. tRITEK &)
fizE : (&)

(@

2020463 A31H » AEBARELESTA
% % %8 4 864,000,00078 7T 2 — H IR B
BRI BERE - BERITERELER
MEBEWR EXRE 2 RITEREER
AMTHBRER [BREREERE] - REE
FRZUBENZ ZBRTERERER
202045 A 12 BE(SE] © RIBESZE
Ao RNEBBUIAE —EEMETAE
BERTTIE R BB 2 FTE M 578 ©

SEERERBRMBEFEREER - A

EEOAARBERMEE B 2 BITEK
ZHEEERAMMT

2019

HK$°000

FAT

Within one year —F AR 1,604,262 523,626
In the second year LT 7,015 2,801
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FEERF(BEEEMF) 12,000 =
1,623,277 526,427

At the end of the reporting period, the following assets were pledged to
secure the banking facilities granted to the Group:

(d)

RB|EHR - BEEMRUATEE - ERAE
SEERITRVE 2 JEIR

2020

HK$°000

FHET
Property, plant and equipment WIEE - HEEE N GRIE 15(a) 44,277 8,749
Investment properties REYHE 16(a) - 163,074
Right-of-use assets FEREEE 17(a) 122,032 =
Bank deposits RITER 29(b) 7.677 19,831
173,986 191,654

At 31 March 2020, certain of the Group’s bank borrowings in the total
amount of HK$10,116,000 (2019: HK$5,338,000) were guaranteed by the
non-controlling equity holders of a subsidiary.

R2020F3 A31H  AEBEBEAS
10,116,00078 75 (20194F : 5,338,000 7T)
2 & TRITIE R — MM B A 7 2 IEE
MRt i A AFELR o
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35. HIRE PURCHASE CONTRACT AND FINANCE 35 MBS R mESHESE~

LEASE PAYABLES MIE

The Group purchases and leases certain of its plant and machinery AEBRBHESASBERELHE
and motor vehicles for its construction services business under hire ENHEEEERGESR 2L THER
purchase or finance lease arrangements. These hire purchase BB AE c ZEHBEA YO REENES
contracts and leases were classified as finance leases prior to HKFRS B & R B 5 1658 702019464 A1 H
16 becoming effective on 1 April 2019 and had remaining instalment ERBIDBEARERE - T H AR
periods or lease terms ranging from four months to five years. These BN FUE A Z R F - REAEF
balances have been reclassified as lease liabilities since 1 April 2019 BT MEERFE 1651 2S5 EH%
upon the adoption of HKFRS 16. H2019F 41 BRREWENHE AR

E8E-

At 31 March 2019, the total future minimum lease payments under M2019%F3 A31H BEHEBAHR
hire purchase contracts and finance leases and their present values MERE HERZEHAEMNRATENE
were as follows: WREMAN :

Present
value of
Minimum minimum
lease lease
payments payments
=EEE
=EEERNFK NRBE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Amounts payable: FERTFIE
Within one year —F R 5,872 5,742
In the second year E_F 802 764
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FZNF(BREEEMF) 723 674
Total minimum lease payments =REENHERE 7,397 7,180
Future finance charges HiEmEER (217)
Total net hire purchase contract MBS FELREHEREN
and finance lease payables SRIAABER 7,180
Portion classified as current liabilities DEARBAB Y (5,742)
Non-current portion FEMENEB D 1,438
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36. PROVISION FOR CONSTRUCTION WORKS 36. R TR ZBE

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FE&T
At beginning of year REA] 133,128 112,627
Additional provision RAANBEAES 100,913 105,663
Amounts utilised during the year FRCHELE (74,703) (77,144)
Reversal of unutilised amounts O RBHEHE (29,015) (8,018)
At end of year NER 130,323 133,128
The Group recognises provision for construction works when the EEBRESNBAR TR T 2K
unavoidable costs of meeting the performance obligations under the REBBIRBEES W TR G E
construction contracts exceed the economic benefits expected to be Mk NEEHREET R CBE -
received. The amount of provision is estimated based on contract BESERBTHRAENKARERZRE
costs to completion and contract claims. The estimation basis is HE - REBFERGEFTER - WE
reviewed on an ongoing basis and revised where appropriate. HEBRTEREE -
37. DEFERRED TAX 37. EEFIE
Net deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised in the consolidated RERa MR R ER ZIEEHIEE E
statement of financial position are as follows: REe@EFmmT
2020 2019
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FA&T
Deferred tax assets BRI A E 891 897
Deferred tax liabilities REFRIBA & (3.469) (2,176)
(2,578) (1,279)
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37. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 37. EEBIH ()
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) and their REERN BEEHBEBEE (BE) 28
movements during the year are as follows: KE D REEBHINT -

Attributable to
3
Other
Accelerated deductible  Net deferred
tax temporary tax assets/

depreciation differences (liabilities)

BB E

Htams EE(8F)

MERERE BEBR - ORMES BH

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
izt AT AT TFHET FHET

At 1 April 2018 20184 A 1H (23,854) 12,666 3,861 (7,327)
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to AEFENERA/ (GNRR)

profit or loss during the year BRI 12 3,862 7,654 (1,561) 9,955
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBRA] 44(a) - - (3,908) (3,908)
Exchange realignment B SR = - 1 1

At 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2019 % 2019F3A31B K

20194 A1H (19,992) 20,320 (1,607) (1,279)

Deferred tax credited/(charged) to AEFRBZEA/(FR)
profit or loss during the year ZIEERIA 12 (693) 14 (619) (1,298)
Acquisition of subsidiaries W BEHT B A ] 43 - - (803) (803)
Deconsolidation of subsidiaries BUEMTB A R&ZA AR 44(b) - - 785 785
Exchange realignment [ 5 % - - 17 17
At 31 March 2020 M20203 831 H (20,685) 20,334 (2,227) (2,578)

DMBAERERAIR AR 201920535 LY
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37. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Notes:

(@) At 31 March 2020, deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect
of unused tax losses of HK$455,920,000 (2019: HK$456,442,000) as they
have been arisen in the Company, certain subsidiaries and joint operations
that have been loss-making for some time and it is not assured that taxable
profits will be available against which such tax losses can be utilised.
HK$4,765,000 (2019: HK$3,035,000) of these unused tax losses arose in
Mainland China and will expire in one to five years.

(b)  Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax is
levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign
investment enterprises established in the PRC. A lower withholding tax rate
may be applied if there is a tax treaty between the PRC and the jurisdiction
of the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5% or 10%.
The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed
by those subsidiaries established in the PRC.

At 31 March 2020, no deferred tax has been recognised for withholding
taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings that are subject to
withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries established in the PRC (2019:
Nil). In the opinion of the Directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries
will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable future. The aggregate
amount of temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
in the PRC for which deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised
totalled HK$198,000 (2019: HK$50,000) as at 31 March 2020.

() There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of
dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

Asia Allied Infrastructure Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019/20

37.

ELEBIE #)

P E
(a)

(b)

()

MR202063 A31H - ERASEHRE
JE518455,920,000787T(20194F : 456,442,000
B ERECERIEEE  RAHELR
ARR - ETHBRRARALER
HER—CEHBEAFESE BEX
EEHEANSAKEEARESEY
JiE SR i 3 A » 4,765,000 7T (2019 4F -
3,035,000/ ) Z KRB IEE BT E
4 BFREAI R —ZERENER

REPEDEMEHE  RPBEKIZ
SVE B ERINEIRE BB IRAE AR
10% FEFNHE = fisf o B S5 A S B 4 A
ZAEREBEI ARISIEL - RIAHERIE
EMB R - RAKETN S - EHAB
E5%H10% ° Ak - NEBE AR
HBIARS 2 ZE KB R E k2 S
SRTEFNRL ©

K2020F3 318 @ ERAEBERF
B A 37 2 BT B A ] 2 ok B T 2 R (7B K
MBI ) 2 A FENR ERIE TR 8
(20194 : &) - EER A - ZSHEBQ
AR KATBE R AT B AR R 7k B B2 F
MR2020F3 A31H @ BIEERP RS
ARIE AL EEEAE (L ER I ER
IRIEFR A A1) 5198,00078 7T (20194 ¢
50,000787T) °

ARRMBREE (RS ERFAEBRE -
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38. SHARE CAPITAL 38. R
(a) Shares (a) Bt?
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FET
Authorised: JERE
5,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 5,000,000,000 fi%
HK$0.1 each SFREMEO0.1 BTy iR 500,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRERE
1,838,325,847 (2019: 1,863,391,847) 1,838,325,847 i
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each (20194 : 1,863,391,847 %)
BREEC.1 BT @R 183,833 186,339
A summary of the movements in the Company’s issued share RELZE 2020 % 2019563 A31H
capital and share premium account during the financial years IEHEREE - NARE BITRA
ended 31 March 2020 and 2019 is as follows: MG RER EFEHENT
Number of
ordinary Share
shares Issued premium
in issue capital account Total
B8{T
TZEREE ERTRE  RORER k]
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$000
F&T FET FAEIT
At 1 April 2018 K2018F4H1H 1,875,533,847 187,553 780,529 968,082
Cancellation of BB EARG ()
repurchased shares (note) (12,142,000) (1,214) (7,355) (8,569)
At 31 March 2019 and M20196F3 A31H K
1 April 2019 20194 A1H 1,863,391,847 186,339 773,174 959,513
Cancellation of EEEE EE ARG, (FEE)
repurchased shares (note) (25,066,000) (2,506) (13,103) (15,609)
At 31 March 2020 M 2020F3 A31H 1,838,325,847 183,833 760,071 943,904
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38. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 38. A (=
(a) Shares (continued) (a) B &)

Note: During the year, the Company repurchased 25,066,000 (2019: Mzt : REER - ARAABLKELD
12,142,000) ordinary shares in total on the Stock Exchange at an 15,609,000/ 7T (20194F : 8,569,000
aggregate consideration of approximately HK$15,609,000 (2019: BT ) B A2 A BE [ & ££. 25,066,000
HK$8,569,000) and all these shares were subsequently cancelled on f% (20194 : 12,142,000 i% ) & i@
or before the year end date. The premium of approximately [ BFTEZEROEZRER
HK$13,103,000 (2019: HK$7,355,000) paid over the nominal value FREASZAGEE - BOzE
on the repurchases of these shares was debited to the share P& 19 B S 1~ 2 8 38 BR T (B A9 %
premium account. The repurchases were effected by the Directors {8 #913,103,0007% JT(2019%F :
with a view to benefiting the shareholders as a whole by enhancing 7,355,000 7T ) & R AR 17 4 (B BR
the Company’s net asset value and earnings per share. Details of the PG BAERHRESET
repurchases are summarised as follows: EREEBESANTEEFENL

BRAFBSRRERTE - B
Bl BB T
Year ended 31 March 2020 BE2020F3A31ALFEE
Number of Purchase price

ordinary paid per sh:re Aggregate
shares SREABEMR consideration
Month of repurchases repurchased Highest Lowest paid
2EE 21t
igmE A 4 ZEREE BE &K BN E
HK$ HK$ HK$°000
BT BT FHET
June 2019 201946 A 392,000 0.60 0.59 232
July 2019 201947 A 2,112,000 0.60 0.57 1,241
August 2019 201948 A 10,626,000 0.62 0.56 6,292
September 2019 201949 A 2,616,000 0.68 0.59 1,663
October 2019 20194 10 A 962,000 0.84 0.69 737
December 2019 20194 12 A 280,000 0.70 0.69 194
January 2020 202041 A 1,236,000 0.70 0.68 856
February 2020 202092 A 1,314,000 0.65 0.63 843
March 2020 202043 A 5,528,000 0.67 0.62 3,551
25,066,000 15,609

Year ended 31 March 2019 HZ2019F3A31BILEE

Nuilsar 6 Purchase price

ordinary paid per shire Aggregate
shares REEEE consideration
Month of repurchases repurchased Highest Lowest paid
B[ [=EN]
80 519 TmARER &= §=3i &
HK$ HK$ HK$'000

,7\’#7% fEi >
July 2018 201847 A 1,672,000 0.77 0.71 1,226
September 2018 201849 A 774,000 0.78 0.74 583
October 2018 20184 10 A 9,696,000 0.73 0.65 6,760
12,142,000 8,569

(b) Shares held under a share award scheme (b) RIBRDEREEHTEHRS

Details of the Company’s restricted share award scheme and AR AR Bl AR ) 2B 5t &l K AR

the shares held under the scheme are included in note 39 to Bt ERE 2R 2 BE R

the financial statements. B R MIFE39 ©
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38. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 38. A (=)

(c) Share options
Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the share
options issued under the scheme are included in note 40 to the
financial statements.

39. SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Board approved the adoption of a restricted share award scheme
(the “Share Award Scheme”) with effect from 1 August 2017 (the
“Adoption Date”). The purposes of the Share Award Scheme are to
encourage and retain the selected participants (the “Selected
Participant(s)”), including directors of the Company, to work with the
Company and to provide incentives for them to achieve performance
goals with a view to achieving the objectives of increasing the value
of the Company and aligning the interests of the Selected Participants
directly to the shareholders of the Company through ownership of
shares of the Company. Unless otherwise early terminated by the
resolution of the Board, the Share Award Scheme is valid and
effective for a period of 10 years from the Adoption Date.

The Share Award Scheme is operated through a trustee which is
independent of the Group. The shares to be awarded under the
Share Award Scheme will be acquired by the trustee from the open
market after the notification and instruction by the Company. The
trustee shall not hold more than 10% of the total number of issued
shares of the Company.

The movements of the Company’s share awards granted under the
Share Award Scheme during the financial years ended 31 March
2020 and 2019 are as follows:

39.

Outstanding

Average
fair value
per share

Exercise

Vesting date price

Date of grant

as at
1 April
2018

R20185F

SBTY
AP
HKS
#n

it B A
(note (a))
(K& (a)

2/8/2017 2/8/2018 0.83 0.57

4A1H
fe RAT

21,532,000

(c) iBhRAE
AN R BB AR AT B AR IR AT B 3
T2 BB FBENMERE
B340 ©

iz 15 2% B ot 2l

EE RO IERNZ RSG5 RE TS
(MRt 22EhETEl]) - B§2017F8 A 1H
([ERA A ER]) BB o ZRR (D 2B 5T &
NREEHEMEEEESHEE ([EE
28% |)(BEARAES) FBRAR
A WK FREZEDRRBENZ
By - ABHRIENARREBERSETER
EEF =B BER AR R RMDEZEER
NEREFZ—BNEEZE - BRIEEER
RERRENKLE - BRIRMDEEEE S
PR B EARRET 10 R BRI A U AE R o

IRt RN BB R — R BT N AL EH
ZEEAEE o RIERR K HEFT SR H A
&1 R ZFEARKEN AR R @A N I8
TEBARTS LA o XFEAFFR
DENBBAFEARNNREEITRMBE
Z10% °

AARRIERE 220204 KX 201943
A31B Y BFER KRG EEE
WM EE) 2 BT

Number of share awards

ROZBHAE

Outstanding

asat

31 March 2019,

1 April 2019 and

31 March 2020
R201943H318
2019F4818R
202063 A31H

8 RATE

Exercised
during
the year

Lapsed
during
the year

KEER KEER
e P

(note (b))

(KizE (b))

(9,378,0000  (12,154,000) =
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39. SHARE AWARD SCHEME (continued)

The movements of the Company’s shares held under the Share
Award Scheme account during the financial years ended 31 March
2020 and 2019 are as follows:

39. R RENETEl(2)
HE2020F K% 20193 A31 HIEBEK
FE - AARBIERDERERE T
BEZRGZEEHT

Number of
ordinary shares
held under
share award
scheme account

RER AR E

RETFRFEZ
ZEREE S8
HK$'000
F#ET
At 1 April 2018 M2018%4 A1 8 21,830,000 18,197
Exercise of share awards (note (b)) 1TER D 228 (Pt 5% (b)) (9,378,000) (7,554)

At 31 March 2019, 1 April 2019 and R20194F3A31H 20194
31 March 2020 4818 K2020%F3831H 12,452,000 10,643
Notes: =

(@) During the financial year ended 31 March 2018, an aggregate of
30,896,000 share awards were granted to the Selected Participants, who
were employees of the Group, pursuant to the grant on 2 August 2017
under the Share Award Scheme. None of the grantees was a director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder of the Company, or an associate (as
defined under the Listing Rules) of any of them. An aggregate of
22,590,000 share awards granted were accepted by the grantees.

Subject to the acceptance of the grantees and that the grantee remain as
eligible person on the vesting date of the Share Award Scheme, the share
awards shall vest in them on 2 August 2018, at which time the awarded
shares will be transferred to the grantees at a consideration of HK$0.57 per
awards share.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group amortised the difference
between the fair value of the share awards and the consideration that
employees have to pay to the Company over the vesting period and
recognised a share award expense of HK$1,381,000 in profit or loss.

(b) During the year ended 31 March 2019, 9,378,000 share awards were
exercised by the Selected Participants at a total consideration of
HK$5,346,000 during the year ended 31 March 2019.

HZE2018F3 831 HILBMKEE - 4%
30,896,000 AR A% 17 SEEN AR #5 5% AR 17 52 E)
HEITR2017F8 2B ZREERTF
ABAEERBZERTELESE  BEAR
ABBARRNES  ERTRABK
FERRFTMABEEZHEA(EER
EWAA] - T 24 22,590,000 f%
%15 S8 B 2 JE AR AR ©

FEESR N M N AR AR 2B T 2
SFEABRMASERAL  BIRRMDIER
1518 2018F 8 A2 HBRBHS « B - 12E)
B& 17 1% 12 R (B T AR 22 B AR 19 0.57 % 7T
BT ERA o

HE201943A31HILEE  AEEH
B&1p B2 E A FEEE B AR A A Rl T
MREZENEEREBIREN I
HRIB 5 W HER1,381,0007% T & % 15 82
BRI -

#HZE 201943 A31H L4 E + 9,378,000
A BS D BB A &L = 201943 A31 B &
EAHETLHEENFE BREAR
5,346,000 T °
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40. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 40. BB AERT S

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 3 September 2012, the
Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) for the primary purpose of providing eligible personnel
with the opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in the Company,
which will encourage the grantees of such options to work towards
enhancing the value of the Company and its shares for the benefit of
the Company and its shareholders as a whole. The Board will set out
in the offer the terms on which the option is to be granted. Such
terms may include (i) minimum performance targets that must be
reached before the option can be exercised in whole or in part; and/
or (i) such other terms (including the vesting period) as may be
imposed at the discretion of the Board either on a case-by-case basis
or generally.

The overall limit on the number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Share Option Scheme and other share option schemes of
the Company (if any) must not exceed 30% of the ordinary shares in
issue from time to time (the “Share Option Scheme Limit”). No
options will be granted under the Share Option Scheme at any time
if such grant will result in the Share Option Scheme Limit being
exceeded.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and all other
share option schemes of the Company (if any) shall not exceed 10%
of the ordinary shares in issue as at the date of approval of the Share
Option Scheme (the “Share Option Scheme Mandate Limit”), subject
to the refreshment of the Share Option Scheme Mandate Limit.
Options which have lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme or any other share option schemes of the Company
shall not be counted for the purpose of calculating the Share Option
Scheme Mandate Limit.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted to any eligible personnel (including both
exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month period must not
exceed 1% of the shares in issue without prior approval from the
shareholders. An offer of the options shall be deemed to have been
accepted by way of consideration of HK$1 payable by the eligible
personnel within 30 days from the date of offer.
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= AQREEM—IEERERTE (5
RiEETE]D) - TZEMEAGERSH
ATIREBAAQNREEEZES - I
SRR AR AE < AR AL S TAEARRA A
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40. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) . BRERE )

Where any grant of options to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director, or any of their respective
associates, would result in the shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of all options already granted and to be granted (including
options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such person in the
12-month period up to and including the date of grant (i)
representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the shares in issue; and (ii)
having an aggregate value, based on the closing price of the shares
as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange
on the relevant date of grant, in excess of HK$5 million, such further
grant of options must be approved by the shareholders.

The subscription price shall be such price determined by the Board in
its absolute discretion and will be notified to the eligible personnel in
the offer and shall be no less than the highest of:

(i)  the closing price of a share as stated in the daily quotations
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant;

(i)  the average of the closing prices of a share as stated in the
daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the 5
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(i) the nominal value of a share on the date of grant.

The Share Option Scheme is valid and effective for a period of 10
years commencing on the adoption date of 3 September 2012.
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40. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 40. BBRAET 8 )
Details of the movements in share options granted under the Share BIEERET 2R BRESE S
Option Scheme are as follows: N
Year ended 31 March 2020 BIE2020F3A31HILLFE
Number of share options
BREXE
Exercise  Outstanding Lapsed  Outstanding
price per as at during as at
Category of eligible participants Date of grant Exercisable period option 1 April 2019 the year 31 March 2020
R2019% R2020%
sHlRE 4818 AEE 35318
RERSEE 2B RAAM g WA BAM HARITE
HKS$
A
Executive directors 51212017 5/12/2018-4/12/2021 1.02 3,060,000 - 3,060,000
HiES 5/12/2019-4/1212021 1.02 3,060,000 - 3,060,000
5/12/2020-4/12/2021 1.02 4,080,000 - 4,080,000
Independent non-executive directors 51212017 512/2018-4/12/2021 1.02 540,000 - 540,000
BUHTES 5/1212019-4/122021 1.02 540,000 - 540,000
5/12/2020-4/12/2021 1.02 720,000 - 720,000
Employees 51212017 512/2018-4/12/2021 1.02 5,610,000 (468,000) 5,142,000
€8 5/12/2019-4/12/2021 1.02 5,610,000 (468,000) 5,142,000
5/12/2020-4/12/2021 1.02 7,480,000 (624,000) 6,856,000

30,700,000 (1,560,000) 29,140,000

Number of options exercisable at RBERRA6E BRERR

the end of the reporting period 17,484,000
Weighted average exercise METATERE

price (HKS per share) (BL(ER)) 1.02 1.02 1.02
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40. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 40. BRI #EsHE @)
Year ended 31 March 2019 BZE201943A31HLLFE
Number of share options
BREHE
Exercise  Outstanding lapsed  Outstanding
price per as at during asat
Category of eligible participants Date of grant Exercisable period option 1 April 2018 the year 31 March 2019
R2018% R2019%
FhHERE 4A1R AER 3A31A
& 285 RHAH T3 1ieE RATTE BAR RAITE
HK$
Vi
Executive directors 51212017 5/12/2018-4/12/2021 1.02 3,060,000 - 3,060,000
HnES 5/12/2019-4/12/2021 1.02 3,060,000 - 3,060,000
5/12/2020-4/12/2021 1.02 4,080,000 - 4,080,000
Independent non-executive directors 5/12/2017 5/12/2018-4/12/2021 1.02 540,000 = 540,000
BUENES 5/1202019-4/1212021 1.02 540,000 - 540,000
512/2020-4/12/2021 1.02 720,000 - 720,000
Employees 51212017 5/12/2018-4/12/2021 1.02 6,942,000 (1,332,000 5,610,000
B8 512/2019-4/12/2021 1.02 6,942,000 (1,332,000 5,610,000
5/12/2020-4/12/2021 1.02 9,256,000 (1,776,000) 7,480,000

35,140,000 (4,440,000 30,700,000

Number of options exercisable at RRE AR ERESE

the end of the reporting period 9,210,000
Weighted average exercise price ETRE

(HKS per share) (A7 (5K) 1.02 1.02 1.02

Notes: 5T

(@)  The vesting period, which is the period from the date of grant to the first @ EEREREZGEBEH(ELBSHZEEME
exercisable date, of the share options granted is determined by directors of A48 HEREART) TR AR R A1 E IR
the Company at each time when the options are granted. Holders of share X PR IEREE T o ARIREARERT &I
options granted under the Share Option Scheme may only exercise their HZBEREZ A AMERTR A TITER
options during the exercisable periods as follows: AT H A ARAE -

Exercisable period Maximum percentage of (R AT {EEE A A
1A share options exercisable ZE=BDL
5/12/2018-4/12/2019 up to 30% THiE30%
5/12/2019-4/12/2020 up to 60% B8 60%
5/12/2020-4/12/2021 up to 100% AR 100%

(b)  During the year, the Group recognised a share option expense of (b) WAFE  AEEEHBEMBEE
HK$2,922,000 (2019: HK$7,004,000) in relation to the share options AN AR B R T 81 R 2 R AR
granted by the Company under the Share Option Scheme in prior financial fiE 7R B8 A% # B £ 2,922,0005% 7T (2019
years. £ 17,004,000 7T) °
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41. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior financial years are presented in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

(a)

(b)

The capital reserve mainly includes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

a debit balance of HK$7,340,000 recognised in prior
years, which represented the aggregate amount of the
non-voting deferred share capital of Chun Wo
Construction and Engineering Company Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, and the difference
between the nominal amount of the share capital issued
by the Company and the aggregate nominal amount of
the share capital of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to
a group reorganisation undertaken in 1993;

a deemed contribution of HK$10,240,000 recognised
upon the acquisition of the remaining 62% interest in
Mandarin Group Limited from a then director and a then
controlling shareholder of the Company during the
financial year ended 31 March 2010;

the amount of profit capitalisation upon allotment of
share capital of Chun Wo Foundations Limited (a wholly-
owned subsidiary) during the year ended 31 March 1997;

share of differences between the principal amounts and
fair values of the loans at inception of interest-free loans
provided to a subsidiary and an associate by a non-
controlling equity holder of a subsidiary and the Group,
respectively; and

a deemed contribution of HK$6,961,000 recognised
upon the acquisition of 40% interest in CPL from a
controlling shareholder of the Company during the
financial year ended 31 March 2020, which represented
the difference between the consideration paid and the
acquisition-date fair value of the net assets of CPL
attributable to the Group.

a41. &
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(iii)

(iv)
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42. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS
(@) Major non-cash transactions
() During the financial year ended 31 March 2020, the

Group had non-cash additions to right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities of HK$37,275,000 and HK$57,303,000,
respectively, in respect of lease arrangements for various
assets (2019: Nil).

(i)  During the financial year ended 31 March 2019,
HK$36,158,000 sales deposits received held in an escrow
account was applied for payments of construction costs
and professional fees in connection with the residential
development project (the "T PLUS Project”) located at
No. 2 Tsing Min Path, Tuen Mun, Hong Kong.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have other major
non-cash transactions of investing and financing activities
during the financial years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019.

42. ZEBRERERZMEE

() EXKBRERS
) HEZE2020438318 1E8
BFEAN  AEEEHESEE
ERETH AR EERE
EABEZIIEREAREDRA
37,275,0007% 7T & 57,303,000
BT (20194F « ) -

(i)  MEZE201943 A31HILE
BREEA  FHREEERER
2 B UK §H & 1% & 36,158,000
BB REZ RN ESE
FERE2ENEEERIE
B([FEHEE DAEBER
R REEEA -

Br BT ERE SN - B E 2020
FK 20193 531 HIEHBEE
N AEBIWABEMERKE
EREEHZIEBEERS -
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42. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities:

2. FERERBRZME
(b) mBEFFELzBES

Amounts Hire
due to purchase
non-controlling contract
equity holders Bank Lease  and finance
of subsidiaries  borrowings liabilities lease payables
AR AR HEEAR
FERRE RHEHE
BEAZRE BITEH HEEE 508
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
=3 Thx Fir Thx TEx
Year ended 31 March 2020 HZ2020F3831ALEE
At 31 March 2019 1201938318 38,482 2,754,146 - 7,180
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 16 RNEERBREE
£16%H 78 3.1 - - 38,431 (7,180)
At 1 April 2019 (restated) 201954718 (£E5)) 38,482 2,754,146 38,431 -
Changes from operating cash flows ~ B2BEHEZED 1342 - - -
Changes from financing cash flows ~ REBR&HEZED 19,765 143,554 (32,471) -
New leases g - - 57,303 -
Interest expense FBRZ 8 - 107,544 1,901 -
Amortisation of ancillary costs BERTERRHESEZ
incurred in connection with the FHHRA B
arrangement of bank loans 8 - 18,123 - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries KENELE I - 89,458 3,787 -
Further acquisition of joint operation  #—FUEEA £ - 14,651 - -
Deconsolidation of subsidiaries BUHMB A Rz A AR 44(b) (53,143) (268,766) (3,467) -
Exchange realignment [ R R - (5,505) (220) -
At 31 March 2020 ®2020%E3A31R 6,446 2,853,205 65,264 -
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42. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities:

42. ZERTREBR ZME @)

(b) mEFBREEABESD:

(continued) (&
Amounts Hire
due to purchase
non-controlling contract
equity holders of Bank Guaranteed and finance
subsidiaries borrowings bonds lease payables
ERHRBAR BEAOR
R IRE HEHS
BHEAZTA BATEH EREHR FERTFR
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
=3 FET FET FEx FET
Year ended 31 March 2019 BE19F3ANBLERE
At 1 April 2018 R2018E4 A 1R 7,239 2,710,969 39,000 16,807
Changes from operating cash flows ~ B4FELREZE 2,135) - - -
Changes from financing cash flows ~ BEBR&HEZED 33,378 267,540 (#1,263) (11,389)
Purchase of items of property, REMESOEENE -
plant and equipment under WERZEEE
hire purchase contracts - - - 1,322
Interest expense FBREL 8 - 83,584 2,263 iy,
Amortisation of ancillary costs BERTERRHEEZ
incurred in connection with R Tl o =
the arrangement of bank loans 8 - 15,327 - -
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—RBAE 44(3) = (323,065) = =
Exchange realignment & i % - (209) - @2
At 31 March 2019 201943 A31H 38,482 2,754,146 — 7,180
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42. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 42. 48B4 REXR M »)

CASH FLOWS (continued)

(c) Total cash outflow for leases (applicable from
1 April 2019)
The total cash outflow for leases included in the consolidated
statement of cash flows is as follows:

(0 HERSRHEEE(H2019
F4818#8EH)
HAGABSTFERCHERS

MR

2020

HK$°000

FET

Within operating activities ZHREEEEEF 1,566
Within financing activities ZHREEFEH 32,471
34,037

43. BUSINESS COMBINATION

In January 2020, the Group acquired 51% equity interest in ECO
Group Holdings Sdn. Bhd. (“ECO") from an independent third party
at a total cash consideration of Ringgit Malaysia (“RM"”) 19,890,000
(equivalent to HK$37,725,000). ECO and its subsidiaries (the “ECO
Group”) is principally engaged in the provision of construction and
other professional services in Malaysia, including interior design and
fitting-out.

In accordance with the share sale and purchase agreement,
RM2,983,000 (equivalent to HK$5,659,000) out of the total cash
consideration shall be paid upon fulfillment of the profit guarantee
provided by the seller from 2021 to 2023. The contingent
consideration is an embedded derivative instrument which is
measured at fair value through profit or loss. In the opinion of the
Directors, the fair value of this embedded derivative is not significant
as at the date of completion of the acquisition and 31 March 2020.

43. (S5t

M2020F 1R ASEBE —®BEL
FEZFRBESEBRIZERAERA A
(EBmDs1% 2Bk BEERER
19,890,000 H5RKALSEH 5] (HHE
737,725,000 7) - Em RENB R
AEERER) EENERADKE
RHEEREMEERY  BEERNR
FFREE -

BEROCEERE RESKEF
2,983,000 2% (FHE 74 5,659,000/ 7T)
MR ERE IRt 2 2021 FE 2023 F
I ERE S AT - ESAREAKRA
AOTETEWIEAFETABRE ©
EERAHBRANTETIARNKES
B HH 20203 831 B 2 AF
BEFREKX °
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43. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) 43. EHE 6t
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the ECO BEEERHRIEERBERINEEHE
Group as at the date of acquisition were as follows: ZRNFENT ¢
2020
HK$'000
FHET
Property, plant and equipment M - Hes RRE 15 48,497
Investment properties HEYE 16 12,936
Right-of-use assets FREEE 17(a) 10,005
Intangible assets EmAE 19 5,445
Contract assets BREE 56,537
Trade receivables 2 5 W FIE 28,726
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FARFIE - 'E REMEWRIA 11,063
Income tax recoverable AR Bl FS AR 899
Cash and cash equivalents Re kEESEMEIEE 39,993
Trade payables =) AR/ (21,534)
Contract liabilities EHBE (1,285)
Other payables and accruals Hoth FE A5 R0OE K FE ST FOE (40,192)
Bank and other borrowings $R1T R E A 85K (89,458)
Lease liabilities HEARE 17(b) (3,787)
Deferred tax liabilities ELEFIBEE 37 (803)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BATEEZ A BRI EE FEARE 57,042
Non-controlling interests AR e (27,951)
29,091
Goodwill on acquisition U B RS 2 PR 18 8,634
37,725
Satisfied by cash ER A RIREIN 37,725
At the date of approval of these financial statements, the Group had LA Z B Sz BER - AEEI
not completed the fair value measurement of the identifiable net AR FTUREE 2 Mt B A Al 2 Al 5% 5l & &
assets of the subsidiary acquired and the initial accounting for FEAFESE BWEEE EHEE
acquisition was incomplete. The goodwill on acquisition recognised STRIEBWARTEA o AEBRER 2 WS RF
by the Group represented the provisional amount estimated by the R EEM LI E TSR -
Directors.
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43. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) 43. £ S8t
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of the ECO WEEESEBEZRERESTWT -
Group is as follows:

2020

HK$°000

FET

Cash consideration RERE (37,725)

Cash and cash equivalents acquired BREZHEe RERSFEIRE 39,993
Add: Outstanding cash consideration as at mn:RERRREEZESNRE

the end of the year 5,659

Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of WHEMEB AR 24 REIRS

the acquisition of subsidiaries ZEEERANFE 7,927
Since the acquisition, the ECO Group contributed HK$32,557,000 to BINEEIBLNR BeEEANEEHY
the Group’s revenue and incurred a loss of HK$4,552,000 for the &2 E EL T 32,557,000 T 0 R
year ended 31 March 2020. HE2020F3831BILFEEERE

4,552,000 A TT °

Had the above business combination taken place at the beginning of W EMERESHNEYET  NEFEY
the year, the Group's profit for the year would have been 7N €F [ 325 F & & 93,857,000 7T+ M A~
HK$93,857,000 and the Group’s revenue would have been S® 2 & XREE 5 8,087,413,0008 7T

HK$8,087,413,000.
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44. DISPOSAL AND DECONSOLIDATION OF
SUBSIDIARIES
(a) Sale of property interests
The Group completed the sale of the following property
development and investment projects through disposal of
subsidiaries during the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019:

(ii)

On 5 March 2020, the Group entered into a share
purchase agreement with an independent third party for
the disposal of the Group’s entire equity interest in CPIL
together with a shareholder’s loan of HK$314 million
owed by Dingway to the Group for a total consideration
of US$44,018,000 (equivalent to HK$341.1 million). CPIL
held 45% equity interest in Dingway. The major assets of
the Dingway Group are parcels of land located in Miami,
the USA, which are held for property development.

The disposal transaction was completed on the same
date and, as a result of the transaction, a loss on sale of
property interests through disposal of a subsidiary of
HK$1,078,000 was recognised in profit or loss during the
year. Further details of the disposal transaction are set
out in the Company’s announcement dated 5 March
2020 and the Company'’s circular dated 24 June 2020.

On 19 June 2017 and 21 September 2018, the Group
entered into a provisional agreement for sale and
purchase and a supplemental agreement with, amongst
others, an independent third party, pursuant to which
the Group disposed of 60% interest in a property
development project, namely the T PLUS Project, together
with an outstanding shareholder’s loan owed to the
Group, at a net cash consideration attributable to the
Group of HK$500,060,000. The transfer of the
ownership interest in the T PLUS Project was completed
on 26 September 2018.
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44. DISPOSAL AND DECONSOLIDATION OF 4. HERBENE A RAHKRE
SUBSIDIARIES (continued) ARk
(a) Sale of property interests (continued) (a) HiEY=RERE(#)
An analysis of the assets and liabilities derecognised as a result R il i B IE i BUB R
of the above disposals is as follows: BEHEBEIFAT
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FEIT
Net assets disposed of: HEEEZFE
Loan to a joint venture m—EEERRER 313,993 =
Deferred tax assets ELETHIBEE 37 - 3,908
Properties under development BRI - 741,301
Prepayments, deposits and other TR IR ~ e REAM
receivables FEWRIE 28,224 6
Cash and bank balances R RIRITH R - 52
Other payables and accruals H b &3R8 K ST RE - (169,348)
Bank borrowings RITIE - (323,065)
Non-controlling interest FEEAR fE - (17,848)
342,217 235,006
Expenses incurred for the disposal HEMEAZRY - 7,380
(Loss)/gain on sale of property interests 3% 38 H & i B A & & ¥ 2
through disposal of subsidiaries Exz (BR),/ K 9 (1,078) 257,674
341,139 500,060
Satisfied by cash ERARNRREZN 341,139 500,060
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents as a HRALMEESEmMELAZES
result of the above disposals is as follows: FEIRSZEIEBER ZAAFED
AT
2020 AONIC)
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Cash consideration WEREB 341,139 500,060
Outstanding cash consideration HEZHREEZHERE
in respect of the disposal - (103,092)
Outstanding cash consideration in =~ RAFEEWEM —FEF
relation to prior year disposal HEFEHAEEZRERE
received during the year 95,629 -
Less: Sales deposits received for sale 3 : HE&E —IBY ¥R
of a property interest, net of ERHERS - Ik
utilisation for payments of EBANZTER
construction costs and X kEEER
professional fees - (189,425)
Cash and bank balances disposed of 2 HE& 2R & N IRIT4 - (52)
Expenses incurred for the disposal HEMEAZRY - (7,380)
Net inflow of cash and cash FERAHEMBARLHE
equivalents in respect of sale of MEER R R
property interests through disposal B384 Z(H1E B i AJF 58
of subsidiaries 436,768 200,111
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44. DISPOSAL AND DECONSOLIDATION OF 4. HERBENBARRS
SUBSIDIARIES (continued) ARR@)
(b) Deconsolidation of subsidiaries (b) BUEMIBRAGZRE AR

During the financial year ended 31 March 2020, the Group's
non-franchised bus services operation in Hong Kong and the
construction and other professional services operation in
Malaysia have been negatively impacted by the social
movements in Hong Kong and/or the outbreak of COVID-19
pandemic. In order to provide the relevant operating entities of
these operations with flexibility, namely Chun Wo Bus Services
(BVI) Limited (“CWBS") and ECO, to make decisions and
introduce measures to improving their operating performance
and efficiency, the Group entered into supplementary
agreements in first quarter of 2020 with the minority
shareholders of CWBS and ECO who have expertise and
experience in these operations in the local markets such that
the control of these entities are temporarily passed to the
minority shareholders of CWBS and ECO for a period of 6
months and 4.5 months, respectively, from the respective dates
of the supplementary agreements. In the opinion of the
Directors, these arrangements are in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole amid the social
movements in Hong Kong and COVID-19 outbreak.

As a result of the aforesaid arrangements during the second
half of the financial year, the Group lost control over CWBS
and ECO and hence they have been accounted for as associates
of the Group since then. Accordingly, the Chun Wo Bus Group
and the ECO Group were deconsolidated from first quarter of
2020.
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44. DISPOSAL AND DECONSOLIDATION OF
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
(b) Deconsolidation of subsidiaries (continued)
An analysis of the assets and liabilities derecognised as a result

44.

HERIBEMEB RATGRS

ABR#)

(b) BUHKMIBRARSZEARE)
EICNENEtEERESEE

of the deconsolidation of the Chun Wo Bus Group and the

ECO Group is as follows:

REARMBUERRZEERA
BT

ECO Chun Wo
Group Bus Group Total
el
Be&E Bi&E k]
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET F#ET F#ET
Net assets deconsolidated: BUEGAABREE 2 FE ¢
Property, plant and equipment YIEE - IS N RAE 15 45,803 51,290 97,093
Investment properties REME 16 12,109 - 12,109
Right-of-use assets FREEE 17(a) 8,899 303 9,202
Goodwill mE 18 6,857 - 6,857
Intangible assets EBVEE 19 5,291 267,110 272,401
Contract assets BHEE 65,681 - 65,681
Trade receivables 2 5 EWGRIE 28,364 6,969 35,333
Prepayments, deposits and TBRFIE - e REHAM
other receivables FEW IR 9,266 711 9,977
Income tax recoverable AR [ FTiSHT 993 - 993
Cash and bank balances BHe RiRTTHEH 13,844 4,348 18,192
Trade payables 2 S EMF0A (21,028) (2,258) (23,286)
Contract liabilities EHBE (1,613) - (1,613)
Other payables and accruals H i & (T R0IB K B AT UR (36,329) (2,975) (39,304)
Due to a non-controlling equity holder & — R FEIE AR AR
BEAZHIE - (53,143) (53,143)
Bank borrowings RITER (77,901)  (190,865)  (268,766)
Lease liabilities HEBaE 17(b) (3,159) (308) (3,467)
Income tax payables i GiREyi - (248) (248)
Deferred tax liabilities EETHIBEE 37 (785) - (785)
Non-controlling interests JEFR R RS (25,736) (490) (26,226)
30,556 80,444 111,000
Gain on deconsolidation of subsidiaries BUEMM B A RlGA AR 2
g 7 - 9,270 9,270
Exchange fluctuation reserve realised DRI 7 INER BN 4,784 - 4,784
35,340 89,714 125,054
Satisfied by: ERTAR
Reclassification of investments in BN ERHBARZ
subsidiaries to investments in associates R & AREE AT 2
BE 35,340 10,000 45,340
Reclassification of amount due from a EH DR B
subsidiary to amount due from NEIZ FIBRER—E
an associate YN e O] - 79,714 79,714
35,340 89,714 125,054

DM A ERERER AR 201920 3k
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44. DISPOSAL AND DECONSOLIDATION OF

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(b) Deconsolidation of subsidiaries (continued)
At the date of approval of these financial statements, the
Group had not completed the fair value measurement of the
identifiable net assets of the ECO Group as at the date of
deconsolidation and the initial accounting for the Group's
investment cost in the ECO Group was incomplete. The fair
value of the investment in the associate as a result of loss of
control over ECO recognised by the Group represented the
provisional amount estimated by the Directors.

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents as
a result of the deconsolidation of the Chun Wo Bus Group and
the ECO Group is as follows:

M HERBUEHBRARGRE

ABR#®)

(b)

BUHMB R RRE ARR#E)
REELEFBERRZBH - &
SEY REXEDEEREOBLR
BARAHZABAIEEFER
FEFE AAKERESEHE
ZRERARZ ARG REI R
TR o AEERZNZBE R
AzRE(RRXERESZZH
B2 A HERESMGTZERE
TF -

HEUEEMELEERESEE
SEAERMEL RS RERS
HFEBA ZRLFEIITAOT

2020

HK$'000

FiT
Cash and bank balance deconsolidated and BUBIR € MIRTTH e ABRU K
net outflow of cash and cash equivalents BUEMIB A RGRAEARZRE R

in respect of deconsolidation of subsidiaries

HIRGHFEER R FR

(18,192)

(c) Other disposal
In addition to the above disposal and deconsolidation of
subsidiaries as set out in notes (a) and (b) above, the Group
also completed the disposal of two immaterial subsidiaries
during the financial year ended 31 March 2020 without a
consideration.

As analysis of the assets derecognised as a result of the
disposal of the two subsidiaries is as follows:

(o)

HihHeE

bR EXXHIE (@) R () s 2 HES
B REUEK B A RlERE AR
AREETPEZE 202043 A31H
IEMBFEERERE D EMRHE
EEARHMBEAR -

F P H P e B I 2 ) i BUH
RZEBEEDHWT

2020
Notes HK$'000
KieE FET

Net assets disposed of: HEEEZFE
Property, plant and equipment e TS 15 158
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TN FIE -~ e M EAA RN IR 274
432
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBARZERE 9 (402)
Exchange fluctuation reserve realised B#IR 2 INER B (30)
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45. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following
contingent liabilities, which have not been provided for in the
financial statements:

(a) Corporate guarantees and performance bonds
given

Indemnities issued to financial institutions
for performance bonds in respect of

45. FAREE
MR - AEBAIAT SRR
WMERETIRBE ZARBE

() EEHZRAERREN
R

2020
HK$°000

2019
HK$000
TATT

FET

MAERETRENEERRBAL
Z BHRFE M A& BB (E

construction and professional services YR
contracts undertaken by:
— subsidiaries —MBAA 1,028,495 1,038,576
— joint operations — R 118,611 113,255
— a joint venture — —HEERAA 40,445 40,445
1,187,551 1,192,276
Guarantees issued to financial institutions gt —R& & A &) M B2 A 71 S
to secure credit facilities granted to a SEREmMRASBMEEELZ
joint venture and associates (note (ii)) PR (B EE Gi)) 1,515,530 1,210,530
Guarantees for property development MYEEREIBERRBEEAREE
projects given to banks which granted FEHEDE 2 AT RERE
facilities to purchasers of the Group'’s 2 ERITHRAR 2 AR (PR Gii))
properties held for sale (note (iii)) 18,216 65,660
2,721,297 2,468,466
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45. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)
(a) Corporate guarantees and performance bonds
given (continued)
In addition to the above, corporate guarantees were provided
by the Group to two parties as disclosed in note 33(a) to the
financial statements to indemnify them any losses and liabilities
that they may incur in connection with certain construction

work

of the Group in which the two parties have involvement,

however, the financial impact of the contingent liabilities that
may arise from these arrangements is not disclosed as, in the
opinion of the Directors, the estimate of which is not
practicable to do so.

Notes:

(0]

(ii)

(iii)

In the opinion of the Directors, the fair values of the financial
guarantee contracts of the Group are insignificant at initial
recognition and the possibility of the default of the parties involved is
remote. Accordingly, no value has been recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position in respect of these
financial guarantee contracts.

At 31 March 2020, the banking facilities granted to a joint venture
and associates and guaranteed by the Group were utilised to the
extent of HK$762,473,000 (2019: HK$460,670,000). The other
shareholder of an associate provides to the Group a counter-
guarantee in respect of the amount of banking facilities in excess of
the Group’s pro rata share based on the Group’s equity interest in
the associate.

At 31 March 2020 and 2019, the Group provided guarantees in
respect of mortgage facilities granted by certain banks relating to the
mortgage loans arranged for certain purchasers of the Group's
properties.

Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, in the event of default on
mortgage payments by these purchasers before the expiry of the
guarantees, the Group is responsible for repaying the outstanding
mortgage principals together with the accrued interest and penalties
owed by the defaulted purchasers to the banks, and the Group is
entitled to take over the legal title and possession of the related
properties through taking legal actions. The Group’s guarantee
period starts from the dates of grant of the relevant mortgage loans
and discharges upon the earlier of (i) the issuance of real estate
ownership certificates to the purchasers; and (i) the fully repayment
of the relevant mortgage loans by the purchasers.

The fair value of the guarantees is not significant and the Directors
consider that in the event of default on payments, the net realisable
value of the related properties can cover the repayment of the
outstanding mortgage principals together with the accrued interest
and penalties and therefore no provision has been made in the
financial statements for the guarantees.
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45. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)
(b) Litigations

(i)

In or about December 2013 and March 2014, a plaintiff
commenced two separate legal proceedings against a
subsidiary of the Company (the “Subsidiary”) and the
Company, respectively, alleging that the Subsidiary’s
termination of a proposed transaction in relation to the
sale of a commercial development of No. 8 Clear Water
Bay Road (the “Commercial Development”) and 49%
interest in the car park development at No. 8 Clear Water
Bay Road (collectively, the “Properties”) was wrongful
and in breach of a memorandum entered into between
the plaintiff and the Subsidiary in September 2013. The
plaintiff claimed against the Subsidiary and the Company
for the loss of capital appreciation of the Properties.

The above two cases were heard together before a judge
at the Court of First Instance in Hong Kong between
15 January 2019 and 31 January 2019, between
19 August 2019 and 22 August 2019 and on 16 October
2019 and 17 October 2019. The Court of First Instance in
Hong Kong has completed hearing of factual evidence
and expert valuation evidence on 22 August 2019. The
Court has heard the parties’ closing submission on
17 October 2019 and judgement has been reserved.

As advised by the legal advisers to the Subsidiary and the
Company, respectively, having considered the facts and
submissions made in relation to the two cases, the
Subsidiary and the Company each has a reasonable
prospect in successfully defending the claim and,
therefore, no material adverse financial impact on the
Group is expected.

45. SAREE»)

(b) FFea
(i)

R 20135 12 A AT £ KR
20144 3 AZkRifE « —&R
E AD RIRAR Rz — R
BAR([ZKMBAR]) kA
NRRFAMTERFR &
Tz B AR 2K BRI
EEKEBSR HERE
([FRxEBRE]) REKEES
WIEEIFERZ49% &
w(GBIZEWE] 22
ERGBBTEE WHEER
RENEZWB QAR
2013F 9 AR 2 =8k ©
R&E ANRRZEYEEANE
M5z i8R mZH B AT
MARERERE -

LR REMHE R20195F
1A158%2019%1H318 -
201948 A 19 H £ 201948
A22H A %2019 10 A 16
H K2019410 17BN &
BRINEREREE —RH#ETT
Bile BERNDNEEER
201958 A 22 B UEE
RERERFHEENR
F e JEBT B 2019410 A
17 BERAE 5 M &R
FIRB M o
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45. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)
(b) Litigations (continued)

(i)  Besides, in or about April 2014, another plaintiff
commenced legal proceedings against the Subsidiary
alleging that the Subsidiary’s termination of a proposed
transaction in relation to the sale of the Commercial
Development was wrongful and sought damages from
the Subsidiary. Both the plaintiff and the defendant have
completed the stages of disclosure, preparation of
witness statements. There was a pre-trial review on
3 September 2019. In or about late November 2019, the
plaintiff and the Subsidiary reached an amicable
settlement and the above case has been discontinued
accordingly.

46. COMMITMENTS

The Group had the following commitments at the end of the
reporting period:

(a) Capital commitments

45. SREE &)
(b) EFER(#)
(i) LA FR20144F4 B 3k Al
% Z—RREARZH B
NEIBFAEEFA - BHEZ
B AR I BREHE RS
BRCEBERIBIEE
WrZM B A RIRERE
R&E AREE AL TEE
B EBEARLE SR
E% o TWAIEBIZE R 20199 A
3H#ETT - R2019F 11 A
RIE - REANEZWBA
AIEERKNER - M LR
IMEREALE -

46. EIE
AR Bk A A I TR

(a) EREE

2020 PAONIC)
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FETL
Contracted, but not provided for: BERT#B R B -
Acquisition of items of property, IBEYE WS NEREER

plant and equipment 86,789 238,902
Acquisition of an associate Wehs — = A Al - 11,538
Total capital commitments B AR B 86,789 250,440
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46. COMMITMENTS (continued)

(b) Property development commitments

(c)

ERTAVERER
FEER

Contracted, but not provided for:
Residential developments

46. EIE #)
(b) YIEBREALE

2020 2019
HK$'000

TEIT

HK$°000
FET

680,279 2,121

Commitment for sale of a property interest

On 13 March 2020, the Group entered into a sales and
purchase agreement with an independent third party for the
disposal of the Group’s entire 50% equity interest in the Mega
Group through disposal of a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, for a total consideration of HK$116,900,000.
Deposit of HK$11,690,000 in total had been paid by the
purchaser as at 31 March 2020.

At 31 March 2020, the disposal transaction has not yet been
completed and hence, the Group’s investment in the Mega
Group is classified as a non-current asset held for sale as at 31
March 2020. Further details of the transaction are set out in
the Company’s announcement dated 13 March 2020 and note
31 to the financial statements.

(o)

HE—EYERR 2 AE
M2020%3 13 H » REEE—
BBILFE=ZFIL—NEEW
#BBHERAR—HEEN
BARIHEAREE R Megak E
Fr B50% 2 lx#E - B RE R
116,900,000/% 7t E A B B
202003 A3 B X e a H
11,690,000 7T °

MR2020F3A31H HEXSH
RSEAK - B I R 20204 3 A 31
H NREENRMegaE B 28 E&
DEAREHEE ZIERBEE -
ARG 2#E—TFBHNER
AIHEA2020F3 B 13HZAE
MRS RARMIFEST ©
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47. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

(@) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these
financial statements, the Group entered into the following
material transactions with related parties during the year:

Joint venture: SERNA]
Management fee income (note) EEBRA ()

Associate: kNG|
Management fee income (note) EIBBRA (F7E)

47. BERFE

(@

B EMBREEME D
L& Pl

itz
AEBRAFEANLRH

BHEMIATERRS

2020 2019

HK$'000

HK$000
FRET TATT

1,458 =

- 1,605

Note: The transaction prices were determined by reference to the then

prevailing market rates.

(b) Outstanding balances and other transactions with related
parties:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

— ﬂ Asia Allied Infrastructure Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019/20

Details of the balances with joint ventures and associates
at the end of the reporting period are disclosed in
notes 20(b), 20(c), 21(b) to the financial statements,
respectively.

Details of the trade receivable balances with other
partners of joint operations at the end of the reporting
period are disclosed in note 25(b) to the financial
statements.

Details of the guarantees provided by non-controlling
equity holders of a subsidiary in respect of certain bank
loans of the Group are set out in note 34(d) to the
financial statements.

Details of the corporate guarantees and performance
bonds given by the Group in connection with the
operations of joint operations, a joint venture and
associates of the Group are disclosed in note 45(a)(i) and
(i) to the financial statements.

Details of the acquisition of an associate from a
connected person of the Company are disclosed in note
21(c) to the financial statements.

Mk

BiREE

—
=

(iii)

(iv)

REGEBEDBEERBER TS
BIRERE -

HZANBRENEMR S

RBEMR - BALERAR
B2 R R 2 BREFHBDHIR
Eﬂ%i&%WEZO( ) > 20(c)
K 21(b) B E' ©

R - ﬁA“%$ﬁ
BB 2 B 5 R R A £
%%%M%ﬁﬁwaﬁw
B -

—FEMI B A R I AR AR
BARAREEETRITER
REERZFBHNRI B
FBIEE 34(d) °

AEBPRAREEE EER
—fRARZERFMBERRZ
RECIER 2 ARIERKE
MRS Z A BRI RA M
i 45(a)(i) K (ii) 3 58

AN R B A T U E —
BERRZFBRBHIHRE
B¥aE 21(c) #R5E -
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47. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued)

47. BEFTBE #)

() Compensation of key management personnel of the Group (0 AXAEETFTEEIEAEZEHH

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Short term employee benefits EHEERA 37,455 31,019

Equity-settled share option expense LARRAGEE 2 BEIRER 1,816 3,994

Other equity-settled share-based H Aty AR & E 2 AR D

payment expense BERNFR A - 2,300

Retirement benefit scheme contributions  3RURIEFI 5+ 24 3¢ 587 479
Total compensation paid to mEEFEABS XN EREE

key management personnel 39,858 37,792

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note
10 to the financial statements.

48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

Except for equity investments (2019: a loan to a joint venture and
equity investments) being classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, as disclosed in notes 20(c) and 28 to the
financial statements, all other financial assets and liabilities of the
Group as at 31 March 2020 and 2019 are classified as financial assets
and liabilities at amortised cost, respectively.

49. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined as follows:

3 the fair values of financial assets with standard terms and
conditions and traded on active liquid markets are determined
with reference to quoted market bid prices; and

o the fair values of other financial assets and financial liabilities
included in the Level 2 and Level 3 categories have been
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on a discounted cash flow analysis, with the
most significant inputs being the discount rate that reflects the
credit risk of counterparties.

FEEHFMNNE —PFBERTE
HERHIFE10 ©

48. HERE P 2T A
BoOBAERATEFABRZERIEE
ZBRAKE (20194 : m—EAEE QA
EFRBRAEE) (R SRR M 20(0)
T 28% 52 ) 4h - 120204 2201943
A31B  "&EEMEEMESBMEER
AEDARSEARRENTITEZ S
BEENKAME -

EMTAZAFERIFE
=EN

SREAERSRAEL ATEIE TS
FRERE -

49.

o RIEEFERRRGHRELNEER
BRSTEECSBMEEL A TE
T2EMSMBEANEETE : &

s HpemEERSBMABGIAS
—ERFE=FIER) < R HETZ
FEREREDMABEELZRR
EERAEE EFREZNH
ABEARBRXZHFEERR
HIREIR K o
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49. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 49. ERMTAZAFERAFE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) JE & &)

The Directors consider that the fair values of financial assets and FERE RN—FRNEHWEEEE 2

financial liabilities which are due to be received or settled within one TREENMBBEZATERESH ZER

year approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short BEHE TZEHRHETAEZHRE A

term maturities of these instruments. 5SHA o

Fair value measurements recognised in the REEHMBERRARERZAFE

consolidated statement of financial position Eip

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that TRE‘RFAEREUATEAEZS

are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value, grouped BT ASN  HZASBERATERES

into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value is B—EZ= -

observable.

. Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted . E—RAFESAENIRHEREE
prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical assets or KB ENERMSTIHRER (R
liabilities. KRR o

o Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs o FEMATEFTEIIBRE — R
other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are AZHEBEIN KBEESKBET]
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) HEGEIE®R) SkBEE(BABK
or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices). PTA ) BRI ABUESE ©

0 Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from . F =R HEFE T AL IERIE
valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or liability ] BRI S (FER] B R g A S
that are not based on observable market data (unobservable B EESBEZMERESE -
inputs).

2020 2019
Level 1 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 3 Total

EF—M H=R BE F-& F=& e
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
TExT THExT TERT THET THET TETL

Equity investments at fair IR FEFTAERZ

value through profit or loss A% A& 59 - 59 65 - 65
Debt instrument at fair value 2 A F{EzF ABZE 2
through profit or loss BT A - - - — 313,993 313,993
59 - 59 65 313,993 314,058
There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfer KA BRFERBAEMREE » 4
into or out of Level 3 in the current and prior financial years. B — & 7 MW E T E R R EHE
=R E A o
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49. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position
(continued)
Below is a summary of the valuation technique used and the key
input to the valuation of the Group’s debt instrument at fair value
through profit or loss in respect of the prior financial year:

Significant
Valuation technique unobservable input
EER EXTAEERARE
Discounted cash flow method Credit spread
FEREREE FERE

For non-current financial assets and liabilities, in the opinion of the
Directors, since their carrying amounts are not significantly different
from their respective fair values, no disclosure of the fair values of
these financial instruments is made.

50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s financial instruments include trade and other receivables,
equity investments at fair value through profit or loss, balances with
joint ventures, associates, other partners of joint operations and non-
controlling equity holders of subsidiaries, cash and bank balances,
trade and other payables, accruals and bank borrowings. Details of
the financial instruments are disclosed in the respective notes to the
financial statements. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (currency risk and interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. Management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented in
a timely and effective manner. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below:

Discount rate

49. €T A A AFERAFE
JE & &)
RESHBERARBERZALE

B (#)

AT R E— M REEREERAFE
FEABEIER T AGEMM G ERI
REBBHABBEZHE

Sensitivity of fair

value to the input

LIRS AFEHRABREZBBE

3.62% 1% increase (decrease)
in discount rate would result in
decrease (increase) in fair value
by approximately HK$3,140,000
BEREIE AN OB ) 1% 18 K
RYERD (M) K4
3,140,000/ 7T

RIRBLMAEREENE - EHR
B BRARABRLE A2 AFED
FEABA - RELBRBUEEHTA
2 AT

50. ST Ak EE B ERBEUR

AEEZERTABKE S MEMER
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BB R R BAERAE A 2
g M RIRTTHER - B REMEN
PR EETRIARRITER - ZFE2M
TRZFHBRUBRR BN ERE -
ZETRTAZABRREETSER
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It » BRERIEZFRMR < RN TX :

DM A ERERER AR 201920 3k —



Notes to Financial Statements

PSR MR

31 March 2020
2020F3 A31H

50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)
Market risk

(i)

(i)

Currency risk

Most of the Group’s assets and liabilities are denominated in
HK$ or RMB, which are the same as the functional currencies
of the relevant group entities. The Group undertakes certain
transactions denominated in foreign currencies, and hence
exposures to exchange rate fluctuations arise. The Group does
not expect any significant exposure to foreign exchange
fluctuations and shall use derivative contracts to hedge against
its exposure to currency risk only when it is required. The
Group manages its foreign currency risk by closely monitoring
the movement of the foreign currency rate.

Fair value and cash flow interest rate risks

The Group has significant bank borrowings and bank deposits
with floating interest rates which are exposed to cash flow
interest rate risk. During the year, the Group has not hedged its
cash flow and fair value interest rate risks. The Directors
consider the Group’s exposure to cash flow interest rate risk on
the bank deposits is insignificant as most deposits bear variable
interest rates which have not significantly fluctuated in recent
years.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates for variable-rate bank borrowings
at the end of the reporting period. The analysis is prepared
assuming the amount of liability outstanding at the end of the
reporting period was outstanding for the whole year. A 100
(2019: 100) basis point increase or decrease is used when
reporting interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 100 (2019: 100) basis points higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant, the Group's
post-tax profit for the financial year ended 31 March 2020
would have decreased/increased by approximately
HK$23,317,000 (2019: HK$20,447,000).

Sensitivity analysis on bank deposits is not presented as the
Directors consider that the Group's exposure to interest rate
fluctuations on bank deposits is insignificant.

Asia Allied Infrastructure Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019/20

50.

MBEREERERBX

(43 )
(&)

™ 35 ELR

0]

(i)

E¥ER

AEBARBDEERABEGIAE
THARBE BHEEEE
BZIMBEER — 8 - REBETT
HETAINESHEZR S FittE
FRE XX B R - AEEFEHH
AREEABEARIMNERB AR
WEEREFERERITEERN
HHEINERR - AEEEBE
PIERINEEREF) - BEHS
B o

DAFERREREFNREAR
AEBFEH X EHEKRR
TTIER R ERIT I X E R IR & R A
KRR - NEEAREEL EL
HIF & ME MR FENEE R
TTEE R - AR AER D 7 FUA
FENEGFE  MAFRRZK
PUFEX BREEFRRAEH
RITERZRERENERRIL
REK -

KB
THHEE D ITIRER RS HR
FRBITERZFERBEE -
REBEDONE - HRERHRE
MARRBEZARSENREF —
B AEE - 100525 (20194 -
100 E 80 R IR R EIEEHF
K2 EEAEEBFTEME  IF
AL T BEIE A B [EHF R
TR\ e B T PR R o

RRRFE EF TR ER100E26(2019
& 1008E) - MATEHMESH
HRFTE - NEBEZE2020F3 A
31 A LE T ERF B 2 BR B 1% 5 F i
&/ 4> 18 h0 4923,317,00058 7T
(20194F : 20,447,000/ 7T) °

HREFAR/ANKERITFRZ
MEREERI FNEK - FH it
E2RITERIERENT °



Notes to Financial Statements

PSR MR

31 March 2020
2020F3 A31H

50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk
The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its debtors and
amounts due from other partners of joint operations. The Group is
exposed to concentration of credit risk as a substantial portion of its
trade debtors are generated from a limited number of customers.

At the end of the reporting period, two (2019: two) customers of the
Group accounted for approximately 50% (2019: 53%) of the
Group’s trade receivables. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. To mitigate credit risk arising from guarantees
provided to banks in respect of credit facilities utilised by a joint
venture and associates, the Group has delegated a team responsible
for assessing credit standing and limits to the guarantees to be made.
In addition, management considers the credit risk exposure to
financial guarantees provided to property purchasers is limited
because the facilities are secured by the properties. In this regard, the
Directors consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

Except for the above, the Group does not have any significant
concentration of credit risk, with exposure spreading over a number
of counterparties and customers.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties
are banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-
rating agencies.

With respect to credit risk arising from amounts due from joint
ventures, associates and other partners of joint operations, the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from default of the
counterparty is limited as the counterparty has sufficient net assets to
repay its debts and/or a good history of repayment.

The tables below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure
to credit risk based on the Group's credit policy, which is mainly
based on past due information unless other information is available
without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification as at
31 March 2020 and 2019. The amounts presented are gross carrying
amounts for financial assets.
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 50. iR EEEEREE

AND POLICIES (continued) (#&)
Credit risk (continued) FEERKE &)
At 31 March 2020 7202063 A31H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12BARA
HIFEHA
BEEEE 2HWEREEER

Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F-HEBR F-EBR F=ER IGESS #st
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET

Contract assets* BREE - - - 3,333,744 3,333,744
Trade receivables* Z 5 REGRIE * - - - 951,828 951,828
Financial assets included in 5t AFE{I7A0E -

prepayments, deposits Re REA

and other receivables FEUFRIEHY

— Normal** — [FH ** 844,247 - - - 844,247

— Doubtful** — AR ** - 74,000 - - 74,000
Promissory notes HHER 180,000 - - - 180,000
Restricted cash and ZRHEE R

pledged deposits [EEEEE

— Not yet past due — AR EE 10,314 - - - 10,314
Cash and cash equivalents IR 4 K B3R 4

£EEHE
— Not yet past due — HAREH 1,134,824 - - - 1,134,824

2,169,385 74,000

4,285,572 6,528,957
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 50. i RS EEERBE

AND POLICIES (continued) (4&)
Credit risk (continued) EERK &)
At 31 March 2019 7201963 H31H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
128 AR
EOREEE
EEEE = HNTEEEEE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F—EER FREER F=EE HESS 5t
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET FET
Contract assets* ABHEBE* — — — 2,757,909 2,757,909
Trade receivables* H 5 FE W RIE = = - 983990 983,990
Financial assets included in 5t AFE{I 7408
prepayments, deposits R REA
and other receivables FEWFR IR
— Normal** — MEL &% 566,193 - - - 566,193
— Doubtful** — A[&E** - 74,000 - = 74,000
Restricted cash and ZRHEE R
pledged deposits BEEARER
— Not yet past due — AR EHE] 26,149 = = - 26,149

Cash and cash equivalents IR 4 & 23R 4
£E1EH

— Not yet past due — HAEH 1,829,856 - - - 1,829,856
2,422,198 74,000 - 3,741,899 6,238,097
* For contract assets and trade receivables to which the Group applies the * AEBEANSERETRENASNE
simplified approach for impairment, information based on historical ERZESERZENS  EREBAM
observed default rates over the expected life of debtors and adjusted for HEHANBEERAENBELOXRMG
forward-looking information as disclosed in notes 24(a) and 25 to the g WEAEMEEETRAEN SRS
financial statements, respectively. BB TSR 2= MT 5 24(a) R 25K B o
**  The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments, deposits *% BERNEMNKRIE - I1RE K E M EUWGRIE
and other receivables is considered to be “normal” when they are not past HEeRMEENEELSENADE WA
due and there is no information indicating that the financial assets had a EAEMPSSRPZEREED B HER
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the AREEERRBE BBE MR A E
credit quality of the financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”. | BB ZEREENEEESEWE

R TARE]
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk
In the management of liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by
management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. Management monitors the
utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures compliance with loan
covenants.

The Group relies on bank borrowings and equity financing as
significant sources of liquidity. Details of which are set out in notes
34 and 38 to the financial statements.

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the agreed
repayment terms. The tables have been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay. The tables include
both interest and principal cash flows. To the extent that cash flows
are at floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from the
interest rate at the end of the reporting period.

Liquidity and interest risk tables

At 31 March 2020

Weighted  Repayable

0. ¥ ¥EMREERERBEX

(4)
REE & B

EEERBETCARSE  NEBEEE
RMER—EKF2RE MRREEFER
B MEEERSERENRARELE
REESLEMRERENBITE -
B EEFRITERZERIBRALER
BFERREL -

AEBIKSERITERLBAREIELSE
FERBESHRIR - BEFBEHRIE
WARMITE34 %38

TERFANAKEFTESRABIRHE
EERIERDTZRIBEDFH - TRIR
BAKERPERRERZ AHRERE
BZARBRASRERE - ZFIRRA
BEENSEEAAEZHESRE - WiE
ReRnBREE  RERSBERBEH
RZHMEGFH -

RBESRISARE

720203 A31H

average  on demand Total
effective or within 1to5  More than undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year years 5years  cash flows amount
MELY  ERERY RERRE
ERAR -EREE -F2IF BREE REAE REE
% HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAr TET TAT TAn TAn
Trade payables EHREMNTE 1,675,458 134,266 - 15809724 1,809,724
Other payables and accruals H it e F0A 2 JE Rt 508 549,216 - - 549,216 549,216
Due to other partners of joint ERAEEBE D
operations — interest-free BHITE— 48 74,709 - - 74,709 74,709
Due to associates JERTE R AR 2 5B 16,556 - - 16,556 16,556
Due to non-controlling equity JER B A R SRR AR 2
holders of subsidiaries BEAZZE 6,446 - - 6,446 6,446
Bank borrowings — variable rates /7 — 28 377 1,697,734 1,309,148 3159 3,010,041 2,853,205
Lease liabilities HEBR 3.88 29,805 38,834 - 68,639 65,264
Financial guarantee contracts HBERED 762,473 - - 762,473 -
4,812,397 1,482,248 3,159 6,297,804 5,375,120
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

Liquidity and interest risk tables (continued)
At 31 March 2019

Weighted
average
effective

interest rate

METH

ERA=

%

Repayable
on demand
or within

HK$ 000
—/I_/éﬁf

MHEEREER

(%)

REBELER )

RBESRAEABEK(E)

M2019%F3 A31H

1105
years

—FE0F
HK$:000
THET

Total

More than  undiscounted
Syears  cash flows
RURHS

BBRF MELE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAL FAL

EREE

Carrying
amount

R
HK$'000
THET

Trade payables B AR 1,665,000 175,192 - 1840192 1,840,192
Other payables and accruals Hit B R E B 775,956 - - 775,956 775,956
Due to other partners of joint EREEEREM

operations — interest-free BHZTE— 4B 49,836 = = 49,836 49,836
Due to a fellow subsidiary of e —HAEER

another partner of a joint EtEHRZMBEAR

operation — interest-free FE—48 896 - - 896 896
Due to associates EfTBEE N a2 08 12,436 = = 12,436 12,436
Due to non-controlling equity FERMBA RN ERRE

holders of subsidiaries BEAZTUB 38,482 - - 38,482 38,482
Bank borrowings — variable rates  $R1TfER — 28 3.03 1,126,461 1,736,419 1,367 2,864,247 2,754,146
Obligations under hire purchase B A AR R ERERIE

contracts and finance leases 2.51 5,872 1,525 - 7,397 7,180
Financial quarantee contracts HBERAN 460,670 = = 460,670 =

4,135,609 1,913,136 1,367 6,050,112 5,479,124

DM A ERERER AR 201920 3k
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 50.

AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The amounts included above for financial guarantee contracts are the
maximum amounts the Group could be required to settle under the
arrangements for the full guaranteed amounts if those amounts are
claimed by the counterparties to the guarantees. Based on expectations
at the end of the reporting period, the Group considers that it is more
likely than not that no amount will be payable under the arrangements.
However, this estimate is subject to change depending on the probability
of the counterparties claiming under the guarantees which are a
function of the likelihood that the financial receivables held by the
counterparties which are guaranteed suffer credit losses.

Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are included in
the “repayable on demand or within 1 year” time band in the above
maturity analysis. At 31 March 2020, the aggregate carrying amount of
the bank borrowings classified as repayable on demand was
HK$1,623,277,000 (2019: HK$526,427,000). At 31 March 2020, the
Group did not comply with a financial covenant of a syndicated bank
loan with a principal amount of HK$864 million. Taking into account the
terms of the bank loan with which a financial covenant was not be
complied has been revised on 12 May 2020, as further detailed in note
34(c) to the financial statements, and the Group's financial position, the
Directors do not believe that it is probable that the banks will exercise
their discretionary rights to demand immediate repayment.

For the purpose of managing liquidity risk, management reviews the
expected cash flow information of the Group’s bank borrowings. The
maturity profile of the Group’s bank borrowings with a repayment
on demand clause as at the end of the reporting period, based on
the scheduled repayment dates and the contractual undiscounted
payments, is as follows:

HERBEEEEREE
()

REBELER )

AR BERANZ SEAT Y
FRIERIREREEHRER  AEE
BEZHA AR BERSHAEEY
BS54  BENBEHEAYEY &
EER A FATARBRHES T
AIEIE - KT - RIEMBHSEES S

B MAEBRELAEISEFRED
ERZMBRRFAELREERERZ A
BEMEHRE -

M BIR ESREEIG ZRITERR L
WMEERDATRHA [BRE RS —F R
B2 | BEEARR - 1420203 A31H -
DEABREREBEZRITERZE
BRE{E /4 1,623,277,000% 7T (2019 £F -
526,427,000/ JT ) © 7220204 3 A 31
H AEBREBTEASSEAR
864,000,000 7 7T~ — IA iR B & k8 BF
TERY) o MASE BARWEST 2 B 1524
2 ZIBITERIERE R 20205 A 12
BEAEET (340 B 75 3R = Bl 7 34(0) AT
— Sl RAEEZHBENRRL - EE
FEERITITER B ERENRER A
BEMTK o

REERBESRER  EEERIAS
BZRITERZBHRREREER - 1
BERR - REBEOEERXBDHREOR
BRI AREM A AR ERERF
REVRITIERB BT :

Repayable Total
within 1to 5 undiscounted Carrying
1 year years cash flows amount
RUBREE
A—FEREE —FZIF mEARE REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TFHET FET FET
At 31 March 2020 M202053HA31H
Bank borrowings with a repayment P AZEZ EREBIEX
on demand clause RITIEK 1,607,161 19,870 1,627,031 1,623,277
At 31 March 2019 M2019%3 A31H
Bank borrowings with a repayment M BIZ 2KEEEX 2
on demand clause RITIEN 523,985 2,801 526,786 526,427
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)
The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments for
non-derivative financial liabilities are subject to change if changes in
variable interest rates differ to those estimates of interest rates
determined at the end of the reporting period.

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it
in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics
of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders or issue
new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes for managing capital during the financial years ended 31
March 2020 and 2019.

Depending on the market conditions and funding arrangements, if at
any time, repurchase of the Company’s shares will lead to an
enhancement of the net asset value per share and/or earnings per
share of the Group, the Directors will authorise such transactions.

0. WHEREEBRFEREE

(%)

REBEEER®)
BRFAGEITESRAEFBNETA
B RRNFBRIR 2 BB RN IR E
HIRERE 2 fhat MR EF A EREEL

3T -

EXEHE

AEBEEAEENEERBRIRELRE
EREKEVERRENEARL RIAR
FEEBMEERTBRREENES

AREERBLOERBENSECREEEE
BRI A AR MR
B oo MRS AREANEE  AEET
BB FIREMAR S KBTI
3 o REZE 2020 K% 201943 A31H
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50. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 50. i RS EEERBE

AND POLICIES (continued) (&)

Capital management (continued) BEREE (&)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is total debts AEBFEREAEBLXRERERN &
less total cash and bank balances divided by the equity attributable REBELRNEER RIS RIRITES
to shareholders of the Company. The gearing ratios as at the end of AEERR AR R RIS R B s o I3RS
the reporting periods are as follows: HREARBELRNAT :

31 March 1 April 31 March
2020 2019 2019
2020 & 20194 20194
3A31H 4818 3A831H

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FET THET TAT

(note)
(HaE)
Bank borrowings RITE 2,853,205 2,754,146 2,754,146
Lease liabilities HEEE 65,264 38,431 =
Hire purchase contract and HESOLRBERE
finance lease payables & RIR - = 7,180
Total debts B HERE 2,918,469 2,792,577 2,761,326
Less: Total cash and bank balances B IR MIRI TR (1,145,138) (1,856,005) (1,856,005)
Net debts (G E 1,773,331 936,572 905,321

Equity attributable to shareholders of ZAN/NCIE & Ay o

the Company 2,462,238 2,441,602 2,441,602
Gearing ratio BRBELE 72% 38% 37%
Note: The Group has adopted HKFRS 16 using the modified retrospective Wiz : REEE FALET BT ERNE S

approach and the effect of the initial adoption is adjusted against the B REAE 165 BRI TE

opening balance as at 1 April 2019 with no adjustments to the comparative BEFt2019F4 A1 B 2 B AR A% -

amounts as at 31 March 2019. This resulted in an increase in the Group's 201943 A31 B Z L RE T & F LA

net debts and hence the Group’s gearing ratio increased from 37% to 38% P o HEREHUREE 2 ERIFEREM

on 1 April 2019 when compared with the position as at 31 March 2019. LAREE 2 EARBELEH2019F
3A31HZ37%E%2019F4 8182
38% °
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31 March 2020
2020F3 A31H

51. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 March

51. T EMB QAT F1E
AATEEEHTEARR2020F3 831H

2020 are as follows:

Name of subsidiary

WEARERE

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and business

Issued

share capital/
registered capital
BRTKRE/
AfER

il 311D
EE St

PRI T

Percentage
of equity
attributable to
the Company
ANEEN
RHEE 2L
2020 2019

% %

Principal activities

TEXEK

Bloom Team Building Construction Hong Kong HK$2 100 100  Building construction
Company Limited ordinary shares works
EREETIRARAA B 2B TTEBR BFEETR
Champion Surveying & Hong Kong HK$2 100 100  Surveying and
Engineering Co., Limited ordinary shares engineering works
EHARTIREERAR Bk 2B E Rk REREETR
Chun Wo Building Construction Hong Kong HK$600,000,000 100 100  Construction
Limited ordinary shares
RAMZEARDA 90 600,000,000 5 7T BE
EREL
Chun Wo Construction and Hong Kong HK$291,000,000 100 100  Construction
Engineering Company Limited ordinary shares
HK$9,000,000
non-voting
deferred shares
ERNBETRAEBAR BB 291,000,000 57T B
EREL
9,000,000 7T
ERZEETRN
Chun Wo E & M Engineering Limited  Hong Kong HK$90,000,000 100 100  Electrical and mechanical
ordinary shares contract works
EMEETIZARAR BB 90,000,000 % 7T BEAHNTIRE
gL
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31 March 2020
2020F3 A31H

51. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 51. X Ef B A B&FH1E#)

(continued)

Place of

incorporation/
registration
and business

Name of subsidiary

il 311D
EE St

WEARERE

Issued
share capital/

registered capital

BRITRE
EMEAR

Percentage
of equity
attributable to
the Company
AREEN
RHEE 2L
2020 2019

% %

Principal activities

TEXEK

Chun Wo Elegant Decoration Hong Kong HK$100,000,000 100 100 Interior design and
Engineering Company Limited ordinary shares decoration
NSRS TRERAF £ 100,000,000 7T EARTREE
AR
Chun Wo Engineering (Macau) Macau MOP1,000,000 100 100  Construction
Company Limited capital
KATI2CRFY) AR AT i da 1,000,000 2F5 7T e
B
Chun Wo Foundations Limited Hong Kong HK$19,000,000 100 100  Construction
ordinary shares
R ETRER AR BB 19,000,000 7T fe£
3l
Chun Wo Foundations (Macau) Macau MOP100,000 100 100  Construction
Engineering Limited capital
R E CRPY) TIRAR AR RFY 100,000,227t B
B
Chun Wo Group Finance (HK) Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 100  Provision of financing
ordinary share services
B BT ERER RERE RS
Chun Wo Tunnel Management Limited Hong Kong HK$1 93 95  Tunnel management
ordinary share services
EMBBEEFRAR B BT ERR BB E IR MRS
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51. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 51. X Ef B A B&FH1E#)

(continued)
Place of Percentage
incorporation/ Issued of equity
registration share capital/  attributable to
Name of subsidiary and business registered capital the Company Principal activities
TR ERK BRTRE AREEN
WELRER ERE &R REBDL TEXB
2020 2019
% %
City Professional Management Limited Hong Kong HK$8,230,000 93 95  Property management
ordinary shares services
BHEXREEFRAA B 8,230,000/ 7T MRE MR
AR
City Security Company Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 93 95  Security guard services
ordinary shares
W ERARAR EB 1,000,000 % 7T ERIRS
EEls
Full Fame Development Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 100  Property development
ordinary share
BEERERAF & 1T EAR MEER
Green Solution Interior Design and Hong Kong HK$1 100 100 Interior design and
Decoration Company Limited ordinary share decoration
HEREARF REEERAR B BT ERER EARTREE
Honest Kind Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 100  Provision of financing
ordinary share services
R#ABRAT BB BT ERR RERE RS
Smartwill Asia Limited Hong Kong/ HK$1 100 100  Property development
the UAE ordinary share
BETNERAR Syl 1BTEAR MEER
Vasteam Construction Limited Hong Kong HK$180,000,000 100 100  Civil engineering
ordinary shares construction work
services
EEREERAA] BE 180,000,000 77T TARBETEEI RS
EREL
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31 March 2020
2020F3 A31H

51. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 51. X Ef B A B&FH1E#)

(continued)
Place of Percentage
incorporation/ Issued of equity
registration share capital/  attributable to
Name of subsidiary and business registered capital the Company Principal activities
TR ERK BRITRE AREEN
HEAEERE S & A RHEE 2L TEER
2020 2019
% %
Wing Cheong Electrical Engineering & Hong Kong HK$20,000,000 100 100  Electrical and mechanical
Contracting Company Limited ordinary shares contract works
XEEFIRARAR £ 20,000,000 8 7T BEAHIRE
ARHESEHEREERAR PRC/Mainland HK$150,000,000 100 100  Property development
(note (ii)) China registered capital
(B5E (i) Bl R E A 150,000,000 7T MEER
A E A
;ﬂwm\{&tﬂ&é FABRA PRC/Mainland RMB 10,000,000 100 100  Consultancy service
(note (ii)) China registered capital
(B &E (i) hE/REAN AR 10,000,0007T B RS
A
Notes: B3
(i) All the above principal subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company. (i) B EEWB AR AAR A EEE
(ii) These subsidiaries are wholly-foreign-owned enterprises established under (ii) ZEWNB AR ABIBEFBIARKILZ
PRC law. SNEREDRE -
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the ERINBEER BT EFERNFTEEE
opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results for the year FEAEBREEFEHEELLEZARRNT
or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To B AR - EERAYHEMHEATR
give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the ZHBESRRABNILE -

Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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52. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL JOINT
OPERATIONS
Particulars of the Company’s principal joint operations as at 31 March
2020 are as follows:

52. TESEXRBHE

AEBEEFEELEEN202063A31H
SEL T UNNE

Form of Place of Percentage of
business registration/ attributable interest
Name of joint operation structure operation of the Group Principal activities
REXEKER REFBEX IM ¥ FEERGEZEINL TEER
2020 2019
% %
(note (a)) (note (3)) (note (b))
(M) (Kfit@) (Hztw)
CW — CMGC Joint Venture Unincorporated  Hong Kong 51 51  Construction
B — fIpkE FERBEA Bt £
CW — STEC — CMGC JV Unincorporated  Hong Kong 34 34 Construction
&M — LB — ke FERAEA Ei5 fe£1
Notes: B
(@)  The Group's attributable interest is equal to, greater or less than 50% in (@) AEEEGEREER  maRIERZ

these body unincorporates. However, under the joint venture agreements,
the joint operators have contractually agreed sharing of control over the
relevant activities of these body unincorporates, and hence all these body
unincorporates are jointly controlled by the Group and the other joint
operators. Furthermore, the relevant joint venture agreements specify that
the Group and the other parties to the joint arrangements have rights to the
assets and obligations to the liabilities relating to the joint arrangements in
accordance with the attributable interest of the Group as disclosed above
and the interest attributable to the other joint operators respectively, and
therefore these body unincorporates are classified as joint operations.

All principal joint operations engaged in construction works are contracted
to carry out infrastructure and public facilities related works in Hong Kong.
These joint operations are strategic to the Group’s principal activities in
construction works.

The above table lists the joint operations of the Group which, in the
opinion of the Directors, principally affect the results of the year or
constitute a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To
give details of other joint operations would, in the opinion of the
Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

EIRNAVEAEER 0% o A RIE
SEME  AENENBERRZE
%5 IF A RDE N B B AR B S B A 7
o E - ZEIFRAEABEREY
MASEREMmA ST KRZES - i
5h - RS EHEAT R AKERAE
LREFEADRT X 77 B 2 BRI LAt A
SEEH ERREMAETREZE
& ZRARERHMEREAE AR
EFRNERME At ZFFQFEAR
BROBAREER -

FBRFREETRNTIBESEEBKEE
R MR EBEBETEERARRIEE
B2  ZFEREEBHAREREE
TRENIZEHEMEE -

ERINBEERAREIBZEANFERE
SEAKEEEFERELEZAKE
BEXEK EFRARILEMAERH

Z

FE<RIBANITE -
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53. PARTICULARS OF JOINT VENTURES

Particulars of the Group’s joint ventures, which are indirectly held by
the Company, as at 31 March 2020 are as follows:

Place of
registration
and business

EMRERHE

Ownership
interest
FiE& ks
%

Particulars of
issued shares held

FBERTRN<HE

Name of

joint venture

RENFER

2,000 common shares of
PHP100 each and 9,000
redeemable preferred
shares of PHP200 each

2,000 RERAEBE 1005EEE FEE
HREVE iR K% 9,000
FREE200FEEELRRA
ERELR

Novabala JV Corp. Philippines 20

Registered shares of BVI 50
US$1 each
HMEAGR1ET

Mega Champion Enterprises
Limited (note)

GE RERKAEE

Note: Mega Champion Enterprises Limited has a wholly-owned subsidiary, named
Famous Smart Corporation Limited, which is incorporated in Hong Kong
and is engaged in the business of property development.

The Group's investment in the Mega Group was classified as a non-current
assets held for sale, as further detailed in note 31 to the financial
statements.

53. 8 A ElEE

M2020F3 8318 ' AEBZAE AT
(BARBIEERE) CEHFBHOT :

Percentage
of voting Profit Principal
power sharing activities
REREINL FBDAL TEEHR
% %
20 20 Design and
construction
Ret R2sE
50 50 Investment
holding
RERR

Mg5E © Mega Champion Enterprises Limited 2 &
BB ARIBMEHERAT  ZARAI
REBTMKIL RN EYEHERETR -

AL BN Mega & Bl W 1 B 1% 0 28 B 55
EHEZERBEBE - ARME—THI5
BN B IRRMITES -
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54. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL ASSOCIATES

Particulars of the Group’s principal associates as at 31 March 2020
are as follows:

54. T EHE N T FHS
MN20205FE3 310 ANER 2 T EHE

AT ZFENT

Place of Issued
incorporation/
business

Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Group

share capital/

Name of associate registered capital Principal activities

HEnTER

i A

BRI

BRIRE/
HEMEAR

FEEERS

REEDL

2020
%

IERH
2019
%

Vietnam Land (HK) Ltd. BVI US$25,000,000 20 20 Investment holding
ordinary shares
EBRAHE 25,000,000 % 7T REZMK
TR
TSCWPD Cayman Islands us$10 40 40  Property development
ordinary shares
REBNNELRE REHE 107 WEERR
LRk
CPDL Hong Kong HK$12,000 20 20  Property development
ordinary shares
BIMER BB 12,0007 NEER
b4y
&R
Clover Peak Limited* BVI Us$100 40 - Property development
ordinary shares
RBRZHE 100 £ T & @R NEER
CWBS BVI us$10 60 60*  Non-franchised
ordinary shares bus services
BB LR RBRZHE 10RTE B FEEETRS
ECO* Malaysia RM38,988,300 51 ~ Interior design and fitting
ordinary shares out and construction
e HRAE 38,988,300 F REGYET:
EER AR
Kwan Lee Holding Limited* Hong Kong HK$21,057,000 40 ~  Provision of consultancy
ordinary shares and structural
engineering services
BNEEARAR* BE 21,057,000 %7 REtHAR
LRk BETRERS
Acquired during the year * N E U
8 In prior financial year, CWBS was an indirect non-wholly-owned subsidiary & EMELTRBR E—HBEERKREE
of the Group and classified as an investment in an associate in current MEEEEZENB AR EATKREE
financial year, as further detailed in note 44(b) to the financial statements. WoBARBERNGZIRE  BHEE—

FSHBERT B RERH T 440) ©

ERINBEEARIEZEARFEEE
SEAAEEEEFERELEZ AL
BEE T - EFR/IHEMBE R
AZHBESRIEBANILE -

The above table lists the associates of the Group which, in the
opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results for the year
or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To
give details of other associates would, in the opinion of the Directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.
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55. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of the
Company as at the end of the reporting period

is as follows:

55. 2N 8] Z B # AR R 3R

RIBEIR - ARIAR 2 MR E
ZEHMT :

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FkRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M R NERE 640 20,630
Right-of-use assets FREEE 11,718 =
Investments in subsidiaries (note 51) R B A RIRE (BI5ES1) 1,830,878 1,759,016
Total non-current assets IEMBEE LR 1,843,236 1,779,646
CURRENT ASSETS RENEE
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables — FEfIIE - 174 K E 4t e Wy 5008 645 905
Income tax recoverable AR B TS HR 295 2,551
Cash and bank balances HE RIBITHES 7.529 10,047
Total current assets mENE EARE 8,469 13,503
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Other payables and accruals EL At S RIE R FE AT SRR 2,240 6,353
Total current liabilities mE) B BB 2,240 6,353
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEERE 6,229 7,150
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES ZEEAERABEE 1,849,465 1,786,796
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FkrnBEE
Due to subsidiaries FERB B A B FIA 699,083 697,083
Total non-current liabilities IERE A EEE 699,083 697,083
Net assets BEFE 1,150,382 1,089,713
EQUITY E=
Issued capital BETRRAS 183,833 186,339
Reserves (note) EAC D) 966,549 903,374
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 1,150,382 1,089,713
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55. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 55. R A B Z BT IR R 3k (48)
THE COMPANY (continued)

Note: The movements of the Company's reserves during the year are as follows: Wi RFEEARRRZEEESHNOT -
Shares held Share-
Share under the based
premium  shareaward  Contributed compensation Retained
account scheme surplus reserve profits Total
RERR
L4 R
REREE  HENRR AABH ; REER i
HKS' HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AL TAT AL TAT
At 1 April 2018 R2018%4F18 780,529 (18,197) 52,552 6,217 121,619 942,720
Loss for the year and total TEEERRAFEREFELE
comprehensive loss for the year - - - - (1818) (1,818)
Cancellation of repurchased shares HHEEERA (7,355) = = = = (7,355)
Share award expense R REET 394) - - - 1381 = 1381
Exercise of share awards under iR REH B EZ
the share award scheme HERIA 39() - 7,55 - (4,824) 2616 5,346
Equity-settled share option expense WRAGE 2 ERER 400) = - - 7,004 = 7,004
Transfer of share option reserve upon RRNBREREERRERE
the forfeiture of share options - - - (1,014) 1,014 -
Final 2018 dividend declared BER01BEERBKE = = = = (20,425) (20,425)
Interim 2019 dividend declared BER019FEFHRS 13 - - - - (23479) (23,479)
At 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2019 120193831 BR2019%4F18 113,174 (10,643) 52,552 8,764 19,521 903,374
Profit for the year and total FERRHRAEE2ENGER
comprehensive income for the year - - - - 111,076 111,076
Cancellation of repurchased shares I EERA (13,103) - - - - (13,103)
Equity-settled share-based compensation INRALE 7 MR AEEHE
expense V53 40(b) - - - 2,922 - 2,922
Transfer of share option reserve upon RRNERERBARRERE
the forfeiture of share options - - - (444) a44 -
Final 2019 dividend declared BER019EERERS 13 - - - - (15.561) (15,561)
Interim 2020 dividend declared BER200EEHEHHKES 13 - - - - (22,159) (22,159)
At 31 March 2020 R2020F3831R 760,071 (10,643) 52,552 11,242 153,327 966,549
< gl 2
56. COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS 56. LEELEF
As further explained in note 3.1(a) to the financial statements, the U SRR 3.1() E— S RE
Group adopted HKFRS 16 on 1 April 2019 using the modified RNEBMN 201944 A1 BERLERT R
retrospective approach. Under this approach, the comparative BT ERME BB REEAE 165 -
amounts in the financial statements were not restated and continued RIBUILTE - I HER 2 LR F I &
to be reported under the requirements of the previous standard, B - WHEBERECAIER BT E
HKAS 17, and related interpretations. BIZE17 R R ECRES
In addition, certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to BEoh - ETFHREFEEHHE - AR
conform to the current year's presentation and disclosures. BRFEZ 2N RIKE -

57. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 57. #t/ER B 8| &K
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by B SR E N 2020F6 A29HEES
the Board on 29 June 2020. BB KRR E -
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A FMBERE

Year ended 31 March
BZ3A31HILLEE

2016 2017 AONES] 2019 2020
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000
FHT  FET  FET  FET  FHER
RESULTS E4E
Revenue -] 8,541,826 8,810,797 8,231,055 8,076,048 8,000,800
Profit before tax B T BT i Al 349,720 235,947 230,200 165,161 113,940
Income tax FriS i (43,246) (30,126) (66,523) (24,066) (13,267)
Profit for the year INEEEF 306,474 205,821 163,677 141,095 100,673
Attributable to: FEAG -
Shareholders of the Company Z~A &A% 301,950 205,506 150,176 136,648 101,432
Non-controlling interests FEIEAR M 2 4,524 315 13,501 4,447 (759)

306,474 205,821 163,677 141,095 100,673

As at 31 March
M3HB31H

2016 2017 PAONES) 2019 2020
HK$°000  HK$'000 HK3$'000 HK$°000  HK$’000
FET  FET  TET  TET  TAR

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE

Total assets BEBTE 7,192,101 8,463,164 8,628,952 8,225,514 8,154,258
Total liabilities BERE (5,263,395) (6,217,904) (6,104,870) (5,751,364) (5,655,516)

1,928,706 2,245,260 2,524,082 2,474,150 2,498,742

Equity attributable to: FE{RRERS ¢
Shareholders of the Company <2 F]A& & 1,902,856 2,220,482 2,505,803 2,441,602 2,462,238
Non-controlling interests FEIEAR M 2 25,850 24,778 18,279 32,548 36,504

1,928,706 2,245,260 2,524,082 2,474,150 2,498,742
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES
EFEI

PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT/SALE BERR HEWE

Total

Total  estimated
estimated  gross floor
site area area

Stage of Expected date (square (square Group's

Location completion of completion metres) metres) interest
fhst  fhEtERE

i B R BEEE rEE

1t 2 T B j (£HK) (EHK) Frib s
A parcel of land located Phase 1 Completed - Residential, 111,554 219,990 100%
between northern side of Phase 2: Completed - commercial and (Phase 3)

He Ping Road and Phase 3: T1 & T2 2023 carpark

southern side of construction

Guang Hua Road, in progress

Shijiazhuang,

Hebei Province,
The People’s Republic of China

R AR HERE F—H: BT - FE BEK 111,554 219,990 100%
AR R FH: BRI - FES (F=H)
AN B v 2= R i R F=H 1R KR2% 2023
2 iR BREET
FRETH
Plot No. S5-C35 at Planning - Residential 2,425 22,715 100%
Shams Abu Dhabi,
Al Reem Island,
Abu Dhabi,
United Arab Emirates
BB B P A HLEL &l - £ 2,425 22,715 100%
Al Reem Island
Shams Abu Dhabi
Hi R 4R S5-C35
Lot Nos. 1770, 1771 R.P., 1774, Planning - Residential 3,075 6,150 100%

1766 R.P. and 1768 in
Demarcation District No. 3
Tung Chung, Lantau Island,
New Territories, Hong Kong

BEMARE LFBLE A&l - FE 3,075 6,150 100%
NmE34

HER 51770 ~ 1771 R.P. ~

1774~ 1766 R.P. 2 17685

Nos. 264, 264A & 264B, Planning 2022 Residential 536 2,679 50%
Prince Edward Road West,

Ho Man Tin, Kowloon

R X H FHEl 2022 = 536 2,679 50%
AFER

264+ 264A % 264B 5

DMBAERERAIR AR 201920535 WA




Particulars of Properties

RS

PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT/SALE BERE HEVE »)

(continued)

Total

Total  estimated
estimated  gross floor
site area area

Stage of Expected date (square (square Group's

Location completion of completion metres) metres) interest
fhst  fhEtEEmE

i BER EEEE KEE

1t B TR %N B o3 (FAHK) (£5K) FrikfEs
No. 35 Cameron Road, Demolition in 2023 Commercial 542 6,501 20%
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon progress

S FHIRETH 2023 [EES 542 6,501 20%
& 5miE35%
Residential Accommodation, Superstructual work 2021 Residential 1,692 7,966 40%
No. 128 Waterloo Road, in progress
Kowloon
Kowloon Inland Lot No. 1900

BEAER 5 1900 5% FETRRERTH 2021 = 1,692 7,966 40%
NEBITEE 1285
EERFH
The Cavaridge, Certificate of 2020 Residential 32,900 30,036 4%
38 Lai Ping Road, compliance obtained
Sha Tin Town Lot No. 579, in March 2020
Sha Tin, N.T.
HRDATHERE 5795 ER202063 AR 2020 FE 32,900 30,036 4%
BT 385k BREL
BEE
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MAJOR MEMBERS OF
ASIA ALLIED INFRASTRUCTURE GROUP
SNBSS EEREEERS

CONSTRUCTION
B

m  Chun Wo Construction Holdings Company Limited ”
EMZEZERER A A
= Chun Wo Building Construction Limited ‘fé‘ﬁ Fo
EREEFR AR CHun Wo
= Chun Wo Construction and Engineering Company Limited
BERREETIEFRAA
m  Chun Wo E & M Engineering Limited
EFEETIZERAA
m  Chun Wo Elegant Decoration Engineering Company Limited
EREREHTIRARAT <}$<\
= Chun Wo Foundations Limited ,
M ETIZERAF WOk B Ot M
= Kwan Lee Holding Limited Crry Services Group
BN SEEERAT
® ECO Group Holdings Sdn. Bhd.
EasEZERER AR
m R.J. Crocker Consultants Pte. Ltd.
AR AR A A

I PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT AND ASSETS LEASING
MERRREEAR ECO

®  Chun Wo Property Development Holdings Limited
MY RERIERBR AR

I SECURITY AND FACILITY MANAGEMENT SERVICES
REZRREEERYE
m  City Services Group Limited BINEEFRT
TR EE AR A T KWAN LEE HOLDING LIMITED
= City Professional Management Limited
W EXBERARAF
= City Security Company Limited
W ERBR AR
= Chun Wo Tunnel Management Limited
EBRNZEESEAR AT @ R.J. CROCKER Consultants Pte Ltd

‘ LA ot i) A7 B 2 ]
I NON-FRANCHISED BUS SERVICES
FEZED TRKE
m  Chun Wo Bus Services Limited

BEMELIRBER AR

I OTHER BUSINESS
Hith =%

®  AAIl Overseas Holdings Limited
MRS EREIMERBR AR ‘
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Asia ALLIED INFRASTRUCTURE HOLDINGS LIMITED

(852) 3798 5711

(852) 3798 5700
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